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Via Zoom Vi deo Conference
Monday, October 28, 2021 - 9:00 a.m

MS. BRENNAN: On the record, please. Morning.
My name is Mary Brennan. |'mthe Regulatory Affairs
Oficer for the Department of Health and Human Servi ces.
Today we are on the record for Body Art Facilities
Proposed Rul es, MOAHR nunber 2023-59 HS. |'mgoing to
i ntroduce our panel for today, starting with nmy left.
Kat hryn, pl ease give your name and your title.

MS. MOREHOUSE: [|'m Kat hryn Morehouse, and |I'm
t he Body Art Coordinator for NDHHS.

MS. BRENNAN:. Thank you. Steve?

MR. SCHM DT: Steve Schm dt, Maconb County
Heal t h Depart nent.

MS. BRENNAN: And | ast but not |east, Jeff?

MR. SAUNDERS: Jeff Saunders. | own Gamma
Piercing in Ann Arbor, and |I'mon The Associ ation of
Prof essional Piercers Menbership Conmittee.

MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you very much. And for
t oday, our own Rachelle is our transcriptionist, who
w || be taking down all of the testinony today.

Ckay. These rul es have been worked on since
2007. We -- this is our third public hearing. Third
time is the charmand the whole bit. If you were on the

work group, | want to thank you for all your dedication,
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particularly for the last 14 years, trying to get these
rules pronulgated. So let's nake today the day.

Alittle housekeeping: First of all, guest
W-Fi, if you want to wite this down, the user nane,
gwm rel ess, all one word and in | ower case,
g-Wi-r-e-l-e-s-s. Password is |ower case Z, as in
zebra, nunber eight, | as in igloo, zero, capital C as
in Charlie, seven, exclamation point, |lower case D as in
dog, upper case S as in Sam N as in Nancy; Z, eight, I,
zero, C, seven, exclamation point, D, S, and N

Ckay. Restroons, out the door to your right,
down the hallway. 1t'Il be on your right-hand side.
There's a snack shop towards the doors down here, sane
thing, on your right. It is on-your-honor. There is no
one there, so you pick what you want and you will pay at
a machine that wll take care of your needs.

Wth regard to today's hearing, if you would

|i ke to make a comment, please cone up to the podi um

state your nanme and pl ease spell it for our
transcriptionist. Please watch the wires. It's a wry
mess today.

If you don't want the formality of making a
public comment, but just want to ask a question, you may
do that, but I will probably rem nd you, if you want

this for the record to send over the |egislature, please
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have it recorded. Oherw se, ask any question you woul d
| i ke fromyour seats.

After you give your coment, you have the
option of staying or you may |eave. There was the
m sconception in the first public hearing that you had
to stay for eight hours. You don't. |[If you want to
give a conment and you want to get on with your day, you
may | eave. Anything that you give will be recorded and
sent to the -- excuse me -- legislature.

There will be a 15-mnute break at 10:15, |unch
from12:00 to 1:00. One block up is Washington Street.
There's a slew of restaurants that you can take
advantage of. |If you do not wish to nake an oral
comment or you wanted to nake an additional point, you
forgot about it, you have until Friday at the end of
this week to send to the admn rules email box. That
address is md-h-h-s, dash adm nrules, all one word,
a-d-mi-n-r-u-|l-e-s@n chigan. gov.

Ckay. Any questions before we begin? Very

good. Anybody would Iike to nake a coment, please cone

f orwar d

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Good norni ng.

MS. BRENNAN:.  Good nor ni ng.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: M/ nanme is Tammy Hadl ey;
T-a-mmy, Ha-d-l-e-y. | amthe owner of a permanent
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makeup studio in Springport, Mchigan, The |nage Barn,
actually. | started ny business in honor of ny nom and
her battle with cancer, and | provide free pernanent
makeup services to cancer patients. |'ve done this for
ei ght years.

| had no idea that these neetings were
happening and that all these rules were changing. |
actually found out when | received an enail two Fridays
ago. Called ny local health departnent inspector to
find out, like, directly how they would affect ne.

There's two of themthat I'm-- two things |I'm
concerned about. I'mconcerned about the use of not
being able to use topicals. |'ve done two weeks of
research, haven't slept at night, and | found out what
M chi gan says about topicals, what the FDA says about
topicals. And I've actually -- | have a print-off so
it's not just ny word.

So in March of 2024 the FDA rel eased a custoner
rel ease stating that topicals by certain conpanies were
not safe to use in large areas. They don't specify
necessarily how large the area is, but it's not in
per manent makeup cosnetic areas. |It's nore in, |ike,
body tattoo areas.

They state that 4 percent by their standard is

safe and -- but there are sone regul ati ons about that.
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They don't want them covered with plastics or any kind
of Saran Waps. They wanted to be on for a shortened
period of time, and they have advised custoners to nake
sure that those things happen, because then it's safe.

M chigan allows five percent |idocaine by |aw,
which is one percent nore than what the FDA approved.
And |'mjust here to ask for sone kind of consideration.
| nstead of banning topicals at all in the permanent
makeup industry, if we could maybe use four percent
instead of five percent, if that's what the FDA states
Is safe.

One of the reasons that this is so inportant
and passionate to ne is because | do cancer patients for
free, and these wonen have literally been through the
most horrific things in their lives. And to have to
come to nme and put themthrough something else, they're
not going to do it. | have talked to a |ot of people --
you know, | could go to a ned spa in work, but | can't.
|'"ve talked to two or three of them They won't let ne
provide ny services for free. | have to charge $750 for
an areola; one. W have two. That's $1500. They won't
let me do it for free.

| just -- it doesn't nmake any sense to nme why
we can't use topicals as long as there are sonme kind of

regulations on it. Now, | know that they're not FDA
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approved, but needle -- neither are needles, neither are
pigments, neither are any tattoo ink. There is nothing
in this industry that's really FDA approved. And as sad
as that is, it's a fact. W have to be educated, and we
have to make sure we're | ooking into products that cone
fromreputabl e conmpani es, and not buying a $3 pignent on
Amazon, spending $70 and buying froma conpany that has

facilities they test in and has strict criteria because

we're trusting -- we're trusting them
So | just -- | want to ask that, nunber one,
I nstead of just getting rid of topicals at all, maybe we

take up the FDA standards of four percent |idocaine,
have a sized area that is considered small by FDA, you
know, standards, and naybe take out the ability to cover
themw th sonme kind of wap or dressing, which | don't
do anyway. | don't know why you would. |t increases
heat, which nmakes it nore dangerous.

But if we wite those into the rules, instead

of just saying we can't use themat all, | know that,
like, for me, it wll greatly -- this will inpact ny
business a lot, and it will inmpact the wong kind of

people that | think have already been through enough,
and we don't want to inmpact them
So the other thing that | wanted to tal k about

today is the fact that | didn't know that these neetings
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were happening. And I'mnot putting the blane on
anybody. | always read ny emails, and | always go
t hrough everything that | can, but | found out that the
wor k groups were made up of body art facility owners and
not necessarily represented by a permanent makeup
artist. | don't want to nake the rules for what tattoo
shops do, even though we are under the sane |icensing,
because | don't know. | feel |ike that woul d be wong
for me to make rules that deal w th body piercing.
don't want a body piercer to nake a rule for ne, because
we don't do the sane thing.

And it would be premature and very
i rresponsible of me to make rules that represent
services that | don't personally know about or provide.
But to get everyone together fromall those different
I ndustries, | think gives a better representation of
what we do as a whol e.

The other thing that's concerning to nme is that
If we're listening just to body art facility owners, |
know body art facility owners that do not work in this
I ndustry. They're business owners. They have opened up
a body art facility, gotten the licensing for it, and
then they hire people to work there. They have no idea
what we do on a daily basis. They wouldn't know because

they don't need to. They just pay their fee and renew
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and make sure their shop fits all these standards that
-- that it is, and they're not in there every day
working with, you know, clients or doing pro bono work
or giving back to the comunity, or whatever, you know.
So, anyway, | just wanted to conme here today
and ask if, you know, ny voice be heard. And | don't
know i f anyone el se agrees with this or not, but the FDA
does have regulations for topicals, and if we could

maybe adopt those instead of just banning them all

t oget her.
MS. BRENNAN: Thank you very nuch.
MS. TAMW HADLEY: Thank you.
MS. BRENNAN:  Any di scussion fromthe panel ?
MR, SCHM DT: Can | just ask you one question?
MS. TAMW HADLEY: Absol utely.
MR. SCHM DT: You stated that M chigan allows

five percent |idocaine --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: By | aw.

MR. SCHM DT: -- for topical anesthetics, but
the FDA is four percent?

MS. TAMW HADLEY: That's correct.

MR. SCHM DT: \What |aw the state of M chigan
are you referencing?

MS. TAMW HADLEY: | went to the

M chi ganstate.gov. Do you want ne to find it for you?
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MR SCHM DT: If you could, because, | nean,
all drugs and nost type of products for the manufacturer
and sale are regulated by FDA. They're not regul ated by
the state of M chi gan.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Right.

MR SCHM DT: So |'mjust curious what you were
ref erenci ng.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Yeah, | can find it for you.
| do have the one that tal ks about in March of 2024,
what the FDA put out overall.

MR. SCHM DT: Yeah, that's the FDA warning

letter and --

MS. TAMWY HADLEY: Yes.

MR, SCHM DT: -- public health advisory. Yep,
absolutely. | know about that. I'mjust -- |'mjust

curious because you said Mchigan allowed five percent
| i docai ne, what you were --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Okay.

MR SCHM DT: -- referencing on that.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: |1'Il find it for you.

MR, SCHV DT:  Ckay.

M5. TAMW HADLEY: And | can -- well, | can't
obviously print it here. | can send it to you.

MR, SCHM DT: Yeah, that's not a problem

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Ckay.
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MR, SCHM DT: | nean, you can just cone up and
tell me whenever you want.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: kay. Do you have any ot her
guestions for nme?

MR. SCHM DT: That was the big one. And, |
mean, the FDA does regulate tattoo inks and pi gnents,
but they're regul ated as cosnetics.

MS. TAMMY HADLEY: Right.

MR SCHM DT: It's conpletely different than

the drugs --
MS. TAMW HADLEY: But they're not approved.
MR SCHM DT: -- but they are -- correct.
MS. TAMW HADLEY: Right.
MR. SCHM DT: But they are regulated, so --
MS. TAMW HADLEY: Right. Oh, for sure.
MR SCHM DT: Ckay. Cool. | just wanted to

make sure we were --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: | was just talking about,
| i ke, an FDA- approved product.

MR SCHM DT: Right. Ckay.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Ckay.

MR SCHM DT: Perfect.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Thank you.

MR, SCHM DT: Thank you.

MS. BRENNAN: Thank you. Next? Hi.
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MS. CHERYL JONES: How much time do we have to

speak?
MS. BRENNAN: Eight hours, if you want. [|I'm
here -- I'"mhere for the long run.
MS. CHERYL JONES: Al right. [Is there a way
MR SCHM DT: We're going full filibuster here.
MS. CHERYL JONES: -- to get on the internet or
MS. BRENNAN. Yes. Let ne give you the
passwor d.
MS. CHERYL JONES: Thank you. Thank you. |'m
sure I've witten it down. Oh, wonderful. Thank you.
MS. BRENNAN: You're a doll. Thank you. Ckay.

Name, pl ease, and spell.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. H . M nane is Chel sea,
Ch-e-l-s-e-a, Orico, Or-r-i-c-o.

MS. BRENNAN:. Thank you. Your comment ?

MS. CHELSEA OCRRICO  Yeah. | amnot sure what
menbers of your work group that you have. Can | ask
questi ons up here?

MS. BRENNAN. Absol utely.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. (Ckay. Have you worked
w th anyone with the Society of Permanent Cosnetics? |

know you work with APP, so just wondering if you've
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consulted with themat all.

MR. SCHM DT: Previously, yes. Not anyone
that's currently active in the work group.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. (Ckay. Do you have -- you
don't have any permanent cosnetic artists on your work
group at all right now?

MR. SCHM DT: The | ast one dropped out.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. (Ckay. How long has it
been since they've been a part of it?

MR, SCHM DT: Honestly, |I'mnot sure right now.

MS. MOREHOUSE: Yeah; yeah.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO  Ckay.

MR SCHM DT: It's been a m nute.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. Are you | ooking for people
to help with that at all?

MS. MOREHOUSE: So the work group is no | onger

SO -- because we -- the work group was to create the
rul es.

MS. CHELSEA ORRI CO  Cot cha.

M5. MOREHOUSE: O revise the rules.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO  (Ckay.

MS. MOREHOUSE: Because currently we have
requi renents, and how we devised this was we started
with the current requirenments docunent and revised it.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. CGotcha. | worked in the
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body art industry for 10 years. | do body art and |
al so do permanent cosnmetics. | do feel like there is a

| ot of roomfor nore that could be done with the
per manent cosnetics part of your regulations. | also
kind of want to echo a little bit what she said about
how nmuch that's going to inpact that part of the
I ndustry.

| would -- | think a safe estinmate woul d be at
| east 50 percent of the people that get permanent
cosnetics are not going to get it if they can't use any
kind of nunbing agent, or you're going to have people
who are trying to apply it thenselves, at honme with
henorrhoi d cream anal nunbing agents, Bactine, things
like that. | don't think the Bactine is really going to
do much if they spray it on thenselves, but nmy point is,
Is that | think you' re going to have clients, both in
body art and permanent cosnetics, that are applying
t hese things on their own, without any instruction or
gui dance, and I'mjust a little nervous for how that
m ght end up inpacting us or falling back the service
provi der.

MR. SCHM DT: So there are two additions in the
current proposed rule set regardi ng nunbing creans,
topi cal anesthetics. One, specifically, is stating that

the artist cannot apply; right? You're not allowed to
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apply it.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO  Right.

MR. SCHM DT: The other rule states that you're
not allowed to work on a client where it's not applied
MS. CHELSEA ORRICO  How do | know --

MR. SCHM DT: -- talking about the hone arti st
-- or the person applying it at home before they cone
I n.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. But let's say sonebody
applies it at honme, like the client applies it at hone.
Because | know that people are going to do this,
especially for body art. They apply at hone and they
come in. Sonetimes you can tell the difference in the
skin, but sonetines you can't. So how do | know t hat
they didit? And then they're also, like -- these are
regulations for licensing. So they're not, |ike, bound
to that |icensing.

MR SCHM DT: Correct.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO Right.

MR. SCHM DT: We can't hold the general public
account abl e.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. So we just put it in our
consent formthat they agree that they haven't applied

anything, and trust that they're being honest?
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MR. SAUNDERS: That woul d be ny nove, yeah.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. (Okay. | do have anot her
question. Is titanium as long as it neets the ASTM
standard, still allowed for piercing?

MR, SCHM DT: Absol utely.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO  Ckay.

MR, SCHM DT: Yeah, we -- put a general rule in
there for all of any of the products that are ASTM or
| SO regul ated for inplant grade, they're all allowed.
We put it as a general statenent, so when new standards
come out in the future, you're not hold to just the old
standards; right?

MS. CHELSEA ORRI CO.  CGot cha.

MR, SCHM DT: The only ones we added were gold
ni obi um because they don't have current ASTMor | SO
st andards.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO  Ckay.

MR SCHM DT: So we specifically listed the
requi renents for those because ASTM or | SO don't exi st,
but we still want to allow themfor initial piercing.

MS. CHELSEA ORRI CO.  CGot cha.

MR, SCHM DT: Anything else, as long as it
meets the ASTM or | SO standard for inplant grade, you're
al l owed to use.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO  Ckay.
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MR, SAUNDERS: One of the weird things with
metals is that there are so many netal s that neet the
ASTM and | SO standards that don't nmake pretty jewelry.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO  Right.

MR, SAUNDERS: So you never know when soneone
m ght introduce a new -- a new version, because they're
like, "Ch, we figured out a way to make jewelry out of
this."

MS. CHELSEA ORRI CO.  Uh-huh; okay. So if you
don't have the work group anynore, what if there are,
| i ke, things that the industry thinks should change
wthin the regulations? Wuld we just enail soneone or

MS. MOREHOUSE: You can al ways reach out to
bodyart @n chi gan. gov.

MS. CHELSEA ORRI CO.  Uh- huh.

M5. MOREHOUSE: You can also -- because it's
the law, you can reach out to your | ocal
representatives, state representatives.

MS. CHELSEA ORRI CO  Uh- huh; okay.

M5. MOREHOUSE: Because it takes an act of
| egi sl ation to change the | aw

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. CGot it. Ckay. Al right.
That's it. Thank you.

MS. BRENNAN. Thank you.
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MR, SCHM DT: Thank you.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Can | neke a comment on
sonet hi ng wi t hout goi ng back up?

MS. BRENNAN: |f you'd like to. You don't want
it recorded?

MS. TAMW HADLEY: |t doesn't matter.

MS. BRENNAN:. Ckay.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: | just want to say that
we're sitting here, listening to this about topicals and
clients applying themat home, and, yes, we're going to
use, you know, maybe nore stringent forns to nmake sure
that we're covered, but it's not really about us; right?
It's not about making sure we're covered. |It's about
providing the best quality service to our clients. Just
because we're covered legally, that's not really what
it's about for me. So if my client comes in with
sonething on, |like you said, and we can't -- we -- nost
of the tine we can know, but there are tinmes you don't
know.

If a -- if an adverse reaction happens, |'m
going to be like, "Oh, I'mcovered because | got an
attorney and | got this form" but | don't give a crap
If I'"mcovered. | care about the quality of service and
what happens to this person that trusted me with the

service, and was forced to do sonething that they
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shoul dn't have had to do, because we can't just regul ate

it. That -- that's -- you know, we tal k about
protecting ourselves, yeah, | think that's great, but |
don't -- | do this because it's ny passion. | have a
really nice daytime job that | left to cone to. | do
thisis as -- this is what |'m passionate about. |
don't care about how it affects nme legally. | care

about how it affects the person sitting across from you
know, the person who's trusting me, the person who spent
however |ong, saving up the noney to cone in to feel
beauti ful about because, you know, they |ost their
eyebrows during chenp and they never cane back, or what-
-- whatever we all feel unbeautiful about.

And, you know, | don't know. | just -- yes, it
protects us legally, but it's not really about the |egal
aspect of it. To nme, it's about the fact that we're
providing a good service, and if we don't know, we can
be protected legally by all the forns and attorneys we
have on board, but it's not really protecting them And
they're being put in a position to have to do sonething
and conprom se the integrity of a procedure, because we
didn't do our job to nmake sure they had a safe
alternative to it.

And | did look up the five percent. So five

percent is old -- an old information that | had, because
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when -- in March 2024, the FDA canme out with the four
percent, it obviously changed it across the board. So |
apol ogi ze for that.

MR. SCHM DT: The FDA has al ways four percent
for considering it over-the-counter; right?

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Right.

MR, SCHM DT: Because that's what we're really
diving into. Over-the-counter is approved that way by
the FDA. It's still a drug product, but it's intended
for self-diagnosis and use; right?

M5. TAMW HADLEY: Correct.

MR. SCHM DT: Because directions for use can be
made so that any general |ay person can understand that.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Correct.

MR. SCHM DT: None of these products are
approved for tattooing, cosnetic tattooing, painful
procedures, or anything |ike that, meani ng anyone's use
of them whether it's the client or yourself, is an
of f-1abel use of that product.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Correct.

MR SCHM DT: Ckay. |I'mjust nmaking sure we're
on the sane page.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: No, |I'm-- | understand
t hat .

MR SCHM DT: The liability for the artist,
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tal ki ng about that section of the rule, like yourself as
an artist applying it. The problemis, it really falls
under the definition in Mchigan Conpiled Laws, the
practice of nedicine, because what we're doing is either
trying to relieve pain that's already happened or
prevent future pain; correct?

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Correct.

MR. SCHM DT: Absolute intended use of these
products. The practice of nedicine neans the diagnosis,
treatment, prevention, cure or relieving of a hunman
di sease, ailnment, defect, conplaint or other physical or
mental condition. Your use of that product falls under
the practice of medicine, which is required that you
have a license, like name MD. or a D.O; right? Like,
you guys are putting yourself at risk by applying this
yoursel f.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: But if it's over-the-counter
-- if | have a client come in --

MR SCHM DT: It's an off-|abel use
over-the-counter. Just because you can buy it doesn't
mean you can use it; right? Like |I would assune, just
because you can buy it at CVS doesn't mean you can use
it in those procedures. The risk, because --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: What about G een Soap?

MR. SCHM DT: Geen Soap is not a drug.
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MS. TAMW HADLEY: It's listed --

MS. CHERYL JONES: |s there an SDS sheet for
it?

MS. TAMW HADLEY: | don't know.

MR. SCHM DT: Well, there should be an SDS
sheet for everything.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: | nmean, | don't have it --

MR SCHM DT: | mean, Wndex --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: | don't have it handy.

MR, SCHVI DT: Right.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: But | have a FDA, they

reconmmend consunmers not use -- they -- they are. Hold
on. That was ny |idocaine. Yeah, | nmean, there's a
sheet on it. It says that the FDA does not approve this

for certain services, including what we all use it for,
because side effects can be trouble breathing, throat
swel ling, fever, vomting and skin blistering, but we
all use it. | nean, |I'mjust saying that just because
sonmething isn't -- the isopropyl alcohol --

MS. CHERYL JONES: And it's approved by the
heal th departnment; and it's approved by the health
depart ment .

MR. SCHM DT: \What is?

MS. CHERYL JONES: Well, Geen Soap.

MR SCHM DT: Well, sure. | nmean, G een Soap
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just Green Soap. It's a skin cleanser. That's
regul ated conpletely different than a drug product
because of the intended use or outcome of the use of
t hat product.

MS. BRENNAN: Can | interrupt right now? This
I's being recorded. Can you give your nane for the --
Rachel | e?

MS. CHERYL JONES: M legal nane is Cheryl

Jones.

THE REPORTER  Wth an S or a C

MS. CHERYL JONES: C h.

MS. BRENNAN. Thank you. Go on. |'msorry to
I nterrupt.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: | don't have anything el se
to say. | just wonder if there is any way we can find a

way around it so we're just not conprom sing the
integrity of the people that cone in that will use it
anyway.

MR, SAUNDERS: Sure. One conment that -- with
-- with the current state of things, not having on a
release form-- let's say tonorrow we're just like, "You
know what ? Take out all the nunbing stuff,” you stil
m ght want to have that on your rel ease form because
you don't know if people cone in having put it on

bef orehand anyway. W're assumng --
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MS. TAMW HADLEY: It's already on ny rel ease
form

MR. SAUNDERS: Exactly. So it's not really a
bi g change, but, Iike, doubling up on sonething |like
that could be dangerous. So it just nmakes sense, not
just from-- you know, you were neking the point that
you want to -- you want to be able to do numbi ng agents
for the client's purposes, and | understand where you're
comng from The other -- but protecting yourself is
al so protecting the client; right?

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Onh, for sure.

MR, SAUNDERS:. So, you know, making sure you're
not doubling up on things like that, | think is well
worth your tine.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Yeah, it's already on ny
form M -- ny thing was just that it's not -- nost of
us don't go about this just |ooking at -- obviously, we
have to keep the legal aspect in mnd and stay up within
the paraneters of the law, but it's also about, |ike,
our clients and, you know, what's best for themand --
and all the way from making sure they're not doubling
up, to make sure they're confortable during the
procedure if possible.

MR, SAUNDERS: Sure.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: | nean, is there any way
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around -- | don't nmean around, like, illegally around,
but is there any consideration that can be given to any
of this?

MR SCHM DT: | nean, there is a lot of
conversation about this, and the two rules that are in
the current proposed rule set really isn't sonething
that was made up specific for body art. It's really a
conpi lation of all the existing |legal framework between
the state of M chigan, the FDA and what everything
means. And it's really just the consolidation and the
clarification.

Al'l of these existing |egal frameworks exist.
They' ve been around for a long tine. There's no
proposed change. Talking with the FDA, they have no
future plans on ever approving these for use of these
procedures because of a whole |ot of things as an
over-the-counter product. And once you change sonething
fromthe directions for use -- right? -- like, you have
a lot of bad products out there, nunber one; right?

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Absol utely.

MR. SCHM DT: Cbviously, the ones that are too
strong, the ones that specifically say "For tattooing,"
those are in violation of FDA standards.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Right.

MR, SCHM DT: They're not allowed to put that
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on there. So what you're using, or what your client is
using, is, yeah, it's an anorectal drug product. It's
sone ot her type of topical anesthetic for pain, bug
bites, whatever it is. None of these are regul at ed
because they're not considered safe for tattooing;
right? They've never been proven to be safe for
tattooi ng per the FDA

So all of these are the two newrules. It's
just existing legal framework that, even if we got rid
of it, that legal framework still exists.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: But the FDA, the sheet that
| have, says, "Do not use OTC pain relief products with
more than four percent |idocaine on your skin. Do not
apply OIC pain relief products heavily over |arge areas
of skin or irritated. Do not wap a treated area with"
-- | mean, they're pretty specific on what they say they
consi der safe because, | nean, it's on their sheet.

MR SCHM DT: Right.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: So what if we use four
percent or less? Wat if we don't use it on a large

area of skin? Wat if we don't wap it or dress it?

Then we're --
MR SCHMDT: [I'mjust letting you know that's
still an off-|abel use. They're talking about products

because directions for use are approved in a nmonograph
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by the FDA with specific statenments that you' re all owed
to use for directions for use.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Ckay. But what |'m saying
Is, if they printed this and said that this is what
they' re reconmmendi ng for consuners, and this is in -- on

a sheet for permanent cosnetics. This is what they're
tal king about in this sheet. It's not |ike any other --
and they've actually listed sone conpani es that have

m sl abel i ng, not use those.

MR. SCHM DT: Yeah, there is a bunch of warning
letters on --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Yeah. But |I'm-- like, this
isn't tal ki ng about anything el se except pernanent
cosnetics. |It's saying that these -- these are the
things that they recommend -- recomend when using their
products for permanent cosnetic.

MR. SCHM DT: Yeah, those warning letters, that
was for tattooing, pernmanent cosnetic, the whole kit and
caboodle. It was not specifically just to cosnetic
t att ooi ng.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Right. But |'mjust saying,
| mean, what if we -- what if we were allowed to do
that, follow what the FDA reconmended?

MR, SCHM DT: Are you followi ng the directions

for use that's on a | abel on a product?
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MS. TAMW HADLEY: Wat do you nean?

MR SCHM DT: Like, if you're applying a
t opi cal anesthetic, are you follow ng the directions
fromuse for what it's being used for?

MS. TAMW HADLEY: | nean, the directions that
| read on ny packaging, yes. But can | sit here and
tell you that | read the directions that are printed on
t he packaging -- |ike, packaging, just |ike anything
el se? | nean, | don't know who printed those and |
didn't know -- | don't know what research went into
that. | have to trust the conpany that |I'mbuying it
from | have to do nmy research on reputabl e conpanies
and repeat abl e products.

MR SCHMDT: | nean, all | can tell you is
that there is no product, over-the-counter, whatever,
that's approved for use in tattooing, painful
procedures, things like that. So if the directions for
use are telling you that, that's a new drug or a
m sbranded product, because it says that. Oherw se
you're not followng the directions for use on that
product, because it's going to say, "For anorectal
di sorders,™ or "The tenporary relief of pain and itching
associated with bug bites,"
MS. TAMW HADLEY: Right.

MR. SCHM DT: -- those other things. Like,

or any of --
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that -- that's the legal hiccup we're in.
MR. SAUNDERS: And then the other --
MS. TAMW HADLEY: | don't understand, because

this is addressing that very thing. This -- this --
this FDA news rel ease is addressing topical use for
cosnetic procedures. And they -- it's no -- you're
right. It's not just permanent naking procedures. |It's
m croder mabrasi on, |aser renoval, tattooing, piercing.
Soit's -- it's talking about all of them but it's

sayi ng, "Some of these products are |abeled to contain

i ngredients such as |idocaine." So basically, people
are saying that they have a | ower percentage than they
actual ly have.

So they're saying, "These are the paraneters

that we say are safe to use." And it -- | nean, it's
very, very clear what it says. It says, "Four percent.”
It says, "Not a large area." It says, "Don't wap or
use a dressing.” |If | follow these rules, am | breaking
the | aw?

MR SCHM DT: That would be, |ike we tal ked
about, the definition of practice of nedicine, but
especi al |y because, once again, the FDA approves
products; right?

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Correct.

MR SCHM DT: O f-label use, nmeaning you're
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using it for sonething other than what it's FDA approved
for, is also the practice of nmedicine, and that falls
under heal thcare providers; right? Like they -- doctors
get to do that because they can take a client history.
They know their nedical conditions. They can actually
provi de a dosage of grams or mlliliters per square
neter of skin area on broken or non-intact skin, |ike,
"COh, those things need a prescription," because it's an

of f -1 abel use.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Correct. | nmean, the bottle
that | have does -- does say -- | nean, it does give nme
the instructions for howto use it. |, actually, don't

need to use it for the amount of tine that it all ows ne,

up to five mnutes. Usually, after two mnutes, |'m
doi ng great.

MR SCHM DT: Ckay. I'mtelling you, if that
product says, on the box, on the |abel, that -- to use

it before or during the tattoo or cosnetic tattoo
procedure, that product is in violation of FDA standards
and woul d be consi dered a new drug because we changed
its directions for use, or, if it's just represented
that way on the website, but the bottle is fine, that
woul d be a m sbranding violation, per the FDA

In all of their nmonographs regarding all of

t hese products, tattooing, painful procedures, cosnetic
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tattooi ng, mcroblading, whatever we want for out there,
none of these have been approved as approved uses for
any of these products, per all of the nonographs that
are in the Code of Federal Registers for the FDA. So
It's either a bad product or you're using an approved
product in an off-Iabel manner.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: But |I'msaying | don't know

that. | don't know that when | read FDA docunent,
telling nme these are the conpanies not to use. |'m not
usi ng any of those conpanies. |'mnot using any of the

-- the list of conpanies that they sent out letters to.

MR. SCHM DT: That's not an all-enconpassing
list wwth bad products that are on the market. Those
are just the ones that they went to their manufacturing
facility, found the violations. And then warning
letters are actually the second step of FDA enforcenent.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Right.

MR. SCHM DT: FDA enforcenent starts with
potentially, like, just conpliance fromthe conpany.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Right.

MR SCHMDT: So if they don't get that
conpliance, then it's a formal warning letter. So al
of the other things that happen behind the scenes, you
don't see on their website. It's not put out --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Correct.
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MR SCHM DT: -- for all that infornmation.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: But |'m saying, you know,
me, just being Tanmy Hadl ey from Springport, Mchigan, |
don't have an attorney on, you know, ny payroll that I
can send to go out and do all these things. | count on
things like this -- | nean, | count on things like this
to figure out what the laws and rules are, so that | can
make sure I'mstaying within the paraneters.

MR. SCHM DT: That is why we put those in the
rules, is to let you guys know, with all the existing
| egal framework between the state and the federal
government, those are your two options for using these
products for these procedures without being in violation
of sonething el se.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: So is there any way we can
get around that? |s there any rule --

MR SCHM DT: | nean, we don't have -- we don't
have the ability to change FDA standards or the state's
medi cal definition for the practice of nedicine. W are
just -- we only have jurisdiction over the body art
rul es.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Then, why are we even here?

MR. SCHM DT: To tal k about the body art rules.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: But |I'msaying, if we're --

If these are the rules and these are the |aws, |ike, how
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Is it that we're even neeting about this, if it is,
|i ke, a solid stop?
MS. CHERYL JONES: They haven't been finalized
yet.
SCHM DT:  Correct.
CHERYL JONES: This is the draft.
SCHM DT:  Yep, they're still proposed.
MS. TAMW HADLEY: But you're saying that the

SIS

FDA makes those. W don't even have the right to have

any say in any of then? Then why are we having a

meeti ng?

MR. SCHM DT: Well, there's --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Do you understand what |'m
saying? I'mnot trying to be, like --

MR. SAUNDERS:. This is one specific rule that
you're tal king about that we put on there for
clarification purposes. Because | think nost tattooers,
nost permanent cosnetic artists, don't understand that
they'd be in violation of the instructions for use.

They don't quite get that part of not just their
I ndustry, but, like, just the way the FDA and federal
gover nment wor k.

Let's say, for exanple, this group said, "No,

it's totally fine to use that." W would be factually

wrong, because we don't actually have any control over
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it. The reason it's in our rules is because we want
people to know, so that they know what the rules are.
W -- anything that we wite on these -- in these
docunents, wouldn't change the framework that actually
exi sts already, that we have no control over. That's
specifically for this product. So there's others things
in these rules that we do have control over, but this is
just a clarification.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: And | understand that. But
what |'msaying is, if we don't have any control over
it, and I'm-- and you're telling nme that the FDA is the
one that nakes the rule, and | have this right here
telling ne what | can and cannot use -- | understand
what you're saying, just because the bottle says that
doesn't nmean that's really what it is. But, |ike, that
could be that way with any product. Just because the
| abeling says that, it doesn't -- it doesn't nean what
it really is; correct?

MR. SAUNDERS: Correct.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: But |I'msaying, if | follow

what this F- -- this is off the FDA website. If |
follow what it says, how am | doing anything -- because
that woul d have to supersede this neeting; correct? |'m
not -- aml --

MR SCHM DT: [|'m not sure.
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MS. TAMW HADLEY: Pardon?

MR SCHM DT: |'mnot sure what you were
aski ng.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: |'masking if I -- if we
nmeet here today, and you're telling -- you're telling us

t hat we cannot change the rule or the |aw about it,
because it's an FDA -- you know, it's -- the FDA
controls it, basically, and | follow what the FDA says,
how am | -- how am | breaking the rules?

And if | understand correctly, |'m breaking the
rul es because, just because the |abel says it, doesn't
mean it's true. But |I don't -- | don't know that. |
mean, | wouldn't -- if a |abel says something and | buy
it froma reputable conpany, | want to believe it. Just
| i ke any other product, | go to the store,. | read the
| abel. | buy it. | don't think about it. | don't --

MR. SAUNDERS:. |If the |abel were to say that it
was okay for tattooing --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Ckay.

MR, SAUNDERS: -- it would not be a reputable
product. It can't say that because you woul d need a
brand new 510(k) nunber that doesn't exist. So --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: But the FDA is saying | can
use four percent --

MR. SAUNDERS: |If you're a doctor.
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MS. TAMW HADLEY: It doesn't say a doctor.
This -- this does not say anything about ne being a
doct or.

MR, SAUNDERS: Again, this is the way FDA neets
Mchigan law -- right? -- the way M chigan | aw defines
practicing nedicine. Again, we don't have any control
over that.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: So this docunment off the FDA
website is nothing? It never says any -- it doesn't
anyt hi ng about ne being a physician, a doctor, an
anybody.

MR. SCHM DT: Because that's tal king about
over-the-counter --

MS5. TAMW HADLEY: It's a --

MR, SCHM DT: -- neaning for self-diagnosis and
use. That -- anything with regards to the FDA standard
Is going to really be your clients using that product,

t he consuner.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Ckay.

MR. SCHM DT: Over-the-counter is for
sel f-di agnosis use. Specific to the artist or the
techni ci an, whatever, using it on a client, that's where
it falls under the practice of nedicine; right? That
al nrost has nothing to do with FDA standards at that

point in time. That's talking about the practice of
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medi cine. Were we really start diving down the rabbit
hole with the FDA requirenments and standards is when
we're tal king about the products that your clients m ght
m suse on before getting the procedure.

And we know that no product is approved, no
nunbing -- if it creates a nunbing sensation, it is not
approved in the United States for use before or during a
tattoo, painful procedure, cosnetic tattoo, any of those
things that you see out there with bad products that put
that on their |abel, specifically.

M5. TAMW HADLEY: So | have a question for
you: It can't be like a lidocaine, and it can't be |ike
a tetracaine or a benzocaine or anything |like that,
because they're consi dered over-the-counter, what about
an all natural product that is not FDA regul ated or
isn't -- doesn't -- | nean, what about something |ike
that? | nean, | don't have anything, but, | nean --

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO Like Biotat?

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Pardon?

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. Biotat?

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Right. Wat -- what about
sonething that isn't regulated Iike that? Because then
it's not considered an OIC, then it's not in violation

MR SCHM DT: | mean, in the United States, the

FDA basically regulates everything to sone degree or
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another. What was the nane of the --

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO  Biotat.

M5. MOREHOUSE: Wiile we're | ooking that up,
there is a way around it, and that is getting a
prescription. So your -- especially in your case, your
patients or clients --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: R ght.

MS. MOREHOUSE: -- can get a prescription

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO So if they get a
prescription, they have to apply it? Because woul dn't
we still be practicing nedicine if we apply it and they

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Yes, we would be.

MR, SCHM DT: There is two rules that are in
t he proposed set. One is with regards to the client
application, in which case they would need to get a
prescription. They would follow the directions for use
that a doctor gave them

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO W don't put it on?

MR. SCHM DT: You don't put it on themat all.
The other rule is with regards to if the artist were to
apply it, and that's where it falls -- there's anot her
set of rules in the state of Mchigan for del egation of
duties by a physician to another healthcare

professional. So that's going to be nore along the
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lines of, you're working at a med spa with a doctor on
staff -- ned spas are kind of gray to begin with -- and
they would still wite a prescription, but they would
del egate their duty as a doctor, where they're all owed
to apply to yourself or another healthcare professional.

And there's a whole other set of rules in the
state of Mchigan for delegation of duties by a
physi ci an, so you would have to be in conpliance with
t hose.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO  (Inaudible) --

THE REPORTER: Ms. Orico?

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. Are doctors actually going
to wite presents for people to wite tattoos?

M5. BRENNAN: Just a m nute.

THE REPORTER: | apologize. If you're going to
speak, can you possibly maybe nove this way, just so the
m cr ophone pi cks you up?

M5. CHELSEA ORRICO  Yeah.

THE REPORTER: | just want to make sure | have
everything on the record. Thank you. Sorry.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. No, you're fine. Do we
think that doctors are actually going to wite
prescriptions for nunbing agents for people to get
tattoos? Do they have the know edge of, like --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: No, they don't.

@ ESQUIRE 800.211.DEPO (3376)

DEROSITION SOLUTIONS EsquireSolutions.com



© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N N T N N R N T T o T T o S R S S T
aa A W N P O © 00 N OO0 O 0 W N . O

HEARING October 28, 2024
IN RE BODY ART FACILITIES 42

M5. MOREHOUSE: This is off the cuff, but ny
guess would be that if it was sonething that was
necessary and --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Areola tattoos, cancer
rel ated.

M5. MOREHOUSE. -- they felt that the numbing
creamwas going to be safe in the procedure --

MS. BRENNAN: One at a tinme, please.

M5. MOREHOUSE: -- that they would then --

MS. CHERYL JONES: Most doctors wll do

anything --

M5. MOREHOUSE: -- do it.

MS. CHERYL JONES. -- for noney. It doesn't
even matter. They'|ll do anything for nmoney. That's

kind of -- or what this whole thing is about.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. | just don't -- | don't
know i f they would think, like, a tattoo is necessary.
| don't know. | just -- | feel like part we're just not

going to be able to use it at all.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: So | would like to say
sonething real quick. | just -- thisis just alittle
story of something that happened to nme last year. So |
had -- | don't -- | do not do permanent makeup
procedures on wonen that are actively receiving cheno.

| will not doit. | don't think it's safe. | can have
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16, 000 doctors' notes. |I'mnot going to do it. [|'m
either going to do it before they start or 30 to 60 days
after they are deened cancer free. That's just ny
personal -- how!| feel it's safe.

So | had a lady that really wanted her eyebrows
done, and she called and called, and begged and begged
and begged, and she was in the mddle of chenpb, and she
brought in a doctor's note. And | told her | -- and the
doctor's note said that | was allowed to do it. | do
not, in any way, shape or form think |I'mnore educated
than a physician when it conmes to many things, but I

t hi nk the physician has no idea what | do.

So | said to her, "I'Il make you a deal. |'m
going to call this physician" -- it was her neighbor, by
the way -- "I'mgoing to call -- I"'mgoing to ask hima

coupl e questions, and if he can answer ny questions |
wll do this for you." She said, "Ckay." So we called
Mark up. W had a nice conversation with him He said,
"Well, | thought she was just getting makeup. | didn't
real ly understand why she had to have prescription for
It, but she just said it was just a little nmakeup. It
was just going to last alittle bit |longer than just,

| i ke, putting blush on." So had | -- had | have done it
based on -- he doesn't care. And | don't nean he

doesn't care about her as a person or nme as a body art
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facility owner or permanent nakeup artist, but he
doesn't know. He's saving people's lives. He doesn't
really care about a little nmakeup. It's just little
makeup. He just had no idea.

And | would have -- after | explained it to

him he's |ike, "Absolutely not. No, she cannot have

this done." But | had a prescription in ny hand, so |
was |legally covered. But, | mean, | would never have
done that. | just -- | think there -- | understand --
and I -- and I'Il be the first to say we, as tattoo

artists and permanent nmakeup artists, need to be far
nmore regulated. Qur facilities are very regul ated, but
| fix horrific things every single day on all Kkinds of
peopl e.

However, | don't think that targeting -- just
saying, "Ckay. No topicals at all because this is the
rule.” | think there should be -- | don't want to say a
gray area, but there should be sonething that we can do

to keep people safe, or things like that are going to

happen.

You're right, a doctor will pretty much wite a
prescription for anything, depending on, "Is he your
nei ghbor?", "Do you know hin?" It -- | nean, there's a

-- you know, people self-prescribe things to their

doctors and tell themthese are their synptons that
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aren't, and do a visit over the Zoom and get a
prescription for whatever, but that's not the point to
me. The point to ne is that they don't even -- a
physi ci an doesn't necessarily know what | do, and it's
not really his job to know, just like it's not ny job to
know what he does.

| have to be the professional in ny industry.
| have to put my research in. | have to take that tine
of f work, you know, to conme to neetings like this and
have ny voice be heard. It's ny job to know ny
profession, not his, and his to know mne. And he 100
percent -- | had a prescription in ny hand as he's
telling ne, "Well, it's just makeup. | thought it was
kind of silly anyway, but that's exactly what ny
prescription pad says." | ama hundred percent allowed
to doit. He didn't even know what | was doi ng.

Once | it explained to him "Ch, no; no; no."
He's like, "It's a hard stop.” But he didn't know. He
just didn't know. He's saving people's |ives,
adm ni stering cheno nedication, |ike, you know, working
20 hours a day. He didn't know. She just, you know --
that she |lost both of her breasts, and she wanted areol a
tattoos and eyebrow tattoos. And if that was what was
going to nake her happy, he was going to wite it down

on a prescription pad and send her over to ne.
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MS. MOREHOUSE: But he's not witing a
prescription for the procedure. He's witing a
prescription for the lidocaine, if he feels it's safe.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO.  Her point is, is that they
don't have a good understandi ng of what we even do and

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Correct.

MS. CHELSEA CRRICO  -- how invasive it is. |
mean, half the people that --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: \What |ayer of skin --

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. -- (inaudible) don't --

t hey do not understand what it is.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Correct.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. So it's just kind of -- it
makes you a little nervous to trust the doctor has the
knowl edge to make an informed decision on their
prescription, and that it's going to be done in a way
that's safe to use in those areas.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: And that the client is going
to give the correct information to the doctor to be able
to nmake the inforned decision. Then the doctor wites
the prescription for ny client, and ny client cones in
and it says, "Apply the size of the nickel and let it

sit for 15 mnutes,"” but she's really scared of this

procedure, so she's been applying it for the last -- |
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don't know -- nine hours, and now she's over-nedi cat ed
herself that | have no know edge of, but | got this
pi ece of paper keeping ne safe. But she's not safe.
She's not safe, but | can't put it on, which | would
know the right anmount, and | woul d know why. You know,
you know how many people think if you use nore, it's
better; nore -- nore nunbing, it's better.

It's not better. | mean, it has a chem cal
reaction on the skin, Iike anything does that you put
on. Baby lotion has a reaction with the skin. [It's
just -- but clients don't know that, because they're not
educated to know it. So nowthey're armed with a
prescription that they think is safe because they're a
physician it with them and they're adm nistering high
doses for extended periods of tinme, and we're right back
to where we were before. The answer, | don't think, is
wth the physician. | think it's with inforned, caring
peopl e that are professionals in their industry, making
deci sions that we know are not safe. | don't care | had
a doctor's note or not. | sent her away, crying her
eyes out because she couldn't get my service done, but |
knew it was for her benefit.

And | know that because |'ma professional, and
| know that because |'ve studied it. It was not good

for her, but he wote her a prescriptionto doit. And
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you're right, not for the -- the anesthetic itself, for
me to be able to do it, which is kind of even a bigger
deal. Because a |l ot of people would have just said,
"Well, I'mgoing to do it." You know, |I would have --
by the tinme she was done with eyebrows and areol as,
woul d have wal ked out $2,000 in ny pocket, had | been
sonebody that charges, which I don't for cancer

patients, ever. But it just -- the whole -- the whole
point of it is that we're putting sonmething in
sonebody' s hands that don't have the know edge of what
we do, and how can we get past that? You know, that we
had a work group for years that didn't even consist of a
per manent nakeup artist. W' re having people make rul es

about things that affect us that don't even do it every

day.

MS. MOREHOUSE: How do you know they're not
putting it on now and then you're double -- doubling it
up?

MS. TAMW HADLEY: | 100 percent do not. | ask
questions, a |lot of questions. | have a light and a
magni fier that | use to |l ook down into the skin. | test
the skin to see if there's any kind of reactiveness. |If

t he product that they're using contains any kind of
epi nephrine, the skin would | ook white because bl ood

flowis constricted.
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| mean, there are things that | can do to

really put it educated attenpt to nake sure that they're
not using sonmething on their skin, and a hundred percent
| do. | examne all skin before | ever touch it. | see
what elasticity is init. You know, | don't just start.
But -- and | have a conversation with them | also |et
peopl e know, "If you have used sonething on the skin
prior to be starting this service, you have to tell ne
or it's going to have an adverse effect. Don't just

| ook at it on a piece of paper when you hear ny waiting
room filling it out. |'mlooking through the eye. |'m

going to ask you, because | need to know." And if I

think that it has, | reschedule them "Sonething's
going on with your skin right now |'mnot sure what it
was. | don't know if you've consuned sone al cohol, used

to be product on your skin."

Qbviously, | blame themfor it, but | just tel
them "This doesn't look like | want it to | ook before |
work on this. Let's schedule you out in tw weeks, you
know, be really hyper-aware of what you're putting it on
your skin at this time, and when you cone back in two
weeks, take a look at it." It always |ooks good,
because they were lying. But it's not their job to get
past ne. It's ny job as a professional to know what to

| ook for. Because |I've thousands clients, | know what
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to ook for, and I'mnot going to put anybody in an

unsafe situation. That's why, after eight years, ['m
still in business, because | actually care.

MS. BRENNAN:  Any further conments?

MS. CHERYL JONES. | have sone questions. My
| ?

MS. BRENNAN:  Absol utely.

5

CHERYL JONES: I'msorry, but what --
(O f the record interruption)

MS. BRENNAN: Pl ease spell your nane.

MS. CHERYL JONES: My nanme is Cheryl,
Ch-e-r-y-I, last nane is Jones. |I'mtattoo artist of
27 years. |'mthe person who purled the letter to
everybody in M chigan back in 2005, pronpting the body
art rules and regul ations of 2010, and attended neetings
at Wayne County for about a year, and was part of
recommendi ng Chris Lachance to the board for, you know

-- anyways, to nake sure that the body art ordinance got

passed.

So I'mvery, very famliar with everything, you
know. | wsh | had ny notes wwth ne. ay. So, for
starters, | can't point out exactly where all of these

parts are in, but |I'msure you have the nunbers right in
front you.

My first question is, what pronpted this, the
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rul e changes all of a sudden? \What pronpted it?

MS. BRENNAN: On a legal basis, there never
were any rules, never.

MS. CHERYL JONES. Sure.

MS. BRENNAN: This is the first tine. And what
pronpted it? Wich ones are you tal king about?

MS. CHERYL JONES. Well --

MS. BRENNAN. W had a 2010, 2019.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Sure; sure. Ckay.

MS. BRENNAN:  Yeabh.

MS5. CHERYL JONES. |'m-- |I'mtalking about the
recent draft. I'mreally interested in what -- what

pronpted the draft for the regulation of the type of

tattoo machines that we currently use? Wo -- whose
| dea --

MR SCHMDT: [I'mgoing to let -- | saw bunch
of that online, like, last week. W are -- that rule

does not limt you to rotary pens only. That's
referring to the cartridge needing a backfl ow prevention
requi rement .

MS. TAMW HADLEY: |t says, "Rotary pens only."

MS. CHERYL JONES: It does say, "Rotary pens
only."

MR SCHM DT: No, it says, "Only rotary pens

w th appropriate backfl ow prevention can be used.”
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That's only tal king about the requirenment for rotary

pens, that does not disallow coils or other frame rotary

pens. That does not disallow --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Coil.

MR SCHM DT: -- coils or other framed rotary
that's used, like a traditional grip, tube and tip,
needle with needle bar. That does not limt that
what soever.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Okay. Wth backflow
prevention?

MR SCHM DT: Correct.

MS. CHERYL JONES: And, again, what -- what
pronpted this? | nmean, |'msure you guys aren't real -
MR SCHM DT: So if you go back to the
original, the current requirenents, it actually says in

there that rotary pens can only be used for cosnetic

tattooi ng procedures, that traditional -- in the current

rules, traditional tattooing with a rotary pen and
cartridge is actually not allowed. So we obviously
needed to get rid of that; right? That's the nost
comon tattoo machi ne used today. But we did need to
I ncl ude the requirenents, because nost of those aren't
made in a way that can be broken down and sterilized,
reprocessed, |ike your other equipnent.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Correct.
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MR, SCHM DT: So we have to have that interna
menbrane for backfl ow prevention, so that the machine
then just needs to be cleaned and disinfected and
covered during use. Wthout that requirenment, you woul d
have to reprocess and sterilize, because backfl ow woul d
get into the machine. You can't then reuse that on
another client, unless it's been reprocessed.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Absolutely. But it much
nmore is a cartridge issue, and naking sure that you have
that menbrane in the cartridge, other than |ike the,
like -- the rules were stating that you wanted a
certificate for proof that the rotary machi ne doesn't --

MR SCHM DT: So there two things. There's
ei ther manufacturing proof that backfl ow prevention
exists and that it's been tested to prevent backflow, or
we added a guide for field testing where you, as the
artist, can test it out, or the health departnent, if
they wanted to take a cartridge and just test it very
qui ckly to make sure that it provides backfl ow, because
there are a | ot of bad products on there, whether they
have a nenbrane, but it's not constructed in a way that
accurate -- like it actually prevents backfl ow, or
there's ones that just have springs and rubber bands on
I nside, that that's going to then contam nate your

machi ne, which woul d then have to be fully reprocessed
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and sterilized, which it can't be because it's
el ectrical.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Right. Wich -- which |
fully understand in regards to the cartridges. But as
far as, like, having a machine that -- that where -- |
mean, you know, field testing is fine. That makes nore
sense. But when you're tal king about rotary machines
and about, |ike, backflow certificates and getting that
fromsone of these manufacturers, like, you'll be able
to get that fromthe very, very, very expensive, high
end manufacturers, but, you know, to buy an affordable
machi ne that, you know -- so everyone has access to be
able to do this. | nean, sone of these conpanies don't
have these, you know, manufacturing backflow. They
don't -- they don't conme with the machines. | nean, we

can't. You know, a ot of these machi nes are made in

China, you know. | nean, even the nachines here are
made in China. They just, like -- it's just the conpany
owners.

| nean, it doesn't -- one of my concerns is,

for some reason, in the rules and regul ati ons you have
|isted the Anerican -- the nedical devices -- the
Anerican Medical Device Institute, is listed on there.
| -- unfortunately, don't have ny notes, but --

MR. SCHM DT: Yeah, there's a standard in here
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which is ANSI and --

CHERYL JONES: (kay.

SCHM DT: -- AAM.

CHERYL JONES: Correct.

SCHM DT:  -- for ST79.

BRENNAN. Do you want to | ook at the rul es?
CHERYL JONES: Right. Thank you so nuch.
BRENNAN:  Sure.

CHERYL JONES. Yes. Gkay. So here's the

o

5 H D D D D

5

I ssue: There's a couple of things. This is a slippery
slope. The -- | don't understand what this Anerican --
wait, where is it? |I'mlooking at the definitions here.
Ckay. The American Society for Testing Materials
I nternational, nope, that's not the one. 1t's the other
one.

MS. CHELSEA ORRI CO. Association for the
Advancenent of Medical Instrunmentation.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Thank you. Association for
t he Advancenent of Medical Instrunentation. | would
like to say, first of all, 90 percent of all the nedical
instrunentation that is used in hospitals and surgery,
90 percent of it isn't even approved by the FDA. It's
not even |looked at. It's really terrible. The
situation is awmful in the nmedical field.

| don't believe that the Medical -i ndustri al
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Conpl ex shoul d have anything to do with our job
what soever. Qur job is -- is -- we don't -- this isn't
like a -- a nmedical procedure that's taking place. W

are penetrating the skin at a 2.5 to maybe 3.8 at best.

Li ke, an allergy -- a shot, |ike, a basic subcutaneous
I nj ection goes way deeper into your skin than -- than a
tattoo needle. | nean, we're grazing the skin.

The problemis, when you have groups like this
medi cal apparatus, which they're doing a terrible job
regulating their own industry -- the problemthat you
have is, once you allow the Medical-industrial Conplex
toinfiltrate your -- your job, they don't go away.
It's -- it's a very slippery slope. Like -- like, they
-- they shouldn't be able to have dom nion over what we
do. We're not doing a nedical procedure, so | don't
understand why they're even listed here at all. Because
the problemis, if this group is allowed to -- to nake
regul ations for the machines that we use, it's a very
slippery sl ope.

Then -- then at what point are they going to
say, "Well, you have to have a nedical |icense to use
t hese nedi cal devices." You know, they're not nedical
devi ces. These people shouldn't have their hands on it
at all. They shouldn't be involved in it. Their nanes

shouldn't be on here. Wiy -- why are they? I'mreally
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conf used.

MR SCHM DT: So we have to put in the
definitions basically anything we use in the body of the
rules; right? That's why it's in the definition. The
only reference to ANSI and AAM in the actual rules in
the body is just wth regards to sterilization
procedur es.

MS. CHERYL JONES: kay. So it's --

MR SCHM DT: It's nothing --

MS. CHERYL JONES: It has nothing to do --

MR, SCHM DT: There's nothing to do with
performng body art. It is just with regards to

autocl ave sterilization and spore testing.

MS. CHERYL JONES: (kay.

MR SCHM DT: That's it.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Al right.

MR SCHM DT: That is the only reference --

MS. CHERYL JONES: M concern is that they were
kind of -- were considering our tattoo machi nes --

MR SCHM DT: Nope; nope.

MS. CHERYL JONES: -- as nedical devices, the

MR SCHM DT: No, it has nothing to do with the
tatt oo machi ne what soever.

MS. CHERYL JONES. The |anguage wasn't very --
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MR SCHM DT: So we have to put -- like | said,
we have to put in the definitions, especially, |ike --
MS. CHERYL JONES: Yeah.
MR SCHM DT: -- trade nanmes that in the body,

we put ANSI slash AAM. W have to define what those
are; right?

MS. CHERYL JONES: Sure.

MR, SCHM DT: That's just a |egal requirenent.

M5. CHERYL JONES: Sure.

MR SCHM DT: In the body, the only reference
Is wth regards to the sterilization, |like, at the
facility. And that's just going to be with regards to
your autoclaves, sterilization procedures and spore
testing. That's it. Has nothing to do with performng
any tattoo, body piercing, cosnetic tattoo.

MS. CHERYL JONES. Well, | was --

MR. SCHM DT: Has nothing to do --

MS. CHERYL JONES: | was speaking nmostly of our
machi nes as the --

MR, SCHM DT: Yeah, it has nothing to do with

MS. CHERYL JONES: Wth the nmachi nes?
MR, SCHM DT: -- the nachines thenselves. It
has to do with any equi pnent that you're going to

epr ocess.
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MS. CHERYL JONES:

Ckay.

MR, SCHM DT: And they're not considered by the
FDA nedi cal devices, nor --

MS. CHERYL JONES: Okay.

MR SCHM DT: -- do | have any inkling --

MS. CHERYL JONES. | didn't think that they
wer e.
MR SCHMDT: -- that they will, no.
MS. CHERYL JONES: kay. And then,

rule in here, where it states that

al so there
-- there is another
i f a physician is perform ng any of these procedures

that we perform procedures, |icensed body -- body art

facility --

MR SCHM DT: So that's with regards to being
exenpt; correct?

MS. CHERYL JONES. Yeah, physician exenption.

MR SCHM DT: So that's rule 13103, if you're
| ooking it up.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Yeah; uh-huh. "Do not apply
procedure that utilizes -- yeah -- patient's treatnent
performed under the controlled direction, on-site
supervi sor who's licensed in the state.” Wy -- why are
physi cians getting an exenption? Because, | nean --

MR, SCHM DT: That's just an exenption from

needing a license. That's not an exenption from being
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in conpliance with everything. They just don't need
that extra license in the state of M chigan.

MS. CHERYL JONES: \y?

MR. SCHM DT: Because they already have the
medi cal license, their license to practice nedicine.

M5. MOREHOUSE: Also, it says it has to be part
of patient treatnent. So they're not going to get a
horse tattoo on their armfroma physician. That's not
allowed. It's got to be part of patient treatnent. So,
| i ke, what you're doing, that -- a physician could be
doi ng that.

MR. SAUNDERS: In addition, for certain -- for
certain cancer treatnents and, like, radiation
treatments, they' |l have to actually do a little tattoo,
so they hit the same spot over and over again. So we
didn't want to make them have to get the body art
| i cense when they're already doctors; right?

MS. CHERYL JONES: | just -- the cross
contam nation |'ve seen fromthe nedical industry is
horrific.

MR. SCHM DT: Ckay. And just so you know, that
Is not a change. There is some wording clarification in
there that actually --

MS. CHERYL JONES: Sure.

MR SCHM DT: -- nakes it nore strict now, but
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that is an existing rule set. So that was not a change,
other than we actually clarified it for --
MS. CHERYL JONES: Yeah -- yeah, | --

MR. SCHM DT: -- both departnents.
MS. CHERYL JONES: | know. | -- | just -- it
doesn't nmake sense to ne. | just feel |ike, you know,
if they -- if they had a better idea, you know -- and

then regarding the -- okay. So back to the |idoca- --
| i docai ne with physicians and |icensing and | oophol es
and -- the FDA -- like, tattooing is considered -- is --
I's regul ated under cosnetics; correct?
MR. SCHM DT: Tattoo inks are regul ated as
cosnetics by the FDA, if that's what you're referring --
MS. CHERYL JONES: And tattooing with the FDA
I s consi dered what ?
MR. SCHM DT: Nothing. The FDA doesn't
regul ate occupations. They regul ate products.
MS. CHERYL JONES: They regul ate products --
MR, SCHM DT: Yeabh.

MS. CHERYL JONES: -- not occupations.

MR. SCHM DT:  Yeah.

MS. CHERYL JONES: kay. So then | -- if we
are using our -- the product in -- by -- by the
standards that the FDA sets, | don't -- | don't see what

the problemis
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MR, SAUNDERS: |It's because we're not

consumners.
MS. CHERYL JONES. Because we're not consumers?
MR. SAUNDERS. Yeah. If --

MS. CHERYL JONES: | know you've franed this a
mllion tines. Like, first of all, the reality is we're
going to use it anyways. It doesn't matter. You guys

can make whatever |laws you want. W're going to do it
anyways. Bactine and BAND- Al D wash have been around
since tine infinite. Lidocaine has a wonderful,

beauti ful safety profile. The OTC being between two to

four percent is -- it's just -- it's so watered down,
it's -- it's relatively harmess. It's just -- the
thingis, it's -- it seens like this -- like, the

medi cal community shouldn't be involved in any way,
shape or form

So, now, if we have to -- if aclient -- or if
we have to go to a physician to get a prescription,
you're involving the nedical field, and they really
shouldn't be involved at all. | nmean, not at all. This
Is an art. This isn't -- this isn't sone kind of crazy
medi cal procedure. This is an art. Like, it's crazy,
because the FDA approves children to eat -- to eat red
nunber 40. | nean, there's 13,000 chem cals in our food

that they don't have in the EU right now, and the FDA
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approves themall. You know, the FDA recently approved
a very dangerous injection, where people are dying.

| nean, what -- you know, this is -- this is
ridiculous, and | don't understand why M chigan, of all
pl aces -- because |'ve looked it up. There isn't a
single state in the Union that's doing this, except for
M chigan. So why? Wy is this happening? Wy is this
happeni ng now, and what can we do to circunvent this?
Because we're going to do it anyways, so we m ght as
well find a way to make an agreenent in the |anguage,

you know, instead of just banning it outright.

And, | nmean, this is just a huge disservice to
all the clients, all the -- all of the tattooers, all of
t he people that do permanent cosnetic. This is -- this
Is insane. Like, | don't understand where this cane
from | don't -- like, usually things [ike this don't
pop up for no reason. | mean, were there a slew of

conplaints to the health departnent?

Because | tried to look that up, and | didn't
see any. | nmean, I'mreally confused. Like, why is
this happening just in Mchigan and in no other state,
right now? | just amreal curious.

MR SCHM DT: | nean, | don't think any of the
four of us can speak on behal f of any other state and

what they are or are not doing. W can just say what's
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happeni ng in M chi gan.

MS. CHERYL JONES: (kay. But why? | nean,
what -- what was the -- was there -- was there a safety,
i ke -- what -- what happened that this suddenly has to
be done now? | nean, |'ve been using, you know,

Bacti ne, which benzal koniumis a natural -- it's an
antiseptic, and it has lidocaine in it, and al ways has.
It -- | mean, the basic -- |ike, Bactine and BAND-AID
wash have two point five percent |idocaine in them and
have since tinme infinite. And |I've been using these

products since 2008 without incident. So | nean it --

I'm-- 1"m-- even within the |anguage of the rules,
it's -- it says it's okay to use an antiseptic on the
skin, which, | mean, as far as |'mconcerned, Bactine is
an antiseptic, and so is BAND-AID wash. | nean, that's

correct? W are allowed to use antiseptics on skin;
right?

MR, SCHM DT: In certain cases you're required
to, but with --

MS. CHERYL JONES: Sure.

MR. SCHM DT: -- Bactine, you can use their
wound wash, which does not contain |idocaine, and it
still is an antiseptic agent. You could use that.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Bactine's wound wash has

al ways contained |idocaine --
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MR SCHM DT: Nope.

MS. CHERYL JONES: -- at two percent.

MR, SCHM DT: That's Bactine's pain relieving
spray. Their wound wash contains no nunbi ng agent.

MS. CHERYL JONES: | don't think |I've ever seen
just plain old Bactine wound wash w thout |idocaine,
ever. So how can we work this out so that we can stil
do our jobs? Because it is inpossible, Iike, that
you're going to carve on a wonman's face, on her eyes, on

her eyeballs, on her lips, you know, "You don't get any

nunbing agent.” | don't -- | nean, all these wonen are
going to be running into Chio. | nean, so nobody in
M chi gan can -- can get anything done ever now?

| nean, | -- like, this is really -- |ike,

under st and what's happening here, is that you' re going

to devastate the permanent cosnetic industry by not

allowmng this. | nean, actually, you won't devastate
them because they'|ll still use it anyways. But, |
mean, you know, to some degree -- | nean, like, there

has to be a way to figure this out.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: O it's going to --

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. Can | say sonething on
that note? | do think that by not offering -- and |
know that it's the FDA and not you guys, but, |ike, not

offering, like, sonme kind of guidance on, |ike, safe

@ ESQUIRE 800.211.DEPO (3376)

DEROSITION SOLUTIONS EsquireSolutions.com



HEARING October 28, 2024

© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N N T N N R N T T o T T o S R S S T
aa A W N P O © 00 N OO0 O 0 W N . O

IN RE BODY ART FACILITIES 66
brands or, like, sonmething to use is just -- like she
said, people are still going to use it, whether it's

client or whether it's the service provider. Like,
they're still going to use it, and they're just going to
use whatever they can get their hands on. So | think
t hat having sonme kind of, like -- | don't know.

MS. CHERYL JONES. Yeah, regul ations.

MR. SCHM DT: The state --

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO (I naudible).

MR SCHMDT: -- can't tell you howto violate
state |law, because it would still be in violation of the

definition of practice of nmedicine. W can't then say,
"Oh, well, it's a practice of nedicine" -- which I
believe is a felony. W can't then say, "But you can
use this and still be in violation"; right?

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. | understand.

MR, SCHM DT: Like --

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO | understand.

MS. CHERYL JONES: So, basically, the problem
Is that we need to go to the state and have them change

their definition of what is considered nedical practice?

I's that what we need to do? Because they -- they --
like -- like, this doesn't make sense. Like, our

busi ness has -- like, thisisn't -- is that what we need
to -- we need to ask for themto change the | anguage
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t hat defines what a nedical procedure is. |Is this our
only recourse?

MR. SCHM DT: | guess you could do that.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Because, like, thisis --
this is really, like, you know, governnent overreach.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. | --

MS. CHERYL JONES: This is ridiculous.

M5. CHELSEA ORRICO -- tal ked to soneone from
the Society of Permanent Cosnetics, and they said that
nmost likely we're going to basically, |ike, |obby
agai nst the state.

THE REPORTER: Coul d you speak up a little,

pl ease?
M5. CHELSEA ORRICO |'m sorry.
THE REPORTER: It's okay. You're soft-spoken.
MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. Do you want ne to repeat
it?

THE REPORTER: | think I got that, but just for
the future, yeah. Thank you

M5. CHERYL JONES: So when is this rule -- when
-- when is this not nade as a draft and when is this
supposed to go into effect? This is -- this is in draft
formright now?

MS. BRENNAN:. Correct. After the public

hearing is over, the DHHS neets with the -- wth Steve
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and Jeff. W go over all the public comments. W nake
deci sions. These are DHHS rules. And then the final
rules are sent over to the legislature. It's called
JCAR, the Joint Commttee on Adm nistrative Rules,

Because of the election year and that
| egi slature has failed to neet at all for the end --
"til the end of the year, the rules will be sent in --
the final rules wll be sent in January 2nd.

MS. CHERYL JONES: January 2nd.

MS. BRENNAN: They have to sit there for 15
session days, which is a msnoner. |It's msleading. 15
session days neans 15 days when the full |egislature
meets. So when they finally beconme the |aw could be 15
days. It could be three nonths. Wo knows?

MS. CHERYL JONES: And so | would assume that
all of these people that are going to nake the final
decision on this, they're -- they're all politicians and
people fromthe Departnent of Health and Human Servi ces.
There won't be any tattooers or -- involved? There
won't be any permanent --

MS. BRENNAN:. You have a tattooer right here,
Jeff.

MR. SAUNDERS:. Well, I"'mnot a --

MS. MOREHOUSE: Jeff is a piercer.

MS. BRENNAN: O a piercer.
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MR. SAUNDERS: W -- that's --
MS. BRENNAN: ['m sorry.
MR. SAUNDERS:. That's what the work group was

for.

MS. BRENNAN:.  Yes.

MR, SAUNDERS: There was --

MS. CHERYL JONES: |'msorry.

MR. SAUNDERS: -- a lot of tattooers on there.

MS. CHERYL JONES: A piercer, oh, that's cute.
Well, piercers are like the --

MS. BRENNAN: But we had plenty --

MS. CHERYL JONES: -- (inaudible) of the tattoo
I ndustry.

MS. BRENNAN: -- of tattoo artists on the work
group.

MR. SAUNDERS: Cxay.

MS. BRENNAN. And we have a health inspector
here, and we do have DHHS here and the whole bit. It
depends on when | -- when this is all discussed. Mny
times we've changed the rul es based upon public coment;
many tinmes. Many tinmes we have had reasons, and we have
to state the reasons, why we aren't going to change the
rules. So that will all be provided in the final rule
package that goes over to legislature, and all of that

w il be online for everybody to | ook at.
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MS. CHERYL JONES. Well, the thing is that
tattooi ng has been going on for thousands of years
w t hout incident and without the health departnent. You
know, we -- we've been just fine. So, | nean,
regardl ess of whatever the state rules are or aren't
going to be, we're still going to go our own route and
do what's best for our clients. But there really should
be a way to negotiate this.

Li ke, letting people know which products are
good to use and which products aren't good to use,
| etting people know, |ike, a standard kind of protocol,
woul d be hel pful. Again, we -- we can't take liability
for what people do on their own tinme when they cone in
here. | nmean, it's not -- you know, it's a state |aw
that we can't tattoo anybody under the influence. You
know, sometinmes people |ook fine when they're in your
chair, and then you start tattooing them about 45
mnutes, they did it all kind of squirrely and weird,
and you realize, "Ckay. Mybe this person took
sonething in the bathroom"™ | mean, that's not -- it's
not our -- | nean, like, we don't -- you know, we can't
control what people do on their own tine.

So, like, what do we need to do to get the FDA
to stay out of this? Wat do we have to do?

MS. TAMW HADLEY: | have a question. | don't
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mean to interrupt --
MS. CHERYL JONES:
MS. TAMMY HADLEY:
the lines of that. So |
presentation
t 00.
CHERYL JONES:

TAMW HADLEY:

CHERYL JONES:
TAMW HADLEY:
CHERYL JONES:
MS. TAMMY HADLEY:

never even thought about it

MS. CHERYL JONES:

about topicals.

No.

-- but this is exactly along

came here with just a big

| use the BAND- Al D wash,

Yeah.

| use the antiseptic wash

Yeah.
Because --

There's 2.5 percent.

approved by the Health Departnent.

MS. TAMW HADLEY:

Yeah, it -- there is, and |
until you said that.

And it's always been

So ny questionis, if we

can't use products we've always used to keep clients

safe, |
reports of infection. |
M5. CHERYL JONES:
MS. TAMWY HADLEY:

understanding, if that all

-- ny infection rate is zero. |

don't have
don't have -- | --
R ght.
| don't -- |'m not

these things are going to be

taken away fromus and we're practicing safe practice

right now -- we all

care enough to cone here and -- and
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speak our mnds and try to advocate for, you know, what
we feel is right. | don't understand, |ike, where is
the -- where is the limt to that? Like, if we can't
use |idocai ne because it's an over-the-counter, what

about BAND-AI D? That's an over-the-counter. G een

Soap? | mean, | know that they're in different, but
they're still all things you can walk into a store and
pur chase.

And | will also just say this: |'ve owned a
medi cal billing conpany for 30 years. | have 17 doctors

right now that will prescribe this for ne. But it's not
ri ght, because when | ask them "Wat would you -- what
woul d you prescribe?" "Well, | don't know \hatever
you tell me." "Wait, what? \Watever | tell you?
You're listening to me anyway."

MS. CHERYL JONES. Actually, she does bring up
a good point.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: They don't know.

MS. CHERYL JONES:. It really is dangerous to
have a doctor wite a prescription for anybody getting
tattooed. | mean, are -- are doctors aware that once
you go up at around eight percent it causes tissue
necrosis? Do they know that? | nmean, |ike, you know,
are -- is there going to be sone doctor out there that's

just going to prescribe sonebody a eight -- eight or 10
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percent, |ike, just because --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Yes, there is.

MS. CHERYL JONES: -- they don't know any
better? You know, | nean, these doctors don't -- you
know, doctors think that stronger is better, you know.
They m ght inadvertently wite a prescription for
sonebody where the lidocaine content is so high that
there's a -- that there's a problem you know. | mean,
sonme of the topical creans that |'ve seen --

(OFf the record interruption)

MS. BRENNAN: That was our break tine
announcenent. | apol ogi ze.

MS. CHERYL JONES. Sone of the topicals that
|'ve seen for people, like -- like, post-surgical and
stuff are -- | nean, are -- they're -- they're --

they're pretty high percentages. |'ve seen creans up t

ei ght percent. |[|'ve had clients actually say, "Hey, ny

grandma had this. Can | use this ahead of time?" "No,
you can't. It's really bad. Like, that's way too
hi gh. "

How does a doctor know. How do we know that -
| nean, like, this is the problem If we need a
prescription froma doctor for our client or for us to
use this product, then we're putting our trust in the

doctors that they're doing the right thing. And, first

0
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of all, they shouldn't have anything to do with our

i ndustry. But, secondly, you know, [ook this up, the
hi ghest rate of death in our country is because of

medi cal mal practice in doctors. | nean, they kill nore
than -- kill nore people than anybody. Go look it up.

We're going to trust the doctor to wite us a
prescription. W can't trust the doctor. That doesn't
make any sense.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Well, for a procedure they
don't know. | nean, | was going to have a heart
pal pitations. | didn't get sent to a gynecol ogist. |
got sent to a cardiologist, because that's what they
know. Now, do they have sone know edge of it for ned
school ? Yes. But ny nomwas prescribed a topical --
and this is why I'm so passionate about topicals. She
was prescribed topical to put on her port so when they
accessed it, you know, it hel ped reduce the pain. It
was a prescription by her oncol ogi st.

The skin was so broke down, they had to do a
surgical procedure to renove her port fromthat topical.
It was way too strong for her skin. So she --

MS. CHERYL JONES: (lnaudible) using it?

MS. TAMW HADLEY: -- actually started using
m ne, and she had no problem But --

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. On a simlar note, | was
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| ooking at articles about deaths that occurred from
appl yi ng nunmbi ng cream over |large areas. This one says
the FDA reported the deaths of two wonen, ages 22 and
25, who used topical anesthetics follow ng |aser hair
renoval treatnments. The FDA noted that the creans were
formul ated by pharmaci es and contai ned hi gh
concentrations of the drugs |idocaine and tetracai ne.

So | do think that if doctors are going to be
witing these prescriptions that -- and they don't have
t he know edge that the tattoo industry has and the
anount of space that it's going to be used and
everything, that | just think it's going to be
dangerous. And | know that you guys are basically
creating a lawin a nmanner that's conpliant with the
FDA, but | don't think that it's going to be in our best
interest for clients.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: | agree.

MS. CHERYL JONES: | think it's abundantly
clear that the FDA does not have our -- our -- the best
Interest of its citizens in mnd. That is so obvious.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: | think the FDA has to nake
rul es, big blanket rules, because there's so many down
-- like, the mnuscule amounts of rules, and then give
the power to people like us to take that rule and say,

"Okay. This is -- this is what this neans.” | nean,
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there's so much in interpretation.

MS. CHERYL JONES: They don't. They're being
paid by the corporations. They don't care what we have
to say.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Well, | want to believe that
that's not always true and | want to believe that our
voices are heard. That's why we, you know, are here and
that's why you're here. | -- 1 think -- | don't want to
ever believe that we live in a society that, you know,
everything we do is just without purpose; | don't. |
don't want to believe that. | want to believe that
there is a greater good and what do matters.

And I'mnot going to -- | don't -- | a hundred
percent cannot sit here and say anything negative while
physi ci ans, because they've been ny business until |ast
Decenber for 30 years. But | think -- and they're very
educated in their own specialty, but |I cannot go to ny
gynecol ogi st and talk to himabout ny tachycardi a and
have himsay, "Wll, this is what we're going to do."
Now he's going to send me over to a cardiol ogi st because
that's what they specialize in. This is what we
speci alize in.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Right. And the -- and the
| anguage is very -- like, it's -- | nean, any physician?

Doesn't matter -- doesn't matter what their specialty
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Is? Any physician, we can just pick any one we want? |

mean, because | got three or four of themon lock. |

can get prescriptions all day. You see, that -- that's
the thing, that this isn't -- this isn't even really

about our client's safety or about -- about protecting
us under the law, or like -- thisis just -- it -- it's

-- iIt's just about noney.

We have to go -- like, we can still have it,
but we have to go to a physician for it. Doesn't matter
what physician, just any physician. W can go to
podi atrist, you know, and get -- podiatrists use
| i docaine. W can get a podiatrist to wite it for us.
Speaking of OB, I've got a friend. | could get her to
wite nme a script in a second.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Absol utely.

MS. CHERYL JONES: | nean, does -- does the --
does the -- the matter of study of what the physician
does even matter? | mean, that's -- that's -- it's
ridiculous. |It's like saying any physician -- any
physician, can wite this for |idocaine, because they
know so much nore than all of you. It doesn't nake any
sense.

How does this nake sense? Like, this is body
art. This is an art that we do. This is not nedical,

and they need to stay out of it. And | get you're
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saying the FDA framework to protect us fromliability.
Protect us fromliability how? Like, as in our clients
are going to sue us? Doubt it, doubt it. And, again,
safety profile |idocaine, how many people are dropping
for msuse of |lidocaine? And then off-Iabel use, to
tell you the truth, lidocaine is an off-1|abel use
al together when it's used in topical anesthetic, because
| was reading that it was originally started for -- it
hel ps with arrhythm as, heart arrhythm as.

It's huge. That was its original intent. So |
mean, all uses are pretty nuch off-|abel use for
| i docai ne, anyways. | guess that's about all | got.
But | nean, like, will we have another opportunity to
voi ce our concerns here about this?

Because you realize this decision, this rule,
w || devastate the industry here in Mchigan; right? It
W ||l devastate everything if we won't be allowed to use
t hese products. And then how does that work with
Amazon? Do you call up Amazon and have them put a bl ock
on Mchigan, so anybody who wants to order any kind of
| i docaine in Mchigan can't have it? Because then what
do peopl e do post-surgical and people with henorrhoids
and -- you know, what -- what do we do with that?

| nean, |ike, where does it stop? | nean,

we're -- | just -- | just have these questions. | need
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answers. Like, | nean, will we have another opportunity
to tal k about this?

MS. MOREHOUSE: Your other opportunity is to
reach out to your state representatives and tell them
your feelings, because they're the ones that's going to
approve it.

MS. BRENNAN:. Could | just comment on that?
That's going to be premature. Up until the point of
that the rules are fully pronul gated, there could be a
hearing over at the Joint Commttee on Adm nistrative
Rul es.

But other than that, then once the rules are
fully promul gated and there are still issues, Kathryn is
correct, you would seek political assistance on that
one.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: | -- | feel like -- first
and forenost, like, really late to the gane. This has
been happening for years, and | didn't know. And I
would like to say it's just because | didn't really care
before because it didn't affect ne, but | do care and |

really didn't know.

As soon as | found out, | was on the phone with
ny health departnent. | was on the phone, Iike, trying
to figure it out, trying to do sonething about. It's

not like | was, you know, negligent and just not doing
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anything until it's alnmost too late. | just didn't -- |
honestly and truly didn't know. |If there was a
commttee, | can guarantee you | would have been on the
commttee. |f you would have had -- | guarantee that |
woul d have shown up and spoke --

MS. CHERYL JONES. | don't renmenber receiving a
| etter about any of that.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: -- and spoke to whoever
wanted to hear nme, and, you know, collaborated wth
ot her permanent makeup artists to have sonebody be
(inaudible). But finding out at the last mnute, and
then having us try to do sonething about it -- I'msure
It wasn't intended to be sneaky so that we couldn't do
anything about it, but it feels that way, that we were
very much not represented.

It feels very nuch that didn't have a say, and
| didn't get an email saying, you know, there's an
opening on our work group that they're looking for a
per manent nmakeup artist. | never got that. | never got
anything. | just didn't know.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Was there an original
meeting that -- that we were supposed to be at that --

MR, SAUNDERS: | believe it's 2019.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: During COVID?

MR SAUNDERS:. 2019.
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MR, SCHM DT: Just before COVID.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Was there an email that went
out about that?

MR. SAUNDERS: That's when | -- when | found
out about it, it was then and there was, like -- it was
the initial --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: How did you find out,

t hough?
MR. SAUNDERS: -- email.
MS. TAMW HADLEY: So you did get an email ?
MR, SAUNDERS:. Yeah.
MR. SCHM DT:  Yeah.
M5. MOREHOUSE: So the emmil was about the

public hearing.

MR. SAUNDERS: Yeah, it was --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: | haven't had an email
change in probably 17 years. |It's always been the sane
enmai | .

MR. SAUNDERS: Yeah, | --

MS. CHERYL JONES: The last one that | got was
how you guys deregul ated everything on ears.

MR SCHMDT: |'msorry. Wat was that?

MS. CHERYL JONES: Everything that was
deregul ated regardi ng ears.

MR, SCHM DT: Ear piercing?
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MS. CHERYL JONES. Yeah.

MS. MOREHOUSE: Ear piercing was never in the
body art |aw

MS. CHERYL JONES: You, well, there was sone
kind of -- regarding ears. |If it had anything to do
wth ears, it was not under the -- you know, it wasn't
part of the -- that was the last one | got. It was --

t here was sonething about ears. The way -- it was --
ears were, |like, deregulated, not considered part of a
body art nodification, kind of |ike, do whatever you
want wth ears is what | got.

M5. MOREHOUSE: It was never deregulated. It
was never part of --

M5. CHERYL JONES: It was never part --

M5S. MOREHOUSE: -- the |aw

MS. CHERYL JONES. Yeah. There was sonet hing
about ears. That's the last -- last thing | received.
It was like, "lIt's got nothing to do with it. You can
do whatever you want."

MS. MOREHOUSE: In 2019 there was a hearing, a
public hearing, when, basically, they were trying to
pass the NEHA Mddel Code as the rules. That had a very
| arge turnout. | wasn't the one that sent those enails.
| don't know -- I'"massumng it went to the owners, |ike

it didthis tine. And we had a very large turnout, and
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fromthere, artists, owners asked to be on the

comm ttee, because it was decided then, that day at the
public hearing, there was going to be a work group put
t oget her.

| know that -- |I'"mpretty sure that inspectors
maybe recommended if we asked for nenbers, new nenbers,
and then | ocal health departnents al so volunteered to be
on the group.

MS. BRENNAN:. Let ne follow up on what she had
said. There was no way we were going to get every body
art, health inspector and the whole thing. So it was
cross represented. There were not one, there were two
al ready public hearings. W're working on our 14th year
of trying to get these rules pronulgated. So we --
there was a cross selection of artists, health
I nspectors and DHHS that were on the work group.

Now, for -- again, for transparency, a work
group i s not needed. DHHS could have sat down and j ust
did their rules based on whatever they wanted, and we
have a public hearing, but | always recomend the work
group to get to the best interest of the stakehol ders
and everybody else. So who was on that 2000- --

MS. CHERYL JONES. -109.

MS. BRENNAN: That was the second one. There

was a -- one 2016 --
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MR SCHM DT: ' 16.

MS. BRENNAN: Was it '16?

MR SCHM DT: So the original email was sent
out to all facilities and health departnents on June
28th of 2016, regarding the first public hearing.

MS. BRENNAN:  Ckay.

MR. SCHM DT: And then Cctober 21st of 2-- --
|'msorry -- COctober 18th of 2019 --

MS. BRENNAN.  Ckay.

MR, SCHM DT: -- regarding the previous public
heari ng.

MS. BRENNAN: (Okay. So this is the third. And
| believe the originals on both work groups -- | know
Jeff was part of both work groups -- | nean, not Jeff.

|'msorry. Steve. Jeff, were you part of the --

MR, SAUNDERS: No, | didn't live here before
t hat .

MS. BRENNAN:  Ckay.

M5. MOREHOUSE: | don't think there was a work
group for the last one, was there? There was a --

MS. BRENNAN: There was a work group on that
one as well.

MR. SCHM DT: There were a couple --

MS. BRENNAN:  Yeabh.

MR. SCHM DT: There were a couple updates to
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the current requirenents that are still highlighted.
It's from2018. So that was the work group that existed
from 2016 to (inaudible).

MS. BRENNAN: And that was it, the 2016 work
group to the 2019 at work group, who's interested from
that group. They were still interested. It was not an
intentional, "We're going to not go to this geographical
area,"” or, "Oh, ny God. What a pain in the butt she
Is." You know, we didn't do any of that. It was the
cross reference of --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Right.

MS. BRENNAN: -- all of the people who were on
the previous ones. And your best interests -- and don't
hit me, but that's how the work group cane around. Was
a work group necessary or legal, or were we supposed to
have one? No. D d we have one? Yes. But there was no
I ntentional |eaving out anyone.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: | just know that | wouldn't
want to be making rules about piercers, because | have
no desire to do that, nor do I know the rules and
regul ations for a piercer, because | don't have to,
because it's not ny specialty.

MR. SAUNDERS: Well, we did have tattoo artists
and permanent makeup artists on the conmttee; right?

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. There's not one pernmanent

@ ESQUIRE 800.211.DEPO (3376)

DEROSITION SOLUTIONS EsquireSolutions.com



© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N N T N N R N T T o T T o S R S S T
aa A W N P O © 00 N OO0 O 0 W N . O

HEARING October 28, 2024
IN RE BODY ART FACILITIES 86

makeup artist.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: That stopped com ng over a

year ago.
MR. SAUNDERS: R ght, but --
MS. CHELSEA ORRICO.  So they even (inaudible).
MR. SAUNDERS. -- this is five years of that.
MS. MOREHOUSE: Okay. | wll say that even

t hough they weren't attending the meetings, every
nmeeting they got the updates. They know everything that
changed every tinme they were highlighted. So while they
weren't attendi ng neetings, had they saw sonet hi ng they
di sagreed with, they could have still reached out.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: But naybe they just didn't
reach out because they were just done with the whole
t hi ng.

MS. MOREHOUSE: That's a possibility.

MR. SAUNDERS. It's possible, yeah.

M5. MOREHOUSE: W also can't just put out a
thing to every artist who wants to go, because how do we
deci de who's on the workgroup?

TAMW HADLEY: Right. That's what if --
BRENNAN:  That's even worse.

TAMW HADLEY: -- 300 people show up?
BRENNAN:  Yeah.

MOREHOUSE: Ri ght .

5

5 5 D O
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MS5. TAMW HADLEY: | under st and.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Well, | would like the
record to note that if there is ever another work group,
or anything dealing with anything like this at all, big
or small, | would like to be a part of that.

MS. BRENNAN. W have your name, yeah.

MS. CHERYL JONES. So, yeah, for the record,
|'d just like to say that what we are doing is not a

medi cal procedure, and we want doctors conpletely out of

it; conpletely out of it. It really -- | nean, | don't
know what to tell you guys. | think that inthe -- in
the Mchigan -- in the code, sonething needs to be
witten as to, like, the requirements, safety

requi renents, for these nunbing agents, rather than none
at all without a physician's, you know -- maybe the --
t he nomenclature could be as -- in accordance with FDA

regul ations. Because if you read the FDA regul ati ons,

it, like, doesn't seemto have a problemw th us using
it.
M5. MOREHOUSE: On yourself. That is not to --
MS. CHERYL JONES: That's fine; that's fine.
MS. MOREHOUSE: -- occupati ons.
MS. CHERYL JONES. On ourselves. So, you know,

I f your -- your client happens they have a tube in their

hand, they can put it on thenselves before we tattoo;
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right? That's on them So that would be our go-around
-- right? -- to hand the tube to the client and have the
client apply it? That way we didn't do it; right? And
way we don't need a prescription --

M5. BRENNAN: Well, there --

MS. CHERYL JONES: -- because the client used
it for whatever they needed it for; correct?

MS. BRENNAN. |'msorry. There won't be any
val idation until after the group neets and decides if
it's correct or not. I'msorry. There are sone answers
you can get right on the spot. There are others that
need di scussi on.

MS. CHERYL JONES:. Sure.

MS. BRENNAN: And so that's on the record, and
the transcript will be read and the whol e thing.

MS. CHERYL JONES. Well, | nean, | figured if
t he go-around would be to get a prescription froma
doctor, and this is OIC, and people can do what they
want wth their -- | nmean, like, if somebody puts their
own lotion on, | nean, you know, of course we reconmend

we want the skin clean of lotions and oils and what ever.

But, | nean, you know, sonebody puts a lotion on, that's
on them So -- so we'll just have to find another
go-around, | guess. We'IlIl just have themapply it

t hensel ves and instruct themon how to properly apply it
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t hensel ves, so that it's done within the confines of the
law. 1s that what we need to be telling everybody?

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Except the new | aw states
that they -- if we are aware that they've applied
t hensel ves, which includes us telling them how to apply
it --

MS. CHERYL JONES. Well, if they go into the
bat hroom we don't know what they're doing in the
bat hroomw th that tube.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: We can't tell them or then
we know. | nean, | -- I'mjust thinking that's --
that's howit's witten. |It's backed us into a corner.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. | feel like the way that
it's witten, like, and the basis of the FDA part of it,
i ke, we're not practicing nedicine and we're not
applying it, and we're not participating in off-|abel
use. So how does our know edge of themusing it, |ike,
we're -- our hands are off of it -- violate the FDA | aw?

MR SCHM DT: You're not violating the FDA | aw.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. If we're tal king about --

MR SCHMDT: |It's not really an FDA | aw, but
what ever .

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. If we're tal ki ng about,
yes, because it's our l|icensing regulations. So,

technically, if they cone in --
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MR. SCHM DT: And you --

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. -- and ne applying it --
MR, SCHM DT: And you work on them --
MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. -- and | know, but howis

It violating the FDA | aw by just having know edge, but |
didn't put it on? Because |I'mnot participating in the
of f-1abel use by applying it.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Well, they --

MR, SCHM DT: Because you're tattooing onto
skin which has been affected by it; right? That's now
not what it's approved -- right? |It's applied to be on
the skin, not then tattooed upon; right?

MS. CHERYL JONES: Well, what we -- what we
need to have themdo is strike fromthe | anguage that
they are not allowed to put that on ahead of tineg,
because, really, | don't believe it's any of the state's
busi ness what a client does in their skin ahead of tine
before they conme into the studio. Wuldn't that be a
reasonabl e assunption; right?

MR SCHM DT: Well, for the sanme reason as you
can't tattoo on a part of the body that has, like, a
rash or a disease going on or sonething |ike that;
right? The existing and proposed wording, that's al
i ncluded as well; right?

MS. CHERYL JONES: Okay. But, again, normally,
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when sonebody uses |idocaine ahead of tine, there's
basically no visible signs. | nean, okay. It mght be
cool to the touch, but people get nervous. Their skin
gets cool anyways. It mght be maybe cool to the touch.
It m ght maybe be discolored. But sonetines |ooking at
sonebody, you can't tell at all if they' ve used a
product or not. So --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: We're guessing --

MS. CHERYL JONES: It would --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: -- instead of applying the
correct --

MS. CHERYL JONES: It would nake sense to just

conpletely strike it fromthe | anguage al t oget her about

I f we suspect that this -- that it's been on the skin,
or if it's been applied to the skin or -- | nean, what's
the reference here? | mean, because if you just strike

t hat piece of |anguage out of there, then that woul d
probably solve a ot of the problens, wouldn't it? W
could just elimnate that.

| nean, because it's one thing if the skinis
In bad condition, as in, there's -- there's bunps or
breaks or abrasions or -- you know, that's one thing if
we see visible signs, but it's another thing if we don't
see any kind of visible issues with the skin. And

| i docai ne has no effect on the healing of the tattoo or
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pigment retention or any of that. As -- you know, |
mean, |'ve been using it, you know, since about 2008,
2010. I've never had a problemw th healing, ever. In
fact, | haven't found a single person that's even
allergic toit, yet, which | believe there are. | know
there are people. | always ask people ahead of tine,

“"Are you allergic to |idocai ne?"

So, yeah, if you could strike that part from
t he | anguage, then, you know -- because there's --
there's other language in here that's a little vague as
well. So, | mean, why not? Wy can't we just strike
that fromthe [anguage? | don't -- | don't see that
we'd be in violation of anything that way. Like, it
really should not be our job to govern what people do
wth their skin when we're not tattooing it.

| mean, you know, we give themcare on how to
heal their tattoo, and I'll tell you what, sonme people,
t hey just do whatever they want anyways, you know, and
that's conpletely beyond our control. So could we
negotiate for that? Could we take that out of the
| anguage?

M5. TAMW HADLEY: And | feel safer -- | feel
nore safe doing it nyself, buying a product that | know
I's reputable with nmy education and ny know edge, and

buyi ng sonething that |'ve used for thousands of people
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and al ways had a positive result, know ng exactly how
much to apply, that nore is not better, you know.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Right. Wich --

MS. TAMMY HADLEY: (I naudi bl e).

MS. CHERYL JONES: Wiich is exactly --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Right.

MS. CHERYL JONES. The go-around would be, "You
use your product,” and maybe you put out this nuch of a
portion and whatever --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: And you --

MS. CHERYL JONES. And just go --

M5. TAMW HADLEY: But | don't feel like --
right. You're right. |It's a slippery slope, because
that's where the confort is, because then we have the
control over what's being used, howit's being used, and

we know. They cone back with a bad result, and we can

say, "Well, you know, I know 'this', "this' and '"this', "
but nmy clients lie. They lie to -- about all kinds of
t hi ngs.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Yeah, they do.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: | can't change that, but
we're letting thembuy a product that could be used for
anal nunmbing for -- and put it on their eyelid. | just
-- it just seens like we're creating a bigger problem

MS. CHERYL JONES: A nuch bigger problem yes.
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MS. TAMW HADLEY: And | want to say this: You
know, | -- | feel like -- I've only been in this
I ndustry for eight years. And, you know, when | was 18
years old, there was a (inaudible) tattoo. | went there
wth all my girlfriends one night, got a tattoo, you
know, and thought that, "Onh, that nust be legal." |
didn't know. | didn't know anything like | know now, at
54 years old. | had no idea. And | feel like in the

| ast eight years, we really are starting to becone a

professional -- a professional group of people.
Li ke, we -- | feel like the whole idea of
tattooi ng and cosnetic -- cosnetic tattooing and

per manent nakeup and how we operate, it's |ooked at a

| ot higher than maybe it used to, just because of

know edge itself. Not that it's better than it used to
be, but there's a |ot nore know edge about it. There's
alot nore --

MS. CHERYL JONES: There really is, but the
corporations realize that they can nake noney off of our
industry finally. So that's -- that's why it's
| egitimati zed, because the nore legitimate you are, the
nore these organi zations, |ike the FDA, you know, the
state, they can cone in and regul ate you.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Right. | just -- | don't

know. | feel like there's sonething that should be done
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or that has to be done for all of us to be able to have
what our wants are satisfied; the want to nake sure that
they're using the right product, the want to nake sure
that they're confortable during the procedure, the want
to make sure they're not putting a product on sone part
of the skin that it should not go on in desperation to
just have it done, but be nunb.

Because, let's face it, we're wonen. W're
going to figure it out. | nmean, we are. W're going to
use all kinds of things that we shouldn't be using, and
doing things we shouldn't be doing just to be able to
get through it. And that's not a confortable situation
for any of us perform ng those procedures, if we don't
know - -

MS. CHERYL JONES: Well, like, isn't this
legitimately, |ike, the whole abortion argunment; right?

| mean, you know, you have to make abortion |egal for

peopl e so they can do that. You know, this is -- this
Is ridiculous. | nean, like, what -- | nean, it's --
it's, like, it's -- it's the sane exact thing. You're

going to decide what people are or aren't allowed to do
wth their bodies, you know, because these FDA -- this
Is -- it doesn't nake any sense. None of this nakes any
sense.

The nmedical field needs to stay out of our
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I ndustry. | mean, as far as regul ating autocl aves,
okay. That nakes sense. Regul ate the autoclaves. But
anything el se, you know -- we know far nore about this
I ndustry than any physician would. It doesn't make
sense the physician should have their hands in anything
we do at all; at all. They shouldn't be touching us.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: | wouldn't let my physician
tattoo me.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Absolutely not.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. You're for sure going to
have wonen putting nunbing agents on their own eyelids,
and all the issues that are going to cone fromthat.

MS. CHERYL JONES. People could potentially go
blind fromthis.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: And what if we are using
products that interact with the products they used
because they didn't tell us they used it. | nmean, we're
creating a bigger problem | -- | personally think,
because of what we don't know. At least if we're doing
It ourselves, we do know. And are there going to be
peopl e that break the rules? There are. But there's
going to be people like us out there standing up for the
rules and maybe getting the word out there, |ike, you
know - -

MS5. CHERYL JONES: No, not nme, because | don't
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under st and how |'ve used this product since 2008, 2010,

you know, |'ve never had a problem And now suddenly,

you know, well, because the FDA and there's a framework
and this -- you know, so, yeah, | nmean, | guess we have
to change the -- the term-- the what a nedi cal
procedure is. | nean, how do we fix this? | nean,
because | figure, like, you guys are supposed to help
us; right?

MR. SAUNDERS: Specifically with this rule,
thisis -- thisisn't -- thisis a clarification of
what's al ready existing |aw, and we can't change the
| aws. So you woul d have to change the |aws through
political neans.

MS. CHERYL JONES: So you're saying that this
Is already an existing | aw?

MR. SAUNDERS:. This is an existing law. W --

MS. CHERYL JONES: Unh- huh.

MR, SAUNDERS: W didn't change it, like, even

i f we had not --

MS. CHERYL JONES: | mean, this was never in
the -- in the verbiage for -- for the body art ordi nance
bef ore.

MR. SAUNDERS: So this was, like, a
clarifications so that you -- people were aware of the

exi sting | aws.
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MS. CHERYL JONES. kay. But what if we just
don't put the clarifications in there, and they're not
part of the body art ordinance at all?

MR. SAUNDERS: It would still be a | aw

M5. TAMW HADLEY: But the FDA is federal;
right? And there are others -- | ama part of several
per manent makeup groups all over the United States, and
nobody el se has laws like this. And |I know you can't be
concerned with what other people are doing, but if
they' re governed by the FDA, too --

MR, SAUNDERS: So --

M5. TAMW HADLEY: -- what's their workaround?

MR. SAUNDERS. So it gets conplicated, but the
big thing is, if a packaging -- if your packaging right
now says, "You can apply this for numbing before a
tattoo," it is not approved for that use. The FDA says
that's not a legal use, and they don't -- that's a new
drug that needs a new 510(k) nunber. So using that
product could put you at sone degree of risk, but also
i f a product is being sold that is not -- does not have
the right labeling for what is being sold as --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: What about just a general,

t opi cal nunbing, doesn't say anything about anything
el se?

MR. SAUNDERS. Then it's going to be an
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over-the-counter for the consuner. And | get where
you're frustrated; right? Totally nakes sense to ne,
but we can't change any of that. That's not us. W're
just putting it in there for clarification. So whether
it"s in there or not, it wll still be the lawin

M chigan, and it's probably the | aw nati onw de.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: (kay. But that so the FDA
is a federal --

MR, SAUNDERS: Well, that -- so the FDA is
going to nake rul es about drugs, and since this is an
over-the-counter drug for consuner use, as soon as a
tattoo artist or a piercer or whatever starts applying
it in their occupational use, things get different;
right? And that's going to be a state -- state rule,
but in Mchigan that falls under the practicing nmedicine
W thout a license.

And that, we don't have any control over
because we didn't -- we don't nake the |aws. Like,
we're just nmaking rules based on those | aws.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: So | have a question. |If a
client of mne walks into ny building, they tell ne they
have a headache, and | give theman 800 mlligram of
Motrin, which was ny prescription, |'m breaking the |aw,
obvi ously.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Yeah.
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M5. TAMW HADLEY: | know | can't adm nister
medi cation. But if |I hand thema bottle of ibuprofen I
just bought at Rite Aid that's 200 mlligrams, and they
take it thenselves, are they breaking the | aw?

MR. SAUNDERS: You would have to talk to a
| awyer. | don't think so, but | don't know.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Because they're putting an

over-the-counter -- they're taking and over-counter drug
t hensel ves.
MR. SAUNDERS: But for its -- its listed use.

M5. TAMW HADLEY: But the listed use of
| i docai ne on the back of ny bottle is for -- for relief
of pain.

MR, SAUNDERS: But that's -- but not for
tattooing. | know that sounds |like a very specific
thing, but it has to say for tattooing --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: So -- okay.

MR, SAUNDERS: -- and it can't be legally say
t hat .

MS. TAMW HADLEY: So let's say that | -- they
-- they -- I'mgoing to go back to the whole exanple |

just used. So let's say they cone in and they say,
“"Man, like, I'"'mjust really having these uterine cranps,
and | really need sonething for pain. You have an

| buprofen?", and | hand themthe bottle of 200 m|ligram
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| buprof en, but the back only says for headache. |t does
not say -- now am| breaking the |aw --

MR SAUNDERS. But --
MS. TAMW HADLEY: -- because it doesn't say

uterine pain?

MR. SAUNDERS. It doesn't say specifically
uterine pain, but it's going to say for general nuscul ar
pain; right?

MS. TAMW HADLEY: But ny -- the back m ne says
for pain.

MR. SAUNDERS. | -- we're tal king about a
hypot heti cal thing.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Right.

MR, SAUNDERS: |If we bust it out, it's going to
say sonmething that covers that; right? The other thing
Is that, in addition -- and | know this is annoying, but
you handi ng them does actually have sone liability if
you do that in a professional way; right? If you're
saying, "As a tattooer, |I'mgoing to give you this

medi tation," then, yeah, liability changes; right? As
your friend -- right? -- "I'mgoing to hand you this."
It's a different thing; right? That -- that is stil
over-the-counter use. | don't |like these rules either,
but this is just basically what it is. [It's the way

American law is set up.
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MS. TAMW HADLEY: But is it okay just to say,
"It is what it is"? | nean, when it affects so many
people -- if there was a | aw that was bei ng passed that
said, "You can't use a machine that you used safely for
30 years, and you know it's better than anything on the
mar ket, and you're super passionate about it," and they
told you to use this hollow needle over here, and this
is all you could use -- I'mjust making this up because
| don't even know what it is.

But 1'mjust saying, if you knew that was
wrong, in your core of core you know that's w ong.
Sonmebody got it wong. You just can't believe that's
what they're saying. Wuldn't you fight for it, too?

MR. SAUNDERS:. Sure, absolutely. But you've
got to fight for it politically, not because -- | think
what folks in this roomwould |like us to say is that,
"Okay. We're going to change that rule."; right? But
we can't. It's not our rule. It's a state |aw

MS. TAMW HADLEY: But if you can adapt it, how
come you can't change it?

MR. SAUNDERS. It's -- we can't change the
| aws; right? W can change certain -- the wording of
certain rules, but this one in particular, that I
understand is not popular -- right? -- we don't have any

ability to change, because it's part of the state | aws.
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MS. CHELSEA ORRICO So we need to talk to the
state or the state really has no w ggle room because of
t he FDA?

SAUNDERS: It's going to involve both.
CHELSEA ORRI CO  (Ckay.

SAUNDERS: Yeah.

CHELSEA ORRI CO. Because you said that the

5 3 o

FDA has no intention to ever approve any of the --

MR SCHM DT: Well, they won't, unless there's
a new drug application -- right? -- which you need
clinical trials and studies published in peer reviewd
scientific literature, that then goes to the FDA to
desi gnate whether it's -- we knowit's effective or
whether it's safe; right? That -- that's how you get a
new drug approved in the United States.

MS. CHERYL JONES. That's actually -- that's
not really how it goes.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: But this isn't a nedical
service we provide. Thisis --

MS. CHERYL JONES: VYeah.

M5. TAMW HADLEY: This is --

MS. CHERYL JONES: The problemis when you | et
the nmedical industry -- the Medical-industrial Conplex
-- into sonething that is not nedical, where does it

stop? So -- okay. W need a prescription to use these
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anesthetics; right? Then -- then -- then it turns into,
"You have to have a nedical |icense be able to tattoo."
| nean, |ike, where does it -- where does it stop?

Li ke, once they get their fingers into this industry,
It's just going to keep going. |It's not going to get
any better. So, | nmean, like, we're already in the
situation where we have to get a prescription froma
doctor. \What happens next? What happens next? At sone
point, we have to have nedical |icenses to be able to
tattoo.

MR. SAUNDERS. And this is why | would say it's
well -- it's -- it's really worthwhile to be involved in
what ever organi zations you have in your particular
I ndustry. Because, you know, |'ve been doing this for a
really long time in ternms of | was the |egislation
coordinator for the Association of Professional
Piercers, and we would be in nmeetings with, |ike, NEHA
and, you know, California, and there wouldn't be any
tattooers involved, because none of those organizations
have much traction; right?

Cetting involved with those gets you in the
roomon all of these conversations, because they're
happening in a |lot nore roons than this. This is sort
of -- what you're at is sort of the end of the Iine.

You really want to be earlier.
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MS. TAMW HADLEY: But the organi zations that
I'"'minvolved with are -- are all in other states, which,
when | reached out to every single person | know -- |
think there was, |ike, 47 people | reached out to --
they're like, "Yeah, we don't -- we don't have any -- we
don't do that."

MS. CHERYL JONES: Yeah, and | reached out to

MS. TAMW HADLEY: "W don't have any rule |ike

that."

M5. CHERYL JONES: | --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: So there's no neani ng about
it, because they're -- they're not enforcing anything

|ike that. So this is the beginning for all of us.
This is the first time we knew

MR. SAUNDERS: But this is a national thing;
right? One of your chief -- chief issues ends up being
an FDA issue; correct?

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Correct.

MR. SAUNDERS: Yeah. So you need sone -- an
organi zation that speaks with the FDA.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: How do the organizations
that | belong to speak to the FDA on this topic?
Because --

MS. CHERYL JONES:. None of the organizations
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you're involved in have enough noney to speak with the
FDA.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Well, maybe they do, but
they're not going to go speak to the FDA for little

Tanmy Hadley in Mchigan, because it doesn't concern all

of that, because nobody's pressing these -- these rules.
MR. SAUNDERS:. | can only speak to ny persona
experience --
MS. TAMW HADLEY: Right.
MR. SAUNDERS: -- as an artist; right?

MS. CHERYL JONES: | spoke with ny buddy from
the APT. Nobody knew this was going on. | wasn't
informed. It's not on the APT website. Nobody knew
this was going on

MR, SAUNDERS: And that's -- that's kind of why
| would -- | would suggest being involved with the APT;
right? Really, really be involved and --

MS. CHERYL JONES: But -- but they don't know
It's going on.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: They don't --

MS. CHERYL JONES. Like, | literally talked to
Der by (phonetic); he's got no idea this is going on.
Like, | nean, | talked to a friend of mne who is very
heavi |y enbedded in the APT.

MR. SAUNDERS: R ght.
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MS. CHERYL JONES: Nobody knows this is going
on.

MR. SAUNDERS: | don't know how that's
possi bl e, because it's been so well published before
this. You know, that 2019 neeting was two days and --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: | didn't know.

MR. SAUNDERS: Just because --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: And | check all ny emails
and | pay attention.

M5. CHERYL JONES: Was that the one that we had
in the winter?

MR SAUNDERS: It was Cctober. And | believe

there was a followup one in Decenber, was it?

MS5. CHERYL JONES: Well, | mean we --

MR SAUNDERS. | -- | --

MS. CHERYL JONES. | renenber taking part --
MR. SCHM DT: | know we extended sone public

conment .

MR. SAUNDERS: Yeah.

MS. CHERYL JONES: -- in a two-part, two-day
whol e, long fiasco. W got snowed out and it was --

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. | have a question. Do you
guys --

M5. CHERYL JONES: -- and that was never even

nment i oned.
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MS. CHELSEA ORRICO  -- seek out the APP for
their guidance on their regulations, or do they offer to
you and you take it?

MR. SAUNDERS: So the APP doesn't involve --
the APP is involved insofar as |'mactive in the APP,
but I'mnot reporting at anybody at the APP; right?

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. |'mjust wondering for,
like -- like, if the Society of Pernmanent Cosnetics
wanted to provide you with gui dance, you woul d need
sonebody who's a nenber to be part of a work group, but
work groups aren't going to exist anynore 'cause you
guys are done?

M5. MOREHOUSE: So we will have a smaller work
group that's going -- we're going to nmake gui dance
docunents for things -- sone things that are taken out
of the rules, sone things that are just, you can't have
a rule, but we can nmake the best practices kind of
thing. So there will be people that are making that --

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO  After --

M5. MOREHOUSE: -- but it wll be -- the work
group was very | arge.

M5. CHELSEA ORRICO So | nean after -- like,
let's say you guys figure all this out, it gets
approved. Beyond that point, are you going to continue

to have any work groups to do any nore changi ng?
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MS. MOREHOUSE: Like a nonthly work group or
quarterly or sonething |like that?

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO. | don't know. Anything at
al I,

MS. CHERYL JONES: No. | nean, it sounds Ilike
this is final draft, and then they're going to pass it
into law, and then we have to --

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO.  And then nobody gets
t oget her for meetings or anything?

M5. CHERYL JONES: No. And then we have to
fight and have them change the definition of, | guess,
what ever a nmedi cal procedure is in the state of
M chi gan, because that, evidently, is a problem So
that's where it has to start.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: | think the whole thing to

me -- and, | nmean, |'Il just nmake it super basic -- is
that | don't understand -- and |'ma pretty educated
person, I'd like to think -- is that | can take a

m crobl ade, scratch the surface of the skin and put a
pigment in there that is not FDA approved -- naybe
conponents of it are regulated, but it is not FDA

approved because there isn't one ink that is FDA

approved -- and that's okay. But | cannot sw pe a
topical over the top of it, and that -- that's not okay.
| can -- | can use mcroblades and tattoo
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needl es and everything el se that's not FDA approved on
that skin, but this one particular thing that happens to

be the one particular thing that makes the client

confortable, | cannot use.

MR, SAUNDERS: Because it's a drug. | know --
| know it's an unpleasant thing, but it is a drug. It
IS --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Over what percentage? Any
per cent age?

MR, SAUNDERS: | don't define what the drug is.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Because this has four
per cent.

MR. SAUNDERS: For consuner use. | know we
keep on running around in a circle. | --

MS. CHERYL JONES: Well, what's crazy is -- is
tattoo i nk was not even approved by the FDA up until
very, very, very recently; very, very recently. And |
bel i eve the only conpany that has been approved by the
FDA is Eternal Tattoos, | believe.

TAMW HADLEY: It's not approved.
SCHM DT: It's not approved, but it's --
CHERYL JONES: Oh, it's not approved.

5

SCHM DT: -- regul ated as cosneti cs.
TAMW HADLEY: Yeah.

2P D P D

SCHM DT: How they regul ate cosnetics and,
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“approve" themis --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: There is not --

MR SCHM DT: -- way different than --
MS. CHERYL JONES. So our industry is --
MR, SCHM DT: -- (inaudible).

MS. CHERYL JONES. Qur industry is being
regul ated by the cosnetic industry and by the medi cal
i ndustry, both?

MR SCHM DT: Wth regards to products, yes.
And sone of them |ike tattoo needl es, piercing needles,
those are conpletely unregul ated; right? The FDA
doesn't classify --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Absol utely.

MR. SCHM DT: -- those as --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: There is not one thing --

MR SCHM DT: -- anything at all.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: -- in our industry that is
FDA approved, not one. | | ooked.

MS. CHERYL JONES: But we still have state | aws
that regulate all this anyways, regardless of all the
things that we use that are not FDA approved in here.
There's still rules. There's still |aws associ at ed.

And you acknow edge what we're using, this is al
acknowl edged in here, and these are the rules. And not

all of these things are approved by the FDA.
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MS. TAMW HADLEY: None of them are.

MS. CHERYL JONES: But, yet, this is still a
state body art -- it doesn't nake any sense. So j ust
this one thing pertaining to the FBA -- FDA is
applicable, but all the other stuff is not? | nean --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: That's ny question. | asked
it anot her way.

MR. SAUNDERS: The -- so there are FDA things
that we use for reference, and one of themis going to

be their relationship with drugs. And with tattooings,

as that's an energing thing, | expect sone changes over
t he next 10 years, which you -- | nean, Steve is --

MR, SCHM DT:  Yenp.

MR. SAUNDERS: -- really keen on this stuff,

but the drug science --

MS. CHERYL JONES. Yeah, they can't wait to get
their fingers onit.

MR. SAUNDERS: -- is really established.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: So let ne ask this: What in
our industry or your -- you know, what, fromthe tinme
they walk in to we cleanse the skin, we choose if we're
going to do, you know, a powder brow or m crobl aded
brow, whatever, a pignent, anything, what is reg- --
what is FDA approved? Qut of any of those services,

there's nothing, not one thing.
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MR, SAUNDERS:. Your skin antiseptics are
definitely approved. The packaging for the skin

antiseptic is approved. The packaging for the autoclave

package is approved. Like, so nuch of it is FDA studied

and approved. | know it doesn't speak to your point
and, to an extent, | really agree with your point, but

there's not anything this group can do about it.

M5. TAMW HADLEY: | nean, even G een Soap
says, "C eanse the skin." Geen Soap isn't FDA
appr oved.

MR. SAUNDERS: It is for -- as a soap.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: But it doesn't specifically
say -- | nean, | read a whole thing. | nean, there's,

| i ke, a 19-page article about this.
MR. SAUNDERS: | -- for what it's worth, |

don't think you should use G een Soap, but you don't

want to get ne started on skin prep. It will be boring

and long -- |ong-w nded tal k.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: And | don't -- for what |
do, | don't need to use Geen Soap. But it shows all
over in our industry, and a |ot of people think very
highly of it. That's ny point. M point is just that
each of us do little things a little bit different.
And, you know, nothing in our industry is really FDA

approved. You said the packaging. Well, forget the
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packaging. Like, what's inside? Are -- are --

MR, SAUNDERS: Exactly. That -- that is also
FDA approved, especially the things |ike isopropyl
al cohol --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Wichis --

MR. SAUNDERS. -- (inaudible).

MS. TAMW HADLEY: -- wi ped over the skin.
It's not put into the skin; right? But the pignent is
put into the skin, and that's not FDA approved.

MR, SAUNDERS: That is in the process.

MR SCHM DT: | nean, | wouldn't make that
argunment on a |arge scale, because te the FDA m ght
start regul ating those as sonething other than
cosneti cs.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Well, I'mnot trying to, but
|'"'mjust saying, like, all these things that we do, are
not regulated, and then there's this one little thing
over that is regulated.

MR. SAUNDERS: But it's the one that's a drug.
| get -- | get it. |'mon your side.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: It's the one that nakes the
client confortable.

MR, SAUNDERS: Again, but it's not it's nothing
that this group could change, because we can't

fundanental | y change the state | aw.
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MS. TAMW HADLEY:

Coul d you give the authority

to enforce it?

MS. CHERYL JONES: Actually, with enough
peopl e, you can fundanentally change the state | aw, yes.
MR. SAUNDERS. Yeah, well |

MS. CHERYL JONES:

agr ee.
Wth a petition and wth
enough peopl e, you can change it.

MS. BRENNAN: | think what he's trying to get

it is there's nothing --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Right now.

MS. BRENNAN: -- this panel can do.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Correct.

MS. BRENNAN:  Yeah.

M5. TAMW HADLEY: No, | understand.

MS. BRENNAN:  Yeah.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: But | think we're all here,
| ooking for you -- the four of you for sonething to

gui de us, because we don't know. 1've never been to a

meeting wth this before. | have no idea how it works.

What can we do? How can we -- | don't want to say, get

around it, but, |I mean, what can we do so we can stil

keep providing the services that we're providing, not
put that into the hands of uneducated or unknow ng
still

clients, wor ki ng on skin that we know what's

actually on it and the amounts that are put on it?
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Li ke, what can we do?

MR, SAUNDERS: My suggestion is, if you have a
conmpany that you believe in their product, and believe
that it is safe for tattooing -- right? -- an anesthetic
sol ution, then you ask that conpany to get FDA approved
for that use.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Ckay.

MR. SAUNDERS: Then they have to go nake the
application, spend the noney and prove that their
product is safe.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: And they're going to do that
for one state out of all the other states?

MR. SAUNDERS: No; no. That would --

TAMW HADLEY: -- that don't require it.
SAUNDERS: -- be for the entire country.
TAMW HADLEY: But nobody else requires it

5 2

but us.

SAUNDERS: | bet you everybody requires it.
TAMW HADLEY: But nobody enforces it.
SAUNDERS: That could be true.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: That's probably the fairest

2P D

way to say it. | --
MR, SAUNDERS: And that's not ny understanding.
My understanding is plenty of places, actually --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: 37 states | made cont act
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wi th, and out of those 37 states, not one of them-- and
not -- I'mnot talking about, |ike, at the state |evel.
|*'mtal king about reputable permanent nmakeup artists, or
peopl e that were active in groups, or one studies --

MR. SAUNDERS: They -- they don't know.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: -- and not one of them said
it was regulated at all.

MR. SAUNDERS: But my guess is, and this is --
this is one of the reasons that it's in these rules --
Is that it's probably illegal nationw de; right? They
don't know, because they don't know. And one of the
reasons of putting it in the rules is that so you knew,
right?

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Yeah. | nean, maybe.

MR. SAUNDERS:. So if you get a conpany to go
t hrough those hoops, then you will have a | egal product.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: They're not going to.

MR. SAUNDERS: | agree they're not going to,
but | don't see why we're upset with the people trying
to nake sure that tattooing is as safe as possible, and
not the conpany that's not willing to spend the noney to
prove the product --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Because we're trying to nmake
sure tattooing is safe as possible, also.

MR. SAUNDERS. Then -- then the way to do that
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MS. TAMW HADLEY: And -- and we're | ooking out
for our clients, because we know t hem personally. W
know their stories. W hear themcry. W know every
single thing about them

MR SAUNDERS. So --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: We're protecting them

MR. SAUNDERS: So what's objectionabl e about
studies to prove that the product safe? Wat's
obj ecti onabl e t here?

MS. CHERYL JONES:. But how many studies do we
have that prove that |ow | evel s of product are unsafe?
There aren't any?

MR, SAUNDERS: Again, this is an unknown;
right?

MS. CHERYL JONES. So -- so we're going with an
unknown. The FDA can't prove it's safe. W can't prove
it'"s unsafe. So we're going to go with the unknown, and
t he unknown is we can't use it. Like, it doesn't nake
sense that, you know --

MR. SAUNDERS: | think it nmakes a | ot of safe
(sic) for a product to prove that it's safe for its
I nt ended use.

MS. CHERYL JONES: (kay.

MR. SAUNDERS: | think -- | don't think that's

2 ESQUIRE

October 28, 2024
118

800.211.DEPO (3376)
DEROSITION SOLUTIONS EsquireSolutions.com



© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N N T N N R N T T o T T o S R S S T
aa A W N P O © 00 N OO0 O 0 W N . O

HEARING October 28, 2024
IN RE BODY ART FACILITIES 119

unreasonabl e to say, "Hey, here's a drug. Let's prove
it safe. And it's going to cost some noney, but at the
end of it, we have the evidence, and we've convinced the
government that it's safe." | don't see that being a
probl em

MS. CHERYL JONES. Dude, why -- how did we get
all these vaccines? None of themwere ever fucking --

MS. BRENNAN. Hey.

MS. CHERYL JONES: It's unbelievable. They
don't -- they weren't -- they weren't -- they didn't
have clinical trials, like the TPP. They didn't have --
they didn't have clinical trials for their vaccinations,
but they're worried about |idocaine. That's crazy.
Where is -- where is their clinical trials on all their
vaccinations and all their bullshit?

MR SAUNDERS: | -- we can't --

MS. BRENNAN: Pl ease refrain from any

profanity.
MS. CHERYL JONES: Yes, mm'am
MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you.
MS. CHERYL JONES. Sorry about that.
MS. BRENNAN: It's okay.
MS. CHERYL JONES. kay. So, basically, this

nmeeting was so that you could hear our grievances?
MS. BRENNAN:. Correct.
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MR. SAUNDERS: Correct.

MS. CHERYL JONES: So you take these grievances
to the -- the next level?

MS. BRENNAN:  Uh- huh.

MS. CHERYL JONES: And then that's it?

MS. BRENNAN:. Based upon the public conmment
today, this group -- not ne. |I'monly here for
procedure -- will review all of the public coments and
make a determ nation whether the rules should be
changed. It's as sinple and conplicated as that.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: So | have a question.

MS. CHERYL JONES: So, basically, no matter
what we say, they will side with what the FDA is telling
them and the rules set aside for Mchigan, the
definition of nmedical procedure, and there really is
not hing that we can do other than --

MS. BRENNAN: We haven't even had the neeting
yet. How can you say that? W are going to nmeet, | on
the procedure, these three on the substantive issues,
and deci de whether the rule should be changed. | don't
know i f -- because of the FDA and the whole thing -- and
by the way, federal |aw trunps any other [|aw.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Correct.

MS. BRENNAN: So that's a problem And | think

Jeff is trying to say there is nothing we can do about
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it. "Wt side with you, but," and the whole bit. But
this group will neet. | cannot tell you at this
particular time what the final rules are going to be.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: So has there ever been a
situation where this is the law, like law, but it's
going to be enforceable by, like, the county health
departnent, and that -- because the county health
department is the person who neets with us on an
| ndependent level to -- | nmean, is there anything |ike
that? Like, because if the FDA has nade the |aw, you
can't -- you can't supersede what that lawis.

MS. CHELSEA ORRICO Didn't they do that with
marijuana and the states approved.

M5. TAMW HADLEY: Correct.

MS. BRENNAN: Federal governnent gave
regul ation to the states, just |ike abortion.

MS. TAMW HADLEY: So what could be -- and |I'm
not saying it's going to be, but, |ike, hypothetically,
what could be done to allow us to continue to practice
the way that we're practicing, on your part anyway?
Anyt hi ng?

MS. CHERYL JONES: Yeah, like, | nean, can't
you guys help us with | oophol es?

MS. BRENNAN. No, |I'ma |awer.

MS. CHERYL JONES: What do you nean, you're a
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| awyer ?

MS. BRENNAN: |'ma good | awyer. No.

MS. CHERYL JONES. Good | awers don't need
| oophol es.

MS. BRENNAN. We don't --

MS. CHERYL JONES: Wio wrote this?

MS. BRENNAN. -- like to call it |oopholes.
We'd like to, again, review and see what ot her
alternatives we could cone up with. Thank you. So --

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Right. Can we find other
alternatives?

MS. BRENNAN. That will be part of the
di scussion that this group has.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Again, ny -- I'mreally
curious what -- like, what -- never mnd; never m nd,
never mnd. Okay. So, yeah, about the -- the health
departnment | woul d assume would be enforcing this rule
for us not being able to have any kind of antiseptic or
| i docai ne or whatever?

MS. TAMW HADLEY: Yes, because they cone do
our inspections.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Right. | nmean, there are so
many people tattooing out of their houses right now that
the health departnent hasn't even touched. | don't know

why |'mworried about the health departnent.
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MS. TAMW HADLEY: Because you're worried about
followng the rules. That's why. Because you're here.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Yeah, well, not in this
particul ar instance |I'm not.

MS. BRENNAN: Thank you. Wuld anyone like to
take a break? Yay. 15 mnutes, please. Let nme see.
11: 05, please. W'Il|l go back on the record at 11:20.

O f the record.
(O f the record)

MS. BRENNAN: Back on the record. It's 11:22
a.m W're here on Body Art Facilities, 2023-59 HS.
Woul d anyone |ike to nmake a comment? Please don't
forget to signin. Forgot to tell you that. And if at
any tinme you want to cone up and nake a comment, let ne
know, and we'll go back on the record. Of the record.
Thank you.

(Of the record)

MS. BRENNAN: Back on the record, 11:30 a.m

MS. CHERYL JONES: Many, nmany years, one -- one
of nmy initial arguments that really disturbed me and
part of what pronpted me to wite a letter to the health
department many years ago, was that in the body art
ordi nance, that there is no mninmum age requirenment for
piercing or tattoos.

And that was one thing that | thought was
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actually really inportant, especially as a nmom now,
like, a grandma. It's kind of really inportant, because
we have age limts for, you know, tobacco use and age
limts for driving cars and age limts for all kinds of
t hi ngs.

And one of the problens that occurs for ne
repeatedly in this industry is that there are tattoo
shops out there that'll tattoo anybody. You know,
they'll tattoo a 12 year-old kid, a 14 year-old kid, you
know, 15 year-old kid. | realize parental consent is
| nportant, but there's a |lot of parents out there that
-- | nean, |'ve had parents argue with ne. |, of
course, Wll turn themdown. |'ve had parents argue
wth me over getting their 14 year-old daughter
tattooed, you know, and |'ve refused.

|''mjust curious, how cone -- after all these
years, if this isn't an official, you know, rule set
yet, or official law, how cone we haven't made a m ni num
age requirenment yet? | really feel that that's super
inportant. If this ain't final, why -- why can't we --
why can't we add that? | nean, that's sonething that,
quite honestly, has bothered ne for years and years and
years that, you know, there's people getting away with
tattooing children, you know. And these kids are |eft

wth these -- with the consequences of, you know, al
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these bad decisions. And | feel like if we just had,
you know, sone kind of [imt, that would be really quite
hel pful .

| know people still get tattooed underage, and
people will still go to houses, and people still do

that. And | know the argument that people have used is,

"Well, if they don't get it done in a professional shop,
they' Il just go sonewhere anyways." But | nean, nost

tattooers, there's, like -- we all kind of -- if you're
kind of -- a tattooer with any kind of norals, you have,

| i ke, a professional code of conduct where you j ust
don't tattoo kids under a certain age. Not every
tattooer is |ike that.

So, | nmean, | amkind of curious, after all
t hese years, | nmean, |ike, why have we not nade a
m ni mum age requirenent at this point?

MS. BRENNAN:  Panel ?

MR SCHMDT: So it's tw things that that kind
of touches on. The first part is, and I know we've gone
over this, and government is weird with a |ot of things,
we're here to pronulgate rules; right?

MS. CHERYL JONES: Sure.

MR, SCHM DT: And that -- those rules have the
full force and effect of law, but they technically

aren't the law. That requirenent that's existed since
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2010, where you can do it on a mnor, we just need
consent, proof of all that stuff, that is already in the
law itself. So this whole process isn't to rewite the
existing law. It's to wite the rules.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Sure.

MR SCHM DT: So we can't change that today or
in-- as part of this process.

MS. CHERYL JONES: So you're -- so that is |aw?

MR. SCHM DT: That's |aw, yes.

MS. CHERYL JONES: kay. W th parental consent

MR, SCHM DT:  Yep.
MS. CHERYL JONES. -- but, again, not stating a
m ni num age requirenent?
MR. SCHM DT: Correct. But that would require
a change in the existing law that we're not here to
di scuss, or we don't have the authority to change the
existing law. That would have to go through the state
| egi sl ature,
MS. CHERYL JONES: So that's never getting
changed?
MR. SCHM DT: You woul d have to go through the
state legislature --
MS. CHERYL JONES: | don't --
MR SCHM DT: -- and petition them
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MS. CHERYL JONES: | don't want to do all that.

MR SCHM DT: Wiile we're on the topic, do you
have suggestions for m ninumage for any of the --
whether it's piercing, tattooing, cosnetic tattooing,
brandi ng or scarification, and what's the theory behind
It? 1'm-- just blanket, |ike, whatever you think.

MS. CHERYL JONES. Well, suggestions or
recommendations, | would say -- | would say it would be
different for piercing versus tattooing. | would say
m ni nrum age for some piercings, as in ears, nose, 15 1is
reasonabl e, because, | nean, at that age, kids have a
pretty good concept of how to clean thensel ves, clean
their bodies, kind of clean their roons.

And what you're left wth at the end of the day
Is, like, mnimal scarring, a little tiny -- you know,

If the piercing gets rejection or, you know -- | believe
16 shoul d be a good, hard line. That's when a kid gets
a driver's license. | mean, if a kid' s supposed to be
responsi bl e enough to drive a car at 16, | think, you
know, piercings and tattoos would be okay.

But, |ike, one of the issues wth underage
tattooing is -- is mgration. You know, you tattoo
t hese kids too early, especially boys, you know, under a
certain age, their tattoo is in one place when they're,

i ke, 15, but when they're 21 it's not in the same place
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anynore. It'll -- it'll nove. But, yeah, | nean, |
think -- | think 16 is a pretty good |line for piercing

and tattoos, where kids have a pretty decent
under st andi ng on, you know, how to handl e their bodies
and how to -- you know, they've already had health class
I n school, you know, those kinds of things.

So | think 16 is pretty reasonable. Maybe 15
for piercing, 16 for tattoos, or even 16 all across the
board. | nean, it doesn't kill anybody at a wait a year
or two to get a piercing or a tattoo, but it just seens
like --

MR SCHM DT: Well, | can tell you, | took ny
niece to get her ears pierced the first tine at 13 years
old, and if | didn't do that, she would have gone with
sonebody to Claire's.

MS. CHERYL JONES. Well, yeah, but, | nean,
we're tal king about ear piercing --

MR, SCHVI DT: Right.

MS. CHERYL JONES: -- you know, which isn't
even -- you know, we're not even tal king about that.
' mtal king about, like, belly buttons. [|'mtalking
about, like, | don't think it's appropriate for a grown

adult to be, you know, piercing belly button, you know,
i f sonebody -- | nean, 16 is, like, even kind of weird

for me. But 16 -- you know, anything, under 16. And
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girls are usually -- their bodies kind of start slow ng
down, as far as growth goes, you know, around 15, 16,
17. And -- and that way, that their piercing doesn't
mgrate or, you know, get displaced.

| mean, |ike, you know, doing that too young --
| mean, we're not tal king about, |ike, ears. | nean,
' mtal ki ng about body piercings, you know, things that
could potentially be a problem | just feel like 16 is
a reasonable age. A lot of tines -- well, | nean, not
the 16 year-olds make all the best decisions, but |
think a 16 year-old is going to nake -- is going to do
better healing their tattoo than a 13 year-old, you
know. And it gets really weird because, like, there's a
-- there's -- there's a -- there's a group of people out
there, they're all about getting their kids tattooed at
ridiculously young ages, and they don't seemto have a
problemwth it.

And there are tattooers out there that wll

just flat out lie to parents and be like, "No, there's a

state law. It's 16. | can't do it." You know, | nean,
| won't. I'Il just be honest with themthat | just
won't do it. But, yeah, | nean, | -- | guess it's too

| ate for any of that now, but | just feel like -- and

that was sonething | felt very strongly about in the

begi nning, was that there should have been a m ni nrum age
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requi renent for tattoos and piercings. But all right,
that's it.

MS. BRENNAN. Thank you.

MS. CHERYL JONES: Thanks for answering ny
guesti on.

MR SCHM DT: Do you want the MCL nunber for
what the current [aw is?

MS. CHERYL JONES: No, I'Il findit. | find --
| nean, | knowit's there. | know it says, "Wth

parental consent,” and | get that, you know, but, still,
there's just -- | nean, legally, a parent could bring
their 11 year-old in. And it gets -- it gets weird.

Where is those child endangernent |aws? Like, where's

N DN NN DD NN DD PP -
g A W N P O © 0

the line for all that? | guess there aren't any when it
comes to tattooing. So -- all right. That's --

MR SCHM DT: | nean, |, personally, don't
di sagree with any of that. |[It's just not in the

purveyance of the --

MS. CHERYL JONES: Right. And -- and | was
confused by that, because that was one of the -- you
know, that that's what pronpted everything. That's what
pronpted ny letter to begin with, was that | worked at a
studi o where ny son -- ny son went to school with an 11
year-old girl who got her belly button pierced at the

studio that | worked at when | -- when | was not there,

2 ESQUIRE

800.211.DEPO (3376)
DEROSITION SOLUTIONS EsquireSolutions.com



© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N N T N N R N T T o T T o S R S S T
aa A W N P O © 00 N OO0 O 0 W N . O

HEARING October 28, 2024
IN RE BODY ART FACILITIES 131

of course, with parental consent. Not that that's okay,
but -- but | guess that's perfectly, you know, Iegal.

But that was, you know, one of the reasons why
| wote that letter, is there should be m ni rum age
requi rements. These kids can't -- you know, her belly
button was infected, and they were asking ne for advice.
You know, she's 11. O course her belly button is
infected. That's crazy. You know, but, | nean, | guess

-- but, yeah, thank you. Thanks for clarifying that for

me.
MR, SCHM DT: Thank you.
MS. BRENNAN: Thank you. | see you all rushing
up here to talk, "I want to talk." Of the record,
pl ease.

(O f the record)
MS. BRENNAN: It is now 2:00 p.m, but we have
not had any public comment since 11:00 o'clock a. m
Public Hearing is over. Any further coments can be
sent to the MDHHS-adm nrul es@n chi gan. gov enai | box
until Friday. Public hearing has ended.

(Hearing concluded at 2:03 p.m)
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CERTI FI CATE

|, Rachelle Roberts, a Certified Electronic
Recorder and Notary Public within and for the State of
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That this transcript, consisting of 131 pages,
Is a conplete, true, and correct record, given on
Cct ober 28, 2024.

| further certify that | amnot related to any
of the parties to this action by blood or marriage; and
that | amnot interested in the outcone of this natter,
financial or otherw se.

I N WTNESS THERECF, | have hereunto set ny hand
this 6th day of Novenber, 2024.

Vochelle ¥ oborty

Rachel | e Roberts, CER 9585

Notary Public, State of M chigan
County of Montcal m
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 1                  Via Zoom Video Conference

 2                  Monday, October 28, 2021 - 9:00 a.m.

 3            MS. BRENNAN:  On the record, please.  Morning.

 4   My name is Mary Brennan.  I'm the Regulatory Affairs

 5   Officer for the Department of Health and Human Services.

 6   Today we are on the record for Body Art Facilities

 7   Proposed Rules, MOAHR number 2023-59 HS.  I'm going to

 8   introduce our panel for today, starting with my left.

 9   Kathryn, please give your name and your title.

10            MS. MOREHOUSE:  I'm Kathryn Morehouse, and I'm

11   the Body Art Coordinator for MDHHS.

12            MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you.  Steve?

13            MR. SCHMIDT:  Steve Schmidt, Macomb County

14   Health Department.

15            MS. BRENNAN:  And last but not least, Jeff?

16            MR. SAUNDERS:  Jeff Saunders.  I own Gamma

17   Piercing in Ann Arbor, and I'm on The Association of

18   Professional Piercers Membership Committee.

19            MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you very much.  And for

20   today, our own Rachelle is our transcriptionist, who

21   will be taking down all of the testimony today.

22            Okay.  These rules have been worked on since

23   2007.  We -- this is our third public hearing.  Third

24   time is the charm and the whole bit.  If you were on the

25   work group, I want to thank you for all your dedication,
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 1   particularly for the last 14 years, trying to get these

 2   rules promulgated.  So let's make today the day.

 3            A little housekeeping:  First of all, guest

 4   Wi-Fi, if you want to write this down, the user name,

 5   gwireless, all one word and in lower case,

 6   g-w-i-r-e-l-e-s-s.  Password is lower case Z, as in

 7   zebra, number eight, I as in igloo, zero, capital C as

 8   in Charlie, seven, exclamation point, lower case D as in

 9   dog, upper case S as in Sam, N as in Nancy; Z, eight, I,

10   zero, C, seven, exclamation point, D, S, and N.

11            Okay.  Restrooms, out the door to your right,

12   down the hallway.  It'll be on your right-hand side.

13   There's a snack shop towards the doors down here, same

14   thing, on your right.  It is on-your-honor.  There is no

15   one there, so you pick what you want and you will pay at

16   a machine that will take care of your needs.

17            With regard to today's hearing, if you would

18   like to make a comment, please come up to the podium,

19   state your name and please spell it for our

20   transcriptionist.  Please watch the wires.  It's a wiry

21   mess today.

22            If you don't want the formality of making a

23   public comment, but just want to ask a question, you may

24   do that, but I will probably remind you, if you want

25   this for the record to send over the legislature, please
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 1   have it recorded.  Otherwise, ask any question you would

 2   like from your seats.

 3            After you give your comment, you have the

 4   option of staying or you may leave.  There was the

 5   misconception in the first public hearing that you had

 6   to stay for eight hours.  You don't.  If you want to

 7   give a comment and you want to get on with your day, you

 8   may leave.  Anything that you give will be recorded and

 9   sent to the -- excuse me -- legislature.

10            There will be a 15-minute break at 10:15, lunch

11   from 12:00 to 1:00.  One block up is Washington Street.

12   There's a slew of restaurants that you can take

13   advantage of.  If you do not wish to make an oral

14   comment or you wanted to make an additional point, you

15   forgot about it, you have until Friday at the end of

16   this week to send to the admin rules email box.  That

17   address is m-d-h-h-s, dash adminrules, all one word,

18   a-d-m-i-n-r-u-l-e-s@michigan.gov.

19            Okay.  Any questions before we begin?  Very

20   good.  Anybody would like to make a comment, please come

21   forward.

22            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Good morning.

23            MS. BRENNAN:  Good morning.

24            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  My name is Tammy Hadley;

25   T-a-m-m-y, H-a-d-l-e-y.  I am the owner of a permanent
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 1   makeup studio in Springport, Michigan, The Image Barn,

 2   actually.  I started my business in honor of my mom and

 3   her battle with cancer, and I provide free permanent

 4   makeup services to cancer patients.  I've done this for

 5   eight years.

 6            I had no idea that these meetings were

 7   happening and that all these rules were changing.  I

 8   actually found out when I received an email two Fridays

 9   ago.  Called my local health department inspector to

10   find out, like, directly how they would affect me.

11            There's two of them that I'm -- two things I'm

12   concerned about.  I'm concerned about the use of not

13   being able to use topicals.  I've done two weeks of

14   research, haven't slept at night, and I found out what

15   Michigan says about topicals, what the FDA says about

16   topicals.  And I've actually -- I have a print-off so

17   it's not just my word.

18            So in March of 2024 the FDA released a customer

19   release stating that topicals by certain companies were

20   not safe to use in large areas.  They don't specify

21   necessarily how large the area is, but it's not in

22   permanent makeup cosmetic areas.  It's more in, like,

23   body tattoo areas.

24            They state that 4 percent by their standard is

25   safe and -- but there are some regulations about that.
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 1   They don't want them covered with plastics or any kind

 2   of Saran Wraps.  They wanted to be on for a shortened

 3   period of time, and they have advised customers to make

 4   sure that those things happen, because then it's safe.

 5            Michigan allows five percent lidocaine by law,

 6   which is one percent more than what the FDA approved.

 7   And I'm just here to ask for some kind of consideration.

 8   Instead of banning topicals at all in the permanent

 9   makeup industry, if we could maybe use four percent

10   instead of five percent, if that's what the FDA states

11   is safe.

12            One of the reasons that this is so important

13   and passionate to me is because I do cancer patients for

14   free, and these women have literally been through the

15   most horrific things in their lives.  And to have to

16   come to me and put them through something else, they're

17   not going to do it.  I have talked to a lot of people --

18   you know, I could go to a med spa in work, but I can't.

19   I've talked to two or three of them.  They won't let me

20   provide my services for free.  I have to charge $750 for

21   an areola; one.  We have two.  That's $1500.  They won't

22   let me do it for free.

23            I just -- it doesn't make any sense to me why

24   we can't use topicals as long as there are some kind of

25   regulations on it.  Now, I know that they're not FDA
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 1   approved, but needle -- neither are needles, neither are

 2   pigments, neither are any tattoo ink.  There is nothing

 3   in this industry that's really FDA approved.  And as sad

 4   as that is, it's a fact.  We have to be educated, and we

 5   have to make sure we're looking into products that come

 6   from reputable companies, and not buying a $3 pigment on

 7   Amazon, spending $70 and buying from a company that has

 8   facilities they test in and has strict criteria because

 9   we're trusting -- we're trusting them.

10            So I just -- I want to ask that, number one,

11   instead of just getting rid of topicals at all, maybe we

12   take up the FDA standards of four percent lidocaine,

13   have a sized area that is considered small by FDA, you

14   know, standards, and maybe take out the ability to cover

15   them with some kind of wrap or dressing, which I don't

16   do anyway.  I don't know why you would.  It increases

17   heat, which makes it more dangerous.

18            But if we write those into the rules, instead

19   of just saying we can't use them at all, I know that,

20   like, for me, it will greatly -- this will impact my

21   business a lot, and it will impact the wrong kind of

22   people that I think have already been through enough,

23   and we don't want to impact them.

24            So the other thing that I wanted to talk about

25   today is the fact that I didn't know that these meetings
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 1   were happening.  And I'm not putting the blame on

 2   anybody.  I always read my emails, and I always go

 3   through everything that I can, but I found out that the

 4   work groups were made up of body art facility owners and

 5   not necessarily represented by a permanent makeup

 6   artist.  I don't want to make the rules for what tattoo

 7   shops do, even though we are under the same licensing,

 8   because I don't know.  I feel like that would be wrong

 9   for me to make rules that deal with body piercing.  I

10   don't want a body piercer to make a rule for me, because

11   we don't do the same thing.

12            And it would be premature and very

13   irresponsible of me to make rules that represent

14   services that I don't personally know about or provide.

15   But to get everyone together from all those different

16   industries, I think gives a better representation of

17   what we do as a whole.

18            The other thing that's concerning to me is that

19   if we're listening just to body art facility owners, I

20   know body art facility owners that do not work in this

21   industry.  They're business owners.  They have opened up

22   a body art facility, gotten the licensing for it, and

23   then they hire people to work there.  They have no idea

24   what we do on a daily basis.  They wouldn't know because

25   they don't need to.  They just pay their fee and renew
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 1   and make sure their shop fits all these standards that

 2   -- that it is, and they're not in there every day

 3   working with, you know, clients or doing pro bono work

 4   or giving back to the community, or whatever, you know.

 5            So, anyway, I just wanted to come here today

 6   and ask if, you know, my voice be heard.  And I don't

 7   know if anyone else agrees with this or not, but the FDA

 8   does have regulations for topicals, and if we could

 9   maybe adopt those instead of just banning them all

10   together.

11            MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you very much.

12            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Thank you.

13            MS. BRENNAN:  Any discussion from the panel?

14            MR. SCHMIDT:  Can I just ask you one question?

15            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Absolutely.

16            MR. SCHMIDT:  You stated that Michigan allows

17   five percent lidocaine --

18            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  By law.

19            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- for topical anesthetics, but

20   the FDA is four percent?

21            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  That's correct.

22            MR. SCHMIDT:  What law the state of Michigan

23   are you referencing?

24            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I went to the

25   Michiganstate.gov.  Do you want me to find it for you?
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 1            MR. SCHMIDT:  If you could, because, I mean,

 2   all drugs and most type of products for the manufacturer

 3   and sale are regulated by FDA.  They're not regulated by

 4   the state of Michigan.

 5            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.

 6            MR. SCHMIDT:  So I'm just curious what you were

 7   referencing.

 8            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Yeah, I can find it for you.

 9   I do have the one that talks about in March of 2024,

10   what the FDA put out overall.

11            MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, that's the FDA warning

12   letter and --

13            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Yes.

14            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- public health advisory.  Yep,

15   absolutely.  I know about that.  I'm just -- I'm just

16   curious because you said Michigan allowed five percent

17   lidocaine, what you were --

18            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Okay.

19            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- referencing on that.

20            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I'll find it for you.

21            MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.

22            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And I can -- well, I can't

23   obviously print it here.  I can send it to you.

24            MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, that's not a problem.

25            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Okay.
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 1            MR. SCHMIDT:  I mean, you can just come up and

 2   tell me whenever you want.

 3            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Okay.  Do you have any other

 4   questions for me?

 5            MR. SCHMIDT:  That was the big one.  And, I

 6   mean, the FDA does regulate tattoo inks and pigments,

 7   but they're regulated as cosmetics.

 8            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.

 9            MR. SCHMIDT:  It's completely different than

10   the drugs --

11            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But they're not approved.

12            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- but they are -- correct.

13            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.

14            MR. SCHMIDT:  But they are regulated, so --

15            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.  Oh, for sure.

16            MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Cool.  I just wanted to

17   make sure we were --

18            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I was just talking about,

19   like, an FDA-approved product.

20            MR. SCHMIDT:  Right.  Okay.

21            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Okay.

22            MR. SCHMIDT:  Perfect.

23            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Thank you.

24            MR. SCHMIDT:  Thank you.

25            MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you.  Next?  Hi.
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 1            MS. CHERYL JONES:  How much time do we have to

 2   speak?

 3            MS. BRENNAN:  Eight hours, if you want.  I'm

 4   here -- I'm here for the long run.

 5            MS. CHERYL JONES:  All right.  Is there a way

 6   --

 7            MR. SCHMIDT:  We're going full filibuster here.

 8            MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- to get on the internet or

 9   --

10            MS. BRENNAN:  Yes.  Let me give you the

11   password.

12            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Thank you.  Thank you.  I'm

13   sure I've written it down.  Oh, wonderful.  Thank you.

14            MS. BRENNAN:  You're a doll.  Thank you.  Okay.

15   Name, please, and spell.

16            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Hi.  My name is Chelsea,

17   C-h-e-l-s-e-a, Orrico, O-r-r-i-c-o.

18            MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you.  Your comment?

19            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Yeah.  I am not sure what

20   members of your work group that you have.  Can I ask

21   questions up here?

22            MS. BRENNAN:  Absolutely.

23            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Okay.  Have you worked

24   with anyone with the Society of Permanent Cosmetics?  I

25   know you work with APP, so just wondering if you've
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 1   consulted with them at all.

 2            MR. SCHMIDT:  Previously, yes.  Not anyone

 3   that's currently active in the work group.

 4            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Okay.  Do you have -- you

 5   don't have any permanent cosmetic artists on your work

 6   group at all right now?

 7            MR. SCHMIDT:  The last one dropped out.

 8            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Okay.  How long has it

 9   been since they've been a part of it?

10            MR. SCHMIDT:  Honestly, I'm not sure right now.

11            MS. MOREHOUSE:  Yeah; yeah.

12            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Okay.

13            MR. SCHMIDT:  It's been a minute.

14            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Are you looking for people

15   to help with that at all?

16            MS. MOREHOUSE:  So the work group is no longer

17   so -- because we -- the work group was to create the

18   rules.

19            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Gotcha.

20            MS. MOREHOUSE:  Or revise the rules.

21            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Okay.

22            MS. MOREHOUSE:  Because currently we have

23   requirements, and how we devised this was we started

24   with the current requirements document and revised it.

25            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Gotcha.  I worked in the
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 1   body art industry for 10 years.  I do body art and I

 2   also do permanent cosmetics.  I do feel like there is a

 3   lot of room for more that could be done with the

 4   permanent cosmetics part of your regulations.  I also

 5   kind of want to echo a little bit what she said about

 6   how much that's going to impact that part of the

 7   industry.

 8            I would -- I think a safe estimate would be at

 9   least 50 percent of the people that get permanent

10   cosmetics are not going to get it if they can't use any

11   kind of numbing agent, or you're going to have people

12   who are trying to apply it themselves, at home with

13   hemorrhoid cream, anal numbing agents, Bactine, things

14   like that.  I don't think the Bactine is really going to

15   do much if they spray it on themselves, but my point is,

16   is that I think you're going to have clients, both in

17   body art and permanent cosmetics, that are applying

18   these things on their own, without any instruction or

19   guidance, and I'm just a little nervous for how that

20   might end up impacting us or falling back the service

21   provider.

22            MR. SCHMIDT:  So there are two additions in the

23   current proposed rule set regarding numbing creams,

24   topical anesthetics.  One, specifically, is stating that

25   the artist cannot apply; right?  You're not allowed to
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 1   apply it.

 2            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Right.

 3            MR. SCHMIDT:  The other rule states that you're

 4   not allowed to work on a client where it's not applied

 5   --

 6            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  How do I know --

 7            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- talking about the home artist

 8   -- or the person applying it at home before they come

 9   in.

10            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  But let's say somebody

11   applies it at home, like the client applies it at home.

12   Because I know that people are going to do this,

13   especially for body art.  They apply at home and they

14   come in.  Sometimes you can tell the difference in the

15   skin, but sometimes you can't.  So how do I know that

16   they did it?  And then they're also, like -- these are

17   regulations for licensing.  So they're not, like, bound

18   to that licensing.

19            MR. SCHMIDT:  Correct.

20            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Right.

21            MR. SCHMIDT:  We can't hold the general public

22   accountable.

23            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  So we just put it in our

24   consent form that they agree that they haven't applied

25   anything, and trust that they're being honest?
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 1            MR. SAUNDERS:  That would be my move, yeah.

 2            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Okay.  I do have another

 3   question.  Is titanium, as long as it meets the ASTM

 4   standard, still allowed for piercing?

 5            MR. SCHMIDT:  Absolutely.

 6            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Okay.

 7            MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, we -- put a general rule in

 8   there for all of any of the products that are ASTM or

 9   ISO regulated for implant grade, they're all allowed.

10   We put it as a general statement, so when new standards

11   come out in the future, you're not hold to just the old

12   standards; right?

13            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Gotcha.

14            MR. SCHMIDT:  The only ones we added were gold

15   niobium, because they don't have current ASTM or ISO

16   standards.

17            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Okay.

18            MR. SCHMIDT:  So we specifically listed the

19   requirements for those because ASTM or ISO don't exist,

20   but we still want to allow them for initial piercing.

21            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Gotcha.

22            MR. SCHMIDT:  Anything else, as long as it

23   meets the ASTM or ISO standard for implant grade, you're

24   allowed to use.

25            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Okay.
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 1            MR. SAUNDERS:  One of the weird things with

 2   metals is that there are so many metals that meet the

 3   ASTM and ISO standards that don't make pretty jewelry.

 4            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Right.

 5            MR. SAUNDERS:  So you never know when someone

 6   might introduce a new -- a new version, because they're

 7   like, "Oh, we figured out a way to make jewelry out of

 8   this."

 9            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Uh-huh; okay.  So if you

10   don't have the work group anymore, what if there are,

11   like, things that the industry thinks should change

12   within the regulations?  Would we just email someone or

13   --

14            MS. MOREHOUSE:  You can always reach out to

15   bodyart@michigan.gov.

16            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Uh-huh.

17            MS. MOREHOUSE:  You can also -- because it's

18   the law, you can reach out to your local

19   representatives, state representatives.

20            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Uh-huh; okay.

21            MS. MOREHOUSE:  Because it takes an act of

22   legislation to change the law.

23            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Got it.  Okay.  All right.

24   That's it.  Thank you.

25            MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you.
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 1            MR. SCHMIDT:  Thank you.

 2            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Can I make a comment on

 3   something without going back up?

 4            MS. BRENNAN:  If you'd like to.  You don't want

 5   it recorded?

 6            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  It doesn't matter.

 7            MS. BRENNAN:  Okay.

 8            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I just want to say that

 9   we're sitting here, listening to this about topicals and

10   clients applying them at home, and, yes, we're going to

11   use, you know, maybe more stringent forms to make sure

12   that we're covered, but it's not really about us; right?

13   It's not about making sure we're covered.  It's about

14   providing the best quality service to our clients.  Just

15   because we're covered legally, that's not really what

16   it's about for me.  So if my client comes in with

17   something on, like you said, and we can't -- we -- most

18   of the time we can know, but there are times you don't

19   know.

20            If a -- if an adverse reaction happens, I'm

21   going to be like, "Oh, I'm covered because I got an

22   attorney and I got this form," but I don't give a crap

23   if I'm covered.  I care about the quality of service and

24   what happens to this person that trusted me with the

25   service, and was forced to do something that they
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 1   shouldn't have had to do, because we can't just regulate

 2   it.  That -- that's -- you know, we talk about

 3   protecting ourselves, yeah, I think that's great, but I

 4   don't -- I do this because it's my passion.  I have a

 5   really nice daytime job that I left to come to.  I do

 6   this is as -- this is what I'm passionate about.  I

 7   don't care about how it affects me legally.  I care

 8   about how it affects the person sitting across from, you

 9   know, the person who's trusting me, the person who spent

10   however long, saving up the money to come in to feel

11   beautiful about because, you know, they lost their

12   eyebrows during chemo and they never came back, or what-

13   -- whatever we all feel unbeautiful about.

14            And, you know, I don't know.  I just -- yes, it

15   protects us legally, but it's not really about the legal

16   aspect of it.  To me, it's about the fact that we're

17   providing a good service, and if we don't know, we can

18   be protected legally by all the forms and attorneys we

19   have on board, but it's not really protecting them.  And

20   they're being put in a position to have to do something

21   and compromise the integrity of a procedure, because we

22   didn't do our job to make sure they had a safe

23   alternative to it.

24            And I did look up the five percent.  So five

25   percent is old -- an old information that I had, because
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 1   when -- in March 2024, the FDA came out with the four

 2   percent, it obviously changed it across the board.  So I

 3   apologize for that.

 4            MR. SCHMIDT:  The FDA has always four percent

 5   for considering it over-the-counter; right?

 6            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.

 7            MR. SCHMIDT:  Because that's what we're really

 8   diving into.  Over-the-counter is approved that way by

 9   the FDA.  It's still a drug product, but it's intended

10   for self-diagnosis and use; right?

11            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.

12            MR. SCHMIDT:  Because directions for use can be

13   made so that any general lay person can understand that.

14            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.

15            MR. SCHMIDT:  None of these products are

16   approved for tattooing, cosmetic tattooing, painful

17   procedures, or anything like that, meaning anyone's use

18   of them, whether it's the client or yourself, is an

19   off-label use of that product.

20            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.

21            MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  I'm just making sure we're

22   on the same page.

23            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  No, I'm -- I understand

24   that.

25            MR. SCHMIDT:  The liability for the artist,
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 1   talking about that section of the rule, like yourself as

 2   an artist applying it.  The problem is, it really falls

 3   under the definition in Michigan Compiled Laws, the

 4   practice of medicine, because what we're doing is either

 5   trying to relieve pain that's already happened or

 6   prevent future pain; correct?

 7            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.

 8            MR. SCHMIDT:  Absolute intended use of these

 9   products.  The practice of medicine means the diagnosis,

10   treatment, prevention, cure or relieving of a human

11   disease, ailment, defect, complaint or other physical or

12   mental condition.  Your use of that product falls under

13   the practice of medicine, which is required that you

14   have a license, like name M.D. or a D.O.; right?  Like,

15   you guys are putting yourself at risk by applying this

16   yourself.

17            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But if it's over-the-counter

18   -- if I have a client come in --

19            MR. SCHMIDT:  It's an off-label use

20   over-the-counter.  Just because you can buy it doesn't

21   mean you can use it; right?  Like I would assume, just

22   because you can buy it at CVS doesn't mean you can use

23   it in those procedures.  The risk, because --

24            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  What about Green Soap?

25            MR. SCHMIDT:  Green Soap is not a drug.
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 1            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  It's listed --

 2            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Is there an SDS sheet for

 3   it?

 4            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I don't know.

 5            MR. SCHMIDT:  Well, there should be an SDS

 6   sheet for everything.

 7            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I mean, I don't have it --

 8            MR. SCHMIDT:  I mean, Windex --

 9            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I don't have it handy.

10            MR. SCHMIDT:  Right.

11            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But I have a FDA, they

12   recommend consumers not use -- they -- they are.  Hold

13   on.  That was my lidocaine.  Yeah, I mean, there's a

14   sheet on it.  It says that the FDA does not approve this

15   for certain services, including what we all use it for,

16   because side effects can be trouble breathing, throat

17   swelling, fever, vomiting and skin blistering, but we

18   all use it.  I mean, I'm just saying that just because

19   something isn't -- the isopropyl alcohol --

20            MS. CHERYL JONES:  And it's approved by the

21   health department; and it's approved by the health

22   department.

23            MR. SCHMIDT:  What is?

24            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, Green Soap.

25            MR. SCHMIDT:  Well, sure.  I mean, Green Soap
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 1   just Green Soap.  It's a skin cleanser.  That's

 2   regulated completely different than a drug product

 3   because of the intended use or outcome of the use of

 4   that product.

 5            MS. BRENNAN:  Can I interrupt right now?  This

 6   is being recorded.  Can you give your name for the --

 7   Rachelle?

 8            MS. CHERYL JONES:  My legal name is Cheryl

 9   Jones.

10            THE REPORTER:  With an S or a C.

11            MS. CHERYL JONES:  C-h.

12            MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you.  Go on.  I'm sorry to

13   interrupt.

14            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I don't have anything else

15   to say.  I just wonder if there is any way we can find a

16   way around it so we're just not compromising the

17   integrity of the people that come in that will use it

18   anyway.

19            MR. SAUNDERS:  Sure.  One comment that -- with

20   -- with the current state of things, not having on a

21   release form -- let's say tomorrow we're just like, "You

22   know what?  Take out all the numbing stuff," you still

23   might want to have that on your release form, because

24   you don't know if people come in having put it on

25   beforehand anyway.  We're assuming --
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 1            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  It's already on my release

 2   form.

 3            MR. SAUNDERS:  Exactly.  So it's not really a

 4   big change, but, like, doubling up on something like

 5   that could be dangerous.  So it just makes sense, not

 6   just from -- you know, you were making the point that

 7   you want to -- you want to be able to do numbing agents

 8   for the client's purposes, and I understand where you're

 9   coming from.  The other -- but protecting yourself is

10   also protecting the client; right?

11            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Oh, for sure.

12            MR. SAUNDERS:  So, you know, making sure you're

13   not doubling up on things like that, I think is well

14   worth your time.

15            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Yeah, it's already on my

16   form.  My -- my thing was just that it's not -- most of

17   us don't go about this just looking at -- obviously, we

18   have to keep the legal aspect in mind and stay up within

19   the parameters of the law, but it's also about, like,

20   our clients and, you know, what's best for them and --

21   and all the way from making sure they're not doubling

22   up, to make sure they're comfortable during the

23   procedure if possible.

24            MR. SAUNDERS:  Sure.

25            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I mean, is there any way
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 1   around -- I don't mean around, like, illegally around,

 2   but is there any consideration that can be given to any

 3   of this?

 4            MR. SCHMIDT:  I mean, there is a lot of

 5   conversation about this, and the two rules that are in

 6   the current proposed rule set really isn't something

 7   that was made up specific for body art.  It's really a

 8   compilation of all the existing legal framework between

 9   the state of Michigan, the FDA and what everything

10   means.  And it's really just the consolidation and the

11   clarification.

12            All of these existing legal frameworks exist.

13   They've been around for a long time.  There's no

14   proposed change.  Talking with the FDA, they have no

15   future plans on ever approving these for use of these

16   procedures because of a whole lot of things as an

17   over-the-counter product.  And once you change something

18   from the directions for use -- right? -- like, you have

19   a lot of bad products out there, number one; right?

20            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Absolutely.

21            MR. SCHMIDT:  Obviously, the ones that are too

22   strong, the ones that specifically say "For tattooing,"

23   those are in violation of FDA standards.

24            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.

25            MR. SCHMIDT:  They're not allowed to put that

0028

 1   on there.  So what you're using, or what your client is

 2   using, is, yeah, it's an anorectal drug product.  It's

 3   some other type of topical anesthetic for pain, bug

 4   bites, whatever it is.  None of these are regulated

 5   because they're not considered safe for tattooing;

 6   right?  They've never been proven to be safe for

 7   tattooing per the FDA.

 8            So all of these are the two new rules.  It's

 9   just existing legal framework that, even if we got rid

10   of it, that legal framework still exists.

11            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But the FDA, the sheet that

12   I have, says, "Do not use OTC pain relief products with

13   more than four percent lidocaine on your skin.  Do not

14   apply OTC pain relief products heavily over large areas

15   of skin or irritated.  Do not wrap a treated area with"

16   -- I mean, they're pretty specific on what they say they

17   consider safe because, I mean, it's on their sheet.

18            MR. SCHMIDT:  Right.

19            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So what if we use four

20   percent or less?  What if we don't use it on a large

21   area of skin?  What if we don't wrap it or dress it?

22   Then we're --

23            MR. SCHMIDT:  I'm just letting you know that's

24   still an off-label use.  They're talking about products

25   because directions for use are approved in a monograph
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 1   by the FDA with specific statements that you're allowed

 2   to use for directions for use.

 3            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Okay.  But what I'm saying

 4   is, if they printed this and said that this is what

 5   they're recommending for consumers, and this is in -- on

 6   a sheet for permanent cosmetics.  This is what they're

 7   talking about in this sheet.  It's not like any other --

 8   and they've actually listed some companies that have

 9   mislabeling, not use those.

10            MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, there is a bunch of warning

11   letters on --

12            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Yeah.  But I'm -- like, this

13   isn't talking about anything else except permanent

14   cosmetics.  It's saying that these -- these are the

15   things that they recommend -- recommend when using their

16   products for permanent cosmetic.

17            MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, those warning letters, that

18   was for tattooing, permanent cosmetic, the whole kit and

19   caboodle.  It was not specifically just to cosmetic

20   tattooing.

21            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.  But I'm just saying,

22   I mean, what if we -- what if we were allowed to do

23   that, follow what the FDA recommended?

24            MR. SCHMIDT:  Are you following the directions

25   for use that's on a label on a product?
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 1            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  What do you mean?

 2            MR. SCHMIDT:  Like, if you're applying a

 3   topical anesthetic, are you following the directions

 4   from use for what it's being used for?

 5            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I mean, the directions that

 6   I read on my packaging, yes.  But can I sit here and

 7   tell you that I read the directions that are printed on

 8   the packaging -- like, packaging, just like anything

 9   else?  I mean, I don't know who printed those and I

10   didn't know -- I don't know what research went into

11   that.  I have to trust the company that I'm buying it

12   from.  I have to do my research on reputable companies

13   and repeatable products.

14            MR. SCHMIDT:  I mean, all I can tell you is

15   that there is no product, over-the-counter, whatever,

16   that's approved for use in tattooing, painful

17   procedures, things like that.  So if the directions for

18   use are telling you that, that's a new drug or a

19   misbranded product, because it says that.  Otherwise

20   you're not following the directions for use on that

21   product, because it's going to say, "For anorectal

22   disorders," or "The temporary relief of pain and itching

23   associated with bug bites," or any of --

24            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.

25            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- those other things.  Like,
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 1   that -- that's the legal hiccup we're in.

 2            MR. SAUNDERS:  And then the other --

 3            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I don't understand, because

 4   this is addressing that very thing.  This -- this --

 5   this FDA news release is addressing topical use for

 6   cosmetic procedures.  And they -- it's no -- you're

 7   right.  It's not just permanent making procedures.  It's

 8   microdermabrasion, laser removal, tattooing, piercing.

 9   So it's -- it's talking about all of them, but it's

10   saying, "Some of these products are labeled to contain

11   ingredients such as lidocaine."  So basically, people

12   are saying that they have a lower percentage than they

13   actually have.

14            So they're saying, "These are the parameters

15   that we say are safe to use."  And it -- I mean, it's

16   very, very clear what it says.  It says, "Four percent."

17   It says, "Not a large area."  It says, "Don't wrap or

18   use a dressing."  If I follow these rules, am I breaking

19   the law?

20            MR. SCHMIDT:  That would be, like we talked

21   about, the definition of practice of medicine, but

22   especially because, once again, the FDA approves

23   products; right?

24            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.

25            MR. SCHMIDT:  Off-label use, meaning you're
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 1   using it for something other than what it's FDA approved

 2   for, is also the practice of medicine, and that falls

 3   under healthcare providers; right?  Like they -- doctors

 4   get to do that because they can take a client history.

 5   They know their medical conditions.  They can actually

 6   provide a dosage of grams or milliliters per square

 7   meter of skin area on broken or non-intact skin, like,

 8   "Oh, those things need a prescription," because it's an

 9   off-label use.

10            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.  I mean, the bottle

11   that I have does -- does say -- I mean, it does give me

12   the instructions for how to use it.  I, actually, don't

13   need to use it for the amount of time that it allows me,

14   up to five minutes.  Usually, after two minutes, I'm

15   doing great.

16            MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  I'm telling you, if that

17   product says, on the box, on the label, that -- to use

18   it before or during the tattoo or cosmetic tattoo

19   procedure, that product is in violation of FDA standards

20   and would be considered a new drug because we changed

21   its directions for use, or, if it's just represented

22   that way on the website, but the bottle is fine, that

23   would be a misbranding violation, per the FDA.

24            In all of their monographs regarding all of

25   these products, tattooing, painful procedures, cosmetic
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 1   tattooing, microblading, whatever we want for out there,

 2   none of these have been approved as approved uses for

 3   any of these products, per all of the monographs that

 4   are in the Code of Federal Registers for the FDA.  So

 5   it's either a bad product or you're using an approved

 6   product in an off-label manner.

 7            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But I'm saying I don't know

 8   that.  I don't know that when I read FDA document,

 9   telling me these are the companies not to use.  I'm not

10   using any of those companies.  I'm not using any of the

11   -- the list of companies that they sent out letters to.

12            MR. SCHMIDT:  That's not an all-encompassing

13   list with bad products that are on the market.  Those

14   are just the ones that they went to their manufacturing

15   facility, found the violations.  And then warning

16   letters are actually the second step of FDA enforcement.

17            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.

18            MR. SCHMIDT:  FDA enforcement starts with

19   potentially, like, just compliance from the company.

20            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.

21            MR. SCHMIDT:  So if they don't get that

22   compliance, then it's a formal warning letter.  So all

23   of the other things that happen behind the scenes, you

24   don't see on their website.  It's not put out --

25            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.
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 1            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- for all that information.

 2            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But I'm saying, you know,

 3   me, just being Tammy Hadley from Springport, Michigan, I

 4   don't have an attorney on, you know, my payroll that I

 5   can send to go out and do all these things.  I count on

 6   things like this -- I mean, I count on things like this

 7   to figure out what the laws and rules are, so that I can

 8   make sure I'm staying within the parameters.

 9            MR. SCHMIDT:  That is why we put those in the

10   rules, is to let you guys know, with all the existing

11   legal framework between the state and the federal

12   government, those are your two options for using these

13   products for these procedures without being in violation

14   of something else.

15            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So is there any way we can

16   get around that?  Is there any rule --

17            MR. SCHMIDT:  I mean, we don't have -- we don't

18   have the ability to change FDA standards or the state's

19   medical definition for the practice of medicine.  We are

20   just -- we only have jurisdiction over the body art

21   rules.

22            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Then, why are we even here?

23            MR. SCHMIDT:  To talk about the body art rules.

24            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But I'm saying, if we're --

25   if these are the rules and these are the laws, like, how
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 1   is it that we're even meeting about this, if it is,

 2   like, a solid stop?

 3            MS. CHERYL JONES:  They haven't been finalized

 4   yet.

 5            MR. SCHMIDT:  Correct.

 6            MS. CHERYL JONES:  This is the draft.

 7            MR. SCHMIDT:  Yep, they're still proposed.

 8            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But you're saying that the

 9   FDA makes those.  We don't even have the right to have

10   any say in any of them?  Then why are we having a

11   meeting?

12            MR. SCHMIDT:  Well, there's --

13            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Do you understand what I'm

14   saying?  I'm not trying to be, like --

15            MR. SAUNDERS:  This is one specific rule that

16   you're talking about that we put on there for

17   clarification purposes.  Because I think most tattooers,

18   most permanent cosmetic artists, don't understand that

19   they'd be in violation of the instructions for use.

20   They don't quite get that part of not just their

21   industry, but, like, just the way the FDA and federal

22   government work.

23            Let's say, for example, this group said, "No,

24   it's totally fine to use that."  We would be factually

25   wrong, because we don't actually have any control over
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 1   it.  The reason it's in our rules is because we want

 2   people to know, so that they know what the rules are.

 3   We -- anything that we write on these -- in these

 4   documents, wouldn't change the framework that actually

 5   exists already, that we have no control over.  That's

 6   specifically for this product.  So there's others things

 7   in these rules that we do have control over, but this is

 8   just a clarification.

 9            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And I understand that.  But

10   what I'm saying is, if we don't have any control over

11   it, and I'm -- and you're telling me that the FDA is the

12   one that makes the rule, and I have this right here

13   telling me what I can and cannot use -- I understand

14   what you're saying, just because the bottle says that

15   doesn't mean that's really what it is.  But, like, that

16   could be that way with any product.  Just because the

17   labeling says that, it doesn't -- it doesn't mean what

18   it really is; correct?

19            MR. SAUNDERS:  Correct.

20            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But I'm saying, if I follow

21   what this F- -- this is off the FDA website.  If I

22   follow what it says, how am I doing anything -- because

23   that would have to supersede this meeting; correct?  I'm

24   not -- am I --

25            MR. SCHMIDT:  I'm not sure.
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 1            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Pardon?

 2            MR. SCHMIDT:  I'm not sure what you were

 3   asking.

 4            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I'm asking if I -- if we

 5   meet here today, and you're telling -- you're telling us

 6   that we cannot change the rule or the law about it,

 7   because it's an FDA -- you know, it's -- the FDA

 8   controls it, basically, and I follow what the FDA says,

 9   how am I -- how am I breaking the rules?

10            And if I understand correctly, I'm breaking the

11   rules because, just because the label says it, doesn't

12   mean it's true.  But I don't -- I don't know that.  I

13   mean, I wouldn't -- if a label says something and I buy

14   it from a reputable company, I want to believe it.  Just

15   like any other product, I go to the store,.  I read the

16   label.  I buy it.  I don't think about it.  I don't --

17            MR. SAUNDERS:  If the label were to say that it

18   was okay for tattooing --

19            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Okay.

20            MR. SAUNDERS:  -- it would not be a reputable

21   product.  It can't say that because you would need a

22   brand new 510(k) number that doesn't exist.  So --

23            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But the FDA is saying I can

24   use four percent --

25           MR. SAUNDERS:  If you're a doctor.
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 1            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  It doesn't say a doctor.

 2   This -- this does not say anything about me being a

 3   doctor.

 4            MR. SAUNDERS:  Again, this is the way FDA meets

 5   Michigan law -- right? -- the way Michigan law defines

 6   practicing medicine.  Again, we don't have any control

 7   over that.

 8            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So this document off the FDA

 9   website is nothing?  It never says any -- it doesn't

10   anything about me being a physician, a doctor, an

11   anybody.

12            MR. SCHMIDT:  Because that's talking about

13   over-the-counter --

14            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  It's a --

15            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- meaning for self-diagnosis and

16   use.  That -- anything with regards to the FDA standard

17   is going to really be your clients using that product,

18   the consumer.

19            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Okay.

20            MR. SCHMIDT:  Over-the-counter is for

21   self-diagnosis use.  Specific to the artist or the

22   technician, whatever, using it on a client, that's where

23   it falls under the practice of medicine; right?  That

24   almost has nothing to do with FDA standards at that

25   point in time.  That's talking about the practice of
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 1   medicine.  Where we really start diving down the rabbit

 2   hole with the FDA requirements and standards is when

 3   we're talking about the products that your clients might

 4   misuse on before getting the procedure.

 5            And we know that no product is approved, no

 6   numbing -- if it creates a numbing sensation, it is not

 7   approved in the United States for use before or during a

 8   tattoo, painful procedure, cosmetic tattoo, any of those

 9   things that you see out there with bad products that put

10   that on their label, specifically.

11            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So I have a question for

12   you:  It can't be like a lidocaine, and it can't be like

13   a tetracaine or a benzocaine or anything like that,

14   because they're considered over-the-counter, what about

15   an all natural product that is not FDA regulated or

16   isn't -- doesn't -- I mean, what about something like

17   that?  I mean, I don't have anything, but, I mean --

18            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Like Biotat?

19            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Pardon?

20            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Biotat?

21            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.  What -- what about

22   something that isn't regulated like that?  Because then

23   it's not considered an OTC, then it's not in violation.

24            MR. SCHMIDT:  I mean, in the United States, the

25   FDA basically regulates everything to some degree or
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 1   another.  What was the name of the --

 2            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Biotat.

 3            MS. MOREHOUSE:  While we're looking that up,

 4   there is a way around it, and that is getting a

 5   prescription.  So your -- especially in your case, your

 6   patients or clients --

 7            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.

 8            MS. MOREHOUSE:  -- can get a prescription.

 9            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  So if they get a

10   prescription, they have to apply it?  Because wouldn't

11   we still be practicing medicine if we apply it and they

12   --

13            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Yes, we would be.

14            MR. SCHMIDT:  There is two rules that are in

15   the proposed set.  One is with regards to the client

16   application, in which case they would need to get a

17   prescription.  They would follow the directions for use

18   that a doctor gave them.

19            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  We don't put it on?

20            MR. SCHMIDT:  You don't put it on them at all.

21   The other rule is with regards to if the artist were to

22   apply it, and that's where it falls -- there's another

23   set of rules in the state of Michigan for delegation of

24   duties by a physician to another healthcare

25   professional.  So that's going to be more along the
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 1   lines of, you're working at a med spa with a doctor on

 2   staff -- med spas are kind of gray to begin with -- and

 3   they would still write a prescription, but they would

 4   delegate their duty as a doctor, where they're allowed

 5   to apply to yourself or another healthcare professional.

 6            And there's a whole other set of rules in the

 7   state of Michigan for delegation of duties by a

 8   physician, so you would have to be in compliance with

 9   those.

10            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  (Inaudible) --

11            THE REPORTER:  Ms. Orrico?

12            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Are doctors actually going

13   to write presents for people to write tattoos?

14            MS. BRENNAN:  Just a minute.

15            THE REPORTER:  I apologize.  If you're going to

16   speak, can you possibly maybe move this way, just so the

17   microphone picks you up?

18            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Yeah.

19            THE REPORTER:  I just want to make sure I have

20   everything on the record.  Thank you.  Sorry.

21            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  No, you're fine.  Do we

22   think that doctors are actually going to write

23   prescriptions for numbing agents for people to get

24   tattoos?  Do they have the knowledge of, like --

25           MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  No, they don't.
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 1            MS. MOREHOUSE:  This is off the cuff, but my

 2   guess would be that if it was something that was

 3   necessary and --

 4            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Areola tattoos, cancer

 5   related.

 6            MS. MOREHOUSE:  -- they felt that the numbing

 7   cream was going to be safe in the procedure --

 8            MS. BRENNAN:  One at a time, please.

 9            MS. MOREHOUSE:  -- that they would then --

10            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Most doctors will do

11   anything --

12            MS. MOREHOUSE:  -- do it.

13            MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- for money.  It doesn't

14   even matter.  They'll do anything for money.  That's

15   kind of -- or what this whole thing is about.

16            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  I just don't -- I don't

17   know if they would think, like, a tattoo is necessary.

18   I don't know.  I just -- I feel like part we're just not

19   going to be able to use it at all.

20            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So I would like to say

21   something real quick.  I just -- this is just a little

22   story of something that happened to me last year.  So I

23   had -- I don't -- I do not do permanent makeup

24   procedures on women that are actively receiving chemo.

25   I will not do it.  I don't think it's safe.  I can have
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 1   16,000 doctors' notes.  I'm not going to do it.  I'm

 2   either going to do it before they start or 30 to 60 days

 3   after they are deemed cancer free.  That's just my

 4   personal -- how I feel it's safe.

 5            So I had a lady that really wanted her eyebrows

 6   done, and she called and called, and begged and begged

 7   and begged, and she was in the middle of chemo, and she

 8   brought in a doctor's note.  And I told her I -- and the

 9   doctor's note said that I was allowed to do it.  I do

10   not, in any way, shape or form, think I'm more educated

11   than a physician when it comes to many things, but I

12   think the physician has no idea what I do.

13            So I said to her, "I'll make you a deal.  I'm

14   going to call this physician" -- it was her neighbor, by

15   the way -- "I'm going to call -- I'm going to ask him a

16   couple questions, and if he can answer my questions I

17   will do this for you."  She said, "Okay."  So we called

18   Mark up.  We had a nice conversation with him.  He said,

19   "Well, I thought she was just getting makeup.  I didn't

20   really understand why she had to have prescription for

21   it, but she just said it was just a little makeup.  It

22   was just going to last a little bit longer than just,

23   like, putting blush on."  So had I -- had I have done it

24   based on -- he doesn't care.  And I don't mean he

25   doesn't care about her as a person or me as a body art
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 1   facility owner or permanent makeup artist, but he

 2   doesn't know.  He's saving people's lives.  He doesn't

 3   really care about a little makeup.  It's just little

 4   makeup.  He just had no idea.

 5            And I would have -- after I explained it to

 6   him, he's like, "Absolutely not.  No, she cannot have

 7   this done."  But I had a prescription in my hand, so I

 8   was legally covered.  But, I mean, I would never have

 9   done that.  I just -- I think there -- I understand --

10   and I -- and I'll be the first to say we, as tattoo

11   artists and permanent makeup artists, need to be far

12   more regulated.  Our facilities are very regulated, but

13   I fix horrific things every single day on all kinds of

14   people.

15            However, I don't think that targeting -- just

16   saying, "Okay.  No topicals at all because this is the

17   rule."  I think there should be -- I don't want to say a

18   gray area, but there should be something that we can do

19   to keep people safe, or things like that are going to

20   happen.

21            You're right, a doctor will pretty much write a

22   prescription for anything, depending on, "Is he your

23   neighbor?", "Do you know him?"  It -- I mean, there's a

24   -- you know, people self-prescribe things to their

25   doctors and tell them these are their symptoms that
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 1   aren't, and do a visit over the Zoom and get a

 2   prescription for whatever, but that's not the point to

 3   me.  The point to me is that they don't even -- a

 4   physician doesn't necessarily know what I do, and it's

 5   not really his job to know, just like it's not my job to

 6   know what he does.

 7            I have to be the professional in my industry.

 8   I have to put my research in.  I have to take that time

 9   off work, you know, to come to meetings like this and

10   have my voice be heard.  It's my job to know my

11   profession, not his, and his to know mine.  And he 100

12   percent -- I had a prescription in my hand as he's

13   telling me, "Well, it's just makeup.  I thought it was

14   kind of silly anyway, but that's exactly what my

15   prescription pad says."  I am a hundred percent allowed

16   to do it.  He didn't even know what I was doing.

17            Once I it explained to him, "Oh, no; no; no."

18   He's like, "It's a hard stop."  But he didn't know.  He

19   just didn't know.  He's saving people's lives,

20   administering chemo medication, like, you know, working

21   20 hours a day.  He didn't know.  She just, you know --

22   that she lost both of her breasts, and she wanted areola

23   tattoos and eyebrow tattoos.  And if that was what was

24   going to make her happy, he was going to write it down

25   on a prescription pad and send her over to me.
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 1            MS. MOREHOUSE:  But he's not writing a

 2   prescription for the procedure.  He's writing a

 3   prescription for the lidocaine, if he feels it's safe.

 4            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Her point is, is that they

 5   don't have a good understanding of what we even do and

 6   --

 7            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.

 8            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  -- how invasive it is.  I

 9   mean, half the people that --

10            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  What layer of skin --

11            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  -- (inaudible) don't --

12   they do not understand what it is.

13            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.

14            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  So it's just kind of -- it

15   makes you a little nervous to trust the doctor has the

16   knowledge to make an informed decision on their

17   prescription, and that it's going to be done in a way

18   that's safe to use in those areas.

19            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And that the client is going

20   to give the correct information to the doctor to be able

21   to make the informed decision.  Then the doctor writes

22   the prescription for my client, and my client comes in

23   and it says, "Apply the size of the nickel and let it

24   sit for 15 minutes," but she's really scared of this

25   procedure, so she's been applying it for the last -- I
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 1   don't know -- nine hours, and now she's over-medicated

 2   herself that I have no knowledge of, but I got this

 3   piece of paper keeping me safe.  But she's not safe.

 4   She's not safe, but I can't put it on, which I would

 5   know the right amount, and I would know why.  You know,

 6   you know how many people think if you use more, it's

 7   better; more -- more numbing, it's better.

 8            It's not better.  I mean, it has a chemical

 9   reaction on the skin, like anything does that you put

10   on.  Baby lotion has a reaction with the skin.  It's

11   just -- but clients don't know that, because they're not

12   educated to know it.  So now they're armed with a

13   prescription that they think is safe because they're a

14   physician it with them, and they're administering high

15   doses for extended periods of time, and we're right back

16   to where we were before.  The answer, I don't think, is

17   with the physician.  I think it's with informed, caring

18   people that are professionals in their industry, making

19   decisions that we know are not safe.  I don't care I had

20   a doctor's note or not.  I sent her away, crying her

21   eyes out because she couldn't get my service done, but I

22   knew it was for her benefit.

23            And I know that because I'm a professional, and

24   I know that because I've studied it.  It was not good

25   for her, but he wrote her a prescription to do it.  And
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 1   you're right, not for the -- the anesthetic itself, for

 2   me to be able to do it, which is kind of even a bigger

 3   deal.  Because a lot of people would have just said,

 4   "Well, I'm going to do it."  You know, I would have --

 5   by the time she was done with eyebrows and areolas, I

 6   would have walked out $2,000 in my pocket, had I been

 7   somebody that charges, which I don't for cancer

 8   patients, ever.  But it just -- the whole -- the whole

 9   point of it is that we're putting something in

10   somebody's hands that don't have the knowledge of what

11   we do, and how can we get past that?  You know, that we

12   had a work group for years that didn't even consist of a

13   permanent makeup artist.  We're having people make rules

14   about things that affect us that don't even do it every

15   day.

16            MS. MOREHOUSE:  How do you know they're not

17   putting it on now and then you're double -- doubling it

18   up?

19            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I 100 percent do not.  I ask

20   questions, a lot of questions.  I have a light and a

21   magnifier that I use to look down into the skin.  I test

22   the skin to see if there's any kind of reactiveness.  If

23   the product that they're using contains any kind of

24   epinephrine, the skin would look white because blood

25   flow is constricted.
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 1            I mean, there are things that I can do to

 2   really put it educated attempt to make sure that they're

 3   not using something on their skin, and a hundred percent

 4   I do.  I examine all skin before I ever touch it.  I see

 5   what elasticity is in it.  You know, I don't just start.

 6   But -- and I have a conversation with them.  I also let

 7   people know, "If you have used something on the skin

 8   prior to be starting this service, you have to tell me

 9   or it's going to have an adverse effect.  Don't just

10   look at it on a piece of paper when you hear my waiting

11   room, filling it out.  I'm looking through the eye.  I'm

12   going to ask you, because I need to know."  And if I

13   think that it has, I reschedule them.  "Something's

14   going on with your skin right now.  I'm not sure what it

15   was.  I don't know if you've consumed some alcohol, used

16   to be product on your skin."

17            Obviously, I blame them for it, but I just tell

18   them, "This doesn't look like I want it to look before I

19   work on this.  Let's schedule you out in two weeks, you

20   know, be really hyper-aware of what you're putting it on

21   your skin at this time, and when you come back in two

22   weeks, take a look at it."  It always looks good,

23   because they were lying.  But it's not their job to get

24   past me.  It's my job as a professional to know what to

25   look for.  Because I've thousands clients, I know what
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 1   to look for, and I'm not going to put anybody in an

 2   unsafe situation.  That's why, after eight years, I'm

 3   still in business, because I actually care.

 4            MS. BRENNAN:  Any further comments?

 5            MS. CHERYL JONES:  I have some questions.  May

 6   I?

 7            MS. BRENNAN:  Absolutely.

 8            MS. CHERYL JONES:  I'm sorry, but what --

 9                (Off the record interruption)

10            MS. BRENNAN:  Please spell your name.

11            MS. CHERYL JONES:  My name is Cheryl,

12   C-h-e-r-y-l, last name is Jones.  I'm tattoo artist of

13   27 years.  I'm the person who purled the letter to

14   everybody in Michigan back in 2005, prompting the body

15   art rules and regulations of 2010, and attended meetings

16   at Wayne County for about a year, and was part of

17   recommending Chris Lachance to the board for, you know

18   -- anyways, to make sure that the body art ordinance got

19   passed.

20            So I'm very, very familiar with everything, you

21   know.  I wish I had my notes with me.  Okay.  So, for

22   starters, I can't point out exactly where all of these

23   parts are in, but I'm sure you have the numbers right in

24   front you.

25            My first question is, what prompted this, the
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 1   rule changes all of a sudden?  What prompted it?

 2            MS. BRENNAN:  On a legal basis, there never

 3   were any rules, never.

 4            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Sure.

 5            MS. BRENNAN:  This is the first time.  And what

 6   prompted it?  Which ones are you talking about?

 7            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well --

 8            MS. BRENNAN:  We had a 2010, 2019.

 9            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Sure; sure.  Okay.

10            MS. BRENNAN:  Yeah.

11            MS. CHERYL JONES:  I'm -- I'm talking about the

12   recent draft.  I'm really interested in what -- what

13   prompted the draft for the regulation of the type of

14   tattoo machines that we currently use?  Who -- whose

15   idea --

16            MR. SCHMIDT:  I'm going to let -- I saw bunch

17   of that online, like, last week.  We are -- that rule

18   does not limit you to rotary pens only.  That's

19   referring to the cartridge needing a backflow prevention

20   requirement.

21            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  It says, "Rotary pens only."

22            MS. CHERYL JONES:  It does say, "Rotary pens

23   only."

24            MR. SCHMIDT:  No, it says, "Only rotary pens

25   with appropriate backflow prevention can be used."
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 1   That's only talking about the requirement for rotary

 2   pens, that does not disallow coils or other frame rotary

 3   pens.  That does not disallow --

 4            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Coil.

 5            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- coils or other framed rotary

 6   that's used, like a traditional grip, tube and tip,

 7   needle with needle bar.  That does not limit that

 8   whatsoever.

 9            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.  With backflow

10   prevention?

11            MR. SCHMIDT:  Correct.

12            MS. CHERYL JONES:  And, again, what -- what

13   prompted this?  I mean, I'm sure you guys aren't real --

14            MR. SCHMIDT:  So if you go back to the

15   original, the current requirements, it actually says in

16   there that rotary pens can only be used for cosmetic

17   tattooing procedures, that traditional -- in the current

18   rules, traditional tattooing with a rotary pen and

19   cartridge is actually not allowed.  So we obviously

20   needed to get rid of that; right?  That's the most

21   common tattoo machine used today.  But we did need to

22   include the requirements, because most of those aren't

23   made in a way that can be broken down and sterilized,

24   reprocessed, like your other equipment.

25            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Correct.
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 1            MR. SCHMIDT:  So we have to have that internal

 2   membrane for backflow prevention, so that the machine

 3   then just needs to be cleaned and disinfected and

 4   covered during use.  Without that requirement, you would

 5   have to reprocess and sterilize, because backflow would

 6   get into the machine.  You can't then reuse that on

 7   another client, unless it's been reprocessed.

 8            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Absolutely.  But it much

 9   more is a cartridge issue, and making sure that you have

10   that membrane in the cartridge, other than like the,

11   like -- the rules were stating that you wanted a

12   certificate for proof that the rotary machine doesn't --

13            MR. SCHMIDT:  So there two things.  There's

14   either manufacturing proof that backflow prevention

15   exists and that it's been tested to prevent backflow, or

16   we added a guide for field testing where you, as the

17   artist, can test it out, or the health department, if

18   they wanted to take a cartridge and just test it very

19   quickly to make sure that it provides backflow, because

20   there are a lot of bad products on there, whether they

21   have a membrane, but it's not constructed in a way that

22   accurate -- like it actually prevents backflow, or

23   there's ones that just have springs and rubber bands on

24   inside, that that's going to then contaminate your

25   machine, which would then have to be fully reprocessed
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 1   and sterilized, which it can't be because it's

 2   electrical.

 3            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Right.  Which -- which I

 4   fully understand in regards to the cartridges.  But as

 5   far as, like, having a machine that -- that where -- I

 6   mean, you know, field testing is fine.  That makes more

 7   sense.  But when you're talking about rotary machines

 8   and about, like, backflow certificates and getting that

 9   from some of these manufacturers, like, you'll be able

10   to get that from the very, very, very expensive, high

11   end manufacturers, but, you know, to buy an affordable

12   machine that, you know -- so everyone has access to be

13   able to do this.  I mean, some of these companies don't

14   have these, you know, manufacturing backflow.  They

15   don't -- they don't come with the machines.  I mean, we

16   can't.  You know, a lot of these machines are made in

17   China, you know.  I mean, even the machines here are

18   made in China.  They just, like -- it's just the company

19   owners.

20            I mean, it doesn't -- one of my concerns is,

21   for some reason, in the rules and regulations you have

22   listed the American -- the medical devices -- the

23   American Medical Device Institute, is listed on there.

24   I -- unfortunately, don't have my notes, but --

25            MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, there's a standard in here
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 1   which is ANSI and --

 2            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.

 3            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- AAMI.

 4            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Correct.

 5            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- for ST79.

 6            MS. BRENNAN:  Do you want to look at the rules?

 7            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Right.  Thank you so much.

 8            MS. BRENNAN:  Sure.

 9            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yes.  Okay.  So here's the

10   issue:  There's a couple of things.  This is a slippery

11   slope.  The -- I don't understand what this American --

12   wait, where is it?  I'm looking at the definitions here.

13   Okay.  The American Society for Testing Materials

14   International, nope, that's not the one.  It's the other

15   one.

16            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Association for the

17   Advancement of Medical Instrumentation.

18            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Thank you.  Association for

19   the Advancement of Medical Instrumentation.  I would

20   like to say, first of all, 90 percent of all the medical

21   instrumentation that is used in hospitals and surgery,

22   90 percent of it isn't even approved by the FDA.  It's

23   not even looked at.  It's really terrible.  The

24   situation is awful in the medical field.

25            I don't believe that the Medical-industrial
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 1   Complex should have anything to do with our job

 2   whatsoever.  Our job is -- is -- we don't -- this isn't

 3   like a -- a medical procedure that's taking place.  We

 4   are penetrating the skin at a 2.5 to maybe 3.8 at best.

 5   Like, an allergy -- a shot, like, a basic subcutaneous

 6   injection goes way deeper into your skin than -- than a

 7   tattoo needle.  I mean, we're grazing the skin.

 8            The problem is, when you have groups like this

 9   medical apparatus, which they're doing a terrible job

10   regulating their own industry -- the problem that you

11   have is, once you allow the Medical-industrial Complex

12   to infiltrate your -- your job, they don't go away.

13   It's -- it's a very slippery slope.  Like -- like, they

14   -- they shouldn't be able to have dominion over what we

15   do.  We're not doing a medical procedure, so I don't

16   understand why they're even listed here at all.  Because

17   the problem is, if this group is allowed to -- to make

18   regulations for the machines that we use, it's a very

19   slippery slope.

20            Then -- then at what point are they going to

21   say, "Well, you have to have a medical license to use

22   these medical devices."  You know, they're not medical

23   devices.  These people shouldn't have their hands on it

24   at all.  They shouldn't be involved in it.  Their names

25   shouldn't be on here.  Why -- why are they?  I'm really
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 1   confused.

 2            MR. SCHMIDT:  So we have to put in the

 3   definitions basically anything we use in the body of the

 4   rules; right?  That's why it's in the definition.  The

 5   only reference to ANSI and AAMI in the actual rules in

 6   the body is just with regards to sterilization

 7   procedures.

 8            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.  So it's --

 9            MR. SCHMIDT:  It's nothing --

10            MS. CHERYL JONES:  It has nothing to do --

11            MR. SCHMIDT:  There's nothing to do with

12   performing body art.  It is just with regards to

13   autoclave sterilization and spore testing.

14            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.

15            MR. SCHMIDT:  That's it.

16            MS. CHERYL JONES:  All right.

17            MR. SCHMIDT:  That is the only reference --

18            MS. CHERYL JONES:  My concern is that they were

19   kind of -- were considering our tattoo machines --

20            MR. SCHMIDT:  Nope; nope.

21            MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- as medical devices, the

22   --

23            MR. SCHMIDT:  No, it has nothing to do with the

24   tattoo machine whatsoever.

25            MS. CHERYL JONES:  The language wasn't very --
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 1            MR. SCHMIDT:  So we have to put -- like I said,

 2   we have to put in the definitions, especially, like --

 3            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah.

 4            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- trade names that in the body,

 5   we put ANSI slash AAMI.  We have to define what those

 6   are; right?

 7            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Sure.

 8            MR. SCHMIDT:  That's just a legal requirement.

 9            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Sure.

10            MR. SCHMIDT:  In the body, the only reference

11   is with regards to the sterilization, like, at the

12   facility.  And that's just going to be with regards to

13   your autoclaves, sterilization procedures and spore

14   testing.  That's it.  Has nothing to do with performing

15   any tattoo, body piercing, cosmetic tattoo.

16            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, I was --

17            MR. SCHMIDT:  Has nothing to do --

18            MS. CHERYL JONES:  I was speaking mostly of our

19   machines as the --

20            MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, it has nothing to do with

21   --

22            MS. CHERYL JONES:  With the machines?

23            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- the machines themselves.  It

24   has to do with any equipment that you're going to

25   reprocess.
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 1            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.

 2            MR. SCHMIDT:  And they're not considered by the

 3   FDA medical devices, nor --

 4            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.

 5            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- do I have any inkling --

 6            MS. CHERYL JONES:  I didn't think that they

 7   were.

 8            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- that they will, no.

 9            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.  And then, also there

10   -- there is another rule in here, where it states that

11   if a physician is performing any of these procedures

12   that we perform procedures, licensed body -- body art

13   facility --

14            MR. SCHMIDT:  So that's with regards to being

15   exempt; correct?

16            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah, physician exemption.

17            MR. SCHMIDT:  So that's rule 13103, if you're

18   looking it up.

19            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah; uh-huh.  "Do not apply

20   procedure that utilizes -- yeah -- patient's treatment

21   performed under the controlled direction, on-site

22   supervisor who's licensed in the state."  Why -- why are

23   physicians getting an exemption?  Because, I mean --

24            MR. SCHMIDT:  That's just an exemption from

25   needing a license.  That's not an exemption from being
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 1   in compliance with everything.  They just don't need

 2   that extra license in the state of Michigan.

 3            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Why?

 4            MR. SCHMIDT:  Because they already have the

 5   medical license, their license to practice medicine.

 6            MS. MOREHOUSE:  Also, it says it has to be part

 7   of patient treatment.  So they're not going to get a

 8   horse tattoo on their arm from a physician.  That's not

 9   allowed.  It's got to be part of patient treatment.  So,

10   like, what you're doing, that -- a physician could be

11   doing that.

12            MR. SAUNDERS:  In addition, for certain -- for

13   certain cancer treatments and, like, radiation

14   treatments, they'll have to actually do a little tattoo,

15   so they hit the same spot over and over again.  So we

16   didn't want to make them have to get the body art

17   license when they're already doctors; right?

18            MS. CHERYL JONES:  I just -- the cross

19   contamination I've seen from the medical industry is

20   horrific.

21            MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  And just so you know, that

22   is not a change.  There is some wording clarification in

23   there that actually --

24            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Sure.

25            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- makes it more strict now, but

0061

 1   that is an existing rule set.  So that was not a change,

 2   other than we actually clarified it for --

 3            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah -- yeah, I --

 4          MR. SCHMIDT:  -- both departments.

 5            MS. CHERYL JONES:  I know.  I -- I just -- it

 6   doesn't make sense to me.  I just feel like, you know,

 7   if they -- if they had a better idea, you know -- and

 8   then regarding the -- okay.  So back to the lidoca- --

 9   lidocaine with physicians and licensing and loopholes

10   and -- the FDA -- like, tattooing is considered -- is --

11   is regulated under cosmetics; correct?

12            MR. SCHMIDT:  Tattoo inks are regulated as

13   cosmetics by the FDA, if that's what you're referring --

14            MS. CHERYL JONES:  And tattooing with the FDA

15   is considered what?

16            MR. SCHMIDT:  Nothing.  The FDA doesn't

17   regulate occupations.  They regulate products.

18            MS. CHERYL JONES:  They regulate products --

19            MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah.

20            MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- not occupations.

21            MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah.

22            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.  So then I -- if we

23   are using our -- the product in -- by -- by the

24   standards that the FDA sets, I don't -- I don't see what

25   the problem is.
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 1            MR. SAUNDERS:  It's because we're not

 2   consumers.

 3            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Because we're not consumers?

 4            MR. SAUNDERS:  Yeah.  If --

 5            MS. CHERYL JONES:  I know you've framed this a

 6   million times.  Like, first of all, the reality is we're

 7   going to use it anyways.  It doesn't matter.  You guys

 8   can make whatever laws you want.  We're going to do it

 9   anyways.  Bactine and BAND-AID wash have been around

10   since time infinite.  Lidocaine has a wonderful,

11   beautiful safety profile.  The OTC being between two to

12   four percent is -- it's just -- it's so watered down,

13   it's -- it's relatively harmless.  It's just -- the

14   thing is, it's -- it seems like this -- like, the

15   medical community shouldn't be involved in any way,

16   shape or form.

17            So, now, if we have to -- if a client -- or if

18   we have to go to a physician to get a prescription,

19   you're involving the medical field, and they really

20   shouldn't be involved at all.  I mean, not at all.  This

21   is an art.  This isn't -- this isn't some kind of crazy

22   medical procedure.  This is an art.  Like, it's crazy,

23   because the FDA approves children to eat -- to eat red

24   number 40.  I mean, there's 13,000 chemicals in our food

25   that they don't have in the EU right now, and the FDA
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 1   approves them all.  You know, the FDA recently approved

 2   a very dangerous injection, where people are dying.

 3            I mean, what -- you know, this is -- this is

 4   ridiculous, and I don't understand why Michigan, of all

 5   places -- because I've looked it up.  There isn't a

 6   single state in the Union that's doing this, except for

 7   Michigan.  So why?  Why is this happening?  Why is this

 8   happening now, and what can we do to circumvent this?

 9   Because we're going to do it anyways, so we might as

10   well find a way to make an agreement in the language,

11   you know, instead of just banning it outright.

12            And, I mean, this is just a huge disservice to

13   all the clients, all the -- all of the tattooers, all of

14   the people that do permanent cosmetic.  This is -- this

15   is insane.  Like, I don't understand where this came

16   from.  I don't -- like, usually things like this don't

17   pop up for no reason.  I mean, were there a slew of

18   complaints to the health department?

19            Because I tried to look that up, and I didn't

20   see any.  I mean, I'm really confused.  Like, why is

21   this happening just in Michigan and in no other state,

22   right now?  I just am real curious.

23            MR. SCHMIDT:  I mean, I don't think any of the

24   four of us can speak on behalf of any other state and

25   what they are or are not doing.  We can just say what's
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 1   happening in Michigan.

 2            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.  But why?  I mean,

 3   what -- what was the -- was there -- was there a safety,

 4   like -- what -- what happened that this suddenly has to

 5   be done now?  I mean, I've been using, you know,

 6   Bactine, which benzalkonium is a natural -- it's an

 7   antiseptic, and it has lidocaine in it, and always has.

 8   It -- I mean, the basic -- like, Bactine and BAND-AID

 9   wash have two point five percent lidocaine in them, and

10   have since time infinite.  And I've been using these

11   products since 2008 without incident.  So I mean it --

12   I'm -- I'm -- even within the language of the rules,

13   it's -- it says it's okay to use an antiseptic on the

14   skin, which, I mean, as far as I'm concerned, Bactine is

15   an antiseptic, and so is BAND-AID wash.  I mean, that's

16   correct?  We are allowed to use antiseptics on skin;

17   right?

18            MR. SCHMIDT:  In certain cases you're required

19   to, but with --

20            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Sure.

21            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- Bactine, you can use their

22   wound wash, which does not contain lidocaine, and it

23   still is an antiseptic agent.  You could use that.

24            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Bactine's wound wash has

25   always contained lidocaine --
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 1            MR. SCHMIDT:  Nope.

 2            MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- at two percent.

 3            MR. SCHMIDT:  That's Bactine's pain relieving

 4   spray.  Their wound wash contains no numbing agent.

 5            MS. CHERYL JONES:  I don't think I've ever seen

 6   just plain old Bactine wound wash without lidocaine,

 7   ever.  So how can we work this out so that we can still

 8   do our jobs?  Because it is impossible, like, that

 9   you're going to carve on a woman's face, on her eyes, on

10   her eyeballs, on her lips, you know, "You don't get any

11   numbing agent."  I don't -- I mean, all these women are

12   going to be running into Ohio.  I mean, so nobody in

13   Michigan can -- can get anything done ever now?

14            I mean, I -- like, this is really -- like,

15   understand what's happening here, is that you're going

16   to devastate the permanent cosmetic industry by not

17   allowing this.  I mean, actually, you won't devastate

18   them, because they'll still use it anyways.  But, I

19   mean, you know, to some degree -- I mean, like, there

20   has to be a way to figure this out.

21            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Or it's going to --

22            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Can I say something on

23   that note?  I do think that by not offering -- and I

24   know that it's the FDA and not you guys, but, like, not

25   offering, like, some kind of guidance on, like, safe
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 1   brands or, like, something to use is just -- like she

 2   said, people are still going to use it, whether it's

 3   client or whether it's the service provider.  Like,

 4   they're still going to use it, and they're just going to

 5   use whatever they can get their hands on.  So I think

 6   that having some kind of, like -- I don't know.

 7            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah, regulations.

 8            MR. SCHMIDT:  The state --

 9            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  (Inaudible).

10            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- can't tell you how to violate

11   state law, because it would still be in violation of the

12   definition of practice of medicine.  We can't then say,

13   "Oh, well, it's a practice of medicine" -- which I

14   believe is a felony.  We can't then say, "But you can

15   use this and still be in violation"; right?

16            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  I understand.

17            MR. SCHMIDT:  Like --

18           MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  I understand.

19            MS. CHERYL JONES:  So, basically, the problem

20   is that we need to go to the state and have them change

21   their definition of what is considered medical practice?

22   Is that what we need to do?  Because they -- they --

23   like -- like, this doesn't make sense.  Like, our

24   business has -- like, this isn't -- is that what we need

25   to -- we need to ask for them to change the language
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 1   that defines what a medical procedure is.  Is this our

 2   only recourse?

 3            MR. SCHMIDT:  I guess you could do that.

 4            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Because, like, this is --

 5   this is really, like, you know, government overreach.

 6            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  I --

 7            MS. CHERYL JONES:  This is ridiculous.

 8            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  -- talked to someone from

 9   the Society of Permanent Cosmetics, and they said that

10   most likely we're going to basically, like, lobby

11   against the state.

12            THE REPORTER:  Could you speak up a little,

13   please?

14            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  I'm sorry.

15            THE REPORTER:  It's okay.  You're soft-spoken.

16            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Do you want me to repeat

17   it?

18            THE REPORTER:  I think I got that, but just for

19   the future, yeah.  Thank you.

20            MS. CHERYL JONES:  So when is this rule -- when

21   -- when is this not made as a draft and when is this

22   supposed to go into effect?  This is -- this is in draft

23   form right now?

24            MS. BRENNAN:  Correct.  After the public

25   hearing is over, the DHHS meets with the -- with Steve
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 1   and Jeff.  We go over all the public comments.  We make

 2   decisions.  These are DHHS rules.  And then the final

 3   rules are sent over to the legislature.  It's called

 4   JCAR, the Joint Committee on Administrative Rules.

 5            Because of the election year and that

 6   legislature has failed to meet at all for the end --

 7   'til the end of the year, the rules will be sent in --

 8   the final rules will be sent in January 2nd.

 9            MS. CHERYL JONES:  January 2nd.

10            MS. BRENNAN:  They have to sit there for 15

11   session days, which is a misnomer.  It's misleading.  15

12   session days means 15 days when the full legislature

13   meets.  So when they finally become the law could be 15

14   days.  It could be three months.  Who knows?

15            MS. CHERYL JONES:  And so I would assume that

16   all of these people that are going to make the final

17   decision on this, they're -- they're all politicians and

18   people from the Department of Health and Human Services.

19   There won't be any tattooers or -- involved?  There

20   won't be any permanent --

21            MS. BRENNAN:  You have a tattooer right here,

22   Jeff.

23            MR. SAUNDERS:  Well, I'm not a --

24           MS. MOREHOUSE:  Jeff is a piercer.

25            MS. BRENNAN:  Or a piercer.
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 1            MR. SAUNDERS:  We -- that's --

 2            MS. BRENNAN:  I'm sorry.

 3            MR. SAUNDERS:  That's what the work group was

 4   for.

 5            MS. BRENNAN:  Yes.

 6            MR. SAUNDERS:  There was --

 7            MS. CHERYL JONES:  I'm sorry.

 8            MR. SAUNDERS:  -- a lot of tattooers on there.

 9            MS. CHERYL JONES:  A piercer, oh, that's cute.

10   Well, piercers are like the --

11            MS. BRENNAN:  But we had plenty --

12            MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- (inaudible) of the tattoo

13   industry.

14            MS. BRENNAN:  -- of tattoo artists on the work

15   group.

16            MR. SAUNDERS:  Okay.

17            MS. BRENNAN:  And we have a health inspector

18   here, and we do have DHHS here and the whole bit.  It

19   depends on when I -- when this is all discussed.  Many

20   times we've changed the rules based upon public comment;

21   many times.  Many times we have had reasons, and we have

22   to state the reasons, why we aren't going to change the

23   rules.  So that will all be provided in the final rule

24   package that goes over to legislature, and all of that

25   will be online for everybody to look at.
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 1            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, the thing is that

 2   tattooing has been going on for thousands of years

 3   without incident and without the health department.  You

 4   know, we -- we've been just fine.  So, I mean,

 5   regardless of whatever the state rules are or aren't

 6   going to be, we're still going to go our own route and

 7   do what's best for our clients.  But there really should

 8   be a way to negotiate this.

 9            Like, letting people know which products are

10   good to use and which products aren't good to use,

11   letting people know, like, a standard kind of protocol,

12   would be helpful.  Again, we -- we can't take liability

13   for what people do on their own time when they come in

14   here.  I mean, it's not -- you know, it's a state law

15   that we can't tattoo anybody under the influence.  You

16   know, sometimes people look fine when they're in your

17   chair, and then you start tattooing them about 45

18   minutes, they did it all kind of squirrely and weird,

19   and you realize, "Okay.  Maybe this person took

20   something in the bathroom."  I mean, that's not -- it's

21   not our -- I mean, like, we don't -- you know, we can't

22   control what people do on their own time.

23            So, like, what do we need to do to get the FDA

24   to stay out of this?  What do we have to do?

25            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I have a question.  I don't
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 1   mean to interrupt --

 2            MS. CHERYL JONES:  No.

 3            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- but this is exactly along

 4   the lines of that.  So I came here with just a big

 5   presentation about topicals.  I use the BAND-AID wash,

 6   too.

 7            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah.

 8            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I use the antiseptic wash

 9   all the time.

10            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah.

11            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Because --

12            MS. CHERYL JONES:  There's 2.5 percent.

13            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Yeah, it -- there is, and I

14   never even thought about it until you said that.

15            MS. CHERYL JONES:  And it's always been

16   approved by the Health Department.

17            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So my question is, if we

18   can't use products we've always used to keep clients

19   safe, I -- my infection rate is zero.  I don't have

20   reports of infection.  I don't have -- I --

21            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Right.

22            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I don't -- I'm not

23   understanding, if that all these things are going to be

24   taken away from us and we're practicing safe practice

25   right now -- we all care enough to come here and -- and
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 1   speak our minds and try to advocate for, you know, what

 2   we feel is right.  I don't understand, like, where is

 3   the -- where is the limit to that?  Like, if we can't

 4   use lidocaine because it's an over-the-counter, what

 5   about BAND-AID?  That's an over-the-counter.  Green

 6   Soap?  I mean, I know that they're in different, but

 7   they're still all things you can walk into a store and

 8   purchase.

 9            And I will also just say this:  I've owned a

10   medical billing company for 30 years.  I have 17 doctors

11   right now that will prescribe this for me.  But it's not

12   right, because when I ask them, "What would you -- what

13   would you prescribe?"  "Well, I don't know.  Whatever

14   you tell me."  "Wait, what?  Whatever I tell you?

15   You're listening to me anyway."

16            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Actually, she does bring up

17   a good point.

18            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  They don't know.

19            MS. CHERYL JONES:  It really is dangerous to

20   have a doctor write a prescription for anybody getting

21   tattooed.  I mean, are -- are doctors aware that once

22   you go up at around eight percent it causes tissue

23   necrosis?  Do they know that?  I mean, like, you know,

24   are -- is there going to be some doctor out there that's

25   just going to prescribe somebody a eight -- eight or 10
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 1   percent, like, just because --

 2            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Yes, there is.

 3            MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- they don't know any

 4   better?  You know, I mean, these doctors don't -- you

 5   know, doctors think that stronger is better, you know.

 6   They might inadvertently write a prescription for

 7   somebody where the lidocaine content is so high that

 8   there's a -- that there's a problem, you know.  I mean,

 9   some of the topical creams that I've seen --

10              (Off the record interruption)

11            MS. BRENNAN:  That was our break time

12   announcement.  I apologize.

13            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Some of the topicals that

14   I've seen for people, like -- like, post-surgical and

15   stuff are -- I mean, are -- they're -- they're --

16   they're pretty high percentages.  I've seen creams up to

17   eight percent.  I've had clients actually say, "Hey, my

18   grandma had this.  Can I use this ahead of time?"  "No,

19   you can't.  It's really bad.  Like, that's way too

20   high."

21            How does a doctor know.  How do we know that --

22   I mean, like, this is the problem:  If we need a

23   prescription from a doctor for our client or for us to

24   use this product, then we're putting our trust in the

25   doctors that they're doing the right thing.  And, first
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 1   of all, they shouldn't have anything to do with our

 2   industry.  But, secondly, you know, look this up, the

 3   highest rate of death in our country is because of

 4   medical malpractice in doctors.  I mean, they kill more

 5   than -- kill more people than anybody.  Go look it up.

 6            We're going to trust the doctor to write us a

 7   prescription.  We can't trust the doctor.  That doesn't

 8   make any sense.

 9            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Well, for a procedure they

10   don't know.  I mean, I was going to have a heart

11   palpitations.  I didn't get sent to a gynecologist.  I

12   got sent to a cardiologist, because that's what they

13   know.  Now, do they have some knowledge of it for med

14   school?  Yes.  But my mom was prescribed a topical --

15   and this is why I'm so passionate about topicals.  She

16   was prescribed topical to put on her port so when they

17   accessed it, you know, it helped reduce the pain.  It

18   was a prescription by her oncologist.

19            The skin was so broke down, they had to do a

20   surgical procedure to remove her port from that topical.

21   It was way too strong for her skin.  So she --

22            MS. CHERYL JONES:  (Inaudible) using it?

23            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- actually started using

24   mine, and she had no problem.  But --

25            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  On a similar note, I was
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 1   looking at articles about deaths that occurred from

 2   applying numbing cream over large areas.  This one says

 3   the FDA reported the deaths of two women, ages 22 and

 4   25, who used topical anesthetics following laser hair

 5   removal treatments.  The FDA noted that the creams were

 6   formulated by pharmacies and contained high

 7   concentrations of the drugs lidocaine and tetracaine.

 8            So I do think that if doctors are going to be

 9   writing these prescriptions that -- and they don't have

10   the knowledge that the tattoo industry has and the

11   amount of space that it's going to be used and

12   everything, that I just think it's going to be

13   dangerous.  And I know that you guys are basically

14   creating a law in a manner that's compliant with the

15   FDA, but I don't think that it's going to be in our best

16   interest for clients.

17            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I agree.

18            MS. CHERYL JONES:  I think it's abundantly

19   clear that the FDA does not have our -- our -- the best

20   interest of its citizens in mind.  That is so obvious.

21            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I think the FDA has to make

22   rules, big blanket rules, because there's so many down

23   -- like, the minuscule amounts of rules, and then give

24   the power to people like us to take that rule and say,

25   "Okay.  This is -- this is what this means."  I mean,
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 1   there's so much in interpretation.

 2            MS. CHERYL JONES:  They don't.  They're being

 3   paid by the corporations.  They don't care what we have

 4   to say.

 5            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Well, I want to believe that

 6   that's not always true and I want to believe that our

 7   voices are heard.  That's why we, you know, are here and

 8   that's why you're here.  I -- I think -- I don't want to

 9   ever believe that we live in a society that, you know,

10   everything we do is just without purpose; I don't.  I

11   don't want to believe that.  I want to believe that

12   there is a greater good and what do matters.

13            And I'm not going to -- I don't -- I a hundred

14   percent cannot sit here and say anything negative while

15   physicians, because they've been my business until last

16   December for 30 years.  But I think -- and they're very

17   educated in their own specialty, but I cannot go to my

18   gynecologist and talk to him about my tachycardia and

19   have him say, "Well, this is what we're going to do."

20   Now he's going to send me over to a cardiologist because

21   that's what they specialize in.  This is what we

22   specialize in.

23            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Right.  And the -- and the

24   language is very -- like, it's -- I mean, any physician?

25   Doesn't matter -- doesn't matter what their specialty
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 1   is?  Any physician, we can just pick any one we want?  I

 2   mean, because I got three or four of them on lock.  I

 3   can get prescriptions all day.  You see, that -- that's

 4   the thing, that this isn't -- this isn't even really

 5   about our client's safety or about -- about protecting

 6   us under the law, or like -- this is just -- it -- it's

 7   -- it's just about money.

 8            We have to go -- like, we can still have it,

 9   but we have to go to a physician for it.  Doesn't matter

10   what physician, just any physician.  We can go to

11   podiatrist, you know, and get -- podiatrists use

12   lidocaine.  We can get a podiatrist to write it for us.

13   Speaking of OB, I've got a friend.  I could get her to

14   write me a script in a second.

15            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Absolutely.

16            MS. CHERYL JONES:  I mean, does -- does the --

17   does the -- the matter of study of what the physician

18   does even matter?  I mean, that's -- that's -- it's

19   ridiculous.  It's like saying any physician -- any

20   physician, can write this for lidocaine, because they

21   know so much more than all of you.  It doesn't make any

22   sense.

23            How does this make sense?  Like, this is body

24   art.  This is an art that we do.  This is not medical,

25   and they need to stay out of it.  And I get you're
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 1   saying the FDA framework to protect us from liability.

 2   Protect us from liability how?  Like, as in our clients

 3   are going to sue us?  Doubt it, doubt it.  And, again,

 4   safety profile lidocaine, how many people are dropping

 5   for misuse of lidocaine?  And then off-label use, to

 6   tell you the truth, lidocaine is an off-label use

 7   altogether when it's used in topical anesthetic, because

 8   I was reading that it was originally started for -- it

 9   helps with arrhythmias, heart arrhythmias.

10            It's huge.  That was its original intent.  So I

11   mean, all uses are pretty much off-label use for

12   lidocaine, anyways.  I guess that's about all I got.

13   But I mean, like, will we have another opportunity to

14   voice our concerns here about this?

15            Because you realize this decision, this rule,

16   will devastate the industry here in Michigan; right?  It

17   will devastate everything if we won't be allowed to use

18   these products.  And then how does that work with

19   Amazon?  Do you call up Amazon and have them put a block

20   on Michigan, so anybody who wants to order any kind of

21   lidocaine in Michigan can't have it?  Because then what

22   do people do post-surgical and people with hemorrhoids

23   and -- you know, what -- what do we do with that?

24            I mean, like, where does it stop?  I mean,

25   we're -- I just -- I just have these questions.  I need
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 1   answers.  Like, I mean, will we have another opportunity

 2   to talk about this?

 3            MS. MOREHOUSE:  Your other opportunity is to

 4   reach out to your state representatives and tell them

 5   your feelings, because they're the ones that's going to

 6   approve it.

 7            MS. BRENNAN:  Could I just comment on that?

 8   That's going to be premature.  Up until the point of

 9   that the rules are fully promulgated, there could be a

10   hearing over at the Joint Committee on Administrative

11   Rules.

12            But other than that, then once the rules are

13   fully promulgated and there are still issues, Kathryn is

14   correct, you would seek political assistance on that

15   one.

16            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I -- I feel like -- first

17   and foremost, like, really late to the game.  This has

18   been happening for years, and I didn't know.  And I

19   would like to say it's just because I didn't really care

20   before because it didn't affect me, but I do care and I

21   really didn't know.

22            As soon as I found out, I was on the phone with

23   my health department.  I was on the phone, like, trying

24   to figure it out, trying to do something about.  It's

25   not like I was, you know, negligent and just not doing
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 1   anything until it's almost too late.  I just didn't -- I

 2   honestly and truly didn't know.  If there was a

 3   committee, I can guarantee you I would have been on the

 4   committee.  If you would have had -- I guarantee that I

 5   would have shown up and spoke --

 6            MS. CHERYL JONES:  I don't remember receiving a

 7   letter about any of that.

 8            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- and spoke to whoever

 9   wanted to hear me, and, you know, collaborated with

10   other permanent makeup artists to have somebody be

11   (inaudible).  But finding out at the last minute, and

12   then having us try to do something about it -- I'm sure

13   it wasn't intended to be sneaky so that we couldn't do

14   anything about it, but it feels that way, that we were

15   very much not represented.

16            It feels very much that didn't have a say, and

17   I didn't get an email saying, you know, there's an

18   opening on our work group that they're looking for a

19   permanent makeup artist.  I never got that.  I never got

20   anything.  I just didn't know.

21            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Was there an original

22   meeting that -- that we were supposed to be at that --

23            MR. SAUNDERS:  I believe it's 2019.

24            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  During COVID?

25            MR. SAUNDERS:  2019.
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 1            MR. SCHMIDT:  Just before COVID.

 2            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Was there an email that went

 3   out about that?

 4            MR. SAUNDERS:  That's when I -- when I found

 5   out about it, it was then and there was, like -- it was

 6   the initial --

 7            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  How did you find out,

 8   though?

 9            MR. SAUNDERS:  -- email.

10            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So you did get an email?

11            MR. SAUNDERS:  Yeah.

12            MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah.

13            MS. MOREHOUSE:  So the email was about the

14   public hearing.

15            MR. SAUNDERS:  Yeah, it was --

16            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I haven't had an email

17   change in probably 17 years.  It's always been the same

18   email.

19            MR. SAUNDERS:  Yeah, I --

20            MS. CHERYL JONES:  The last one that I got was

21   how you guys deregulated everything on ears.

22            MR. SCHMIDT:  I'm sorry.  What was that?

23            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Everything that was

24   deregulated regarding ears.

25            MR. SCHMIDT:  Ear piercing?

0082

 1            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah.

 2            MS. MOREHOUSE:  Ear piercing was never in the

 3   body art law.

 4            MS. CHERYL JONES:  You, well, there was some

 5   kind of -- regarding ears.  If it had anything to do

 6   with ears, it was not under the -- you know, it wasn't

 7   part of the -- that was the last one I got.  It was --

 8   there was something about ears.  The way -- it was --

 9   ears were, like, deregulated, not considered part of a

10   body art modification, kind of like, do whatever you

11   want with ears is what I got.

12            MS. MOREHOUSE:  It was never deregulated.  It

13   was never part of --

14            MS. CHERYL JONES:  It was never part --

15            MS. MOREHOUSE:  -- the law.

16            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah.  There was something

17   about ears.  That's the last -- last thing I received.

18   It was like, "It's got nothing to do with it.  You can

19   do whatever you want."

20            MS. MOREHOUSE:  In 2019 there was a hearing, a

21   public hearing, when, basically, they were trying to

22   pass the NEHA Model Code as the rules.  That had a very

23   large turnout.  I wasn't the one that sent those emails.

24   I don't know -- I'm assuming it went to the owners, like

25   it did this time.  And we had a very large turnout, and
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 1   from there, artists, owners asked to be on the

 2   committee, because it was decided then, that day at the

 3   public hearing, there was going to be a work group put

 4   together.

 5            I know that -- I'm pretty sure that inspectors

 6   maybe recommended if we asked for members, new members,

 7   and then local health departments also volunteered to be

 8   on the group.

 9            MS. BRENNAN:  Let me follow up on what she had

10   said.  There was no way we were going to get every body

11   art, health inspector and the whole thing.  So it was

12   cross represented.  There were not one, there were two

13   already public hearings.  We're working on our 14th year

14   of trying to get these rules promulgated.  So we --

15   there was a cross selection of artists, health

16   inspectors and DHHS that were on the work group.

17            Now, for -- again, for transparency, a work

18   group is not needed.  DHHS could have sat down and just

19   did their rules based on whatever they wanted, and we

20   have a public hearing, but I always recommend the work

21   group to get to the best interest of the stakeholders

22   and everybody else.  So who was on that 2000- --

23            MS. CHERYL JONES:  -19.

24            MS. BRENNAN:  That was the second one.  There

25   was a -- one 2016 --
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 1            MR. SCHMIDT:  '16.

 2            MS. BRENNAN:  Was it '16?

 3            MR. SCHMIDT:  So the original email was sent

 4   out to all facilities and health departments on June

 5   28th of 2016, regarding the first public hearing.

 6            MS. BRENNAN:  Okay.

 7            MR. SCHMIDT:  And then October 21st of 2-- --

 8   I'm sorry -- October 18th of 2019 --

 9            MS. BRENNAN:  Okay.

10            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- regarding the previous public

11   hearing.

12            MS. BRENNAN:  Okay.  So this is the third.  And

13   I believe the originals on both work groups -- I know

14   Jeff was part of both work groups -- I mean, not Jeff.

15   I'm sorry.  Steve.  Jeff, were you part of the --

16            MR. SAUNDERS:  No, I didn't live here before

17   that.

18            MS. BRENNAN:  Okay.

19            MS. MOREHOUSE:  I don't think there was a work

20   group for the last one, was there?  There was a --

21            MS. BRENNAN:  There was a work group on that

22   one as well.

23            MR. SCHMIDT:  There were a couple --

24            MS. BRENNAN:  Yeah.

25            MR. SCHMIDT:  There were a couple updates to
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 1   the current requirements that are still highlighted.

 2   It's from 2018.  So that was the work group that existed

 3   from 2016 to (inaudible).

 4            MS. BRENNAN:  And that was it, the 2016 work

 5   group to the 2019 at work group, who's interested from

 6   that group.  They were still interested.  It was not an

 7   intentional, "We're going to not go to this geographical

 8   area," or, "Oh, my God.  What a pain in the butt she

 9   is."  You know, we didn't do any of that.  It was the

10   cross reference of --

11            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.

12            MS. BRENNAN:  -- all of the people who were on

13   the previous ones.  And your best interests -- and don't

14   hit me, but that's how the work group came around.  Was

15   a work group necessary or legal, or were we supposed to

16   have one?  No.  Did we have one?  Yes.  But there was no

17   intentional leaving out anyone.

18            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I just know that I wouldn't

19   want to be making rules about piercers, because I have

20   no desire to do that, nor do I know the rules and

21   regulations for a piercer, because I don't have to,

22   because it's not my specialty.

23            MR. SAUNDERS:  Well, we did have tattoo artists

24   and permanent makeup artists on the committee; right?

25            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  There's not one permanent
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 1   makeup artist.

 2            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  That stopped coming over a

 3   year ago.

 4            MR. SAUNDERS:  Right, but --

 5            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  So they even (inaudible).

 6            MR. SAUNDERS:  -- this is five years of that.

 7            MS. MOREHOUSE:  Okay.  I will say that even

 8   though they weren't attending the meetings, every

 9   meeting they got the updates.  They know everything that

10   changed every time they were highlighted.  So while they

11   weren't attending meetings, had they saw something they

12   disagreed with, they could have still reached out.

13            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But maybe they just didn't

14   reach out because they were just done with the whole

15   thing.

16            MS. MOREHOUSE:  That's a possibility.

17            MR. SAUNDERS:  It's possible, yeah.

18            MS. MOREHOUSE:  We also can't just put out a

19   thing to every artist who wants to go, because how do we

20   decide who's on the workgroup?

21            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.  That's what if --

22            MS. BRENNAN:  That's even worse.

23            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- 300 people show up?

24            MS. BRENNAN:  Yeah.

25            MS. MOREHOUSE:  Right.
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 1            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I understand.

 2            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Well, I would like the

 3   record to note that if there is ever another work group,

 4   or anything dealing with anything like this at all, big

 5   or small, I would like to be a part of that.

 6            MS. BRENNAN:  We have your name, yeah.

 7            MS. CHERYL JONES:  So, yeah, for the record,

 8   I'd just like to say that what we are doing is not a

 9   medical procedure, and we want doctors completely out of

10   it; completely out of it.  It really -- I mean, I don't

11   know what to tell you guys.  I think that in the -- in

12   the Michigan -- in the code, something needs to be

13   written as to, like, the requirements, safety

14   requirements, for these numbing agents, rather than none

15   at all without a physician's, you know -- maybe the --

16   the nomenclature could be as -- in accordance with FDA

17   regulations.  Because if you read the FDA regulations,

18   it, like, doesn't seem to have a problem with us using

19   it.

20            MS. MOREHOUSE:  On yourself.  That is not to --

21            MS. CHERYL JONES:  That's fine; that's fine.

22            MS. MOREHOUSE:  -- occupations.

23            MS. CHERYL JONES:  On ourselves.  So, you know,

24   if your -- your client happens they have a tube in their

25   hand, they can put it on themselves before we tattoo;
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 1   right?  That's on them.  So that would be our go-around

 2   -- right? -- to hand the tube to the client and have the

 3   client apply it?  That way we didn't do it; right?  And

 4   way we don't need a prescription --

 5            MS. BRENNAN:  Well, there --

 6            MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- because the client used

 7   it for whatever they needed it for; correct?

 8            MS. BRENNAN:  I'm sorry.  There won't be any

 9   validation until after the group meets and decides if

10   it's correct or not.  I'm sorry.  There are some answers

11   you can get right on the spot.  There are others that

12   need discussion.

13            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Sure.

14            MS. BRENNAN:  And so that's on the record, and

15   the transcript will be read and the whole thing.

16            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, I mean, I figured if

17   the go-around would be to get a prescription from a

18   doctor, and this is OTC, and people can do what they

19   want with their -- I mean, like, if somebody puts their

20   own lotion on, I mean, you know, of course we recommend

21   we want the skin clean of lotions and oils and whatever.

22   But, I mean, you know, somebody puts a lotion on, that's

23   on them.  So -- so we'll just have to find another

24   go-around, I guess.  We'll just have them apply it

25   themselves and instruct them on how to properly apply it
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 1   themselves, so that it's done within the confines of the

 2   law.  Is that what we need to be telling everybody?

 3            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Except the new law states

 4   that they -- if we are aware that they've applied

 5   themselves, which includes us telling them how to apply

 6   it --

 7            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, if they go into the

 8   bathroom, we don't know what they're doing in the

 9   bathroom with that tube.

10            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  We can't tell them, or then

11   we know.  I mean, I -- I'm just thinking that's --

12   that's how it's written.  It's backed us into a corner.

13            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  I feel like the way that

14   it's written, like, and the basis of the FDA part of it,

15   like, we're not practicing medicine and we're not

16   applying it, and we're not participating in off-label

17   use.  So how does our knowledge of them using it, like,

18   we're -- our hands are off of it -- violate the FDA law?

19            MR. SCHMIDT:  You're not violating the FDA law.

20            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  If we're talking about --

21            MR. SCHMIDT:  It's not really an FDA law, but

22   whatever.

23            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  If we're talking about,

24   yes, because it's our licensing regulations.  So,

25   technically, if they come in --
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 1            MR. SCHMIDT:  And you --

 2            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  -- and me applying it --

 3            MR. SCHMIDT:  And you work on them --

 4            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  -- and I know, but how is

 5   it violating the FDA law by just having knowledge, but I

 6   didn't put it on?  Because I'm not participating in the

 7   off-label use by applying it.

 8            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, they --

 9            MR. SCHMIDT:  Because you're tattooing onto

10   skin which has been affected by it; right?  That's now

11   not what it's approved -- right?  It's applied to be on

12   the skin, not then tattooed upon; right?

13            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, what we -- what we

14   need to have them do is strike from the language that

15   they are not allowed to put that on ahead of time,

16   because, really, I don't believe it's any of the state's

17   business what a client does in their skin ahead of time

18   before they come into the studio.  Wouldn't that be a

19   reasonable assumption; right?

20            MR. SCHMIDT:  Well, for the same reason as you

21   can't tattoo on a part of the body that has, like, a

22   rash or a disease going on or something like that;

23   right?  The existing and proposed wording, that's all

24   included as well; right?

25            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.  But, again, normally,
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 1   when somebody uses lidocaine ahead of time, there's

 2   basically no visible signs.  I mean, okay.  It might be

 3   cool to the touch, but people get nervous.  Their skin

 4   gets cool anyways.  It might be maybe cool to the touch.

 5   It might maybe be discolored.  But sometimes looking at

 6   somebody, you can't tell at all if they've used a

 7   product or not.  So --

 8            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  We're guessing --

 9            MS. CHERYL JONES:  It would --

10            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- instead of applying the

11   correct --

12            MS. CHERYL JONES:  It would make sense to just

13   completely strike it from the language altogether about

14   if we suspect that this -- that it's been on the skin,

15   or if it's been applied to the skin or -- I mean, what's

16   the reference here?  I mean, because if you just strike

17   that piece of language out of there, then that would

18   probably solve a lot of the problems, wouldn't it?  We

19   could just eliminate that.

20            I mean, because it's one thing if the skin is

21   in bad condition, as in, there's -- there's bumps or

22   breaks or abrasions or -- you know, that's one thing if

23   we see visible signs, but it's another thing if we don't

24   see any kind of visible issues with the skin.  And

25   lidocaine has no effect on the healing of the tattoo or
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 1   pigment retention or any of that.  As -- you know, I

 2   mean, I've been using it, you know, since about 2008,

 3   2010.  I've never had a problem with healing, ever.  In

 4   fact, I haven't found a single person that's even

 5   allergic to it, yet, which I believe there are.  I know

 6   there are people.  I always ask people ahead of time,

 7   "Are you allergic to lidocaine?"

 8            So, yeah, if you could strike that part from

 9   the language, then, you know -- because there's --

10   there's other language in here that's a little vague as

11   well.  So, I mean, why not?  Why can't we just strike

12   that from the language?  I don't -- I don't see that

13   we'd be in violation of anything that way.  Like, it

14   really should not be our job to govern what people do

15   with their skin when we're not tattooing it.

16            I mean, you know, we give them care on how to

17   heal their tattoo, and I'll tell you what, some people,

18   they just do whatever they want anyways, you know, and

19   that's completely beyond our control.  So could we

20   negotiate for that?  Could we take that out of the

21   language?

22            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And I feel safer -- I feel

23   more safe doing it myself, buying a product that I know

24   is reputable with my education and my knowledge, and

25   buying something that I've used for thousands of people
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 1   and always had a positive result, knowing exactly how

 2   much to apply, that more is not better, you know.

 3            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Right.  Which --

 4            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  (Inaudible).

 5            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Which is exactly --

 6            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.

 7            MS. CHERYL JONES:  The go-around would be, "You

 8   use your product," and maybe you put out this much of a

 9   portion and whatever --

10            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And you --

11           MS. CHERYL JONES:  And just go --

12            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But I don't feel like --

13   right.  You're right.  It's a slippery slope, because

14   that's where the comfort is, because then we have the

15   control over what's being used, how it's being used, and

16   we know.  They come back with a bad result, and we can

17   say, "Well, you know, I know 'this', 'this' and 'this',"

18   but my clients lie.  They lie to -- about all kinds of

19   things.

20            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah, they do.

21            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I can't change that, but

22   we're letting them buy a product that could be used for

23   anal numbing for -- and put it on their eyelid.  I just

24   -- it just seems like we're creating a bigger problem.

25            MS. CHERYL JONES:  A much bigger problem, yes.
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 1            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And I want to say this:  You

 2   know, I -- I feel like -- I've only been in this

 3   industry for eight years.  And, you know, when I was 18

 4   years old, there was a (inaudible) tattoo.  I went there

 5   with all my girlfriends one night, got a tattoo, you

 6   know, and thought that, "Oh, that must be legal."  I

 7   didn't know.  I didn't know anything like I know now, at

 8   54 years old.  I had no idea.  And I feel like in the

 9   last eight years, we really are starting to become a

10   professional -- a professional group of people.

11            Like, we -- I feel like the whole idea of

12   tattooing and cosmetic -- cosmetic tattooing and

13   permanent makeup and how we operate, it's looked at a

14   lot higher than maybe it used to, just because of

15   knowledge itself.  Not that it's better than it used to

16   be, but there's a lot more knowledge about it.  There's

17   a lot more --

18            MS. CHERYL JONES:  There really is, but the

19   corporations realize that they can make money off of our

20   industry finally.  So that's -- that's why it's

21   legitimatized, because the more legitimate you are, the

22   more these organizations, like the FDA, you know, the

23   state, they can come in and regulate you.

24            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.  I just -- I don't

25   know.  I feel like there's something that should be done

0095

 1   or that has to be done for all of us to be able to have

 2   what our wants are satisfied; the want to make sure that

 3   they're using the right product, the want to make sure

 4   that they're comfortable during the procedure, the want

 5   to make sure they're not putting a product on some part

 6   of the skin that it should not go on in desperation to

 7   just have it done, but be numb.

 8            Because, let's face it, we're women.  We're

 9   going to figure it out.  I mean, we are.  We're going to

10   use all kinds of things that we shouldn't be using, and

11   doing things we shouldn't be doing just to be able to

12   get through it.  And that's not a comfortable situation

13   for any of us performing those procedures, if we don't

14   know --

15            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, like, isn't this

16   legitimately, like, the whole abortion argument; right?

17   I mean, you know, you have to make abortion legal for

18   people so they can do that.  You know, this is -- this

19   is ridiculous.  I mean, like, what -- I mean, it's --

20   it's, like, it's -- it's the same exact thing.  You're

21   going to decide what people are or aren't allowed to do

22   with their bodies, you know, because these FDA -- this

23   is -- it doesn't make any sense.  None of this makes any

24   sense.

25            The medical field needs to stay out of our
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 1   industry.  I mean, as far as regulating autoclaves,

 2   okay.  That makes sense.  Regulate the autoclaves.  But

 3   anything else, you know -- we know far more about this

 4   industry than any physician would.  It doesn't make

 5   sense the physician should have their hands in anything

 6   we do at all; at all.  They shouldn't be touching us.

 7            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I wouldn't let my physician

 8   tattoo me.

 9            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Absolutely not.

10            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  You're for sure going to

11   have women putting numbing agents on their own eyelids,

12   and all the issues that are going to come from that.

13            MS. CHERYL JONES:  People could potentially go

14   blind from this.

15            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And what if we are using

16   products that interact with the products they used

17   because they didn't tell us they used it.  I mean, we're

18   creating a bigger problem, I -- I personally think,

19   because of what we don't know.  At least if we're doing

20   it ourselves, we do know.  And are there going to be

21   people that break the rules?  There are.  But there's

22   going to be people like us out there standing up for the

23   rules and maybe getting the word out there, like, you

24   know --

25            MS. CHERYL JONES:  No, not me, because I don't
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 1   understand how I've used this product since 2008, 2010,

 2   you know, I've never had a problem.  And now suddenly,

 3   you know, well, because the FDA and there's a framework

 4   and this -- you know, so, yeah, I mean, I guess we have

 5   to change the -- the term -- the what a medical

 6   procedure is.  I mean, how do we fix this?  I mean,

 7   because I figure, like, you guys are supposed to help

 8   us; right?

 9            MR. SAUNDERS:  Specifically with this rule,

10   this is -- this isn't -- this is a clarification of

11   what's already existing law, and we can't change the

12   laws.  So you would have to change the laws through

13   political means.

14            MS. CHERYL JONES:  So you're saying that this

15   is already an existing law?

16            MR. SAUNDERS:  This is an existing law.  We --

17            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Uh-huh.

18            MR. SAUNDERS:  We didn't change it, like, even

19   if we had not --

20            MS. CHERYL JONES:  I mean, this was never in

21   the -- in the verbiage for -- for the body art ordinance

22   before.

23            MR. SAUNDERS:  So this was, like, a

24   clarifications so that you -- people were aware of the

25   existing laws.
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 1            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.  But what if we just

 2   don't put the clarifications in there, and they're not

 3   part of the body art ordinance at all?

 4            MR. SAUNDERS:  It would still be a law.

 5            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But the FDA is federal;

 6   right?  And there are others -- I am a part of several

 7   permanent makeup groups all over the United States, and

 8   nobody else has laws like this.  And I know you can't be

 9   concerned with what other people are doing, but if

10   they're governed by the FDA, too --

11            MR. SAUNDERS:  So --

12            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- what's their workaround?

13            MR. SAUNDERS:  So it gets complicated, but the

14   big thing is, if a packaging -- if your packaging right

15   now says, "You can apply this for numbing before a

16   tattoo," it is not approved for that use.  The FDA says

17   that's not a legal use, and they don't -- that's a new

18   drug that needs a new 510(k) number.  So using that

19   product could put you at some degree of risk, but also

20   if a product is being sold that is not -- does not have

21   the right labeling for what is being sold as --

22            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  What about just a general,

23   topical numbing, doesn't say anything about anything

24   else?

25            MR. SAUNDERS:  Then it's going to be an
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 1   over-the-counter for the consumer.  And I get where

 2   you're frustrated; right?  Totally makes sense to me,

 3   but we can't change any of that.  That's not us.  We're

 4   just putting it in there for clarification.  So whether

 5   it's in there or not, it will still be the law in

 6   Michigan, and it's probably the law nationwide.

 7            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Okay.  But that so the FDA

 8   is a federal --

 9            MR. SAUNDERS:  Well, that -- so the FDA is

10   going to make rules about drugs, and since this is an

11   over-the-counter drug for consumer use, as soon as a

12   tattoo artist or a piercer or whatever starts applying

13   it in their occupational use, things get different;

14   right?  And that's going to be a state -- state rule,

15   but in Michigan that falls under the practicing medicine

16   without a license.

17            And that, we don't have any control over

18   because we didn't -- we don't make the laws.  Like,

19   we're just making rules based on those laws.

20            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So I have a question.  If a

21   client of mine walks into my building, they tell me they

22   have a headache, and I give them an 800 milligram of

23   Motrin, which was my prescription, I'm breaking the law,

24   obviously.

25            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah.
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 1            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I know I can't administer

 2   medication.  But if I hand them a bottle of ibuprofen I

 3   just bought at Rite Aid that's 200 milligrams, and they

 4   take it themselves, are they breaking the law?

 5            MR. SAUNDERS:  You would have to talk to a

 6   lawyer.  I don't think so, but I don't know.

 7            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Because they're putting an

 8   over-the-counter -- they're taking and over-counter drug

 9   themselves.

10            MR. SAUNDERS:  But for its -- its listed use.

11            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But the listed use of

12   lidocaine on the back of my bottle is for -- for relief

13   of pain.

14            MR. SAUNDERS:  But that's -- but not for

15   tattooing.  I know that sounds like a very specific

16   thing, but it has to say for tattooing --

17            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So -- okay.

18            MR. SAUNDERS:  -- and it can't be legally say

19   that.

20            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So let's say that I -- they

21   -- they -- I'm going to go back to the whole example I

22   just used.  So let's say they come in and they say,

23   "Man, like, I'm just really having these uterine cramps,

24   and I really need something for pain.  You have an

25   ibuprofen?", and I hand them the bottle of 200 milligram
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 1   ibuprofen, but the back only says for headache.  It does

 2   not say -- now am I breaking the law --

 3            MR. SAUNDERS:  But --

 4            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- because it doesn't say

 5   uterine pain?

 6            MR. SAUNDERS:  It doesn't say specifically

 7   uterine pain, but it's going to say for general muscular

 8   pain; right?

 9            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But my -- the back mine says

10   for pain.

11            MR. SAUNDERS:  I -- we're talking about a

12   hypothetical thing.

13            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.

14            MR. SAUNDERS:  If we bust it out, it's going to

15   say something that covers that; right?  The other thing

16   is that, in addition -- and I know this is annoying, but

17   you handing them does actually have some liability if

18   you do that in a professional way; right?  If you're

19   saying, "As a tattooer, I'm going to give you this

20   meditation," then, yeah, liability changes; right?  As

21   your friend -- right? -- "I'm going to hand you this."

22   It's a different thing; right?  That -- that is still

23   over-the-counter use.  I don't like these rules either,

24   but this is just basically what it is.  It's the way

25   American law is set up.
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 1            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But is it okay just to say,

 2   "It is what it is"?  I mean, when it affects so many

 3   people -- if there was a law that was being passed that

 4   said, "You can't use a machine that you used safely for

 5   30 years, and you know it's better than anything on the

 6   market, and you're super passionate about it," and they

 7   told you to use this hollow needle over here, and this

 8   is all you could use -- I'm just making this up because

 9   I don't even know what it is.

10            But I'm just saying, if you knew that was

11   wrong, in your core of core you know that's wrong.

12   Somebody got it wrong.  You just can't believe that's

13   what they're saying.  Wouldn't you fight for it, too?

14            MR. SAUNDERS:  Sure, absolutely.  But you've

15   got to fight for it politically, not because -- I think

16   what folks in this room would like us to say is that,

17   "Okay.  We're going to change that rule."; right?  But

18   we can't.  It's not our rule.  It's a state law.

19            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But if you can adapt it, how

20   come you can't change it?

21            MR. SAUNDERS:  It's -- we can't change the

22   laws; right?  We can change certain -- the wording of

23   certain rules, but this one in particular, that I

24   understand is not popular -- right? -- we don't have any

25   ability to change, because it's part of the state laws.
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 1            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  So we need to talk to the

 2   state or the state really has no wiggle room because of

 3   the FDA?

 4            MR. SAUNDERS:  It's going to involve both.

 5            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Okay.

 6            MR. SAUNDERS:  Yeah.

 7            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Because you said that the

 8   FDA has no intention to ever approve any of the --

 9            MR. SCHMIDT:  Well, they won't, unless there's

10   a new drug application -- right? -- which you need

11   clinical trials and studies published in peer reviewed

12   scientific literature, that then goes to the FDA to

13   designate whether it's -- we know it's effective or

14   whether it's safe; right?  That -- that's how you get a

15   new drug approved in the United States.

16            MS. CHERYL JONES:  That's actually -- that's

17   not really how it goes.

18            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But this isn't a medical

19   service we provide.  This is --

20            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah.

21            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  This is --

22            MS. CHERYL JONES:  The problem is when you let

23   the medical industry -- the Medical-industrial Complex

24   -- into something that is not medical, where does it

25   stop?  So -- okay.  We need a prescription to use these
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 1   anesthetics; right?  Then -- then -- then it turns into,

 2   "You have to have a medical license be able to tattoo."

 3   I mean, like, where does it -- where does it stop?

 4   Like, once they get their fingers into this industry,

 5   it's just going to keep going.  It's not going to get

 6   any better.  So, I mean, like, we're already in the

 7   situation where we have to get a prescription from a

 8   doctor.  What happens next?  What happens next?  At some

 9   point, we have to have medical licenses to be able to

10   tattoo.

11            MR. SAUNDERS:  And this is why I would say it's

12   well -- it's -- it's really worthwhile to be involved in

13   whatever organizations you have in your particular

14   industry.  Because, you know, I've been doing this for a

15   really long time in terms of I was the legislation

16   coordinator for the Association of Professional

17   Piercers, and we would be in meetings with, like, NEHA

18   and, you know, California, and there wouldn't be any

19   tattooers involved, because none of those organizations

20   have much traction; right?

21            Getting involved with those gets you in the

22   room on all of these conversations, because they're

23   happening in a lot more rooms than this.  This is sort

24   of -- what you're at is sort of the end of the line.

25   You really want to be earlier.
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 1            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But the organizations that

 2   I'm involved with are -- are all in other states, which,

 3   when I reached out to every single person I know -- I

 4   think there was, like, 47 people I reached out to --

 5   they're like, "Yeah, we don't -- we don't have any -- we

 6   don't do that."

 7            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah, and I reached out to

 8   --

 9            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  "We don't have any rule like

10   that."

11            MS. CHERYL JONES:  I --

12            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So there's no meaning about

13   it, because they're -- they're not enforcing anything

14   like that.  So this is the beginning for all of us.

15   This is the first time we knew.

16            MR. SAUNDERS:  But this is a national thing;

17   right?  One of your chief -- chief issues ends up being

18   an FDA issue; correct?

19            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.

20            MR. SAUNDERS:  Yeah.  So you need some -- an

21   organization that speaks with the FDA.

22            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  How do the organizations

23   that I belong to speak to the FDA on this topic?

24   Because --

25            MS. CHERYL JONES:  None of the organizations
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 1   you're involved in have enough money to speak with the

 2   FDA.

 3            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Well, maybe they do, but

 4   they're not going to go speak to the FDA for little

 5   Tammy Hadley in Michigan, because it doesn't concern all

 6   of that, because nobody's pressing these -- these rules.

 7            MR. SAUNDERS:  I can only speak to my personal

 8   experience --

 9            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.

10            MR. SAUNDERS:  -- as an artist; right?

11            MS. CHERYL JONES:  I spoke with my buddy from

12   the APT.  Nobody knew this was going on.  I wasn't

13   informed.  It's not on the APT website.  Nobody knew

14   this was going on.

15            MR. SAUNDERS:  And that's -- that's kind of why

16   I would -- I would suggest being involved with the APT;

17   right?  Really, really be involved and --

18            MS. CHERYL JONES:  But -- but they don't know

19   it's going on.

20            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  They don't --

21            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Like, I literally talked to

22   Derby (phonetic); he's got no idea this is going on.

23   Like, I mean, I talked to a friend of mine who is very

24   heavily embedded in the APT.

25            MR. SAUNDERS:  Right.
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 1            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Nobody knows this is going

 2   on.

 3            MR. SAUNDERS:  I don't know how that's

 4   possible, because it's been so well published before

 5   this.  You know, that 2019 meeting was two days and --

 6            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I didn't know.

 7            MR. SAUNDERS:  Just because --

 8            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And I check all my emails

 9   and I pay attention.

10            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Was that the one that we had

11   in the winter?

12            MR. SAUNDERS:  It was October.  And I believe

13   there was a follow-up one in December, was it?

14            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, I mean we --

15            MR. SAUNDERS:  I -- I --

16            MS. CHERYL JONES:  I remember taking part --

17            MR. SCHMIDT:  I know we extended some public

18   comment.

19            MR. SAUNDERS:  Yeah.

20            MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- in a two-part, two-day

21   whole, long fiasco.  We got snowed out and it was --

22            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  I have a question.  Do you

23   guys --

24            MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- and that was never even

25   mentioned.
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 1            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  -- seek out the APP for

 2   their guidance on their regulations, or do they offer to

 3   you and you take it?

 4            MR. SAUNDERS:  So the APP doesn't involve --

 5   the APP is involved insofar as I'm active in the APP,

 6   but I'm not reporting at anybody at the APP; right?

 7            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  I'm just wondering for,

 8   like -- like, if the Society of Permanent Cosmetics

 9   wanted to provide you with guidance, you would need

10   somebody who's a member to be part of a work group, but

11   work groups aren't going to exist anymore 'cause you

12   guys are done?

13            MS. MOREHOUSE:  So we will have a smaller work

14   group that's going -- we're going to make guidance

15   documents for things -- some things that are taken out

16   of the rules, some things that are just, you can't have

17   a rule, but we can make the best practices kind of

18   thing.  So there will be people that are making that --

19            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  After --

20            MS. MOREHOUSE:  -- but it will be -- the work

21   group was very large.

22            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  So I mean after -- like,

23   let's say you guys figure all this out, it gets

24   approved.  Beyond that point, are you going to continue

25   to have any work groups to do any more changing?
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 1            MS. MOREHOUSE:  Like a monthly work group or

 2   quarterly or something like that?

 3            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  I don't know.  Anything at

 4   all.

 5            MS. CHERYL JONES:  No.  I mean, it sounds like

 6   this is final draft, and then they're going to pass it

 7   into law, and then we have to --

 8            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  And then nobody gets

 9   together for meetings or anything?

10            MS. CHERYL JONES:  No.  And then we have to

11   fight and have them change the definition of, I guess,

12   whatever a medical procedure is in the state of

13   Michigan, because that, evidently, is a problem.  So

14   that's where it has to start.

15            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I think the whole thing to

16   me -- and, I mean, I'll just make it super basic -- is

17   that I don't understand -- and I'm a pretty educated

18   person, I'd like to think -- is that I can take a

19   microblade, scratch the surface of the skin and put a

20   pigment in there that is not FDA approved -- maybe

21   components of it are regulated, but it is not FDA

22   approved because there isn't one ink that is FDA

23   approved -- and that's okay.  But I cannot swipe a

24   topical over the top of it, and that -- that's not okay.

25            I can -- I can use microblades and tattoo
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 1   needles and everything else that's not FDA approved on

 2   that skin, but this one particular thing that happens to

 3   be the one particular thing that makes the client

 4   comfortable, I cannot use.

 5            MR. SAUNDERS:  Because it's a drug.  I know --

 6   I know it's an unpleasant thing, but it is a drug.  It

 7   is --

 8            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Over what percentage?  Any

 9   percentage?

10            MR. SAUNDERS:  I don't define what the drug is.

11            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Because this has four

12   percent.

13            MR. SAUNDERS:  For consumer use.  I know we

14   keep on running around in a circle.  I --

15            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, what's crazy is -- is

16   tattoo ink was not even approved by the FDA up until

17   very, very, very recently; very, very recently.  And I

18   believe the only company that has been approved by the

19   FDA is Eternal Tattoos, I believe.

20            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  It's not approved.

21            MR. SCHMIDT:  It's not approved, but it's --

22            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Oh, it's not approved.

23            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- regulated as cosmetics.

24            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Yeah.

25            MR. SCHMIDT:  How they regulate cosmetics and,
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 1   "approve" them is --

 2           MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  There is not --

 3            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- way different than --

 4            MS. CHERYL JONES:  So our industry is --

 5            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- (inaudible).

 6            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Our industry is being

 7   regulated by the cosmetic industry and by the medical

 8   industry, both?

 9            MR. SCHMIDT:  With regards to products, yes.

10   And some of them, like tattoo needles, piercing needles,

11   those are completely unregulated; right?  The FDA

12   doesn't classify --

13            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Absolutely.

14            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- those as --

15            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  There is not one thing --

16            MR. SCHMIDT:  -- anything at all.

17            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- in our industry that is

18   FDA approved, not one.  I looked.

19            MS. CHERYL JONES:  But we still have state laws

20   that regulate all this anyways, regardless of all the

21   things that we use that are not FDA approved in here.

22   There's still rules.  There's still laws associated.

23   And you acknowledge what we're using, this is all

24   acknowledged in here, and these are the rules.  And not

25   all of these things are approved by the FDA.
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 1            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  None of them are.

 2            MS. CHERYL JONES:  But, yet, this is still a

 3   state body art -- it doesn't make any sense.  So just

 4   this one thing pertaining to the FBA -- FDA is

 5   applicable, but all the other stuff is not?  I mean --

 6            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  That's my question.  I asked

 7   it another way.

 8            MR. SAUNDERS:  The -- so there are FDA things

 9   that we use for reference, and one of them is going to

10   be their relationship with drugs.  And with tattooings,

11   as that's an emerging thing, I expect some changes over

12   the next 10 years, which you -- I mean, Steve is --

13            MR. SCHMIDT:  Yep.

14            MR. SAUNDERS:  -- really keen on this stuff,

15   but the drug science --

16            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah, they can't wait to get

17   their fingers on it.

18            MR. SAUNDERS:  -- is really established.

19            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So let me ask this:  What in

20   our industry or your -- you know, what, from the time

21   they walk in to we cleanse the skin, we choose if we're

22   going to do, you know, a powder brow or microbladed

23   brow, whatever, a pigment, anything, what is reg- --

24   what is FDA approved?  Out of any of those services,

25   there's nothing, not one thing.
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 1            MR. SAUNDERS:  Your skin antiseptics are

 2   definitely approved.  The packaging for the skin

 3   antiseptic is approved.  The packaging for the autoclave

 4   package is approved.  Like, so much of it is FDA studied

 5   and approved.  I know it doesn't speak to your point

 6   and, to an extent, I really agree with your point, but

 7   there's not anything this group can do about it.

 8            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I mean, even Green Soap

 9   says, "Cleanse the skin."  Green Soap isn't FDA

10   approved.

11            MR. SAUNDERS:  It is for -- as a soap.

12            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But it doesn't specifically

13   say -- I mean, I read a whole thing.  I mean, there's,

14   like, a 19-page article about this.

15            MR. SAUNDERS:  I -- for what it's worth, I

16   don't think you should use Green Soap, but you don't

17   want to get me started on skin prep.  It will be boring

18   and long -- long-winded talk.

19            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And I don't -- for what I

20   do, I don't need to use Green Soap.  But it shows all

21   over in our industry, and a lot of people think very

22   highly of it.  That's my point.  My point is just that

23   each of us do little things a little bit different.

24   And, you know, nothing in our industry is really FDA

25   approved.  You said the packaging.  Well, forget the
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 1   packaging.  Like, what's inside?  Are -- are --

 2            MR. SAUNDERS:  Exactly.  That -- that is also

 3   FDA approved, especially the things like isopropyl

 4   alcohol --

 5            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Which is --

 6            MR. SAUNDERS:  -- (inaudible).

 7            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- wiped over the skin.

 8   It's not put into the skin; right?  But the pigment is

 9   put into the skin, and that's not FDA approved.

10            MR. SAUNDERS:  That is in the process.

11            MR. SCHMIDT:  I mean, I wouldn't make that

12   argument on a large scale, because te the FDA might

13   start regulating those as something other than

14   cosmetics.

15            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Well, I'm not trying to, but

16   I'm just saying, like, all these things that we do, are

17   not regulated, and then there's this one little thing

18   over that is regulated.

19            MR. SAUNDERS:  But it's the one that's a drug.

20   I get -- I get it.  I'm on your side.

21            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  It's the one that makes the

22   client comfortable.

23            MR. SAUNDERS:  Again, but it's not it's nothing

24   that this group could change, because we can't

25   fundamentally change the state law.
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 1            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Could you give the authority

 2   to enforce it?

 3            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Actually, with enough

 4   people, you can fundamentally change the state law, yes.

 5            MR. SAUNDERS:  Yeah, well I agree.

 6            MS. CHERYL JONES:  With a petition and with

 7   enough people, you can change it.

 8            MS. BRENNAN:  I think what he's trying to get

 9   it is there's nothing --

10            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right now.

11            MS. BRENNAN:  -- this panel can do.

12            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.

13            MS. BRENNAN:  Yeah.

14            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  No, I understand.

15            MS. BRENNAN:  Yeah.

16            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But I think we're all here,

17   looking for you -- the four of you for something to

18   guide us, because we don't know.  I've never been to a

19   meeting with this before.  I have no idea how it works.

20   What can we do?  How can we -- I don't want to say, get

21   around it, but, I mean, what can we do so we can still

22   keep providing the services that we're providing, not

23   put that into the hands of uneducated or unknowing

24   clients, still working on skin that we know what's

25   actually on it and the amounts that are put on it?

0116

 1   Like, what can we do?

 2            MR. SAUNDERS:  My suggestion is, if you have a

 3   company that you believe in their product, and believe

 4   that it is safe for tattooing -- right? -- an anesthetic

 5   solution, then you ask that company to get FDA approved

 6   for that use.

 7            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Okay.

 8            MR. SAUNDERS:  Then they have to go make the

 9   application, spend the money and prove that their

10   product is safe.

11            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And they're going to do that

12   for one state out of all the other states?

13            MR. SAUNDERS:  No; no.  That would --

14            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- that don't require it.

15            MR. SAUNDERS:  -- be for the entire country.

16            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But nobody else requires it

17   but us.

18            MR. SAUNDERS:  I bet you everybody requires it.

19            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But nobody enforces it.

20            MR. SAUNDERS:  That could be true.

21            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  That's probably the fairest

22   way to say it.  I --

23            MR. SAUNDERS:  And that's not my understanding.

24   My understanding is plenty of places, actually --

25            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  37 states I made contact
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 1   with, and out of those 37 states, not one of them -- and

 2   not -- I'm not talking about, like, at the state level.

 3   I'm talking about reputable permanent makeup artists, or

 4   people that were active in groups, or one studies --

 5            MR. SAUNDERS:  They -- they don't know.

 6            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- and not one of them said

 7   it was regulated at all.

 8            MR. SAUNDERS:  But my guess is, and this is --

 9   this is one of the reasons that it's in these rules --

10   is that it's probably illegal nationwide; right?  They

11   don't know, because they don't know.  And one of the

12   reasons of putting it in the rules is that so you knew;

13   right?

14            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Yeah.  I mean, maybe.

15            MR. SAUNDERS:  So if you get a company to go

16   through those hoops, then you will have a legal product.

17            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  They're not going to.

18            MR. SAUNDERS:  I agree they're not going to,

19   but I don't see why we're upset with the people trying

20   to make sure that tattooing is as safe as possible, and

21   not the company that's not willing to spend the money to

22   prove the product --

23            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Because we're trying to make

24   sure tattooing is safe as possible, also.

25            MR. SAUNDERS:  Then -- then the way to do that
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 1   --

 2            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And -- and we're looking out

 3   for our clients, because we know them personally.  We

 4   know their stories.  We hear them cry.  We know every

 5   single thing about them.

 6            MR. SAUNDERS:  So --

 7            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  We're protecting them.

 8            MR. SAUNDERS:  So what's objectionable about

 9   studies to prove that the product safe?  What's

10   objectionable there?

11            MS. CHERYL JONES:  But how many studies do we

12   have that prove that low levels of product are unsafe?

13   There aren't any?

14            MR. SAUNDERS:  Again, this is an unknown;

15   right?

16            MS. CHERYL JONES:  So -- so we're going with an

17   unknown.  The FDA can't prove it's safe.  We can't prove

18   it's unsafe.  So we're going to go with the unknown, and

19   the unknown is we can't use it.  Like, it doesn't make

20   sense that, you know --

21            MR. SAUNDERS:  I think it makes a lot of safe

22   (sic) for a product to prove that it's safe for its

23   intended use.

24            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.

25            MR. SAUNDERS:  I think -- I don't think that's
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 1   unreasonable to say, "Hey, here's a drug.  Let's prove

 2   it safe.  And it's going to cost some money, but at the

 3   end of it, we have the evidence, and we've convinced the

 4   government that it's safe."  I don't see that being a

 5   problem.

 6            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Dude, why -- how did we get

 7   all these vaccines?  None of them were ever fucking --

 8            MS. BRENNAN:  Hey.

 9            MS. CHERYL JONES:  It's unbelievable.  They

10   don't -- they weren't -- they weren't -- they didn't

11   have clinical trials, like the TPP.  They didn't have --

12   they didn't have clinical trials for their vaccinations,

13   but they're worried about lidocaine.  That's crazy.

14   Where is -- where is their clinical trials on all their

15   vaccinations and all their bullshit?

16            MR. SAUNDERS:  I -- we can't --

17            MS. BRENNAN:  Please refrain from any

18   profanity.

19            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yes, ma'am.

20            MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you.

21            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Sorry about that.

22            MS. BRENNAN:  It's okay.

23            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.  So, basically, this

24   meeting was so that you could hear our grievances?

25            MS. BRENNAN:  Correct.
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 1            MR. SAUNDERS:  Correct.

 2            MS. CHERYL JONES:  So you take these grievances

 3   to the -- the next level?

 4            MS. BRENNAN:  Uh-huh.

 5            MS. CHERYL JONES:  And then that's it?

 6            MS. BRENNAN:  Based upon the public comment

 7   today, this group -- not me.  I'm only here for

 8   procedure -- will review all of the public comments and

 9   make a determination whether the rules should be

10   changed.  It's as simple and complicated as that.

11            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So I have a question.

12            MS. CHERYL JONES:  So, basically, no matter

13   what we say, they will side with what the FDA is telling

14   them, and the rules set aside for Michigan, the

15   definition of medical procedure, and there really is

16   nothing that we can do other than --

17            MS. BRENNAN:  We haven't even had the meeting

18   yet.  How can you say that?  We are going to meet, I on

19   the procedure, these three on the substantive issues,

20   and decide whether the rule should be changed.  I don't

21   know if -- because of the FDA and the whole thing -- and

22   by the way, federal law trumps any other law.

23            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.

24            MS. BRENNAN:  So that's a problem.  And I think

25   Jeff is trying to say there is nothing we can do about
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 1   it.  "We side with you, but," and the whole bit.  But

 2   this group will meet.  I cannot tell you at this

 3   particular time what the final rules are going to be.

 4            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So has there ever been a

 5   situation where this is the law, like law, but it's

 6   going to be enforceable by, like, the county health

 7   department, and that -- because the county health

 8   department is the person who meets with us on an

 9   independent level to -- I mean, is there anything like

10   that?  Like, because if the FDA has made the law, you

11   can't -- you can't supersede what that law is.

12            MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Didn't they do that with

13   marijuana and the states approved.

14            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.

15            MS. BRENNAN:  Federal government gave

16   regulation to the states, just like abortion.

17            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So what could be -- and I'm

18   not saying it's going to be, but, like, hypothetically,

19   what could be done to allow us to continue to practice

20   the way that we're practicing, on your part anyway?

21   Anything?

22            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah, like, I mean, can't

23   you guys help us with loopholes?

24            MS. BRENNAN:  No, I'm a lawyer.

25            MS. CHERYL JONES:  What do you mean, you're a

0122

 1   lawyer?

 2            MS. BRENNAN:  I'm a good lawyer.  No.

 3            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Good lawyers don't need

 4   loopholes.

 5            MS. BRENNAN:  We don't --

 6           MS. CHERYL JONES:  Who wrote this?

 7            MS. BRENNAN:  -- like to call it loopholes.

 8   We'd like to, again, review and see what other

 9   alternatives we could come up with.  Thank you.  So --

10            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.  Can we find other

11   alternatives?

12            MS. BRENNAN:  That will be part of the

13   discussion that this group has.

14            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Again, my -- I'm really

15   curious what -- like, what -- never mind; never mind;

16   never mind.  Okay.  So, yeah, about the -- the health

17   department I would assume would be enforcing this rule

18   for us not being able to have any kind of antiseptic or

19   lidocaine or whatever?

20            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Yes, because they come do

21   our inspections.

22            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Right.  I mean, there are so

23   many people tattooing out of their houses right now that

24   the health department hasn't even touched.  I don't know

25   why I'm worried about the health department.
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 1            MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Because you're worried about

 2   following the rules.  That's why.  Because you're here.

 3            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah, well, not in this

 4   particular instance I'm not.

 5            MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you.  Would anyone like to

 6   take a break?  Yay.  15 minutes, please.  Let me see.

 7   11:05, please.  We'll go back on the record at 11:20.

 8   Off the record.

 9                     (Off the record)

10            MS. BRENNAN:  Back on the record.  It's 11:22

11   a.m.  We're here on Body Art Facilities, 2023-59 HS.

12   Would anyone like to make a comment?  Please don't

13   forget to sign in.  Forgot to tell you that.  And if at

14   any time you want to come up and make a comment, let me

15   know, and we'll go back on the record.  Off the record.

16   Thank you.

17                     (Off the record)

18            MS. BRENNAN:  Back on the record, 11:30 a.m.

19            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Many, many years, one -- one

20   of my initial arguments that really disturbed me and

21   part of what prompted me to write a letter to the health

22   department many years ago, was that in the body art

23   ordinance, that there is no minimum age requirement for

24   piercing or tattoos.

25            And that was one thing that I thought was
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 1   actually really important, especially as a mom, now,

 2   like, a grandma.  It's kind of really important, because

 3   we have age limits for, you know, tobacco use and age

 4   limits for driving cars and age limits for all kinds of

 5   things.

 6            And one of the problems that occurs for me

 7   repeatedly in this industry is that there are tattoo

 8   shops out there that'll tattoo anybody.  You know,

 9   they'll tattoo a 12 year-old kid, a 14 year-old kid, you

10   know, 15 year-old kid.  I realize parental consent is

11   important, but there's a lot of parents out there that

12   -- I mean, I've had parents argue with me.  I, of

13   course, will turn them down.  I've had parents argue

14   with me over getting their 14 year-old daughter

15   tattooed, you know, and I've refused.

16            I'm just curious, how come -- after all these

17   years, if this isn't an official, you know, rule set

18   yet, or official law, how come we haven't made a minimum

19   age requirement yet?  I really feel that that's super

20   important.  If this ain't final, why -- why can't we --

21   why can't we add that?  I mean, that's something that,

22   quite honestly, has bothered me for years and years and

23   years that, you know, there's people getting away with

24   tattooing children, you know.  And these kids are left

25   with these -- with the consequences of, you know, all
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 1   these bad decisions.  And I feel like if we just had,

 2   you know, some kind of limit, that would be really quite

 3   helpful.

 4            I know people still get tattooed underage, and

 5   people will still go to houses, and people still do

 6   that.  And I know the argument that people have used is,

 7   "Well, if they don't get it done in a professional shop,

 8   they'll just go somewhere anyways."  But I mean, most

 9   tattooers, there's, like -- we all kind of -- if you're

10   kind of -- a tattooer with any kind of morals, you have,

11   like, a professional code of conduct where you just

12   don't tattoo kids under a certain age.  Not every

13   tattooer is like that.

14            So, I mean, I am kind of curious, after all

15   these years, I mean, like, why have we not made a

16   minimum age requirement at this point?

17            MS. BRENNAN:  Panel?

18            MR. SCHMIDT:  So it's two things that that kind

19   of touches on.  The first part is, and I know we've gone

20   over this, and government is weird with a lot of things,

21   we're here to promulgate rules; right?

22            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Sure.

23            MR. SCHMIDT:  And that -- those rules have the

24   full force and effect of law, but they technically

25   aren't the law.  That requirement that's existed since
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 1   2010, where you can do it on a minor, we just need

 2   consent, proof of all that stuff, that is already in the

 3   law itself.  So this whole process isn't to rewrite the

 4   existing law.  It's to write the rules.

 5            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Sure.

 6            MR. SCHMIDT:  So we can't change that today or

 7   in -- as part of this process.

 8            MS. CHERYL JONES:  So you're -- so that is law?

 9            MR. SCHMIDT:  That's law, yes.

10            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.  With parental consent

11   --

12            MR. SCHMIDT:  Yep.

13            MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- but, again, not stating a

14   minimum age requirement?

15            MR. SCHMIDT:  Correct.  But that would require

16   a change in the existing law that we're not here to

17   discuss, or we don't have the authority to change the

18   existing law.  That would have to go through the state

19   legislature.

20            MS. CHERYL JONES:  So that's never getting

21   changed?

22            MR. SCHMIDT:  You would have to go through the

23   state legislature --

24            MS. CHERYL JONES:  I don't --

25           MR. SCHMIDT:  -- and petition them.
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 1            MS. CHERYL JONES:  I don't want to do all that.

 2            MR. SCHMIDT:  While we're on the topic, do you

 3   have suggestions for minimum age for any of the --

 4   whether it's piercing, tattooing, cosmetic tattooing,

 5   branding or scarification, and what's the theory behind

 6   it?  I'm -- just blanket, like, whatever you think.

 7            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, suggestions or

 8   recommendations, I would say -- I would say it would be

 9   different for piercing versus tattooing.  I would say

10   minimum age for some piercings, as in ears, nose, 15 is

11   reasonable, because, I mean, at that age, kids have a

12   pretty good concept of how to clean themselves, clean

13   their bodies, kind of clean their rooms.

14            And what you're left with at the end of the day

15   is, like, minimal scarring, a little tiny -- you know,

16   if the piercing gets rejection or, you know -- I believe

17   16 should be a good, hard line.  That's when a kid gets

18   a driver's license.  I mean, if a kid's supposed to be

19   responsible enough to drive a car at 16, I think, you

20   know, piercings and tattoos would be okay.

21            But, like, one of the issues with underage

22   tattooing is -- is migration.  You know, you tattoo

23   these kids too early, especially boys, you know, under a

24   certain age, their tattoo is in one place when they're,

25   like, 15, but when they're 21 it's not in the same place
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 1   anymore.  It'll -- it'll move.  But, yeah, I mean, I

 2   think -- I think 16 is a pretty good line for piercing

 3   and tattoos, where kids have a pretty decent

 4   understanding on, you know, how to handle their bodies

 5   and how to -- you know, they've already had health class

 6   in school, you know, those kinds of things.

 7            So I think 16 is pretty reasonable.  Maybe 15

 8   for piercing, 16 for tattoos, or even 16 all across the

 9   board.  I mean, it doesn't kill anybody at a wait a year

10   or two to get a piercing or a tattoo, but it just seems

11   like --

12            MR. SCHMIDT:  Well, I can tell you, I took my

13   niece to get her ears pierced the first time at 13 years

14   old, and if I didn't do that, she would have gone with

15   somebody to Claire's.

16            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, yeah, but, I mean,

17   we're talking about ear piercing --

18            MR. SCHMIDT:  Right.

19            MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- you know, which isn't

20   even -- you know, we're not even talking about that.

21   I'm talking about, like, belly buttons.  I'm talking

22   about, like, I don't think it's appropriate for a grown

23   adult to be, you know, piercing belly button, you know,

24   if somebody -- I mean, 16 is, like, even kind of weird

25   for me.  But 16 -- you know, anything, under 16.  And
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 1   girls are usually -- their bodies kind of start slowing

 2   down, as far as growth goes, you know, around 15, 16,

 3   17.  And -- and that way, that their piercing doesn't

 4   migrate or, you know, get displaced.

 5            I mean, like, you know, doing that too young --

 6   I mean, we're not talking about, like, ears.  I mean,

 7   I'm talking about body piercings, you know, things that

 8   could potentially be a problem.  I just feel like 16 is

 9   a reasonable age.  A lot of times -- well, I mean, not

10   the 16 year-olds make all the best decisions, but I

11   think a 16 year-old is going to make -- is going to do

12   better healing their tattoo than a 13 year-old, you

13   know.  And it gets really weird because, like, there's a

14   -- there's -- there's a -- there's a group of people out

15   there, they're all about getting their kids tattooed at

16   ridiculously young ages, and they don't seem to have a

17   problem with it.

18            And there are tattooers out there that will

19   just flat out lie to parents and be like, "No, there's a

20   state law.  It's 16.  I can't do it."  You know, I mean,

21   I won't.  I'll just be honest with them that I just

22   won't do it.  But, yeah, I mean, I -- I guess it's too

23   late for any of that now, but I just feel like -- and

24   that was something I felt very strongly about in the

25   beginning, was that there should have been a minimum age
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 1   requirement for tattoos and piercings.  But all right,

 2   that's it.

 3            MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you.

 4            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Thanks for answering my

 5   question.

 6            MR. SCHMIDT:  Do you want the MCL number for

 7   what the current law is?

 8            MS. CHERYL JONES:  No, I'll find it.  I find --

 9   I mean, I know it's there.  I know it says, "With

10   parental consent," and I get that, you know, but, still,

11   there's just -- I mean, legally, a parent could bring

12   their 11 year-old in.  And it gets -- it gets weird.

13   Where is those child endangerment laws?  Like, where's

14   the line for all that?  I guess there aren't any when it

15   comes to tattooing.  So -- all right.  That's --

16            MR. SCHMIDT:  I mean, I, personally, don't

17   disagree with any of that.  It's just not in the

18   purveyance of the --

19            MS. CHERYL JONES:  Right.  And -- and I was

20   confused by that, because that was one of the -- you

21   know, that that's what prompted everything.  That's what

22   prompted my letter to begin with, was that I worked at a

23   studio where my son -- my son went to school with an 11

24   year-old girl who got her belly button pierced at the

25   studio that I worked at when I -- when I was not there,

0131

 1   of course, with parental consent.  Not that that's okay,

 2   but -- but I guess that's perfectly, you know, legal.

 3            But that was, you know, one of the reasons why

 4   I wrote that letter, is there should be minimum age

 5   requirements.  These kids can't -- you know, her belly

 6   button was infected, and they were asking me for advice.

 7   You know, she's 11.  Of course her belly button is

 8   infected.  That's crazy.  You know, but, I mean, I guess

 9   -- but, yeah, thank you.  Thanks for clarifying that for

10   me.

11            MR. SCHMIDT:  Thank you.

12            MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you.  I see you all rushing

13   up here to talk, "I want to talk."  Off the record,

14   please.

15                     (Off the record)

16            MS. BRENNAN:  It is now 2:00 p.m., but we have

17   not had any public comment since 11:00 o'clock a.m.

18   Public Hearing is over.  Any further comments can be

19   sent to the MDHHS-adminrules@michigan.gov email box

20   until Friday.  Public hearing has ended.

21                (Hearing concluded at 2:03 p.m.)

22

23

24

25
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              1                       Via Zoom Video Conference



              2                       Monday, October 28, 2021 - 9:00 a.m.



              3                 MS. BRENNAN:  On the record, please.  Morning.



              4        My name is Mary Brennan.  I'm the Regulatory Affairs



              5        Officer for the Department of Health and Human Services.



              6        Today we are on the record for Body Art Facilities



              7        Proposed Rules, MOAHR number 2023-59 HS.  I'm going to



              8        introduce our panel for today, starting with my left.



              9        Kathryn, please give your name and your title.



             10                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  I'm Kathryn Morehouse, and I'm



             11        the Body Art Coordinator for MDHHS.



             12                 MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you.  Steve?



             13                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Steve Schmidt, Macomb County



             14        Health Department.



             15                 MS. BRENNAN:  And last but not least, Jeff?



             16                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Jeff Saunders.  I own Gamma



             17        Piercing in Ann Arbor, and I'm on The Association of



             18        Professional Piercers Membership Committee.



             19                 MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you very much.  And for



             20        today, our own Rachelle is our transcriptionist, who



             21        will be taking down all of the testimony today.



             22                 Okay.  These rules have been worked on since



             23        2007.  We -- this is our third public hearing.  Third



             24        time is the charm and the whole bit.  If you were on the



             25        work group, I want to thank you for all your dedication,
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              1        particularly for the last 14 years, trying to get these



              2        rules promulgated.  So let's make today the day.



              3                 A little housekeeping:  First of all, guest



              4        Wi-Fi, if you want to write this down, the user name,



              5        gwireless, all one word and in lower case,



              6        g-w-i-r-e-l-e-s-s.  Password is lower case Z, as in



              7        zebra, number eight, I as in igloo, zero, capital C as



              8        in Charlie, seven, exclamation point, lower case D as in



              9        dog, upper case S as in Sam, N as in Nancy; Z, eight, I,



             10        zero, C, seven, exclamation point, D, S, and N.



             11                 Okay.  Restrooms, out the door to your right,



             12        down the hallway.  It'll be on your right-hand side.



             13        There's a snack shop towards the doors down here, same



             14        thing, on your right.  It is on-your-honor.  There is no



             15        one there, so you pick what you want and you will pay at



             16        a machine that will take care of your needs.



             17                 With regard to today's hearing, if you would



             18        like to make a comment, please come up to the podium,



             19        state your name and please spell it for our



             20        transcriptionist.  Please watch the wires.  It's a wiry



             21        mess today.



             22                 If you don't want the formality of making a



             23        public comment, but just want to ask a question, you may



             24        do that, but I will probably remind you, if you want



             25        this for the record to send over the legislature, please
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              1        have it recorded.  Otherwise, ask any question you would



              2        like from your seats.



              3                 After you give your comment, you have the



              4        option of staying or you may leave.  There was the



              5        misconception in the first public hearing that you had



              6        to stay for eight hours.  You don't.  If you want to



              7        give a comment and you want to get on with your day, you



              8        may leave.  Anything that you give will be recorded and



              9        sent to the -- excuse me -- legislature.



             10                 There will be a 15-minute break at 10:15, lunch



             11        from 12:00 to 1:00.  One block up is Washington Street.



             12        There's a slew of restaurants that you can take



             13        advantage of.  If you do not wish to make an oral



             14        comment or you wanted to make an additional point, you



             15        forgot about it, you have until Friday at the end of



             16        this week to send to the admin rules email box.  That



             17        address is m-d-h-h-s, dash adminrules, all one word,



             18        a-d-m-i-n-r-u-l-e-s@michigan.gov.



             19                 Okay.  Any questions before we begin?  Very



             20        good.  Anybody would like to make a comment, please come



             21        forward.



             22                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Good morning.



             23                 MS. BRENNAN:  Good morning.



             24                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  My name is Tammy Hadley;



             25        T-a-m-m-y, H-a-d-l-e-y.  I am the owner of a permanent
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              1        makeup studio in Springport, Michigan, The Image Barn,



              2        actually.  I started my business in honor of my mom and



              3        her battle with cancer, and I provide free permanent



              4        makeup services to cancer patients.  I've done this for



              5        eight years.



              6                 I had no idea that these meetings were



              7        happening and that all these rules were changing.  I



              8        actually found out when I received an email two Fridays



              9        ago.  Called my local health department inspector to



             10        find out, like, directly how they would affect me.



             11                 There's two of them that I'm -- two things I'm



             12        concerned about.  I'm concerned about the use of not



             13        being able to use topicals.  I've done two weeks of



             14        research, haven't slept at night, and I found out what



             15        Michigan says about topicals, what the FDA says about



             16        topicals.  And I've actually -- I have a print-off so



             17        it's not just my word.



             18                 So in March of 2024 the FDA released a customer



             19        release stating that topicals by certain companies were



             20        not safe to use in large areas.  They don't specify



             21        necessarily how large the area is, but it's not in



             22        permanent makeup cosmetic areas.  It's more in, like,



             23        body tattoo areas.



             24                 They state that 4 percent by their standard is



             25        safe and -- but there are some regulations about that.
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              1        They don't want them covered with plastics or any kind



              2        of Saran Wraps.  They wanted to be on for a shortened



              3        period of time, and they have advised customers to make



              4        sure that those things happen, because then it's safe.



              5                 Michigan allows five percent lidocaine by law,



              6        which is one percent more than what the FDA approved.



              7        And I'm just here to ask for some kind of consideration.



              8        Instead of banning topicals at all in the permanent



              9        makeup industry, if we could maybe use four percent



             10        instead of five percent, if that's what the FDA states



             11        is safe.



             12                 One of the reasons that this is so important



             13        and passionate to me is because I do cancer patients for



             14        free, and these women have literally been through the



             15        most horrific things in their lives.  And to have to



             16        come to me and put them through something else, they're



             17        not going to do it.  I have talked to a lot of people --



             18        you know, I could go to a med spa in work, but I can't.



             19        I've talked to two or three of them.  They won't let me



             20        provide my services for free.  I have to charge $750 for



             21        an areola; one.  We have two.  That's $1500.  They won't



             22        let me do it for free.



             23                 I just -- it doesn't make any sense to me why



             24        we can't use topicals as long as there are some kind of



             25        regulations on it.  Now, I know that they're not FDA
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              1        approved, but needle -- neither are needles, neither are



              2        pigments, neither are any tattoo ink.  There is nothing



              3        in this industry that's really FDA approved.  And as sad



              4        as that is, it's a fact.  We have to be educated, and we



              5        have to make sure we're looking into products that come



              6        from reputable companies, and not buying a $3 pigment on



              7        Amazon, spending $70 and buying from a company that has



              8        facilities they test in and has strict criteria because



              9        we're trusting -- we're trusting them.



             10                 So I just -- I want to ask that, number one,



             11        instead of just getting rid of topicals at all, maybe we



             12        take up the FDA standards of four percent lidocaine,



             13        have a sized area that is considered small by FDA, you



             14        know, standards, and maybe take out the ability to cover



             15        them with some kind of wrap or dressing, which I don't



             16        do anyway.  I don't know why you would.  It increases



             17        heat, which makes it more dangerous.



             18                 But if we write those into the rules, instead



             19        of just saying we can't use them at all, I know that,



             20        like, for me, it will greatly -- this will impact my



             21        business a lot, and it will impact the wrong kind of



             22        people that I think have already been through enough,



             23        and we don't want to impact them.



             24                 So the other thing that I wanted to talk about



             25        today is the fact that I didn't know that these meetings
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              1        were happening.  And I'm not putting the blame on



              2        anybody.  I always read my emails, and I always go



              3        through everything that I can, but I found out that the



              4        work groups were made up of body art facility owners and



              5        not necessarily represented by a permanent makeup



              6        artist.  I don't want to make the rules for what tattoo



              7        shops do, even though we are under the same licensing,



              8        because I don't know.  I feel like that would be wrong



              9        for me to make rules that deal with body piercing.  I



             10        don't want a body piercer to make a rule for me, because



             11        we don't do the same thing.



             12                 And it would be premature and very



             13        irresponsible of me to make rules that represent



             14        services that I don't personally know about or provide.



             15        But to get everyone together from all those different



             16        industries, I think gives a better representation of



             17        what we do as a whole.



             18                 The other thing that's concerning to me is that



             19        if we're listening just to body art facility owners, I



             20        know body art facility owners that do not work in this



             21        industry.  They're business owners.  They have opened up



             22        a body art facility, gotten the licensing for it, and



             23        then they hire people to work there.  They have no idea



             24        what we do on a daily basis.  They wouldn't know because



             25        they don't need to.  They just pay their fee and renew
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              1        and make sure their shop fits all these standards that



              2        -- that it is, and they're not in there every day



              3        working with, you know, clients or doing pro bono work



              4        or giving back to the community, or whatever, you know.



              5                 So, anyway, I just wanted to come here today



              6        and ask if, you know, my voice be heard.  And I don't



              7        know if anyone else agrees with this or not, but the FDA



              8        does have regulations for topicals, and if we could



              9        maybe adopt those instead of just banning them all



             10        together.



             11                 MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you very much.



             12                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Thank you.



             13                 MS. BRENNAN:  Any discussion from the panel?



             14                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Can I just ask you one question?



             15                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Absolutely.



             16                 MR. SCHMIDT:  You stated that Michigan allows



             17        five percent lidocaine --



             18                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  By law.



             19                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- for topical anesthetics, but



             20        the FDA is four percent?



             21                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  That's correct.



             22                 MR. SCHMIDT:  What law the state of Michigan



             23        are you referencing?



             24                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I went to the



             25        Michiganstate.gov.  Do you want me to find it for you?
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              1                 MR. SCHMIDT:  If you could, because, I mean,



              2        all drugs and most type of products for the manufacturer



              3        and sale are regulated by FDA.  They're not regulated by



              4        the state of Michigan.



              5                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.



              6                 MR. SCHMIDT:  So I'm just curious what you were



              7        referencing.



              8                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Yeah, I can find it for you.



              9        I do have the one that talks about in March of 2024,



             10        what the FDA put out overall.



             11                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, that's the FDA warning



             12        letter and --



             13                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Yes.



             14                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- public health advisory.  Yep,



             15        absolutely.  I know about that.  I'm just -- I'm just



             16        curious because you said Michigan allowed five percent



             17        lidocaine, what you were --



             18                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Okay.



             19                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- referencing on that.



             20                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I'll find it for you.



             21                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.



             22                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And I can -- well, I can't



             23        obviously print it here.  I can send it to you.



             24                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, that's not a problem.



             25                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Okay.
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              1                 MR. SCHMIDT:  I mean, you can just come up and



              2        tell me whenever you want.



              3                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Okay.  Do you have any other



              4        questions for me?



              5                 MR. SCHMIDT:  That was the big one.  And, I



              6        mean, the FDA does regulate tattoo inks and pigments,



              7        but they're regulated as cosmetics.



              8                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.



              9                 MR. SCHMIDT:  It's completely different than



             10        the drugs --



             11                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But they're not approved.



             12                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- but they are -- correct.



             13                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.



             14                 MR. SCHMIDT:  But they are regulated, so --



             15                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.  Oh, for sure.



             16                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Cool.  I just wanted to



             17        make sure we were --



             18                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I was just talking about,



             19        like, an FDA-approved product.



             20                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Right.  Okay.



             21                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Okay.



             22                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Perfect.



             23                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Thank you.



             24                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Thank you.



             25                 MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you.  Next?  Hi.
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              1                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  How much time do we have to



              2        speak?



              3                 MS. BRENNAN:  Eight hours, if you want.  I'm



              4        here -- I'm here for the long run.



              5                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  All right.  Is there a way



              6        --



              7                 MR. SCHMIDT:  We're going full filibuster here.



              8                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- to get on the internet or



              9        --



             10                 MS. BRENNAN:  Yes.  Let me give you the



             11        password.



             12                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Thank you.  Thank you.  I'm



             13        sure I've written it down.  Oh, wonderful.  Thank you.



             14                 MS. BRENNAN:  You're a doll.  Thank you.  Okay.



             15        Name, please, and spell.



             16                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Hi.  My name is Chelsea,



             17        C-h-e-l-s-e-a, Orrico, O-r-r-i-c-o.



             18                 MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you.  Your comment?



             19                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Yeah.  I am not sure what



             20        members of your work group that you have.  Can I ask



             21        questions up here?



             22                 MS. BRENNAN:  Absolutely.



             23                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Okay.  Have you worked



             24        with anyone with the Society of Permanent Cosmetics?  I



             25        know you work with APP, so just wondering if you've
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              1        consulted with them at all.



              2                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Previously, yes.  Not anyone



              3        that's currently active in the work group.



              4                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Okay.  Do you have -- you



              5        don't have any permanent cosmetic artists on your work



              6        group at all right now?



              7                 MR. SCHMIDT:  The last one dropped out.



              8                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Okay.  How long has it



              9        been since they've been a part of it?



             10                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Honestly, I'm not sure right now.



             11                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  Yeah; yeah.



             12                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Okay.



             13                 MR. SCHMIDT:  It's been a minute.



             14                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Are you looking for people



             15        to help with that at all?



             16                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  So the work group is no longer



             17        so -- because we -- the work group was to create the



             18        rules.



             19                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Gotcha.



             20                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  Or revise the rules.



             21                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Okay.



             22                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  Because currently we have



             23        requirements, and how we devised this was we started



             24        with the current requirements document and revised it.



             25                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Gotcha.  I worked in the
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              1        body art industry for 10 years.  I do body art and I



              2        also do permanent cosmetics.  I do feel like there is a



              3        lot of room for more that could be done with the



              4        permanent cosmetics part of your regulations.  I also



              5        kind of want to echo a little bit what she said about



              6        how much that's going to impact that part of the



              7        industry.



              8                 I would -- I think a safe estimate would be at



              9        least 50 percent of the people that get permanent



             10        cosmetics are not going to get it if they can't use any



             11        kind of numbing agent, or you're going to have people



             12        who are trying to apply it themselves, at home with



             13        hemorrhoid cream, anal numbing agents, Bactine, things



             14        like that.  I don't think the Bactine is really going to



             15        do much if they spray it on themselves, but my point is,



             16        is that I think you're going to have clients, both in



             17        body art and permanent cosmetics, that are applying



             18        these things on their own, without any instruction or



             19        guidance, and I'm just a little nervous for how that



             20        might end up impacting us or falling back the service



             21        provider.



             22                 MR. SCHMIDT:  So there are two additions in the



             23        current proposed rule set regarding numbing creams,



             24        topical anesthetics.  One, specifically, is stating that



             25        the artist cannot apply; right?  You're not allowed to
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              1        apply it.



              2                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Right.



              3                 MR. SCHMIDT:  The other rule states that you're



              4        not allowed to work on a client where it's not applied



              5        --



              6                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  How do I know --



              7                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- talking about the home artist



              8        -- or the person applying it at home before they come



              9        in.



             10                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  But let's say somebody



             11        applies it at home, like the client applies it at home.



             12        Because I know that people are going to do this,



             13        especially for body art.  They apply at home and they



             14        come in.  Sometimes you can tell the difference in the



             15        skin, but sometimes you can't.  So how do I know that



             16        they did it?  And then they're also, like -- these are



             17        regulations for licensing.  So they're not, like, bound



             18        to that licensing.



             19                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Correct.



             20                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Right.



             21                 MR. SCHMIDT:  We can't hold the general public



             22        accountable.



             23                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  So we just put it in our



             24        consent form that they agree that they haven't applied



             25        anything, and trust that they're being honest?
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              1                 MR. SAUNDERS:  That would be my move, yeah.



              2                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Okay.  I do have another



              3        question.  Is titanium, as long as it meets the ASTM



              4        standard, still allowed for piercing?



              5                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Absolutely.



              6                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Okay.



              7                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, we -- put a general rule in



              8        there for all of any of the products that are ASTM or



              9        ISO regulated for implant grade, they're all allowed.



             10        We put it as a general statement, so when new standards



             11        come out in the future, you're not hold to just the old



             12        standards; right?



             13                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Gotcha.



             14                 MR. SCHMIDT:  The only ones we added were gold



             15        niobium, because they don't have current ASTM or ISO



             16        standards.



             17                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Okay.



             18                 MR. SCHMIDT:  So we specifically listed the



             19        requirements for those because ASTM or ISO don't exist,



             20        but we still want to allow them for initial piercing.



             21                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Gotcha.



             22                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Anything else, as long as it



             23        meets the ASTM or ISO standard for implant grade, you're



             24        allowed to use.



             25                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Okay.
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              1                 MR. SAUNDERS:  One of the weird things with



              2        metals is that there are so many metals that meet the



              3        ASTM and ISO standards that don't make pretty jewelry.



              4                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Right.



              5                 MR. SAUNDERS:  So you never know when someone



              6        might introduce a new -- a new version, because they're



              7        like, "Oh, we figured out a way to make jewelry out of



              8        this."



              9                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Uh-huh; okay.  So if you



             10        don't have the work group anymore, what if there are,



             11        like, things that the industry thinks should change



             12        within the regulations?  Would we just email someone or



             13        --



             14                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  You can always reach out to



             15        bodyart@michigan.gov.



             16                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Uh-huh.



             17                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  You can also -- because it's



             18        the law, you can reach out to your local



             19        representatives, state representatives.



             20                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Uh-huh; okay.



             21                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  Because it takes an act of



             22        legislation to change the law.



             23                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Got it.  Okay.  All right.



             24        That's it.  Thank you.



             25                 MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you.
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              1                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Thank you.



              2                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Can I make a comment on



              3        something without going back up?



              4                 MS. BRENNAN:  If you'd like to.  You don't want



              5        it recorded?



              6                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  It doesn't matter.



              7                 MS. BRENNAN:  Okay.



              8                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I just want to say that



              9        we're sitting here, listening to this about topicals and



             10        clients applying them at home, and, yes, we're going to



             11        use, you know, maybe more stringent forms to make sure



             12        that we're covered, but it's not really about us; right?



             13        It's not about making sure we're covered.  It's about



             14        providing the best quality service to our clients.  Just



             15        because we're covered legally, that's not really what



             16        it's about for me.  So if my client comes in with



             17        something on, like you said, and we can't -- we -- most



             18        of the time we can know, but there are times you don't



             19        know.



             20                 If a -- if an adverse reaction happens, I'm



             21        going to be like, "Oh, I'm covered because I got an



             22        attorney and I got this form," but I don't give a crap



             23        if I'm covered.  I care about the quality of service and



             24        what happens to this person that trusted me with the



             25        service, and was forced to do something that they
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              1        shouldn't have had to do, because we can't just regulate



              2        it.  That -- that's -- you know, we talk about



              3        protecting ourselves, yeah, I think that's great, but I



              4        don't -- I do this because it's my passion.  I have a



              5        really nice daytime job that I left to come to.  I do



              6        this is as -- this is what I'm passionate about.  I



              7        don't care about how it affects me legally.  I care



              8        about how it affects the person sitting across from, you



              9        know, the person who's trusting me, the person who spent



             10        however long, saving up the money to come in to feel



             11        beautiful about because, you know, they lost their



             12        eyebrows during chemo and they never came back, or what-



             13        -- whatever we all feel unbeautiful about.



             14                 And, you know, I don't know.  I just -- yes, it



             15        protects us legally, but it's not really about the legal



             16        aspect of it.  To me, it's about the fact that we're



             17        providing a good service, and if we don't know, we can



             18        be protected legally by all the forms and attorneys we



             19        have on board, but it's not really protecting them.  And



             20        they're being put in a position to have to do something



             21        and compromise the integrity of a procedure, because we



             22        didn't do our job to make sure they had a safe



             23        alternative to it.



             24                 And I did look up the five percent.  So five



             25        percent is old -- an old information that I had, because
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              1        when -- in March 2024, the FDA came out with the four



              2        percent, it obviously changed it across the board.  So I



              3        apologize for that.



              4                 MR. SCHMIDT:  The FDA has always four percent



              5        for considering it over-the-counter; right?



              6                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.



              7                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Because that's what we're really



              8        diving into.  Over-the-counter is approved that way by



              9        the FDA.  It's still a drug product, but it's intended



             10        for self-diagnosis and use; right?



             11                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.



             12                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Because directions for use can be



             13        made so that any general lay person can understand that.



             14                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.



             15                 MR. SCHMIDT:  None of these products are



             16        approved for tattooing, cosmetic tattooing, painful



             17        procedures, or anything like that, meaning anyone's use



             18        of them, whether it's the client or yourself, is an



             19        off-label use of that product.



             20                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.



             21                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  I'm just making sure we're



             22        on the same page.



             23                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  No, I'm -- I understand



             24        that.



             25                 MR. SCHMIDT:  The liability for the artist,
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              1        talking about that section of the rule, like yourself as



              2        an artist applying it.  The problem is, it really falls



              3        under the definition in Michigan Compiled Laws, the



              4        practice of medicine, because what we're doing is either



              5        trying to relieve pain that's already happened or



              6        prevent future pain; correct?



              7                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.



              8                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Absolute intended use of these



              9        products.  The practice of medicine means the diagnosis,



             10        treatment, prevention, cure or relieving of a human



             11        disease, ailment, defect, complaint or other physical or



             12        mental condition.  Your use of that product falls under



             13        the practice of medicine, which is required that you



             14        have a license, like name M.D. or a D.O.; right?  Like,



             15        you guys are putting yourself at risk by applying this



             16        yourself.



             17                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But if it's over-the-counter



             18        -- if I have a client come in --



             19                 MR. SCHMIDT:  It's an off-label use



             20        over-the-counter.  Just because you can buy it doesn't



             21        mean you can use it; right?  Like I would assume, just



             22        because you can buy it at CVS doesn't mean you can use



             23        it in those procedures.  The risk, because --



             24                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  What about Green Soap?



             25                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Green Soap is not a drug.
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              1                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  It's listed --



              2                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Is there an SDS sheet for



              3        it?



              4                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I don't know.



              5                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Well, there should be an SDS



              6        sheet for everything.



              7                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I mean, I don't have it --



              8                 MR. SCHMIDT:  I mean, Windex --



              9                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I don't have it handy.



             10                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Right.



             11                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But I have a FDA, they



             12        recommend consumers not use -- they -- they are.  Hold



             13        on.  That was my lidocaine.  Yeah, I mean, there's a



             14        sheet on it.  It says that the FDA does not approve this



             15        for certain services, including what we all use it for,



             16        because side effects can be trouble breathing, throat



             17        swelling, fever, vomiting and skin blistering, but we



             18        all use it.  I mean, I'm just saying that just because



             19        something isn't -- the isopropyl alcohol --



             20                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  And it's approved by the



             21        health department; and it's approved by the health



             22        department.



             23                 MR. SCHMIDT:  What is?



             24                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, Green Soap.



             25                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Well, sure.  I mean, Green Soap
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              1        just Green Soap.  It's a skin cleanser.  That's



              2        regulated completely different than a drug product



              3        because of the intended use or outcome of the use of



              4        that product.



              5                 MS. BRENNAN:  Can I interrupt right now?  This



              6        is being recorded.  Can you give your name for the --



              7        Rachelle?



              8                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  My legal name is Cheryl



              9        Jones.



             10                 THE REPORTER:  With an S or a C.



             11                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  C-h.



             12                 MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you.  Go on.  I'm sorry to



             13        interrupt.



             14                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I don't have anything else



             15        to say.  I just wonder if there is any way we can find a



             16        way around it so we're just not compromising the



             17        integrity of the people that come in that will use it



             18        anyway.



             19                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Sure.  One comment that -- with



             20        -- with the current state of things, not having on a



             21        release form -- let's say tomorrow we're just like, "You



             22        know what?  Take out all the numbing stuff," you still



             23        might want to have that on your release form, because



             24        you don't know if people come in having put it on



             25        beforehand anyway.  We're assuming --
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              1                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  It's already on my release



              2        form.



              3                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Exactly.  So it's not really a



              4        big change, but, like, doubling up on something like



              5        that could be dangerous.  So it just makes sense, not



              6        just from -- you know, you were making the point that



              7        you want to -- you want to be able to do numbing agents



              8        for the client's purposes, and I understand where you're



              9        coming from.  The other -- but protecting yourself is



             10        also protecting the client; right?



             11                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Oh, for sure.



             12                 MR. SAUNDERS:  So, you know, making sure you're



             13        not doubling up on things like that, I think is well



             14        worth your time.



             15                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Yeah, it's already on my



             16        form.  My -- my thing was just that it's not -- most of



             17        us don't go about this just looking at -- obviously, we



             18        have to keep the legal aspect in mind and stay up within



             19        the parameters of the law, but it's also about, like,



             20        our clients and, you know, what's best for them and --



             21        and all the way from making sure they're not doubling



             22        up, to make sure they're comfortable during the



             23        procedure if possible.



             24                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Sure.



             25                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I mean, is there any way
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              1        around -- I don't mean around, like, illegally around,



              2        but is there any consideration that can be given to any



              3        of this?



              4                 MR. SCHMIDT:  I mean, there is a lot of



              5        conversation about this, and the two rules that are in



              6        the current proposed rule set really isn't something



              7        that was made up specific for body art.  It's really a



              8        compilation of all the existing legal framework between



              9        the state of Michigan, the FDA and what everything



             10        means.  And it's really just the consolidation and the



             11        clarification.



             12                 All of these existing legal frameworks exist.



             13        They've been around for a long time.  There's no



             14        proposed change.  Talking with the FDA, they have no



             15        future plans on ever approving these for use of these



             16        procedures because of a whole lot of things as an



             17        over-the-counter product.  And once you change something



             18        from the directions for use -- right? -- like, you have



             19        a lot of bad products out there, number one; right?



             20                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Absolutely.



             21                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Obviously, the ones that are too



             22        strong, the ones that specifically say "For tattooing,"



             23        those are in violation of FDA standards.



             24                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.



             25                 MR. SCHMIDT:  They're not allowed to put that
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              1        on there.  So what you're using, or what your client is



              2        using, is, yeah, it's an anorectal drug product.  It's



              3        some other type of topical anesthetic for pain, bug



              4        bites, whatever it is.  None of these are regulated



              5        because they're not considered safe for tattooing;



              6        right?  They've never been proven to be safe for



              7        tattooing per the FDA.



              8                 So all of these are the two new rules.  It's



              9        just existing legal framework that, even if we got rid



             10        of it, that legal framework still exists.



             11                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But the FDA, the sheet that



             12        I have, says, "Do not use OTC pain relief products with



             13        more than four percent lidocaine on your skin.  Do not



             14        apply OTC pain relief products heavily over large areas



             15        of skin or irritated.  Do not wrap a treated area with"



             16        -- I mean, they're pretty specific on what they say they



             17        consider safe because, I mean, it's on their sheet.



             18                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Right.



             19                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So what if we use four



             20        percent or less?  What if we don't use it on a large



             21        area of skin?  What if we don't wrap it or dress it?



             22        Then we're --



             23                 MR. SCHMIDT:  I'm just letting you know that's



             24        still an off-label use.  They're talking about products



             25        because directions for use are approved in a monograph
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              1        by the FDA with specific statements that you're allowed



              2        to use for directions for use.



              3                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Okay.  But what I'm saying



              4        is, if they printed this and said that this is what



              5        they're recommending for consumers, and this is in -- on



              6        a sheet for permanent cosmetics.  This is what they're



              7        talking about in this sheet.  It's not like any other --



              8        and they've actually listed some companies that have



              9        mislabeling, not use those.



             10                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, there is a bunch of warning



             11        letters on --



             12                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Yeah.  But I'm -- like, this



             13        isn't talking about anything else except permanent



             14        cosmetics.  It's saying that these -- these are the



             15        things that they recommend -- recommend when using their



             16        products for permanent cosmetic.



             17                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, those warning letters, that



             18        was for tattooing, permanent cosmetic, the whole kit and



             19        caboodle.  It was not specifically just to cosmetic



             20        tattooing.



             21                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.  But I'm just saying,



             22        I mean, what if we -- what if we were allowed to do



             23        that, follow what the FDA recommended?



             24                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Are you following the directions



             25        for use that's on a label on a product?
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              1                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  What do you mean?



              2                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Like, if you're applying a



              3        topical anesthetic, are you following the directions



              4        from use for what it's being used for?



              5                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I mean, the directions that



              6        I read on my packaging, yes.  But can I sit here and



              7        tell you that I read the directions that are printed on



              8        the packaging -- like, packaging, just like anything



              9        else?  I mean, I don't know who printed those and I



             10        didn't know -- I don't know what research went into



             11        that.  I have to trust the company that I'm buying it



             12        from.  I have to do my research on reputable companies



             13        and repeatable products.



             14                 MR. SCHMIDT:  I mean, all I can tell you is



             15        that there is no product, over-the-counter, whatever,



             16        that's approved for use in tattooing, painful



             17        procedures, things like that.  So if the directions for



             18        use are telling you that, that's a new drug or a



             19        misbranded product, because it says that.  Otherwise



             20        you're not following the directions for use on that



             21        product, because it's going to say, "For anorectal



             22        disorders," or "The temporary relief of pain and itching



             23        associated with bug bites," or any of --



             24                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.



             25                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- those other things.  Like,
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              1        that -- that's the legal hiccup we're in.



              2                 MR. SAUNDERS:  And then the other --



              3                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I don't understand, because



              4        this is addressing that very thing.  This -- this --



              5        this FDA news release is addressing topical use for



              6        cosmetic procedures.  And they -- it's no -- you're



              7        right.  It's not just permanent making procedures.  It's



              8        microdermabrasion, laser removal, tattooing, piercing.



              9        So it's -- it's talking about all of them, but it's



             10        saying, "Some of these products are labeled to contain



             11        ingredients such as lidocaine."  So basically, people



             12        are saying that they have a lower percentage than they



             13        actually have.



             14                 So they're saying, "These are the parameters



             15        that we say are safe to use."  And it -- I mean, it's



             16        very, very clear what it says.  It says, "Four percent."



             17        It says, "Not a large area."  It says, "Don't wrap or



             18        use a dressing."  If I follow these rules, am I breaking



             19        the law?



             20                 MR. SCHMIDT:  That would be, like we talked



             21        about, the definition of practice of medicine, but



             22        especially because, once again, the FDA approves



             23        products; right?



             24                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.



             25                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Off-label use, meaning you're
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              1        using it for something other than what it's FDA approved



              2        for, is also the practice of medicine, and that falls



              3        under healthcare providers; right?  Like they -- doctors



              4        get to do that because they can take a client history.



              5        They know their medical conditions.  They can actually



              6        provide a dosage of grams or milliliters per square



              7        meter of skin area on broken or non-intact skin, like,



              8        "Oh, those things need a prescription," because it's an



              9        off-label use.



             10                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.  I mean, the bottle



             11        that I have does -- does say -- I mean, it does give me



             12        the instructions for how to use it.  I, actually, don't



             13        need to use it for the amount of time that it allows me,



             14        up to five minutes.  Usually, after two minutes, I'm



             15        doing great.



             16                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  I'm telling you, if that



             17        product says, on the box, on the label, that -- to use



             18        it before or during the tattoo or cosmetic tattoo



             19        procedure, that product is in violation of FDA standards



             20        and would be considered a new drug because we changed



             21        its directions for use, or, if it's just represented



             22        that way on the website, but the bottle is fine, that



             23        would be a misbranding violation, per the FDA.



             24                 In all of their monographs regarding all of



             25        these products, tattooing, painful procedures, cosmetic
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              1        tattooing, microblading, whatever we want for out there,



              2        none of these have been approved as approved uses for



              3        any of these products, per all of the monographs that



              4        are in the Code of Federal Registers for the FDA.  So



              5        it's either a bad product or you're using an approved



              6        product in an off-label manner.



              7                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But I'm saying I don't know



              8        that.  I don't know that when I read FDA document,



              9        telling me these are the companies not to use.  I'm not



             10        using any of those companies.  I'm not using any of the



             11        -- the list of companies that they sent out letters to.



             12                 MR. SCHMIDT:  That's not an all-encompassing



             13        list with bad products that are on the market.  Those



             14        are just the ones that they went to their manufacturing



             15        facility, found the violations.  And then warning



             16        letters are actually the second step of FDA enforcement.



             17                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.



             18                 MR. SCHMIDT:  FDA enforcement starts with



             19        potentially, like, just compliance from the company.



             20                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.



             21                 MR. SCHMIDT:  So if they don't get that



             22        compliance, then it's a formal warning letter.  So all



             23        of the other things that happen behind the scenes, you



             24        don't see on their website.  It's not put out --



             25                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.
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              1                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- for all that information.



              2                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But I'm saying, you know,



              3        me, just being Tammy Hadley from Springport, Michigan, I



              4        don't have an attorney on, you know, my payroll that I



              5        can send to go out and do all these things.  I count on



              6        things like this -- I mean, I count on things like this



              7        to figure out what the laws and rules are, so that I can



              8        make sure I'm staying within the parameters.



              9                 MR. SCHMIDT:  That is why we put those in the



             10        rules, is to let you guys know, with all the existing



             11        legal framework between the state and the federal



             12        government, those are your two options for using these



             13        products for these procedures without being in violation



             14        of something else.



             15                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So is there any way we can



             16        get around that?  Is there any rule --



             17                 MR. SCHMIDT:  I mean, we don't have -- we don't



             18        have the ability to change FDA standards or the state's



             19        medical definition for the practice of medicine.  We are



             20        just -- we only have jurisdiction over the body art



             21        rules.



             22                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Then, why are we even here?



             23                 MR. SCHMIDT:  To talk about the body art rules.



             24                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But I'm saying, if we're --



             25        if these are the rules and these are the laws, like, how

�

                                                                             35







              1        is it that we're even meeting about this, if it is,



              2        like, a solid stop?



              3                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  They haven't been finalized



              4        yet.



              5                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Correct.



              6                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  This is the draft.



              7                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Yep, they're still proposed.



              8                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But you're saying that the



              9        FDA makes those.  We don't even have the right to have



             10        any say in any of them?  Then why are we having a



             11        meeting?



             12                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Well, there's --



             13                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Do you understand what I'm



             14        saying?  I'm not trying to be, like --



             15                 MR. SAUNDERS:  This is one specific rule that



             16        you're talking about that we put on there for



             17        clarification purposes.  Because I think most tattooers,



             18        most permanent cosmetic artists, don't understand that



             19        they'd be in violation of the instructions for use.



             20        They don't quite get that part of not just their



             21        industry, but, like, just the way the FDA and federal



             22        government work.



             23                 Let's say, for example, this group said, "No,



             24        it's totally fine to use that."  We would be factually



             25        wrong, because we don't actually have any control over
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              1        it.  The reason it's in our rules is because we want



              2        people to know, so that they know what the rules are.



              3        We -- anything that we write on these -- in these



              4        documents, wouldn't change the framework that actually



              5        exists already, that we have no control over.  That's



              6        specifically for this product.  So there's others things



              7        in these rules that we do have control over, but this is



              8        just a clarification.



              9                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And I understand that.  But



             10        what I'm saying is, if we don't have any control over



             11        it, and I'm -- and you're telling me that the FDA is the



             12        one that makes the rule, and I have this right here



             13        telling me what I can and cannot use -- I understand



             14        what you're saying, just because the bottle says that



             15        doesn't mean that's really what it is.  But, like, that



             16        could be that way with any product.  Just because the



             17        labeling says that, it doesn't -- it doesn't mean what



             18        it really is; correct?



             19                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Correct.



             20                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But I'm saying, if I follow



             21        what this F- -- this is off the FDA website.  If I



             22        follow what it says, how am I doing anything -- because



             23        that would have to supersede this meeting; correct?  I'm



             24        not -- am I --



             25                 MR. SCHMIDT:  I'm not sure.
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              1                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Pardon?



              2                 MR. SCHMIDT:  I'm not sure what you were



              3        asking.



              4                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I'm asking if I -- if we



              5        meet here today, and you're telling -- you're telling us



              6        that we cannot change the rule or the law about it,



              7        because it's an FDA -- you know, it's -- the FDA



              8        controls it, basically, and I follow what the FDA says,



              9        how am I -- how am I breaking the rules?



             10                 And if I understand correctly, I'm breaking the



             11        rules because, just because the label says it, doesn't



             12        mean it's true.  But I don't -- I don't know that.  I



             13        mean, I wouldn't -- if a label says something and I buy



             14        it from a reputable company, I want to believe it.  Just



             15        like any other product, I go to the store,.  I read the



             16        label.  I buy it.  I don't think about it.  I don't --



             17                 MR. SAUNDERS:  If the label were to say that it



             18        was okay for tattooing --



             19                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Okay.



             20                 MR. SAUNDERS:  -- it would not be a reputable



             21        product.  It can't say that because you would need a



             22        brand new 510(k) number that doesn't exist.  So --



             23                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But the FDA is saying I can



             24        use four percent --



             25                MR. SAUNDERS:  If you're a doctor.
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              1                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  It doesn't say a doctor.



              2        This -- this does not say anything about me being a



              3        doctor.



              4                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Again, this is the way FDA meets



              5        Michigan law -- right? -- the way Michigan law defines



              6        practicing medicine.  Again, we don't have any control



              7        over that.



              8                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So this document off the FDA



              9        website is nothing?  It never says any -- it doesn't



             10        anything about me being a physician, a doctor, an



             11        anybody.



             12                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Because that's talking about



             13        over-the-counter --



             14                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  It's a --



             15                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- meaning for self-diagnosis and



             16        use.  That -- anything with regards to the FDA standard



             17        is going to really be your clients using that product,



             18        the consumer.



             19                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Okay.



             20                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Over-the-counter is for



             21        self-diagnosis use.  Specific to the artist or the



             22        technician, whatever, using it on a client, that's where



             23        it falls under the practice of medicine; right?  That



             24        almost has nothing to do with FDA standards at that



             25        point in time.  That's talking about the practice of
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              1        medicine.  Where we really start diving down the rabbit



              2        hole with the FDA requirements and standards is when



              3        we're talking about the products that your clients might



              4        misuse on before getting the procedure.



              5                 And we know that no product is approved, no



              6        numbing -- if it creates a numbing sensation, it is not



              7        approved in the United States for use before or during a



              8        tattoo, painful procedure, cosmetic tattoo, any of those



              9        things that you see out there with bad products that put



             10        that on their label, specifically.



             11                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So I have a question for



             12        you:  It can't be like a lidocaine, and it can't be like



             13        a tetracaine or a benzocaine or anything like that,



             14        because they're considered over-the-counter, what about



             15        an all natural product that is not FDA regulated or



             16        isn't -- doesn't -- I mean, what about something like



             17        that?  I mean, I don't have anything, but, I mean --



             18                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Like Biotat?



             19                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Pardon?



             20                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Biotat?



             21                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.  What -- what about



             22        something that isn't regulated like that?  Because then



             23        it's not considered an OTC, then it's not in violation.



             24                 MR. SCHMIDT:  I mean, in the United States, the



             25        FDA basically regulates everything to some degree or
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              1        another.  What was the name of the --



              2                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Biotat.



              3                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  While we're looking that up,



              4        there is a way around it, and that is getting a



              5        prescription.  So your -- especially in your case, your



              6        patients or clients --



              7                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.



              8                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  -- can get a prescription.



              9                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  So if they get a



             10        prescription, they have to apply it?  Because wouldn't



             11        we still be practicing medicine if we apply it and they



             12        --



             13                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Yes, we would be.



             14                 MR. SCHMIDT:  There is two rules that are in



             15        the proposed set.  One is with regards to the client



             16        application, in which case they would need to get a



             17        prescription.  They would follow the directions for use



             18        that a doctor gave them.



             19                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  We don't put it on?



             20                 MR. SCHMIDT:  You don't put it on them at all.



             21        The other rule is with regards to if the artist were to



             22        apply it, and that's where it falls -- there's another



             23        set of rules in the state of Michigan for delegation of



             24        duties by a physician to another healthcare



             25        professional.  So that's going to be more along the
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              1        lines of, you're working at a med spa with a doctor on



              2        staff -- med spas are kind of gray to begin with -- and



              3        they would still write a prescription, but they would



              4        delegate their duty as a doctor, where they're allowed



              5        to apply to yourself or another healthcare professional.



              6                 And there's a whole other set of rules in the



              7        state of Michigan for delegation of duties by a



              8        physician, so you would have to be in compliance with



              9        those.



             10                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  (Inaudible) --



             11                 THE REPORTER:  Ms. Orrico?



             12                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Are doctors actually going



             13        to write presents for people to write tattoos?



             14                 MS. BRENNAN:  Just a minute.



             15                 THE REPORTER:  I apologize.  If you're going to



             16        speak, can you possibly maybe move this way, just so the



             17        microphone picks you up?



             18                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Yeah.



             19                 THE REPORTER:  I just want to make sure I have



             20        everything on the record.  Thank you.  Sorry.



             21                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  No, you're fine.  Do we



             22        think that doctors are actually going to write



             23        prescriptions for numbing agents for people to get



             24        tattoos?  Do they have the knowledge of, like --



             25                MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  No, they don't.
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              1                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  This is off the cuff, but my



              2        guess would be that if it was something that was



              3        necessary and --



              4                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Areola tattoos, cancer



              5        related.



              6                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  -- they felt that the numbing



              7        cream was going to be safe in the procedure --



              8                 MS. BRENNAN:  One at a time, please.



              9                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  -- that they would then --



             10                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Most doctors will do



             11        anything --



             12                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  -- do it.



             13                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- for money.  It doesn't



             14        even matter.  They'll do anything for money.  That's



             15        kind of -- or what this whole thing is about.



             16                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  I just don't -- I don't



             17        know if they would think, like, a tattoo is necessary.



             18        I don't know.  I just -- I feel like part we're just not



             19        going to be able to use it at all.



             20                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So I would like to say



             21        something real quick.  I just -- this is just a little



             22        story of something that happened to me last year.  So I



             23        had -- I don't -- I do not do permanent makeup



             24        procedures on women that are actively receiving chemo.



             25        I will not do it.  I don't think it's safe.  I can have

�

                                                                             43







              1        16,000 doctors' notes.  I'm not going to do it.  I'm



              2        either going to do it before they start or 30 to 60 days



              3        after they are deemed cancer free.  That's just my



              4        personal -- how I feel it's safe.



              5                 So I had a lady that really wanted her eyebrows



              6        done, and she called and called, and begged and begged



              7        and begged, and she was in the middle of chemo, and she



              8        brought in a doctor's note.  And I told her I -- and the



              9        doctor's note said that I was allowed to do it.  I do



             10        not, in any way, shape or form, think I'm more educated



             11        than a physician when it comes to many things, but I



             12        think the physician has no idea what I do.



             13                 So I said to her, "I'll make you a deal.  I'm



             14        going to call this physician" -- it was her neighbor, by



             15        the way -- "I'm going to call -- I'm going to ask him a



             16        couple questions, and if he can answer my questions I



             17        will do this for you."  She said, "Okay."  So we called



             18        Mark up.  We had a nice conversation with him.  He said,



             19        "Well, I thought she was just getting makeup.  I didn't



             20        really understand why she had to have prescription for



             21        it, but she just said it was just a little makeup.  It



             22        was just going to last a little bit longer than just,



             23        like, putting blush on."  So had I -- had I have done it



             24        based on -- he doesn't care.  And I don't mean he



             25        doesn't care about her as a person or me as a body art
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              1        facility owner or permanent makeup artist, but he



              2        doesn't know.  He's saving people's lives.  He doesn't



              3        really care about a little makeup.  It's just little



              4        makeup.  He just had no idea.



              5                 And I would have -- after I explained it to



              6        him, he's like, "Absolutely not.  No, she cannot have



              7        this done."  But I had a prescription in my hand, so I



              8        was legally covered.  But, I mean, I would never have



              9        done that.  I just -- I think there -- I understand --



             10        and I -- and I'll be the first to say we, as tattoo



             11        artists and permanent makeup artists, need to be far



             12        more regulated.  Our facilities are very regulated, but



             13        I fix horrific things every single day on all kinds of



             14        people.



             15                 However, I don't think that targeting -- just



             16        saying, "Okay.  No topicals at all because this is the



             17        rule."  I think there should be -- I don't want to say a



             18        gray area, but there should be something that we can do



             19        to keep people safe, or things like that are going to



             20        happen.



             21                 You're right, a doctor will pretty much write a



             22        prescription for anything, depending on, "Is he your



             23        neighbor?", "Do you know him?"  It -- I mean, there's a



             24        -- you know, people self-prescribe things to their



             25        doctors and tell them these are their symptoms that

�

                                                                             45







              1        aren't, and do a visit over the Zoom and get a



              2        prescription for whatever, but that's not the point to



              3        me.  The point to me is that they don't even -- a



              4        physician doesn't necessarily know what I do, and it's



              5        not really his job to know, just like it's not my job to



              6        know what he does.



              7                 I have to be the professional in my industry.



              8        I have to put my research in.  I have to take that time



              9        off work, you know, to come to meetings like this and



             10        have my voice be heard.  It's my job to know my



             11        profession, not his, and his to know mine.  And he 100



             12        percent -- I had a prescription in my hand as he's



             13        telling me, "Well, it's just makeup.  I thought it was



             14        kind of silly anyway, but that's exactly what my



             15        prescription pad says."  I am a hundred percent allowed



             16        to do it.  He didn't even know what I was doing.



             17                 Once I it explained to him, "Oh, no; no; no."



             18        He's like, "It's a hard stop."  But he didn't know.  He



             19        just didn't know.  He's saving people's lives,



             20        administering chemo medication, like, you know, working



             21        20 hours a day.  He didn't know.  She just, you know --



             22        that she lost both of her breasts, and she wanted areola



             23        tattoos and eyebrow tattoos.  And if that was what was



             24        going to make her happy, he was going to write it down



             25        on a prescription pad and send her over to me.
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              1                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  But he's not writing a



              2        prescription for the procedure.  He's writing a



              3        prescription for the lidocaine, if he feels it's safe.



              4                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Her point is, is that they



              5        don't have a good understanding of what we even do and



              6        --



              7                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.



              8                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  -- how invasive it is.  I



              9        mean, half the people that --



             10                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  What layer of skin --



             11                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  -- (inaudible) don't --



             12        they do not understand what it is.



             13                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.



             14                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  So it's just kind of -- it



             15        makes you a little nervous to trust the doctor has the



             16        knowledge to make an informed decision on their



             17        prescription, and that it's going to be done in a way



             18        that's safe to use in those areas.



             19                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And that the client is going



             20        to give the correct information to the doctor to be able



             21        to make the informed decision.  Then the doctor writes



             22        the prescription for my client, and my client comes in



             23        and it says, "Apply the size of the nickel and let it



             24        sit for 15 minutes," but she's really scared of this



             25        procedure, so she's been applying it for the last -- I
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              1        don't know -- nine hours, and now she's over-medicated



              2        herself that I have no knowledge of, but I got this



              3        piece of paper keeping me safe.  But she's not safe.



              4        She's not safe, but I can't put it on, which I would



              5        know the right amount, and I would know why.  You know,



              6        you know how many people think if you use more, it's



              7        better; more -- more numbing, it's better.



              8                 It's not better.  I mean, it has a chemical



              9        reaction on the skin, like anything does that you put



             10        on.  Baby lotion has a reaction with the skin.  It's



             11        just -- but clients don't know that, because they're not



             12        educated to know it.  So now they're armed with a



             13        prescription that they think is safe because they're a



             14        physician it with them, and they're administering high



             15        doses for extended periods of time, and we're right back



             16        to where we were before.  The answer, I don't think, is



             17        with the physician.  I think it's with informed, caring



             18        people that are professionals in their industry, making



             19        decisions that we know are not safe.  I don't care I had



             20        a doctor's note or not.  I sent her away, crying her



             21        eyes out because she couldn't get my service done, but I



             22        knew it was for her benefit.



             23                 And I know that because I'm a professional, and



             24        I know that because I've studied it.  It was not good



             25        for her, but he wrote her a prescription to do it.  And
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              1        you're right, not for the -- the anesthetic itself, for



              2        me to be able to do it, which is kind of even a bigger



              3        deal.  Because a lot of people would have just said,



              4        "Well, I'm going to do it."  You know, I would have --



              5        by the time she was done with eyebrows and areolas, I



              6        would have walked out $2,000 in my pocket, had I been



              7        somebody that charges, which I don't for cancer



              8        patients, ever.  But it just -- the whole -- the whole



              9        point of it is that we're putting something in



             10        somebody's hands that don't have the knowledge of what



             11        we do, and how can we get past that?  You know, that we



             12        had a work group for years that didn't even consist of a



             13        permanent makeup artist.  We're having people make rules



             14        about things that affect us that don't even do it every



             15        day.



             16                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  How do you know they're not



             17        putting it on now and then you're double -- doubling it



             18        up?



             19                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I 100 percent do not.  I ask



             20        questions, a lot of questions.  I have a light and a



             21        magnifier that I use to look down into the skin.  I test



             22        the skin to see if there's any kind of reactiveness.  If



             23        the product that they're using contains any kind of



             24        epinephrine, the skin would look white because blood



             25        flow is constricted.
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              1                 I mean, there are things that I can do to



              2        really put it educated attempt to make sure that they're



              3        not using something on their skin, and a hundred percent



              4        I do.  I examine all skin before I ever touch it.  I see



              5        what elasticity is in it.  You know, I don't just start.



              6        But -- and I have a conversation with them.  I also let



              7        people know, "If you have used something on the skin



              8        prior to be starting this service, you have to tell me



              9        or it's going to have an adverse effect.  Don't just



             10        look at it on a piece of paper when you hear my waiting



             11        room, filling it out.  I'm looking through the eye.  I'm



             12        going to ask you, because I need to know."  And if I



             13        think that it has, I reschedule them.  "Something's



             14        going on with your skin right now.  I'm not sure what it



             15        was.  I don't know if you've consumed some alcohol, used



             16        to be product on your skin."



             17                 Obviously, I blame them for it, but I just tell



             18        them, "This doesn't look like I want it to look before I



             19        work on this.  Let's schedule you out in two weeks, you



             20        know, be really hyper-aware of what you're putting it on



             21        your skin at this time, and when you come back in two



             22        weeks, take a look at it."  It always looks good,



             23        because they were lying.  But it's not their job to get



             24        past me.  It's my job as a professional to know what to



             25        look for.  Because I've thousands clients, I know what
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              1        to look for, and I'm not going to put anybody in an



              2        unsafe situation.  That's why, after eight years, I'm



              3        still in business, because I actually care.



              4                 MS. BRENNAN:  Any further comments?



              5                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  I have some questions.  May



              6        I?



              7                 MS. BRENNAN:  Absolutely.



              8                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  I'm sorry, but what --



              9                     (Off the record interruption)



             10                 MS. BRENNAN:  Please spell your name.



             11                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  My name is Cheryl,



             12        C-h-e-r-y-l, last name is Jones.  I'm tattoo artist of



             13        27 years.  I'm the person who purled the letter to



             14        everybody in Michigan back in 2005, prompting the body



             15        art rules and regulations of 2010, and attended meetings



             16        at Wayne County for about a year, and was part of



             17        recommending Chris Lachance to the board for, you know



             18        -- anyways, to make sure that the body art ordinance got



             19        passed.



             20                 So I'm very, very familiar with everything, you



             21        know.  I wish I had my notes with me.  Okay.  So, for



             22        starters, I can't point out exactly where all of these



             23        parts are in, but I'm sure you have the numbers right in



             24        front you.



             25                 My first question is, what prompted this, the
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              1        rule changes all of a sudden?  What prompted it?



              2                 MS. BRENNAN:  On a legal basis, there never



              3        were any rules, never.



              4                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Sure.



              5                 MS. BRENNAN:  This is the first time.  And what



              6        prompted it?  Which ones are you talking about?



              7                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well --



              8                 MS. BRENNAN:  We had a 2010, 2019.



              9                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Sure; sure.  Okay.



             10                 MS. BRENNAN:  Yeah.



             11                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  I'm -- I'm talking about the



             12        recent draft.  I'm really interested in what -- what



             13        prompted the draft for the regulation of the type of



             14        tattoo machines that we currently use?  Who -- whose



             15        idea --



             16                 MR. SCHMIDT:  I'm going to let -- I saw bunch



             17        of that online, like, last week.  We are -- that rule



             18        does not limit you to rotary pens only.  That's



             19        referring to the cartridge needing a backflow prevention



             20        requirement.



             21                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  It says, "Rotary pens only."



             22                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  It does say, "Rotary pens



             23        only."



             24                 MR. SCHMIDT:  No, it says, "Only rotary pens



             25        with appropriate backflow prevention can be used."
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              1        That's only talking about the requirement for rotary



              2        pens, that does not disallow coils or other frame rotary



              3        pens.  That does not disallow --



              4                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Coil.



              5                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- coils or other framed rotary



              6        that's used, like a traditional grip, tube and tip,



              7        needle with needle bar.  That does not limit that



              8        whatsoever.



              9                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.  With backflow



             10        prevention?



             11                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Correct.



             12                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  And, again, what -- what



             13        prompted this?  I mean, I'm sure you guys aren't real --



             14                 MR. SCHMIDT:  So if you go back to the



             15        original, the current requirements, it actually says in



             16        there that rotary pens can only be used for cosmetic



             17        tattooing procedures, that traditional -- in the current



             18        rules, traditional tattooing with a rotary pen and



             19        cartridge is actually not allowed.  So we obviously



             20        needed to get rid of that; right?  That's the most



             21        common tattoo machine used today.  But we did need to



             22        include the requirements, because most of those aren't



             23        made in a way that can be broken down and sterilized,



             24        reprocessed, like your other equipment.



             25                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Correct.
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              1                 MR. SCHMIDT:  So we have to have that internal



              2        membrane for backflow prevention, so that the machine



              3        then just needs to be cleaned and disinfected and



              4        covered during use.  Without that requirement, you would



              5        have to reprocess and sterilize, because backflow would



              6        get into the machine.  You can't then reuse that on



              7        another client, unless it's been reprocessed.



              8                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Absolutely.  But it much



              9        more is a cartridge issue, and making sure that you have



             10        that membrane in the cartridge, other than like the,



             11        like -- the rules were stating that you wanted a



             12        certificate for proof that the rotary machine doesn't --



             13                 MR. SCHMIDT:  So there two things.  There's



             14        either manufacturing proof that backflow prevention



             15        exists and that it's been tested to prevent backflow, or



             16        we added a guide for field testing where you, as the



             17        artist, can test it out, or the health department, if



             18        they wanted to take a cartridge and just test it very



             19        quickly to make sure that it provides backflow, because



             20        there are a lot of bad products on there, whether they



             21        have a membrane, but it's not constructed in a way that



             22        accurate -- like it actually prevents backflow, or



             23        there's ones that just have springs and rubber bands on



             24        inside, that that's going to then contaminate your



             25        machine, which would then have to be fully reprocessed
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              1        and sterilized, which it can't be because it's



              2        electrical.



              3                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Right.  Which -- which I



              4        fully understand in regards to the cartridges.  But as



              5        far as, like, having a machine that -- that where -- I



              6        mean, you know, field testing is fine.  That makes more



              7        sense.  But when you're talking about rotary machines



              8        and about, like, backflow certificates and getting that



              9        from some of these manufacturers, like, you'll be able



             10        to get that from the very, very, very expensive, high



             11        end manufacturers, but, you know, to buy an affordable



             12        machine that, you know -- so everyone has access to be



             13        able to do this.  I mean, some of these companies don't



             14        have these, you know, manufacturing backflow.  They



             15        don't -- they don't come with the machines.  I mean, we



             16        can't.  You know, a lot of these machines are made in



             17        China, you know.  I mean, even the machines here are



             18        made in China.  They just, like -- it's just the company



             19        owners.



             20                 I mean, it doesn't -- one of my concerns is,



             21        for some reason, in the rules and regulations you have



             22        listed the American -- the medical devices -- the



             23        American Medical Device Institute, is listed on there.



             24        I -- unfortunately, don't have my notes, but --



             25                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, there's a standard in here
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              1        which is ANSI and --



              2                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.



              3                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- AAMI.



              4                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Correct.



              5                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- for ST79.



              6                 MS. BRENNAN:  Do you want to look at the rules?



              7                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Right.  Thank you so much.



              8                 MS. BRENNAN:  Sure.



              9                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yes.  Okay.  So here's the



             10        issue:  There's a couple of things.  This is a slippery



             11        slope.  The -- I don't understand what this American --



             12        wait, where is it?  I'm looking at the definitions here.



             13        Okay.  The American Society for Testing Materials



             14        International, nope, that's not the one.  It's the other



             15        one.



             16                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Association for the



             17        Advancement of Medical Instrumentation.



             18                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Thank you.  Association for



             19        the Advancement of Medical Instrumentation.  I would



             20        like to say, first of all, 90 percent of all the medical



             21        instrumentation that is used in hospitals and surgery,



             22        90 percent of it isn't even approved by the FDA.  It's



             23        not even looked at.  It's really terrible.  The



             24        situation is awful in the medical field.



             25                 I don't believe that the Medical-industrial
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              1        Complex should have anything to do with our job



              2        whatsoever.  Our job is -- is -- we don't -- this isn't



              3        like a -- a medical procedure that's taking place.  We



              4        are penetrating the skin at a 2.5 to maybe 3.8 at best.



              5        Like, an allergy -- a shot, like, a basic subcutaneous



              6        injection goes way deeper into your skin than -- than a



              7        tattoo needle.  I mean, we're grazing the skin.



              8                 The problem is, when you have groups like this



              9        medical apparatus, which they're doing a terrible job



             10        regulating their own industry -- the problem that you



             11        have is, once you allow the Medical-industrial Complex



             12        to infiltrate your -- your job, they don't go away.



             13        It's -- it's a very slippery slope.  Like -- like, they



             14        -- they shouldn't be able to have dominion over what we



             15        do.  We're not doing a medical procedure, so I don't



             16        understand why they're even listed here at all.  Because



             17        the problem is, if this group is allowed to -- to make



             18        regulations for the machines that we use, it's a very



             19        slippery slope.



             20                 Then -- then at what point are they going to



             21        say, "Well, you have to have a medical license to use



             22        these medical devices."  You know, they're not medical



             23        devices.  These people shouldn't have their hands on it



             24        at all.  They shouldn't be involved in it.  Their names



             25        shouldn't be on here.  Why -- why are they?  I'm really
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              1        confused.



              2                 MR. SCHMIDT:  So we have to put in the



              3        definitions basically anything we use in the body of the



              4        rules; right?  That's why it's in the definition.  The



              5        only reference to ANSI and AAMI in the actual rules in



              6        the body is just with regards to sterilization



              7        procedures.



              8                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.  So it's --



              9                 MR. SCHMIDT:  It's nothing --



             10                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  It has nothing to do --



             11                 MR. SCHMIDT:  There's nothing to do with



             12        performing body art.  It is just with regards to



             13        autoclave sterilization and spore testing.



             14                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.



             15                 MR. SCHMIDT:  That's it.



             16                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  All right.



             17                 MR. SCHMIDT:  That is the only reference --



             18                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  My concern is that they were



             19        kind of -- were considering our tattoo machines --



             20                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Nope; nope.



             21                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- as medical devices, the



             22        --



             23                 MR. SCHMIDT:  No, it has nothing to do with the



             24        tattoo machine whatsoever.



             25                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  The language wasn't very --
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              1                 MR. SCHMIDT:  So we have to put -- like I said,



              2        we have to put in the definitions, especially, like --



              3                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah.



              4                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- trade names that in the body,



              5        we put ANSI slash AAMI.  We have to define what those



              6        are; right?



              7                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Sure.



              8                 MR. SCHMIDT:  That's just a legal requirement.



              9                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Sure.



             10                 MR. SCHMIDT:  In the body, the only reference



             11        is with regards to the sterilization, like, at the



             12        facility.  And that's just going to be with regards to



             13        your autoclaves, sterilization procedures and spore



             14        testing.  That's it.  Has nothing to do with performing



             15        any tattoo, body piercing, cosmetic tattoo.



             16                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, I was --



             17                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Has nothing to do --



             18                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  I was speaking mostly of our



             19        machines as the --



             20                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, it has nothing to do with



             21        --



             22                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  With the machines?



             23                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- the machines themselves.  It



             24        has to do with any equipment that you're going to



             25        reprocess.
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              1                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.



              2                 MR. SCHMIDT:  And they're not considered by the



              3        FDA medical devices, nor --



              4                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.



              5                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- do I have any inkling --



              6                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  I didn't think that they



              7        were.



              8                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- that they will, no.



              9                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.  And then, also there



             10        -- there is another rule in here, where it states that



             11        if a physician is performing any of these procedures



             12        that we perform procedures, licensed body -- body art



             13        facility --



             14                 MR. SCHMIDT:  So that's with regards to being



             15        exempt; correct?



             16                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah, physician exemption.



             17                 MR. SCHMIDT:  So that's rule 13103, if you're



             18        looking it up.



             19                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah; uh-huh.  "Do not apply



             20        procedure that utilizes -- yeah -- patient's treatment



             21        performed under the controlled direction, on-site



             22        supervisor who's licensed in the state."  Why -- why are



             23        physicians getting an exemption?  Because, I mean --



             24                 MR. SCHMIDT:  That's just an exemption from



             25        needing a license.  That's not an exemption from being
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              1        in compliance with everything.  They just don't need



              2        that extra license in the state of Michigan.



              3                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Why?



              4                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Because they already have the



              5        medical license, their license to practice medicine.



              6                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  Also, it says it has to be part



              7        of patient treatment.  So they're not going to get a



              8        horse tattoo on their arm from a physician.  That's not



              9        allowed.  It's got to be part of patient treatment.  So,



             10        like, what you're doing, that -- a physician could be



             11        doing that.



             12                 MR. SAUNDERS:  In addition, for certain -- for



             13        certain cancer treatments and, like, radiation



             14        treatments, they'll have to actually do a little tattoo,



             15        so they hit the same spot over and over again.  So we



             16        didn't want to make them have to get the body art



             17        license when they're already doctors; right?



             18                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  I just -- the cross



             19        contamination I've seen from the medical industry is



             20        horrific.



             21                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  And just so you know, that



             22        is not a change.  There is some wording clarification in



             23        there that actually --



             24                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Sure.



             25                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- makes it more strict now, but
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              1        that is an existing rule set.  So that was not a change,



              2        other than we actually clarified it for --



              3                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah -- yeah, I --



              4               MR. SCHMIDT:  -- both departments.



              5                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  I know.  I -- I just -- it



              6        doesn't make sense to me.  I just feel like, you know,



              7        if they -- if they had a better idea, you know -- and



              8        then regarding the -- okay.  So back to the lidoca- --



              9        lidocaine with physicians and licensing and loopholes



             10        and -- the FDA -- like, tattooing is considered -- is --



             11        is regulated under cosmetics; correct?



             12                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Tattoo inks are regulated as



             13        cosmetics by the FDA, if that's what you're referring --



             14                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  And tattooing with the FDA



             15        is considered what?



             16                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Nothing.  The FDA doesn't



             17        regulate occupations.  They regulate products.



             18                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  They regulate products --



             19                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah.



             20                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- not occupations.



             21                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah.



             22                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.  So then I -- if we



             23        are using our -- the product in -- by -- by the



             24        standards that the FDA sets, I don't -- I don't see what



             25        the problem is.
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              1                 MR. SAUNDERS:  It's because we're not



              2        consumers.



              3                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Because we're not consumers?



              4                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Yeah.  If --



              5                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  I know you've framed this a



              6        million times.  Like, first of all, the reality is we're



              7        going to use it anyways.  It doesn't matter.  You guys



              8        can make whatever laws you want.  We're going to do it



              9        anyways.  Bactine and BAND-AID wash have been around



             10        since time infinite.  Lidocaine has a wonderful,



             11        beautiful safety profile.  The OTC being between two to



             12        four percent is -- it's just -- it's so watered down,



             13        it's -- it's relatively harmless.  It's just -- the



             14        thing is, it's -- it seems like this -- like, the



             15        medical community shouldn't be involved in any way,



             16        shape or form.



             17                 So, now, if we have to -- if a client -- or if



             18        we have to go to a physician to get a prescription,



             19        you're involving the medical field, and they really



             20        shouldn't be involved at all.  I mean, not at all.  This



             21        is an art.  This isn't -- this isn't some kind of crazy



             22        medical procedure.  This is an art.  Like, it's crazy,



             23        because the FDA approves children to eat -- to eat red



             24        number 40.  I mean, there's 13,000 chemicals in our food



             25        that they don't have in the EU right now, and the FDA
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              1        approves them all.  You know, the FDA recently approved



              2        a very dangerous injection, where people are dying.



              3                 I mean, what -- you know, this is -- this is



              4        ridiculous, and I don't understand why Michigan, of all



              5        places -- because I've looked it up.  There isn't a



              6        single state in the Union that's doing this, except for



              7        Michigan.  So why?  Why is this happening?  Why is this



              8        happening now, and what can we do to circumvent this?



              9        Because we're going to do it anyways, so we might as



             10        well find a way to make an agreement in the language,



             11        you know, instead of just banning it outright.



             12                 And, I mean, this is just a huge disservice to



             13        all the clients, all the -- all of the tattooers, all of



             14        the people that do permanent cosmetic.  This is -- this



             15        is insane.  Like, I don't understand where this came



             16        from.  I don't -- like, usually things like this don't



             17        pop up for no reason.  I mean, were there a slew of



             18        complaints to the health department?



             19                 Because I tried to look that up, and I didn't



             20        see any.  I mean, I'm really confused.  Like, why is



             21        this happening just in Michigan and in no other state,



             22        right now?  I just am real curious.



             23                 MR. SCHMIDT:  I mean, I don't think any of the



             24        four of us can speak on behalf of any other state and



             25        what they are or are not doing.  We can just say what's
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              1        happening in Michigan.



              2                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.  But why?  I mean,



              3        what -- what was the -- was there -- was there a safety,



              4        like -- what -- what happened that this suddenly has to



              5        be done now?  I mean, I've been using, you know,



              6        Bactine, which benzalkonium is a natural -- it's an



              7        antiseptic, and it has lidocaine in it, and always has.



              8        It -- I mean, the basic -- like, Bactine and BAND-AID



              9        wash have two point five percent lidocaine in them, and



             10        have since time infinite.  And I've been using these



             11        products since 2008 without incident.  So I mean it --



             12        I'm -- I'm -- even within the language of the rules,



             13        it's -- it says it's okay to use an antiseptic on the



             14        skin, which, I mean, as far as I'm concerned, Bactine is



             15        an antiseptic, and so is BAND-AID wash.  I mean, that's



             16        correct?  We are allowed to use antiseptics on skin;



             17        right?



             18                 MR. SCHMIDT:  In certain cases you're required



             19        to, but with --



             20                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Sure.



             21                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- Bactine, you can use their



             22        wound wash, which does not contain lidocaine, and it



             23        still is an antiseptic agent.  You could use that.



             24                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Bactine's wound wash has



             25        always contained lidocaine --
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              1                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Nope.



              2                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- at two percent.



              3                 MR. SCHMIDT:  That's Bactine's pain relieving



              4        spray.  Their wound wash contains no numbing agent.



              5                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  I don't think I've ever seen



              6        just plain old Bactine wound wash without lidocaine,



              7        ever.  So how can we work this out so that we can still



              8        do our jobs?  Because it is impossible, like, that



              9        you're going to carve on a woman's face, on her eyes, on



             10        her eyeballs, on her lips, you know, "You don't get any



             11        numbing agent."  I don't -- I mean, all these women are



             12        going to be running into Ohio.  I mean, so nobody in



             13        Michigan can -- can get anything done ever now?



             14                 I mean, I -- like, this is really -- like,



             15        understand what's happening here, is that you're going



             16        to devastate the permanent cosmetic industry by not



             17        allowing this.  I mean, actually, you won't devastate



             18        them, because they'll still use it anyways.  But, I



             19        mean, you know, to some degree -- I mean, like, there



             20        has to be a way to figure this out.



             21                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Or it's going to --



             22                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Can I say something on



             23        that note?  I do think that by not offering -- and I



             24        know that it's the FDA and not you guys, but, like, not



             25        offering, like, some kind of guidance on, like, safe
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              1        brands or, like, something to use is just -- like she



              2        said, people are still going to use it, whether it's



              3        client or whether it's the service provider.  Like,



              4        they're still going to use it, and they're just going to



              5        use whatever they can get their hands on.  So I think



              6        that having some kind of, like -- I don't know.



              7                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah, regulations.



              8                 MR. SCHMIDT:  The state --



              9                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  (Inaudible).



             10                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- can't tell you how to violate



             11        state law, because it would still be in violation of the



             12        definition of practice of medicine.  We can't then say,



             13        "Oh, well, it's a practice of medicine" -- which I



             14        believe is a felony.  We can't then say, "But you can



             15        use this and still be in violation"; right?



             16                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  I understand.



             17                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Like --



             18                MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  I understand.



             19                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  So, basically, the problem



             20        is that we need to go to the state and have them change



             21        their definition of what is considered medical practice?



             22        Is that what we need to do?  Because they -- they --



             23        like -- like, this doesn't make sense.  Like, our



             24        business has -- like, this isn't -- is that what we need



             25        to -- we need to ask for them to change the language
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              1        that defines what a medical procedure is.  Is this our



              2        only recourse?



              3                 MR. SCHMIDT:  I guess you could do that.



              4                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Because, like, this is --



              5        this is really, like, you know, government overreach.



              6                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  I --



              7                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  This is ridiculous.



              8                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  -- talked to someone from



              9        the Society of Permanent Cosmetics, and they said that



             10        most likely we're going to basically, like, lobby



             11        against the state.



             12                 THE REPORTER:  Could you speak up a little,



             13        please?



             14                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  I'm sorry.



             15                 THE REPORTER:  It's okay.  You're soft-spoken.



             16                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Do you want me to repeat



             17        it?



             18                 THE REPORTER:  I think I got that, but just for



             19        the future, yeah.  Thank you.



             20                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  So when is this rule -- when



             21        -- when is this not made as a draft and when is this



             22        supposed to go into effect?  This is -- this is in draft



             23        form right now?



             24                 MS. BRENNAN:  Correct.  After the public



             25        hearing is over, the DHHS meets with the -- with Steve
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              1        and Jeff.  We go over all the public comments.  We make



              2        decisions.  These are DHHS rules.  And then the final



              3        rules are sent over to the legislature.  It's called



              4        JCAR, the Joint Committee on Administrative Rules.



              5                 Because of the election year and that



              6        legislature has failed to meet at all for the end --



              7        'til the end of the year, the rules will be sent in --



              8        the final rules will be sent in January 2nd.



              9                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  January 2nd.



             10                 MS. BRENNAN:  They have to sit there for 15



             11        session days, which is a misnomer.  It's misleading.  15



             12        session days means 15 days when the full legislature



             13        meets.  So when they finally become the law could be 15



             14        days.  It could be three months.  Who knows?



             15                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  And so I would assume that



             16        all of these people that are going to make the final



             17        decision on this, they're -- they're all politicians and



             18        people from the Department of Health and Human Services.



             19        There won't be any tattooers or -- involved?  There



             20        won't be any permanent --



             21                 MS. BRENNAN:  You have a tattooer right here,



             22        Jeff.



             23                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Well, I'm not a --



             24                MS. MOREHOUSE:  Jeff is a piercer.



             25                 MS. BRENNAN:  Or a piercer.
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              1                 MR. SAUNDERS:  We -- that's --



              2                 MS. BRENNAN:  I'm sorry.



              3                 MR. SAUNDERS:  That's what the work group was



              4        for.



              5                 MS. BRENNAN:  Yes.



              6                 MR. SAUNDERS:  There was --



              7                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  I'm sorry.



              8                 MR. SAUNDERS:  -- a lot of tattooers on there.



              9                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  A piercer, oh, that's cute.



             10        Well, piercers are like the --



             11                 MS. BRENNAN:  But we had plenty --



             12                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- (inaudible) of the tattoo



             13        industry.



             14                 MS. BRENNAN:  -- of tattoo artists on the work



             15        group.



             16                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Okay.



             17                 MS. BRENNAN:  And we have a health inspector



             18        here, and we do have DHHS here and the whole bit.  It



             19        depends on when I -- when this is all discussed.  Many



             20        times we've changed the rules based upon public comment;



             21        many times.  Many times we have had reasons, and we have



             22        to state the reasons, why we aren't going to change the



             23        rules.  So that will all be provided in the final rule



             24        package that goes over to legislature, and all of that



             25        will be online for everybody to look at.
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              1                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, the thing is that



              2        tattooing has been going on for thousands of years



              3        without incident and without the health department.  You



              4        know, we -- we've been just fine.  So, I mean,



              5        regardless of whatever the state rules are or aren't



              6        going to be, we're still going to go our own route and



              7        do what's best for our clients.  But there really should



              8        be a way to negotiate this.



              9                 Like, letting people know which products are



             10        good to use and which products aren't good to use,



             11        letting people know, like, a standard kind of protocol,



             12        would be helpful.  Again, we -- we can't take liability



             13        for what people do on their own time when they come in



             14        here.  I mean, it's not -- you know, it's a state law



             15        that we can't tattoo anybody under the influence.  You



             16        know, sometimes people look fine when they're in your



             17        chair, and then you start tattooing them about 45



             18        minutes, they did it all kind of squirrely and weird,



             19        and you realize, "Okay.  Maybe this person took



             20        something in the bathroom."  I mean, that's not -- it's



             21        not our -- I mean, like, we don't -- you know, we can't



             22        control what people do on their own time.



             23                 So, like, what do we need to do to get the FDA



             24        to stay out of this?  What do we have to do?



             25                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I have a question.  I don't
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              1        mean to interrupt --



              2                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  No.



              3                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- but this is exactly along



              4        the lines of that.  So I came here with just a big



              5        presentation about topicals.  I use the BAND-AID wash,



              6        too.



              7                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah.



              8                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I use the antiseptic wash



              9        all the time.



             10                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah.



             11                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Because --



             12                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  There's 2.5 percent.



             13                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Yeah, it -- there is, and I



             14        never even thought about it until you said that.



             15                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  And it's always been



             16        approved by the Health Department.



             17                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So my question is, if we



             18        can't use products we've always used to keep clients



             19        safe, I -- my infection rate is zero.  I don't have



             20        reports of infection.  I don't have -- I --



             21                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Right.



             22                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I don't -- I'm not



             23        understanding, if that all these things are going to be



             24        taken away from us and we're practicing safe practice



             25        right now -- we all care enough to come here and -- and
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              1        speak our minds and try to advocate for, you know, what



              2        we feel is right.  I don't understand, like, where is



              3        the -- where is the limit to that?  Like, if we can't



              4        use lidocaine because it's an over-the-counter, what



              5        about BAND-AID?  That's an over-the-counter.  Green



              6        Soap?  I mean, I know that they're in different, but



              7        they're still all things you can walk into a store and



              8        purchase.



              9                 And I will also just say this:  I've owned a



             10        medical billing company for 30 years.  I have 17 doctors



             11        right now that will prescribe this for me.  But it's not



             12        right, because when I ask them, "What would you -- what



             13        would you prescribe?"  "Well, I don't know.  Whatever



             14        you tell me."  "Wait, what?  Whatever I tell you?



             15        You're listening to me anyway."



             16                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Actually, she does bring up



             17        a good point.



             18                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  They don't know.



             19                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  It really is dangerous to



             20        have a doctor write a prescription for anybody getting



             21        tattooed.  I mean, are -- are doctors aware that once



             22        you go up at around eight percent it causes tissue



             23        necrosis?  Do they know that?  I mean, like, you know,



             24        are -- is there going to be some doctor out there that's



             25        just going to prescribe somebody a eight -- eight or 10
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              1        percent, like, just because --



              2                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Yes, there is.



              3                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- they don't know any



              4        better?  You know, I mean, these doctors don't -- you



              5        know, doctors think that stronger is better, you know.



              6        They might inadvertently write a prescription for



              7        somebody where the lidocaine content is so high that



              8        there's a -- that there's a problem, you know.  I mean,



              9        some of the topical creams that I've seen --



             10                   (Off the record interruption)



             11                 MS. BRENNAN:  That was our break time



             12        announcement.  I apologize.



             13                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Some of the topicals that



             14        I've seen for people, like -- like, post-surgical and



             15        stuff are -- I mean, are -- they're -- they're --



             16        they're pretty high percentages.  I've seen creams up to



             17        eight percent.  I've had clients actually say, "Hey, my



             18        grandma had this.  Can I use this ahead of time?"  "No,



             19        you can't.  It's really bad.  Like, that's way too



             20        high."



             21                 How does a doctor know.  How do we know that --



             22        I mean, like, this is the problem:  If we need a



             23        prescription from a doctor for our client or for us to



             24        use this product, then we're putting our trust in the



             25        doctors that they're doing the right thing.  And, first
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              1        of all, they shouldn't have anything to do with our



              2        industry.  But, secondly, you know, look this up, the



              3        highest rate of death in our country is because of



              4        medical malpractice in doctors.  I mean, they kill more



              5        than -- kill more people than anybody.  Go look it up.



              6                 We're going to trust the doctor to write us a



              7        prescription.  We can't trust the doctor.  That doesn't



              8        make any sense.



              9                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Well, for a procedure they



             10        don't know.  I mean, I was going to have a heart



             11        palpitations.  I didn't get sent to a gynecologist.  I



             12        got sent to a cardiologist, because that's what they



             13        know.  Now, do they have some knowledge of it for med



             14        school?  Yes.  But my mom was prescribed a topical --



             15        and this is why I'm so passionate about topicals.  She



             16        was prescribed topical to put on her port so when they



             17        accessed it, you know, it helped reduce the pain.  It



             18        was a prescription by her oncologist.



             19                 The skin was so broke down, they had to do a



             20        surgical procedure to remove her port from that topical.



             21        It was way too strong for her skin.  So she --



             22                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  (Inaudible) using it?



             23                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- actually started using



             24        mine, and she had no problem.  But --



             25                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  On a similar note, I was
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              1        looking at articles about deaths that occurred from



              2        applying numbing cream over large areas.  This one says



              3        the FDA reported the deaths of two women, ages 22 and



              4        25, who used topical anesthetics following laser hair



              5        removal treatments.  The FDA noted that the creams were



              6        formulated by pharmacies and contained high



              7        concentrations of the drugs lidocaine and tetracaine.



              8                 So I do think that if doctors are going to be



              9        writing these prescriptions that -- and they don't have



             10        the knowledge that the tattoo industry has and the



             11        amount of space that it's going to be used and



             12        everything, that I just think it's going to be



             13        dangerous.  And I know that you guys are basically



             14        creating a law in a manner that's compliant with the



             15        FDA, but I don't think that it's going to be in our best



             16        interest for clients.



             17                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I agree.



             18                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  I think it's abundantly



             19        clear that the FDA does not have our -- our -- the best



             20        interest of its citizens in mind.  That is so obvious.



             21                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I think the FDA has to make



             22        rules, big blanket rules, because there's so many down



             23        -- like, the minuscule amounts of rules, and then give



             24        the power to people like us to take that rule and say,



             25        "Okay.  This is -- this is what this means."  I mean,
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              1        there's so much in interpretation.



              2                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  They don't.  They're being



              3        paid by the corporations.  They don't care what we have



              4        to say.



              5                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Well, I want to believe that



              6        that's not always true and I want to believe that our



              7        voices are heard.  That's why we, you know, are here and



              8        that's why you're here.  I -- I think -- I don't want to



              9        ever believe that we live in a society that, you know,



             10        everything we do is just without purpose; I don't.  I



             11        don't want to believe that.  I want to believe that



             12        there is a greater good and what do matters.



             13                 And I'm not going to -- I don't -- I a hundred



             14        percent cannot sit here and say anything negative while



             15        physicians, because they've been my business until last



             16        December for 30 years.  But I think -- and they're very



             17        educated in their own specialty, but I cannot go to my



             18        gynecologist and talk to him about my tachycardia and



             19        have him say, "Well, this is what we're going to do."



             20        Now he's going to send me over to a cardiologist because



             21        that's what they specialize in.  This is what we



             22        specialize in.



             23                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Right.  And the -- and the



             24        language is very -- like, it's -- I mean, any physician?



             25        Doesn't matter -- doesn't matter what their specialty
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              1        is?  Any physician, we can just pick any one we want?  I



              2        mean, because I got three or four of them on lock.  I



              3        can get prescriptions all day.  You see, that -- that's



              4        the thing, that this isn't -- this isn't even really



              5        about our client's safety or about -- about protecting



              6        us under the law, or like -- this is just -- it -- it's



              7        -- it's just about money.



              8                 We have to go -- like, we can still have it,



              9        but we have to go to a physician for it.  Doesn't matter



             10        what physician, just any physician.  We can go to



             11        podiatrist, you know, and get -- podiatrists use



             12        lidocaine.  We can get a podiatrist to write it for us.



             13        Speaking of OB, I've got a friend.  I could get her to



             14        write me a script in a second.



             15                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Absolutely.



             16                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  I mean, does -- does the --



             17        does the -- the matter of study of what the physician



             18        does even matter?  I mean, that's -- that's -- it's



             19        ridiculous.  It's like saying any physician -- any



             20        physician, can write this for lidocaine, because they



             21        know so much more than all of you.  It doesn't make any



             22        sense.



             23                 How does this make sense?  Like, this is body



             24        art.  This is an art that we do.  This is not medical,



             25        and they need to stay out of it.  And I get you're
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              1        saying the FDA framework to protect us from liability.



              2        Protect us from liability how?  Like, as in our clients



              3        are going to sue us?  Doubt it, doubt it.  And, again,



              4        safety profile lidocaine, how many people are dropping



              5        for misuse of lidocaine?  And then off-label use, to



              6        tell you the truth, lidocaine is an off-label use



              7        altogether when it's used in topical anesthetic, because



              8        I was reading that it was originally started for -- it



              9        helps with arrhythmias, heart arrhythmias.



             10                 It's huge.  That was its original intent.  So I



             11        mean, all uses are pretty much off-label use for



             12        lidocaine, anyways.  I guess that's about all I got.



             13        But I mean, like, will we have another opportunity to



             14        voice our concerns here about this?



             15                 Because you realize this decision, this rule,



             16        will devastate the industry here in Michigan; right?  It



             17        will devastate everything if we won't be allowed to use



             18        these products.  And then how does that work with



             19        Amazon?  Do you call up Amazon and have them put a block



             20        on Michigan, so anybody who wants to order any kind of



             21        lidocaine in Michigan can't have it?  Because then what



             22        do people do post-surgical and people with hemorrhoids



             23        and -- you know, what -- what do we do with that?



             24                 I mean, like, where does it stop?  I mean,



             25        we're -- I just -- I just have these questions.  I need
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              1        answers.  Like, I mean, will we have another opportunity



              2        to talk about this?



              3                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  Your other opportunity is to



              4        reach out to your state representatives and tell them



              5        your feelings, because they're the ones that's going to



              6        approve it.



              7                 MS. BRENNAN:  Could I just comment on that?



              8        That's going to be premature.  Up until the point of



              9        that the rules are fully promulgated, there could be a



             10        hearing over at the Joint Committee on Administrative



             11        Rules.



             12                 But other than that, then once the rules are



             13        fully promulgated and there are still issues, Kathryn is



             14        correct, you would seek political assistance on that



             15        one.



             16                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I -- I feel like -- first



             17        and foremost, like, really late to the game.  This has



             18        been happening for years, and I didn't know.  And I



             19        would like to say it's just because I didn't really care



             20        before because it didn't affect me, but I do care and I



             21        really didn't know.



             22                 As soon as I found out, I was on the phone with



             23        my health department.  I was on the phone, like, trying



             24        to figure it out, trying to do something about.  It's



             25        not like I was, you know, negligent and just not doing
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              1        anything until it's almost too late.  I just didn't -- I



              2        honestly and truly didn't know.  If there was a



              3        committee, I can guarantee you I would have been on the



              4        committee.  If you would have had -- I guarantee that I



              5        would have shown up and spoke --



              6                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  I don't remember receiving a



              7        letter about any of that.



              8                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- and spoke to whoever



              9        wanted to hear me, and, you know, collaborated with



             10        other permanent makeup artists to have somebody be



             11        (inaudible).  But finding out at the last minute, and



             12        then having us try to do something about it -- I'm sure



             13        it wasn't intended to be sneaky so that we couldn't do



             14        anything about it, but it feels that way, that we were



             15        very much not represented.



             16                 It feels very much that didn't have a say, and



             17        I didn't get an email saying, you know, there's an



             18        opening on our work group that they're looking for a



             19        permanent makeup artist.  I never got that.  I never got



             20        anything.  I just didn't know.



             21                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Was there an original



             22        meeting that -- that we were supposed to be at that --



             23                 MR. SAUNDERS:  I believe it's 2019.



             24                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  During COVID?



             25                 MR. SAUNDERS:  2019.
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              1                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Just before COVID.



              2                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Was there an email that went



              3        out about that?



              4                 MR. SAUNDERS:  That's when I -- when I found



              5        out about it, it was then and there was, like -- it was



              6        the initial --



              7                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  How did you find out,



              8        though?



              9                 MR. SAUNDERS:  -- email.



             10                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So you did get an email?



             11                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Yeah.



             12                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah.



             13                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  So the email was about the



             14        public hearing.



             15                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Yeah, it was --



             16                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I haven't had an email



             17        change in probably 17 years.  It's always been the same



             18        email.



             19                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Yeah, I --



             20                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  The last one that I got was



             21        how you guys deregulated everything on ears.



             22                 MR. SCHMIDT:  I'm sorry.  What was that?



             23                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Everything that was



             24        deregulated regarding ears.



             25                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Ear piercing?
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              1                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah.



              2                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  Ear piercing was never in the



              3        body art law.



              4                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  You, well, there was some



              5        kind of -- regarding ears.  If it had anything to do



              6        with ears, it was not under the -- you know, it wasn't



              7        part of the -- that was the last one I got.  It was --



              8        there was something about ears.  The way -- it was --



              9        ears were, like, deregulated, not considered part of a



             10        body art modification, kind of like, do whatever you



             11        want with ears is what I got.



             12                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  It was never deregulated.  It



             13        was never part of --



             14                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  It was never part --



             15                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  -- the law.



             16                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah.  There was something



             17        about ears.  That's the last -- last thing I received.



             18        It was like, "It's got nothing to do with it.  You can



             19        do whatever you want."



             20                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  In 2019 there was a hearing, a



             21        public hearing, when, basically, they were trying to



             22        pass the NEHA Model Code as the rules.  That had a very



             23        large turnout.  I wasn't the one that sent those emails.



             24        I don't know -- I'm assuming it went to the owners, like



             25        it did this time.  And we had a very large turnout, and
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              1        from there, artists, owners asked to be on the



              2        committee, because it was decided then, that day at the



              3        public hearing, there was going to be a work group put



              4        together.



              5                 I know that -- I'm pretty sure that inspectors



              6        maybe recommended if we asked for members, new members,



              7        and then local health departments also volunteered to be



              8        on the group.



              9                 MS. BRENNAN:  Let me follow up on what she had



             10        said.  There was no way we were going to get every body



             11        art, health inspector and the whole thing.  So it was



             12        cross represented.  There were not one, there were two



             13        already public hearings.  We're working on our 14th year



             14        of trying to get these rules promulgated.  So we --



             15        there was a cross selection of artists, health



             16        inspectors and DHHS that were on the work group.



             17                 Now, for -- again, for transparency, a work



             18        group is not needed.  DHHS could have sat down and just



             19        did their rules based on whatever they wanted, and we



             20        have a public hearing, but I always recommend the work



             21        group to get to the best interest of the stakeholders



             22        and everybody else.  So who was on that 2000- --



             23                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  -19.



             24                 MS. BRENNAN:  That was the second one.  There



             25        was a -- one 2016 --
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              1                 MR. SCHMIDT:  '16.



              2                 MS. BRENNAN:  Was it '16?



              3                 MR. SCHMIDT:  So the original email was sent



              4        out to all facilities and health departments on June



              5        28th of 2016, regarding the first public hearing.



              6                 MS. BRENNAN:  Okay.



              7                 MR. SCHMIDT:  And then October 21st of 2-- --



              8        I'm sorry -- October 18th of 2019 --



              9                 MS. BRENNAN:  Okay.



             10                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- regarding the previous public



             11        hearing.



             12                 MS. BRENNAN:  Okay.  So this is the third.  And



             13        I believe the originals on both work groups -- I know



             14        Jeff was part of both work groups -- I mean, not Jeff.



             15        I'm sorry.  Steve.  Jeff, were you part of the --



             16                 MR. SAUNDERS:  No, I didn't live here before



             17        that.



             18                 MS. BRENNAN:  Okay.



             19                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  I don't think there was a work



             20        group for the last one, was there?  There was a --



             21                 MS. BRENNAN:  There was a work group on that



             22        one as well.



             23                 MR. SCHMIDT:  There were a couple --



             24                 MS. BRENNAN:  Yeah.



             25                 MR. SCHMIDT:  There were a couple updates to

�

                                                                             85







              1        the current requirements that are still highlighted.



              2        It's from 2018.  So that was the work group that existed



              3        from 2016 to (inaudible).



              4                 MS. BRENNAN:  And that was it, the 2016 work



              5        group to the 2019 at work group, who's interested from



              6        that group.  They were still interested.  It was not an



              7        intentional, "We're going to not go to this geographical



              8        area," or, "Oh, my God.  What a pain in the butt she



              9        is."  You know, we didn't do any of that.  It was the



             10        cross reference of --



             11                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.



             12                 MS. BRENNAN:  -- all of the people who were on



             13        the previous ones.  And your best interests -- and don't



             14        hit me, but that's how the work group came around.  Was



             15        a work group necessary or legal, or were we supposed to



             16        have one?  No.  Did we have one?  Yes.  But there was no



             17        intentional leaving out anyone.



             18                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I just know that I wouldn't



             19        want to be making rules about piercers, because I have



             20        no desire to do that, nor do I know the rules and



             21        regulations for a piercer, because I don't have to,



             22        because it's not my specialty.



             23                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Well, we did have tattoo artists



             24        and permanent makeup artists on the committee; right?



             25                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  There's not one permanent
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              1        makeup artist.



              2                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  That stopped coming over a



              3        year ago.



              4                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Right, but --



              5                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  So they even (inaudible).



              6                 MR. SAUNDERS:  -- this is five years of that.



              7                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  Okay.  I will say that even



              8        though they weren't attending the meetings, every



              9        meeting they got the updates.  They know everything that



             10        changed every time they were highlighted.  So while they



             11        weren't attending meetings, had they saw something they



             12        disagreed with, they could have still reached out.



             13                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But maybe they just didn't



             14        reach out because they were just done with the whole



             15        thing.



             16                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  That's a possibility.



             17                 MR. SAUNDERS:  It's possible, yeah.



             18                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  We also can't just put out a



             19        thing to every artist who wants to go, because how do we



             20        decide who's on the workgroup?



             21                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.  That's what if --



             22                 MS. BRENNAN:  That's even worse.



             23                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- 300 people show up?



             24                 MS. BRENNAN:  Yeah.



             25                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  Right.
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              1                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I understand.



              2                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Well, I would like the



              3        record to note that if there is ever another work group,



              4        or anything dealing with anything like this at all, big



              5        or small, I would like to be a part of that.



              6                 MS. BRENNAN:  We have your name, yeah.



              7                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  So, yeah, for the record,



              8        I'd just like to say that what we are doing is not a



              9        medical procedure, and we want doctors completely out of



             10        it; completely out of it.  It really -- I mean, I don't



             11        know what to tell you guys.  I think that in the -- in



             12        the Michigan -- in the code, something needs to be



             13        written as to, like, the requirements, safety



             14        requirements, for these numbing agents, rather than none



             15        at all without a physician's, you know -- maybe the --



             16        the nomenclature could be as -- in accordance with FDA



             17        regulations.  Because if you read the FDA regulations,



             18        it, like, doesn't seem to have a problem with us using



             19        it.



             20                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  On yourself.  That is not to --



             21                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  That's fine; that's fine.



             22                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  -- occupations.



             23                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  On ourselves.  So, you know,



             24        if your -- your client happens they have a tube in their



             25        hand, they can put it on themselves before we tattoo;
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              1        right?  That's on them.  So that would be our go-around



              2        -- right? -- to hand the tube to the client and have the



              3        client apply it?  That way we didn't do it; right?  And



              4        way we don't need a prescription --



              5                 MS. BRENNAN:  Well, there --



              6                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- because the client used



              7        it for whatever they needed it for; correct?



              8                 MS. BRENNAN:  I'm sorry.  There won't be any



              9        validation until after the group meets and decides if



             10        it's correct or not.  I'm sorry.  There are some answers



             11        you can get right on the spot.  There are others that



             12        need discussion.



             13                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Sure.



             14                 MS. BRENNAN:  And so that's on the record, and



             15        the transcript will be read and the whole thing.



             16                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, I mean, I figured if



             17        the go-around would be to get a prescription from a



             18        doctor, and this is OTC, and people can do what they



             19        want with their -- I mean, like, if somebody puts their



             20        own lotion on, I mean, you know, of course we recommend



             21        we want the skin clean of lotions and oils and whatever.



             22        But, I mean, you know, somebody puts a lotion on, that's



             23        on them.  So -- so we'll just have to find another



             24        go-around, I guess.  We'll just have them apply it



             25        themselves and instruct them on how to properly apply it
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              1        themselves, so that it's done within the confines of the



              2        law.  Is that what we need to be telling everybody?



              3                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Except the new law states



              4        that they -- if we are aware that they've applied



              5        themselves, which includes us telling them how to apply



              6        it --



              7                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, if they go into the



              8        bathroom, we don't know what they're doing in the



              9        bathroom with that tube.



             10                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  We can't tell them, or then



             11        we know.  I mean, I -- I'm just thinking that's --



             12        that's how it's written.  It's backed us into a corner.



             13                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  I feel like the way that



             14        it's written, like, and the basis of the FDA part of it,



             15        like, we're not practicing medicine and we're not



             16        applying it, and we're not participating in off-label



             17        use.  So how does our knowledge of them using it, like,



             18        we're -- our hands are off of it -- violate the FDA law?



             19                 MR. SCHMIDT:  You're not violating the FDA law.



             20                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  If we're talking about --



             21                 MR. SCHMIDT:  It's not really an FDA law, but



             22        whatever.



             23                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  If we're talking about,



             24        yes, because it's our licensing regulations.  So,



             25        technically, if they come in --
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              1                 MR. SCHMIDT:  And you --



              2                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  -- and me applying it --



              3                 MR. SCHMIDT:  And you work on them --



              4                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  -- and I know, but how is



              5        it violating the FDA law by just having knowledge, but I



              6        didn't put it on?  Because I'm not participating in the



              7        off-label use by applying it.



              8                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, they --



              9                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Because you're tattooing onto



             10        skin which has been affected by it; right?  That's now



             11        not what it's approved -- right?  It's applied to be on



             12        the skin, not then tattooed upon; right?



             13                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, what we -- what we



             14        need to have them do is strike from the language that



             15        they are not allowed to put that on ahead of time,



             16        because, really, I don't believe it's any of the state's



             17        business what a client does in their skin ahead of time



             18        before they come into the studio.  Wouldn't that be a



             19        reasonable assumption; right?



             20                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Well, for the same reason as you



             21        can't tattoo on a part of the body that has, like, a



             22        rash or a disease going on or something like that;



             23        right?  The existing and proposed wording, that's all



             24        included as well; right?



             25                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.  But, again, normally,
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              1        when somebody uses lidocaine ahead of time, there's



              2        basically no visible signs.  I mean, okay.  It might be



              3        cool to the touch, but people get nervous.  Their skin



              4        gets cool anyways.  It might be maybe cool to the touch.



              5        It might maybe be discolored.  But sometimes looking at



              6        somebody, you can't tell at all if they've used a



              7        product or not.  So --



              8                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  We're guessing --



              9                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  It would --



             10                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- instead of applying the



             11        correct --



             12                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  It would make sense to just



             13        completely strike it from the language altogether about



             14        if we suspect that this -- that it's been on the skin,



             15        or if it's been applied to the skin or -- I mean, what's



             16        the reference here?  I mean, because if you just strike



             17        that piece of language out of there, then that would



             18        probably solve a lot of the problems, wouldn't it?  We



             19        could just eliminate that.



             20                 I mean, because it's one thing if the skin is



             21        in bad condition, as in, there's -- there's bumps or



             22        breaks or abrasions or -- you know, that's one thing if



             23        we see visible signs, but it's another thing if we don't



             24        see any kind of visible issues with the skin.  And



             25        lidocaine has no effect on the healing of the tattoo or
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              1        pigment retention or any of that.  As -- you know, I



              2        mean, I've been using it, you know, since about 2008,



              3        2010.  I've never had a problem with healing, ever.  In



              4        fact, I haven't found a single person that's even



              5        allergic to it, yet, which I believe there are.  I know



              6        there are people.  I always ask people ahead of time,



              7        "Are you allergic to lidocaine?"



              8                 So, yeah, if you could strike that part from



              9        the language, then, you know -- because there's --



             10        there's other language in here that's a little vague as



             11        well.  So, I mean, why not?  Why can't we just strike



             12        that from the language?  I don't -- I don't see that



             13        we'd be in violation of anything that way.  Like, it



             14        really should not be our job to govern what people do



             15        with their skin when we're not tattooing it.



             16                 I mean, you know, we give them care on how to



             17        heal their tattoo, and I'll tell you what, some people,



             18        they just do whatever they want anyways, you know, and



             19        that's completely beyond our control.  So could we



             20        negotiate for that?  Could we take that out of the



             21        language?



             22                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And I feel safer -- I feel



             23        more safe doing it myself, buying a product that I know



             24        is reputable with my education and my knowledge, and



             25        buying something that I've used for thousands of people
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              1        and always had a positive result, knowing exactly how



              2        much to apply, that more is not better, you know.



              3                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Right.  Which --



              4                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  (Inaudible).



              5                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Which is exactly --



              6                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.



              7                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  The go-around would be, "You



              8        use your product," and maybe you put out this much of a



              9        portion and whatever --



             10                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And you --



             11                MS. CHERYL JONES:  And just go --



             12                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But I don't feel like --



             13        right.  You're right.  It's a slippery slope, because



             14        that's where the comfort is, because then we have the



             15        control over what's being used, how it's being used, and



             16        we know.  They come back with a bad result, and we can



             17        say, "Well, you know, I know 'this', 'this' and 'this',"



             18        but my clients lie.  They lie to -- about all kinds of



             19        things.



             20                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah, they do.



             21                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I can't change that, but



             22        we're letting them buy a product that could be used for



             23        anal numbing for -- and put it on their eyelid.  I just



             24        -- it just seems like we're creating a bigger problem.



             25                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  A much bigger problem, yes.
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              1                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And I want to say this:  You



              2        know, I -- I feel like -- I've only been in this



              3        industry for eight years.  And, you know, when I was 18



              4        years old, there was a (inaudible) tattoo.  I went there



              5        with all my girlfriends one night, got a tattoo, you



              6        know, and thought that, "Oh, that must be legal."  I



              7        didn't know.  I didn't know anything like I know now, at



              8        54 years old.  I had no idea.  And I feel like in the



              9        last eight years, we really are starting to become a



             10        professional -- a professional group of people.



             11                 Like, we -- I feel like the whole idea of



             12        tattooing and cosmetic -- cosmetic tattooing and



             13        permanent makeup and how we operate, it's looked at a



             14        lot higher than maybe it used to, just because of



             15        knowledge itself.  Not that it's better than it used to



             16        be, but there's a lot more knowledge about it.  There's



             17        a lot more --



             18                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  There really is, but the



             19        corporations realize that they can make money off of our



             20        industry finally.  So that's -- that's why it's



             21        legitimatized, because the more legitimate you are, the



             22        more these organizations, like the FDA, you know, the



             23        state, they can come in and regulate you.



             24                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.  I just -- I don't



             25        know.  I feel like there's something that should be done
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              1        or that has to be done for all of us to be able to have



              2        what our wants are satisfied; the want to make sure that



              3        they're using the right product, the want to make sure



              4        that they're comfortable during the procedure, the want



              5        to make sure they're not putting a product on some part



              6        of the skin that it should not go on in desperation to



              7        just have it done, but be numb.



              8                 Because, let's face it, we're women.  We're



              9        going to figure it out.  I mean, we are.  We're going to



             10        use all kinds of things that we shouldn't be using, and



             11        doing things we shouldn't be doing just to be able to



             12        get through it.  And that's not a comfortable situation



             13        for any of us performing those procedures, if we don't



             14        know --



             15                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, like, isn't this



             16        legitimately, like, the whole abortion argument; right?



             17        I mean, you know, you have to make abortion legal for



             18        people so they can do that.  You know, this is -- this



             19        is ridiculous.  I mean, like, what -- I mean, it's --



             20        it's, like, it's -- it's the same exact thing.  You're



             21        going to decide what people are or aren't allowed to do



             22        with their bodies, you know, because these FDA -- this



             23        is -- it doesn't make any sense.  None of this makes any



             24        sense.



             25                 The medical field needs to stay out of our
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              1        industry.  I mean, as far as regulating autoclaves,



              2        okay.  That makes sense.  Regulate the autoclaves.  But



              3        anything else, you know -- we know far more about this



              4        industry than any physician would.  It doesn't make



              5        sense the physician should have their hands in anything



              6        we do at all; at all.  They shouldn't be touching us.



              7                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I wouldn't let my physician



              8        tattoo me.



              9                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Absolutely not.



             10                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  You're for sure going to



             11        have women putting numbing agents on their own eyelids,



             12        and all the issues that are going to come from that.



             13                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  People could potentially go



             14        blind from this.



             15                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And what if we are using



             16        products that interact with the products they used



             17        because they didn't tell us they used it.  I mean, we're



             18        creating a bigger problem, I -- I personally think,



             19        because of what we don't know.  At least if we're doing



             20        it ourselves, we do know.  And are there going to be



             21        people that break the rules?  There are.  But there's



             22        going to be people like us out there standing up for the



             23        rules and maybe getting the word out there, like, you



             24        know --



             25                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  No, not me, because I don't
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              1        understand how I've used this product since 2008, 2010,



              2        you know, I've never had a problem.  And now suddenly,



              3        you know, well, because the FDA and there's a framework



              4        and this -- you know, so, yeah, I mean, I guess we have



              5        to change the -- the term -- the what a medical



              6        procedure is.  I mean, how do we fix this?  I mean,



              7        because I figure, like, you guys are supposed to help



              8        us; right?



              9                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Specifically with this rule,



             10        this is -- this isn't -- this is a clarification of



             11        what's already existing law, and we can't change the



             12        laws.  So you would have to change the laws through



             13        political means.



             14                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  So you're saying that this



             15        is already an existing law?



             16                 MR. SAUNDERS:  This is an existing law.  We --



             17                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Uh-huh.



             18                 MR. SAUNDERS:  We didn't change it, like, even



             19        if we had not --



             20                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  I mean, this was never in



             21        the -- in the verbiage for -- for the body art ordinance



             22        before.



             23                 MR. SAUNDERS:  So this was, like, a



             24        clarifications so that you -- people were aware of the



             25        existing laws.
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              1                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.  But what if we just



              2        don't put the clarifications in there, and they're not



              3        part of the body art ordinance at all?



              4                 MR. SAUNDERS:  It would still be a law.



              5                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But the FDA is federal;



              6        right?  And there are others -- I am a part of several



              7        permanent makeup groups all over the United States, and



              8        nobody else has laws like this.  And I know you can't be



              9        concerned with what other people are doing, but if



             10        they're governed by the FDA, too --



             11                 MR. SAUNDERS:  So --



             12                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- what's their workaround?



             13                 MR. SAUNDERS:  So it gets complicated, but the



             14        big thing is, if a packaging -- if your packaging right



             15        now says, "You can apply this for numbing before a



             16        tattoo," it is not approved for that use.  The FDA says



             17        that's not a legal use, and they don't -- that's a new



             18        drug that needs a new 510(k) number.  So using that



             19        product could put you at some degree of risk, but also



             20        if a product is being sold that is not -- does not have



             21        the right labeling for what is being sold as --



             22                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  What about just a general,



             23        topical numbing, doesn't say anything about anything



             24        else?



             25                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Then it's going to be an

�

                                                                             99







              1        over-the-counter for the consumer.  And I get where



              2        you're frustrated; right?  Totally makes sense to me,



              3        but we can't change any of that.  That's not us.  We're



              4        just putting it in there for clarification.  So whether



              5        it's in there or not, it will still be the law in



              6        Michigan, and it's probably the law nationwide.



              7                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Okay.  But that so the FDA



              8        is a federal --



              9                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Well, that -- so the FDA is



             10        going to make rules about drugs, and since this is an



             11        over-the-counter drug for consumer use, as soon as a



             12        tattoo artist or a piercer or whatever starts applying



             13        it in their occupational use, things get different;



             14        right?  And that's going to be a state -- state rule,



             15        but in Michigan that falls under the practicing medicine



             16        without a license.



             17                 And that, we don't have any control over



             18        because we didn't -- we don't make the laws.  Like,



             19        we're just making rules based on those laws.



             20                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So I have a question.  If a



             21        client of mine walks into my building, they tell me they



             22        have a headache, and I give them an 800 milligram of



             23        Motrin, which was my prescription, I'm breaking the law,



             24        obviously.



             25                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah.
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              1                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I know I can't administer



              2        medication.  But if I hand them a bottle of ibuprofen I



              3        just bought at Rite Aid that's 200 milligrams, and they



              4        take it themselves, are they breaking the law?



              5                 MR. SAUNDERS:  You would have to talk to a



              6        lawyer.  I don't think so, but I don't know.



              7                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Because they're putting an



              8        over-the-counter -- they're taking and over-counter drug



              9        themselves.



             10                 MR. SAUNDERS:  But for its -- its listed use.



             11                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But the listed use of



             12        lidocaine on the back of my bottle is for -- for relief



             13        of pain.



             14                 MR. SAUNDERS:  But that's -- but not for



             15        tattooing.  I know that sounds like a very specific



             16        thing, but it has to say for tattooing --



             17                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So -- okay.



             18                 MR. SAUNDERS:  -- and it can't be legally say



             19        that.



             20                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So let's say that I -- they



             21        -- they -- I'm going to go back to the whole example I



             22        just used.  So let's say they come in and they say,



             23        "Man, like, I'm just really having these uterine cramps,



             24        and I really need something for pain.  You have an



             25        ibuprofen?", and I hand them the bottle of 200 milligram
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              1        ibuprofen, but the back only says for headache.  It does



              2        not say -- now am I breaking the law --



              3                 MR. SAUNDERS:  But --



              4                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- because it doesn't say



              5        uterine pain?



              6                 MR. SAUNDERS:  It doesn't say specifically



              7        uterine pain, but it's going to say for general muscular



              8        pain; right?



              9                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But my -- the back mine says



             10        for pain.



             11                 MR. SAUNDERS:  I -- we're talking about a



             12        hypothetical thing.



             13                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.



             14                 MR. SAUNDERS:  If we bust it out, it's going to



             15        say something that covers that; right?  The other thing



             16        is that, in addition -- and I know this is annoying, but



             17        you handing them does actually have some liability if



             18        you do that in a professional way; right?  If you're



             19        saying, "As a tattooer, I'm going to give you this



             20        meditation," then, yeah, liability changes; right?  As



             21        your friend -- right? -- "I'm going to hand you this."



             22        It's a different thing; right?  That -- that is still



             23        over-the-counter use.  I don't like these rules either,



             24        but this is just basically what it is.  It's the way



             25        American law is set up.
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              1                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But is it okay just to say,



              2        "It is what it is"?  I mean, when it affects so many



              3        people -- if there was a law that was being passed that



              4        said, "You can't use a machine that you used safely for



              5        30 years, and you know it's better than anything on the



              6        market, and you're super passionate about it," and they



              7        told you to use this hollow needle over here, and this



              8        is all you could use -- I'm just making this up because



              9        I don't even know what it is.



             10                 But I'm just saying, if you knew that was



             11        wrong, in your core of core you know that's wrong.



             12        Somebody got it wrong.  You just can't believe that's



             13        what they're saying.  Wouldn't you fight for it, too?



             14                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Sure, absolutely.  But you've



             15        got to fight for it politically, not because -- I think



             16        what folks in this room would like us to say is that,



             17        "Okay.  We're going to change that rule."; right?  But



             18        we can't.  It's not our rule.  It's a state law.



             19                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But if you can adapt it, how



             20        come you can't change it?



             21                 MR. SAUNDERS:  It's -- we can't change the



             22        laws; right?  We can change certain -- the wording of



             23        certain rules, but this one in particular, that I



             24        understand is not popular -- right? -- we don't have any



             25        ability to change, because it's part of the state laws.
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              1                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  So we need to talk to the



              2        state or the state really has no wiggle room because of



              3        the FDA?



              4                 MR. SAUNDERS:  It's going to involve both.



              5                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Okay.



              6                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Yeah.



              7                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Because you said that the



              8        FDA has no intention to ever approve any of the --



              9                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Well, they won't, unless there's



             10        a new drug application -- right? -- which you need



             11        clinical trials and studies published in peer reviewed



             12        scientific literature, that then goes to the FDA to



             13        designate whether it's -- we know it's effective or



             14        whether it's safe; right?  That -- that's how you get a



             15        new drug approved in the United States.



             16                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  That's actually -- that's



             17        not really how it goes.



             18                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But this isn't a medical



             19        service we provide.  This is --



             20                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah.



             21                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  This is --



             22                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  The problem is when you let



             23        the medical industry -- the Medical-industrial Complex



             24        -- into something that is not medical, where does it



             25        stop?  So -- okay.  We need a prescription to use these
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              1        anesthetics; right?  Then -- then -- then it turns into,



              2        "You have to have a medical license be able to tattoo."



              3        I mean, like, where does it -- where does it stop?



              4        Like, once they get their fingers into this industry,



              5        it's just going to keep going.  It's not going to get



              6        any better.  So, I mean, like, we're already in the



              7        situation where we have to get a prescription from a



              8        doctor.  What happens next?  What happens next?  At some



              9        point, we have to have medical licenses to be able to



             10        tattoo.



             11                 MR. SAUNDERS:  And this is why I would say it's



             12        well -- it's -- it's really worthwhile to be involved in



             13        whatever organizations you have in your particular



             14        industry.  Because, you know, I've been doing this for a



             15        really long time in terms of I was the legislation



             16        coordinator for the Association of Professional



             17        Piercers, and we would be in meetings with, like, NEHA



             18        and, you know, California, and there wouldn't be any



             19        tattooers involved, because none of those organizations



             20        have much traction; right?



             21                 Getting involved with those gets you in the



             22        room on all of these conversations, because they're



             23        happening in a lot more rooms than this.  This is sort



             24        of -- what you're at is sort of the end of the line.



             25        You really want to be earlier.
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              1                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But the organizations that



              2        I'm involved with are -- are all in other states, which,



              3        when I reached out to every single person I know -- I



              4        think there was, like, 47 people I reached out to --



              5        they're like, "Yeah, we don't -- we don't have any -- we



              6        don't do that."



              7                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah, and I reached out to



              8        --



              9                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  "We don't have any rule like



             10        that."



             11                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  I --



             12                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So there's no meaning about



             13        it, because they're -- they're not enforcing anything



             14        like that.  So this is the beginning for all of us.



             15        This is the first time we knew.



             16                 MR. SAUNDERS:  But this is a national thing;



             17        right?  One of your chief -- chief issues ends up being



             18        an FDA issue; correct?



             19                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.



             20                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Yeah.  So you need some -- an



             21        organization that speaks with the FDA.



             22                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  How do the organizations



             23        that I belong to speak to the FDA on this topic?



             24        Because --



             25                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  None of the organizations
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              1        you're involved in have enough money to speak with the



              2        FDA.



              3                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Well, maybe they do, but



              4        they're not going to go speak to the FDA for little



              5        Tammy Hadley in Michigan, because it doesn't concern all



              6        of that, because nobody's pressing these -- these rules.



              7                 MR. SAUNDERS:  I can only speak to my personal



              8        experience --



              9                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.



             10                 MR. SAUNDERS:  -- as an artist; right?



             11                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  I spoke with my buddy from



             12        the APT.  Nobody knew this was going on.  I wasn't



             13        informed.  It's not on the APT website.  Nobody knew



             14        this was going on.



             15                 MR. SAUNDERS:  And that's -- that's kind of why



             16        I would -- I would suggest being involved with the APT;



             17        right?  Really, really be involved and --



             18                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  But -- but they don't know



             19        it's going on.



             20                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  They don't --



             21                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Like, I literally talked to



             22        Derby (phonetic); he's got no idea this is going on.



             23        Like, I mean, I talked to a friend of mine who is very



             24        heavily embedded in the APT.



             25                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Right.
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              1                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Nobody knows this is going



              2        on.



              3                 MR. SAUNDERS:  I don't know how that's



              4        possible, because it's been so well published before



              5        this.  You know, that 2019 meeting was two days and --



              6                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I didn't know.



              7                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Just because --



              8                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And I check all my emails



              9        and I pay attention.



             10                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Was that the one that we had



             11        in the winter?



             12                 MR. SAUNDERS:  It was October.  And I believe



             13        there was a follow-up one in December, was it?



             14                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, I mean we --



             15                 MR. SAUNDERS:  I -- I --



             16                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  I remember taking part --



             17                 MR. SCHMIDT:  I know we extended some public



             18        comment.



             19                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Yeah.



             20                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- in a two-part, two-day



             21        whole, long fiasco.  We got snowed out and it was --



             22                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  I have a question.  Do you



             23        guys --



             24                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- and that was never even



             25        mentioned.
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              1                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  -- seek out the APP for



              2        their guidance on their regulations, or do they offer to



              3        you and you take it?



              4                 MR. SAUNDERS:  So the APP doesn't involve --



              5        the APP is involved insofar as I'm active in the APP,



              6        but I'm not reporting at anybody at the APP; right?



              7                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  I'm just wondering for,



              8        like -- like, if the Society of Permanent Cosmetics



              9        wanted to provide you with guidance, you would need



             10        somebody who's a member to be part of a work group, but



             11        work groups aren't going to exist anymore 'cause you



             12        guys are done?



             13                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  So we will have a smaller work



             14        group that's going -- we're going to make guidance



             15        documents for things -- some things that are taken out



             16        of the rules, some things that are just, you can't have



             17        a rule, but we can make the best practices kind of



             18        thing.  So there will be people that are making that --



             19                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  After --



             20                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  -- but it will be -- the work



             21        group was very large.



             22                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  So I mean after -- like,



             23        let's say you guys figure all this out, it gets



             24        approved.  Beyond that point, are you going to continue



             25        to have any work groups to do any more changing?
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              1                 MS. MOREHOUSE:  Like a monthly work group or



              2        quarterly or something like that?



              3                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  I don't know.  Anything at



              4        all.



              5                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  No.  I mean, it sounds like



              6        this is final draft, and then they're going to pass it



              7        into law, and then we have to --



              8                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  And then nobody gets



              9        together for meetings or anything?



             10                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  No.  And then we have to



             11        fight and have them change the definition of, I guess,



             12        whatever a medical procedure is in the state of



             13        Michigan, because that, evidently, is a problem.  So



             14        that's where it has to start.



             15                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I think the whole thing to



             16        me -- and, I mean, I'll just make it super basic -- is



             17        that I don't understand -- and I'm a pretty educated



             18        person, I'd like to think -- is that I can take a



             19        microblade, scratch the surface of the skin and put a



             20        pigment in there that is not FDA approved -- maybe



             21        components of it are regulated, but it is not FDA



             22        approved because there isn't one ink that is FDA



             23        approved -- and that's okay.  But I cannot swipe a



             24        topical over the top of it, and that -- that's not okay.



             25                 I can -- I can use microblades and tattoo
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              1        needles and everything else that's not FDA approved on



              2        that skin, but this one particular thing that happens to



              3        be the one particular thing that makes the client



              4        comfortable, I cannot use.



              5                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Because it's a drug.  I know --



              6        I know it's an unpleasant thing, but it is a drug.  It



              7        is --



              8                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Over what percentage?  Any



              9        percentage?



             10                 MR. SAUNDERS:  I don't define what the drug is.



             11                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Because this has four



             12        percent.



             13                 MR. SAUNDERS:  For consumer use.  I know we



             14        keep on running around in a circle.  I --



             15                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, what's crazy is -- is



             16        tattoo ink was not even approved by the FDA up until



             17        very, very, very recently; very, very recently.  And I



             18        believe the only company that has been approved by the



             19        FDA is Eternal Tattoos, I believe.



             20                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  It's not approved.



             21                 MR. SCHMIDT:  It's not approved, but it's --



             22                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Oh, it's not approved.



             23                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- regulated as cosmetics.



             24                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Yeah.



             25                 MR. SCHMIDT:  How they regulate cosmetics and,
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              1        "approve" them is --



              2                MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  There is not --



              3                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- way different than --



              4                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  So our industry is --



              5                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- (inaudible).



              6                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Our industry is being



              7        regulated by the cosmetic industry and by the medical



              8        industry, both?



              9                 MR. SCHMIDT:  With regards to products, yes.



             10        And some of them, like tattoo needles, piercing needles,



             11        those are completely unregulated; right?  The FDA



             12        doesn't classify --



             13                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Absolutely.



             14                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- those as --



             15                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  There is not one thing --



             16                 MR. SCHMIDT:  -- anything at all.



             17                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- in our industry that is



             18        FDA approved, not one.  I looked.



             19                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  But we still have state laws



             20        that regulate all this anyways, regardless of all the



             21        things that we use that are not FDA approved in here.



             22        There's still rules.  There's still laws associated.



             23        And you acknowledge what we're using, this is all



             24        acknowledged in here, and these are the rules.  And not



             25        all of these things are approved by the FDA.
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              1                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  None of them are.



              2                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  But, yet, this is still a



              3        state body art -- it doesn't make any sense.  So just



              4        this one thing pertaining to the FBA -- FDA is



              5        applicable, but all the other stuff is not?  I mean --



              6                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  That's my question.  I asked



              7        it another way.



              8                 MR. SAUNDERS:  The -- so there are FDA things



              9        that we use for reference, and one of them is going to



             10        be their relationship with drugs.  And with tattooings,



             11        as that's an emerging thing, I expect some changes over



             12        the next 10 years, which you -- I mean, Steve is --



             13                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Yep.



             14                 MR. SAUNDERS:  -- really keen on this stuff,



             15        but the drug science --



             16                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah, they can't wait to get



             17        their fingers on it.



             18                 MR. SAUNDERS:  -- is really established.



             19                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So let me ask this:  What in



             20        our industry or your -- you know, what, from the time



             21        they walk in to we cleanse the skin, we choose if we're



             22        going to do, you know, a powder brow or microbladed



             23        brow, whatever, a pigment, anything, what is reg- --



             24        what is FDA approved?  Out of any of those services,



             25        there's nothing, not one thing.
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              1                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Your skin antiseptics are



              2        definitely approved.  The packaging for the skin



              3        antiseptic is approved.  The packaging for the autoclave



              4        package is approved.  Like, so much of it is FDA studied



              5        and approved.  I know it doesn't speak to your point



              6        and, to an extent, I really agree with your point, but



              7        there's not anything this group can do about it.



              8                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  I mean, even Green Soap



              9        says, "Cleanse the skin."  Green Soap isn't FDA



             10        approved.



             11                 MR. SAUNDERS:  It is for -- as a soap.



             12                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But it doesn't specifically



             13        say -- I mean, I read a whole thing.  I mean, there's,



             14        like, a 19-page article about this.



             15                 MR. SAUNDERS:  I -- for what it's worth, I



             16        don't think you should use Green Soap, but you don't



             17        want to get me started on skin prep.  It will be boring



             18        and long -- long-winded talk.



             19                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And I don't -- for what I



             20        do, I don't need to use Green Soap.  But it shows all



             21        over in our industry, and a lot of people think very



             22        highly of it.  That's my point.  My point is just that



             23        each of us do little things a little bit different.



             24        And, you know, nothing in our industry is really FDA



             25        approved.  You said the packaging.  Well, forget the
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              1        packaging.  Like, what's inside?  Are -- are --



              2                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Exactly.  That -- that is also



              3        FDA approved, especially the things like isopropyl



              4        alcohol --



              5                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Which is --



              6                 MR. SAUNDERS:  -- (inaudible).



              7                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- wiped over the skin.



              8        It's not put into the skin; right?  But the pigment is



              9        put into the skin, and that's not FDA approved.



             10                 MR. SAUNDERS:  That is in the process.



             11                 MR. SCHMIDT:  I mean, I wouldn't make that



             12        argument on a large scale, because te the FDA might



             13        start regulating those as something other than



             14        cosmetics.



             15                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Well, I'm not trying to, but



             16        I'm just saying, like, all these things that we do, are



             17        not regulated, and then there's this one little thing



             18        over that is regulated.



             19                 MR. SAUNDERS:  But it's the one that's a drug.



             20        I get -- I get it.  I'm on your side.



             21                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  It's the one that makes the



             22        client comfortable.



             23                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Again, but it's not it's nothing



             24        that this group could change, because we can't



             25        fundamentally change the state law.
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              1                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Could you give the authority



              2        to enforce it?



              3                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Actually, with enough



              4        people, you can fundamentally change the state law, yes.



              5                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Yeah, well I agree.



              6                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  With a petition and with



              7        enough people, you can change it.



              8                 MS. BRENNAN:  I think what he's trying to get



              9        it is there's nothing --



             10                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right now.



             11                 MS. BRENNAN:  -- this panel can do.



             12                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.



             13                 MS. BRENNAN:  Yeah.



             14                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  No, I understand.



             15                 MS. BRENNAN:  Yeah.



             16                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But I think we're all here,



             17        looking for you -- the four of you for something to



             18        guide us, because we don't know.  I've never been to a



             19        meeting with this before.  I have no idea how it works.



             20        What can we do?  How can we -- I don't want to say, get



             21        around it, but, I mean, what can we do so we can still



             22        keep providing the services that we're providing, not



             23        put that into the hands of uneducated or unknowing



             24        clients, still working on skin that we know what's



             25        actually on it and the amounts that are put on it?
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              1        Like, what can we do?



              2                 MR. SAUNDERS:  My suggestion is, if you have a



              3        company that you believe in their product, and believe



              4        that it is safe for tattooing -- right? -- an anesthetic



              5        solution, then you ask that company to get FDA approved



              6        for that use.



              7                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Okay.



              8                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Then they have to go make the



              9        application, spend the money and prove that their



             10        product is safe.



             11                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And they're going to do that



             12        for one state out of all the other states?



             13                 MR. SAUNDERS:  No; no.  That would --



             14                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- that don't require it.



             15                 MR. SAUNDERS:  -- be for the entire country.



             16                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But nobody else requires it



             17        but us.



             18                 MR. SAUNDERS:  I bet you everybody requires it.



             19                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  But nobody enforces it.



             20                 MR. SAUNDERS:  That could be true.



             21                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  That's probably the fairest



             22        way to say it.  I --



             23                 MR. SAUNDERS:  And that's not my understanding.



             24        My understanding is plenty of places, actually --



             25                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  37 states I made contact

�

                                                                            117







              1        with, and out of those 37 states, not one of them -- and



              2        not -- I'm not talking about, like, at the state level.



              3        I'm talking about reputable permanent makeup artists, or



              4        people that were active in groups, or one studies --



              5                 MR. SAUNDERS:  They -- they don't know.



              6                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  -- and not one of them said



              7        it was regulated at all.



              8                 MR. SAUNDERS:  But my guess is, and this is --



              9        this is one of the reasons that it's in these rules --



             10        is that it's probably illegal nationwide; right?  They



             11        don't know, because they don't know.  And one of the



             12        reasons of putting it in the rules is that so you knew;



             13        right?



             14                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Yeah.  I mean, maybe.



             15                 MR. SAUNDERS:  So if you get a company to go



             16        through those hoops, then you will have a legal product.



             17                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  They're not going to.



             18                 MR. SAUNDERS:  I agree they're not going to,



             19        but I don't see why we're upset with the people trying



             20        to make sure that tattooing is as safe as possible, and



             21        not the company that's not willing to spend the money to



             22        prove the product --



             23                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Because we're trying to make



             24        sure tattooing is safe as possible, also.



             25                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Then -- then the way to do that
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              1        --



              2                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  And -- and we're looking out



              3        for our clients, because we know them personally.  We



              4        know their stories.  We hear them cry.  We know every



              5        single thing about them.



              6                 MR. SAUNDERS:  So --



              7                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  We're protecting them.



              8                 MR. SAUNDERS:  So what's objectionable about



              9        studies to prove that the product safe?  What's



             10        objectionable there?



             11                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  But how many studies do we



             12        have that prove that low levels of product are unsafe?



             13        There aren't any?



             14                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Again, this is an unknown;



             15        right?



             16                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  So -- so we're going with an



             17        unknown.  The FDA can't prove it's safe.  We can't prove



             18        it's unsafe.  So we're going to go with the unknown, and



             19        the unknown is we can't use it.  Like, it doesn't make



             20        sense that, you know --



             21                 MR. SAUNDERS:  I think it makes a lot of safe



             22        (sic) for a product to prove that it's safe for its



             23        intended use.



             24                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.



             25                 MR. SAUNDERS:  I think -- I don't think that's
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              1        unreasonable to say, "Hey, here's a drug.  Let's prove



              2        it safe.  And it's going to cost some money, but at the



              3        end of it, we have the evidence, and we've convinced the



              4        government that it's safe."  I don't see that being a



              5        problem.



              6                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Dude, why -- how did we get



              7        all these vaccines?  None of them were ever fucking --



              8                 MS. BRENNAN:  Hey.



              9                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  It's unbelievable.  They



             10        don't -- they weren't -- they weren't -- they didn't



             11        have clinical trials, like the TPP.  They didn't have --



             12        they didn't have clinical trials for their vaccinations,



             13        but they're worried about lidocaine.  That's crazy.



             14        Where is -- where is their clinical trials on all their



             15        vaccinations and all their bullshit?



             16                 MR. SAUNDERS:  I -- we can't --



             17                 MS. BRENNAN:  Please refrain from any



             18        profanity.



             19                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yes, ma'am.



             20                 MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you.



             21                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Sorry about that.



             22                 MS. BRENNAN:  It's okay.



             23                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.  So, basically, this



             24        meeting was so that you could hear our grievances?



             25                 MS. BRENNAN:  Correct.
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              1                 MR. SAUNDERS:  Correct.



              2                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  So you take these grievances



              3        to the -- the next level?



              4                 MS. BRENNAN:  Uh-huh.



              5                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  And then that's it?



              6                 MS. BRENNAN:  Based upon the public comment



              7        today, this group -- not me.  I'm only here for



              8        procedure -- will review all of the public comments and



              9        make a determination whether the rules should be



             10        changed.  It's as simple and complicated as that.



             11                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So I have a question.



             12                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  So, basically, no matter



             13        what we say, they will side with what the FDA is telling



             14        them, and the rules set aside for Michigan, the



             15        definition of medical procedure, and there really is



             16        nothing that we can do other than --



             17                 MS. BRENNAN:  We haven't even had the meeting



             18        yet.  How can you say that?  We are going to meet, I on



             19        the procedure, these three on the substantive issues,



             20        and decide whether the rule should be changed.  I don't



             21        know if -- because of the FDA and the whole thing -- and



             22        by the way, federal law trumps any other law.



             23                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.



             24                 MS. BRENNAN:  So that's a problem.  And I think



             25        Jeff is trying to say there is nothing we can do about
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              1        it.  "We side with you, but," and the whole bit.  But



              2        this group will meet.  I cannot tell you at this



              3        particular time what the final rules are going to be.



              4                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So has there ever been a



              5        situation where this is the law, like law, but it's



              6        going to be enforceable by, like, the county health



              7        department, and that -- because the county health



              8        department is the person who meets with us on an



              9        independent level to -- I mean, is there anything like



             10        that?  Like, because if the FDA has made the law, you



             11        can't -- you can't supersede what that law is.



             12                 MS. CHELSEA ORRICO:  Didn't they do that with



             13        marijuana and the states approved.



             14                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Correct.



             15                 MS. BRENNAN:  Federal government gave



             16        regulation to the states, just like abortion.



             17                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  So what could be -- and I'm



             18        not saying it's going to be, but, like, hypothetically,



             19        what could be done to allow us to continue to practice



             20        the way that we're practicing, on your part anyway?



             21        Anything?



             22                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah, like, I mean, can't



             23        you guys help us with loopholes?



             24                 MS. BRENNAN:  No, I'm a lawyer.



             25                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  What do you mean, you're a
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              1        lawyer?



              2                 MS. BRENNAN:  I'm a good lawyer.  No.



              3                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Good lawyers don't need



              4        loopholes.



              5                 MS. BRENNAN:  We don't --



              6                MS. CHERYL JONES:  Who wrote this?



              7                 MS. BRENNAN:  -- like to call it loopholes.



              8        We'd like to, again, review and see what other



              9        alternatives we could come up with.  Thank you.  So --



             10                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Right.  Can we find other



             11        alternatives?



             12                 MS. BRENNAN:  That will be part of the



             13        discussion that this group has.



             14                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Again, my -- I'm really



             15        curious what -- like, what -- never mind; never mind;



             16        never mind.  Okay.  So, yeah, about the -- the health



             17        department I would assume would be enforcing this rule



             18        for us not being able to have any kind of antiseptic or



             19        lidocaine or whatever?



             20                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Yes, because they come do



             21        our inspections.



             22                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Right.  I mean, there are so



             23        many people tattooing out of their houses right now that



             24        the health department hasn't even touched.  I don't know



             25        why I'm worried about the health department.
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              1                 MS. TAMMY HADLEY:  Because you're worried about



              2        following the rules.  That's why.  Because you're here.



              3                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Yeah, well, not in this



              4        particular instance I'm not.



              5                 MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you.  Would anyone like to



              6        take a break?  Yay.  15 minutes, please.  Let me see.



              7        11:05, please.  We'll go back on the record at 11:20.



              8        Off the record.



              9                          (Off the record)



             10                 MS. BRENNAN:  Back on the record.  It's 11:22



             11        a.m.  We're here on Body Art Facilities, 2023-59 HS.



             12        Would anyone like to make a comment?  Please don't



             13        forget to sign in.  Forgot to tell you that.  And if at



             14        any time you want to come up and make a comment, let me



             15        know, and we'll go back on the record.  Off the record.



             16        Thank you.



             17                          (Off the record)



             18                 MS. BRENNAN:  Back on the record, 11:30 a.m.



             19                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Many, many years, one -- one



             20        of my initial arguments that really disturbed me and



             21        part of what prompted me to write a letter to the health



             22        department many years ago, was that in the body art



             23        ordinance, that there is no minimum age requirement for



             24        piercing or tattoos.



             25                 And that was one thing that I thought was
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              1        actually really important, especially as a mom, now,



              2        like, a grandma.  It's kind of really important, because



              3        we have age limits for, you know, tobacco use and age



              4        limits for driving cars and age limits for all kinds of



              5        things.



              6                 And one of the problems that occurs for me



              7        repeatedly in this industry is that there are tattoo



              8        shops out there that'll tattoo anybody.  You know,



              9        they'll tattoo a 12 year-old kid, a 14 year-old kid, you



             10        know, 15 year-old kid.  I realize parental consent is



             11        important, but there's a lot of parents out there that



             12        -- I mean, I've had parents argue with me.  I, of



             13        course, will turn them down.  I've had parents argue



             14        with me over getting their 14 year-old daughter



             15        tattooed, you know, and I've refused.



             16                 I'm just curious, how come -- after all these



             17        years, if this isn't an official, you know, rule set



             18        yet, or official law, how come we haven't made a minimum



             19        age requirement yet?  I really feel that that's super



             20        important.  If this ain't final, why -- why can't we --



             21        why can't we add that?  I mean, that's something that,



             22        quite honestly, has bothered me for years and years and



             23        years that, you know, there's people getting away with



             24        tattooing children, you know.  And these kids are left



             25        with these -- with the consequences of, you know, all

�

                                                                            125







              1        these bad decisions.  And I feel like if we just had,



              2        you know, some kind of limit, that would be really quite



              3        helpful.



              4                 I know people still get tattooed underage, and



              5        people will still go to houses, and people still do



              6        that.  And I know the argument that people have used is,



              7        "Well, if they don't get it done in a professional shop,



              8        they'll just go somewhere anyways."  But I mean, most



              9        tattooers, there's, like -- we all kind of -- if you're



             10        kind of -- a tattooer with any kind of morals, you have,



             11        like, a professional code of conduct where you just



             12        don't tattoo kids under a certain age.  Not every



             13        tattooer is like that.



             14                 So, I mean, I am kind of curious, after all



             15        these years, I mean, like, why have we not made a



             16        minimum age requirement at this point?



             17                 MS. BRENNAN:  Panel?



             18                 MR. SCHMIDT:  So it's two things that that kind



             19        of touches on.  The first part is, and I know we've gone



             20        over this, and government is weird with a lot of things,



             21        we're here to promulgate rules; right?



             22                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Sure.



             23                 MR. SCHMIDT:  And that -- those rules have the



             24        full force and effect of law, but they technically



             25        aren't the law.  That requirement that's existed since
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              1        2010, where you can do it on a minor, we just need



              2        consent, proof of all that stuff, that is already in the



              3        law itself.  So this whole process isn't to rewrite the



              4        existing law.  It's to write the rules.



              5                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Sure.



              6                 MR. SCHMIDT:  So we can't change that today or



              7        in -- as part of this process.



              8                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  So you're -- so that is law?



              9                 MR. SCHMIDT:  That's law, yes.



             10                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Okay.  With parental consent



             11        --



             12                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Yep.



             13                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- but, again, not stating a



             14        minimum age requirement?



             15                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Correct.  But that would require



             16        a change in the existing law that we're not here to



             17        discuss, or we don't have the authority to change the



             18        existing law.  That would have to go through the state



             19        legislature.



             20                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  So that's never getting



             21        changed?



             22                 MR. SCHMIDT:  You would have to go through the



             23        state legislature --



             24                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  I don't --



             25                MR. SCHMIDT:  -- and petition them.
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              1                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  I don't want to do all that.



              2                 MR. SCHMIDT:  While we're on the topic, do you



              3        have suggestions for minimum age for any of the --



              4        whether it's piercing, tattooing, cosmetic tattooing,



              5        branding or scarification, and what's the theory behind



              6        it?  I'm -- just blanket, like, whatever you think.



              7                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, suggestions or



              8        recommendations, I would say -- I would say it would be



              9        different for piercing versus tattooing.  I would say



             10        minimum age for some piercings, as in ears, nose, 15 is



             11        reasonable, because, I mean, at that age, kids have a



             12        pretty good concept of how to clean themselves, clean



             13        their bodies, kind of clean their rooms.



             14                 And what you're left with at the end of the day



             15        is, like, minimal scarring, a little tiny -- you know,



             16        if the piercing gets rejection or, you know -- I believe



             17        16 should be a good, hard line.  That's when a kid gets



             18        a driver's license.  I mean, if a kid's supposed to be



             19        responsible enough to drive a car at 16, I think, you



             20        know, piercings and tattoos would be okay.



             21                 But, like, one of the issues with underage



             22        tattooing is -- is migration.  You know, you tattoo



             23        these kids too early, especially boys, you know, under a



             24        certain age, their tattoo is in one place when they're,



             25        like, 15, but when they're 21 it's not in the same place
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              1        anymore.  It'll -- it'll move.  But, yeah, I mean, I



              2        think -- I think 16 is a pretty good line for piercing



              3        and tattoos, where kids have a pretty decent



              4        understanding on, you know, how to handle their bodies



              5        and how to -- you know, they've already had health class



              6        in school, you know, those kinds of things.



              7                 So I think 16 is pretty reasonable.  Maybe 15



              8        for piercing, 16 for tattoos, or even 16 all across the



              9        board.  I mean, it doesn't kill anybody at a wait a year



             10        or two to get a piercing or a tattoo, but it just seems



             11        like --



             12                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Well, I can tell you, I took my



             13        niece to get her ears pierced the first time at 13 years



             14        old, and if I didn't do that, she would have gone with



             15        somebody to Claire's.



             16                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Well, yeah, but, I mean,



             17        we're talking about ear piercing --



             18                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Right.



             19                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  -- you know, which isn't



             20        even -- you know, we're not even talking about that.



             21        I'm talking about, like, belly buttons.  I'm talking



             22        about, like, I don't think it's appropriate for a grown



             23        adult to be, you know, piercing belly button, you know,



             24        if somebody -- I mean, 16 is, like, even kind of weird



             25        for me.  But 16 -- you know, anything, under 16.  And
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              1        girls are usually -- their bodies kind of start slowing



              2        down, as far as growth goes, you know, around 15, 16,



              3        17.  And -- and that way, that their piercing doesn't



              4        migrate or, you know, get displaced.



              5                 I mean, like, you know, doing that too young --



              6        I mean, we're not talking about, like, ears.  I mean,



              7        I'm talking about body piercings, you know, things that



              8        could potentially be a problem.  I just feel like 16 is



              9        a reasonable age.  A lot of times -- well, I mean, not



             10        the 16 year-olds make all the best decisions, but I



             11        think a 16 year-old is going to make -- is going to do



             12        better healing their tattoo than a 13 year-old, you



             13        know.  And it gets really weird because, like, there's a



             14        -- there's -- there's a -- there's a group of people out



             15        there, they're all about getting their kids tattooed at



             16        ridiculously young ages, and they don't seem to have a



             17        problem with it.



             18                 And there are tattooers out there that will



             19        just flat out lie to parents and be like, "No, there's a



             20        state law.  It's 16.  I can't do it."  You know, I mean,



             21        I won't.  I'll just be honest with them that I just



             22        won't do it.  But, yeah, I mean, I -- I guess it's too



             23        late for any of that now, but I just feel like -- and



             24        that was something I felt very strongly about in the



             25        beginning, was that there should have been a minimum age
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              1        requirement for tattoos and piercings.  But all right,



              2        that's it.



              3                 MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you.



              4                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Thanks for answering my



              5        question.



              6                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Do you want the MCL number for



              7        what the current law is?



              8                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  No, I'll find it.  I find --



              9        I mean, I know it's there.  I know it says, "With



             10        parental consent," and I get that, you know, but, still,



             11        there's just -- I mean, legally, a parent could bring



             12        their 11 year-old in.  And it gets -- it gets weird.



             13        Where is those child endangerment laws?  Like, where's



             14        the line for all that?  I guess there aren't any when it



             15        comes to tattooing.  So -- all right.  That's --



             16                 MR. SCHMIDT:  I mean, I, personally, don't



             17        disagree with any of that.  It's just not in the



             18        purveyance of the --



             19                 MS. CHERYL JONES:  Right.  And -- and I was



             20        confused by that, because that was one of the -- you



             21        know, that that's what prompted everything.  That's what



             22        prompted my letter to begin with, was that I worked at a



             23        studio where my son -- my son went to school with an 11



             24        year-old girl who got her belly button pierced at the



             25        studio that I worked at when I -- when I was not there,
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              1        of course, with parental consent.  Not that that's okay,



              2        but -- but I guess that's perfectly, you know, legal.



              3                 But that was, you know, one of the reasons why



              4        I wrote that letter, is there should be minimum age



              5        requirements.  These kids can't -- you know, her belly



              6        button was infected, and they were asking me for advice.



              7        You know, she's 11.  Of course her belly button is



              8        infected.  That's crazy.  You know, but, I mean, I guess



              9        -- but, yeah, thank you.  Thanks for clarifying that for



             10        me.



             11                 MR. SCHMIDT:  Thank you.



             12                 MS. BRENNAN:  Thank you.  I see you all rushing



             13        up here to talk, "I want to talk."  Off the record,



             14        please.



             15                          (Off the record)



             16                 MS. BRENNAN:  It is now 2:00 p.m., but we have



             17        not had any public comment since 11:00 o'clock a.m.



             18        Public Hearing is over.  Any further comments can be



             19        sent to the MDHHS-adminrules@michigan.gov email box



             20        until Friday.  Public hearing has ended.



             21                     (Hearing concluded at 2:03 p.m.)



             22



             23



             24



             25
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